
AGENDA
Pwyllgor PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AMGYLCHEDDOL

Dyddiad ac amser 
y cyfarfod

DYDD MAWRTH, 6 RHAGFYR 2016, 4.30 PM

Lleoliad YSTAFELL BWYLLGORA 4 - NEUADD Y SIR

Aelodaeth Cynghorydd Mitchell (Cadeirydd)
Y Cynghorwyr Aubrey, Clark, Chris Davis, Hill-John a/ac 
Darren Williams

Tua 
Amser.

1  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  

2  Datgan Buddiannau  

I’w gwneud ar ddechrau'r eitem agenda dan sylw, yn unol â Chod 
Ymddygiad yr Aelodau.

3  Strategaeth Beicio Ddrafft Caerdydd a Map Rhwydwaith 
Integredig  (Tudalennau 1 - 86)

(a) Bydd y Cynghorydd Ramesh Patel, Aelod Cabinet dros 
Drafnidiaeth, Cynllunio a Chynaliadwyedd yn gwneud datganiad 
ar yr eitem o’r enw Strategaeth Beicio Ddrafft Caerdydd a Map 
Rhwydwaith Integredig' (os yw’n dymuno gwneud felly).  

(b) Bydd swyddog o Gyfarwyddiaeth Gweithrediadau’r Ddinas yn rhoi 
cyflwyniad ar yr eitem o'r enw 'Strategaeth Beicio Ddrafft 
Caerdydd a Map Rhwydwaith Integredig’.

(c) Bydd y Cynghorydd Patel a swyddogion o Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Gweithrediadau’r Ddinas ar gael i ateb cwestiynau’r Aelodau.

4.40 pm

4  Ffordd Gyswllt Ddwyreiniol y Bae – Cydastudiaeth Arfaethedig  
(Tudalennau 87 - 94)

(a) Bydd y Cynghorydd Ramesh Patel, Aelod Cabinet dros 
Drafnidiaeth, Cynllunio a Chynaliadwyedd, yn gwneud datganiad 

5.25 pm



ar yr eitem o’r enw ‘Ffordd Gyswllt Ddwyreiniol y Bae-
Cydastudiaeth Arfaethedig’ (os yw’n dymuno gwneud felly).  

(b) Bydd swyddog/swyddogion o Gyfarwyddiaeth Gweithrediadau’r 
Ddinas  yn rhoi cyflwyniad ar yr eitem o’r enw ‘Ffordd Gyswllt 
Ddwyreiniol y Bae-Cydastudiaeth Arfaethedig’.

(c) Bydd y Cynghorydd Patel a swyddogion o Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Gweithrediadau’r Ddinas ar gael i ateb cwestiynau’r Aelodau.

5  Gwasanaeth Cynllunio – Diweddariad i Aelodau  (Tudalennau 95 - 
148)

(a) Bydd y Cynghorydd Ramesh Patel, Aelod Cabinet dros 
Drafnidiaeth, Cynllunio a Chynaliadwyedd, yn gwneud datganiad 
ar eitem o’r enw ‘Gwasanaeth Cynllunio – Diweddariad i Aelodau’ 
(os yw’n dymuno gwneud felly) 

 
(b) Bydd y Cynghorydd Michael Michael, Cadeirydd Pwyllgor 

Cynllunio yn gwneud datganiad ar yr eitem o’r enw ‘Gwasanaeth 
Cynllunio – Diweddariad i Aelodau’ (os yw’n dymuno gwneud 
felly).  

(c) Bydd swyddog o Gyfarwyddiaeth Gweithrediadau’r Ddinas yn rhoi 
cyflwyniad ar yr eitem o’r enw ‘Gwasanaeth Cynllunio – 
Diweddariad i Aelodau’

(d) Bydd y Cynghorydd Patel, y Cynghorydd Michael a swyddogion o 
Gyfarwyddiaeth Gweithrediadau’r Ddinas ar gael i ateb 
cwestiynau’r Aelodau.

6  Gohebiaeth  (Tudalennau 149 - 174)

Bydd yr aelodau’n cyflwyno sylwadau ar yr ohebiaeth a anfonwyd ac a 
dderbyniwyd yn ddiweddar gan y Cadeirydd ar ran y Pwyllgor.

6.40 pm

7  Dyddiad y cyfarfod nesaf  

Cynhelir cyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor ar 10 Ionawr 2017.

Davina Fiore
Cyfarwyddwr Llywodraethu a Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol
Dyddiad:  Dydd Mercher, 30 Tachwedd 2016
Cyswllt:  Graham Porter, 029 2087 3401, g.porter@cardiff.gov.uk

This document is available in English / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Saesneg





Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 
 

CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFF 

DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                      6 DECEMBER 2016  

 

 
DRAFT CYCLING STRATEGY & INTEGRATED NETWORK MAP 

 
 

 

Reason for the Report 
 

1. To provide Members with the opportunity to consider the ‘Draft Cardiff Cycling 

Strategy – 2016 to 2026’ (attached to this report as Appendix 1 ) and Cardiff’s 

‘Integrated Network Map’ (attached to this report as Appendices 2, 3, 4 & 5 ).   The 

two documents are due to be received at Cabinet on: 

 
• Integrated Network Map – 15 December 2016;  

• Cardiff Cycling Strategy – 19 January 2017. 

 
Background - Cardiff’s Cycling Strategy 
 

2. The ‘Draft Cardiff Cycling Strategy 2016 to 2026’ (attached to this report as 

Appendix 1 ) sets out the Council’s vision for cycling and the steps it will take over 

the next 10 years to realise it. The strategy shows how cycling could make an 

important contribution to the vision of making Cardiff the most liveable capital city in 

Europe. 

 
3. The development of this document has involved extensive engagement with a wide 

range of groups, organisations and businesses.  The Council will continue to engage 

with stakeholders to ensure that it achieves the best possible outcomes when 

implementing the actions set out in the strategy. 

 
4. The ‘Draft Cardiff Cycling Strategy – 2016 to 2026’ is broken up into four key 

sections, these are: 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

• Introduction  – This part of the strategy sets out current transport trends; 

predicted future trends; the reasons for the vision for cycling in a city like Cardiff, 

and the challenges that Cardiff faces to make the required changes.  

 
• Infrastructure  – This part of the strategy outlines the quality of routes necessary 

to build a cycle network for all ages and abilities.  It then sets out the steps that 

the Council will take to achieve this.  

 
• Key Partnerships  – This part of the strategy takes a closer look at how cycling 

can support three important aspects of city life: schools, workplaces and retail.  In 

addition to this the section also outlines what the Council is doing to promote 

cycling among its own workforce.  

 
• The Action Plan  – This part of the strategy sets out the actions to be taken to 

deliver the vision contained within the strategy; this includes the timetable for 

delivery. 

 
Background – Integrated Network Map 
 

5. Having suitable infrastructure in place for cycling is vitally important for delivering the 

vision of Cardiff’s Cycling Strategy. The ‘Integrated Network Map’ and ‘Existing 

Route Map’ are the documents that map out the availability and quality of cycling 

and walking infrastructure.  

 
6. The Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 places a requirement on local authorities in 

Wales to plan for provision for active travel routes and demonstrate continuous 

improvement in delivery for active travel. The mechanism through which local 

authorities are required to plan their active travel routes is the Existing Route Map 

and Integrated Network Map. 

 
7. The Statutory Guidance for the Delivery of the Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 

defines “active travel” as “walking and cycling as an alternative means to motorised 

transport for the purpose of making everyday journeys”. The definition of “walking” 

includes people who use wheelchairs and other mobility aids. 

 

Page 2



3 
 

8. The Existing Route Map (attached as Appendix 2 ) sets out existing active travel 

routes which have been audited using the Audit Tool in the Welsh Government 

Active Travel Design Guide and have achieved an audit score of 70% or above. This 

use of the Audit Tool is a requirement of Welsh Government. The Existing Route 

Map for Cardiff was submitted to Welsh Government and approved in April 2016 

following stakeholder engagement and a 12 week period of public consultation. 

 
9. The Integrated Network Map sets out the plans of the local authority to develop or 

improve active travel routes over the next 15 years. It will include short to medium 

term schemes (within the next 5 years) which are clearly defined and have a clear 

intention for delivery subject to funding, and longer term schemes which are more 

aspirational and speculative and as such are less clearly defined. Following 

submission of the first Integrated Network Map to Welsh Government in 2017, the 

Existing Route Map and Integrated Network Map must be reviewed and resubmitted 

every 3 years. 

 
10. Although the transport and health benefits of walking and cycling are similar, 

pedestrians and cyclists have different needs and different levels of existing 

provision within Cardiff. Therefore, the approach taken to developing the Existing 

Route Map and the Integrated Network Map in Cardiff has been to develop two 

separate sets of maps for each user group with a different methodology to route 

identification, following the Welsh Government Guidance. It is proposed that 

Integrated Network Plans are submitted for ‘Priority Walking Networks’ and ‘Cycle 

Routes’; these are attached as Appendices 3 & 4  respectively. 

 
Integrated Network Map for Walking 
 

11. Cardiff has an extensive basic network of walking routes which generally make 

adequate provision for pedestrian journeys. A complete audit of all the existing 

pedestrian routes in Cardiff would have required a very significant resource in terms 

of staff time. It was, therefore, necessary to prioritise which pedestrian routes should 

be audited and investigated further. 

 
12. As a first step in this process, officers identified pedestrian infrastructure 

improvements which have been implemented by the Council over the last 5 years. 

Routes incorporating these improvements which connect communities with key trip 

Page 3



4 
 

destinations (within a reasonable walking distance) were then identified and audited 

using the Welsh Government walking Audit Tool to assess whether they provide the 

required level of service in accordance with the Active Travel Act which would 

enable them to be included on the Existing Routes Map. 

 
13. In order to identify routes to be improved through the Integrated Network Map, 

networks of local routes to key local destinations were identified covering areas 

where there are known pedestrian safety issues which have already been 

investigated by the Council through the rolling programme of Area Studies 

investigations. These appear as prioritised schemes on the Transport Projects 

Future Programme (attached as Appendix 5 ). 

 
14. Ten ‘Priority Local Walking Route Networks’ have been identified for delivery of 

improvements within the short term (next 5 years). These networks incorporate 

schemes prioritised within the Transport Projects Future Programme for delivery 

within the next five years and were audited using the Welsh Government Audit Tool 

to ensure that proposed improvements meet the minimum standards set out in the 

Welsh Government Active Travel Design Guide and to identify additional 

improvements that may be required to improve the attractiveness, comfort, 

directness, safety and coherence of the routes. 

 
15. A schedule of schemes has been developed for the Priority Walking Route 

Networks, taking into account: 

 
• Pedestrian safety improvement schemes within the Transport Projects Future 

Programme; 

• School Safety Improvement schemes; 

• Improvements identified through the Route Audit Tool; 

• Improvements scheduled to be delivered through other Council programmes and 

identified through internal consultation with Council Officers. 

 
16. Pedestrian safety improvement schemes and school safety improvement schemes 

which are not within the 10 Priority Walking Route Networks are shown on the 

Integrated Network Map as schemes to be delivered medium to long term (5 to 15 

years). 

Page 4



5 
 

Integrated Network Map for Cycling 
 

17. In contrast to the network of existing walking routes, existing provision for cycling in 

Cardiff is fragmented and incomplete. The majority of cycle routes audited as part of 

the work to produce the Existing Route Map did not meet the minimum standards 

required by the Welsh Government Audit Tool. 

 
18. Cycling routes which were audited as part of the Existing Route Map development 

work were identified from the following sources: 

 
• Existing off road routes (for example, Taff Trail); 

• Existing signed on road routes (for example, route from Sophia Gardens to 

Victoria Park); 

• Routes which have been developed through the Council’s Enfys programme to 

deliver routes set out in the Strategic Cycle Network Plan, which connect 

communities with the highest propensity to cycle to key destinations;  

• Routes identified by cycling stakeholders as existing routes.   

 
19. All routes which were considered for the Existing Route Map have been included in 

the scope for the Integrated Network Map. In order to create a comprehensive 

aspirational future network of routes which will connect communities to destinations 

across the city, further routes were identified for inclusion in the Integrated Network 

Map from the following sources: 

 
• Routes identified in the Strategic Cycle Network Plan which have yet to be 

developed; 

• Schemes set out in the Cardiff Local Transport Plan; 

• Routes which have been identified through the investigation of cycling issues 

raised by members of the public on an ongoing basis; 

• Routes identified through a spatial gap analysis to complete missing links, 

including access to strategic development sites and cross city routes. 

 
20. A schedule of schemes has been developed to improve the routes shown on the 

Integrated Network Map, taking into account: 

 

Page 5



6 
 

• Improvements set out in the Local Transport Plan which meet Welsh Government 

Active Travel Design Guide minimum standards; 

• Improvements identified through the route audit process to improve the cohesion, 

directness, safety, comfort and attractiveness of the routes and ensure that the 

minimum standards set out in the Audit Tool would be met; 

• Improvements within the programme of minor network improvements, identified 

following investigation of cycling issues raised by members of the public on an 

ongoing basis; 

• Improvements scheduled to be delivered through other Council programmes and 

identified through internal consultation with Council Officers. 

 
21. Two primary route corridors have been identified as part of the Integrated Network 

Map which connect strategic development sites and existing communities to major 

destinations including the City Centre and the Bay. The schedule of schemes 

proposed for the primary route corridors is intended to deliver a step change in 

provision for cycling by providing facilities for all ages and abilities cycling in line with 

the aspirations of the emerging Cardiff Cycling Strategy. 

 
22. The cycle routes and schedule of schemes within the draft Integrated Network Map 

have not been prioritised. It is proposed to undertake a prioritisation exercise 

following public consultation on the draft Integrated Network Map and Cycling 

Strategy. 

 
Public Consultation 
 

23. The Integrated Network Map Engagement Plan (attached as Appendix 6 ) sets out 

the activities planned to engage stakeholders and the public throughout the 12 week 

public consultation period; this includes online engagement, stakeholder group 

meetings, consultation events and direct engagement with schools. 

 
24. Local Member consultation was undertaken in November 2016 where briefing notes 

were circulated to Ward Members highlighting proposed active travel schemes within 

their own wards. The responses received from Members so far have been 

considered in detail. 

 

Page 6



7 
 

25. As previously stated a report on the Integrated Network Map is due to be received by 

Cabinet on the 15 December 2016.  Cabinet approval is required to publish the draft 

Integrated Network Map for public consultation. A 12 week consultation period is 

required by Welsh Government as set out in the Statutory Guidance for the Delivery 

of the Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013. 

 
Way Forward 

26. Councillor Ramesh Patel, Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & Sustainability 

has been invited to attend for this item.  He will be supported by officers from the 

City Operations Directorate. 

 
Legal Implications 
 

27. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or 

without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 

recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be 

within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 

imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on 

behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural 

requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 

properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 

circumstances. 

 
Financial Implications 
 

28. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in 

relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if 

and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 

Page 7



8 
 

modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations. 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Committee is recommended to: 

 
i. Note the contents of the attached reports; 

ii. Consider whether they wish to pass on any comments to the Cabinet following 

scrutiny of the item titled ‘Draft Cardiff Cycling Strategy & Integrated Network 

Map’. 

 
DAVINA FIORE 

Director for Governance & Legal Services 

30 November 2016 

Page 8



CARDIFF 
CYCLING 
STRATEGY
2016-2026

DRAFT

APPENDIX 1

Page 9



Page 10



How To Use This Strategy

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

CARDIFF LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 

CARDIFF TRANSPORT STRATEGY 

CARDIFF PUBLIC REALM MANUAL
for references to surfaces and cycle parking 

CARDIFF RESIDENTIAL DESIGN GUIDE SPG
for wider guidance of designing residential areas

WELSH GOVERNMENT ACTIVE TRAVEL DESIGN GUIDANCE 

MANUAL FOR STREETS EDITIONS 1 AND 2 

This Cycling Strategy sets out City of Cardiff Council’s vision for cycling and the steps we will take over the next 
10 years to realise it. The Strategy shows how cycling will make an important contribution to our vision of 
making Cardiff the most liveable capital city in Europe.

Nobody knows the city better than the people who live, work, study, and do business here. This is why we 
have engaged extensively with a wide range of groups, organisations and businesses in producing the Strategy. 
We will continue to engage with stakeholders to ensure that we achieve the best possible outcomes when 
implementing the actions set out in the Strategy.

The Introduction to the Strategy sets out current transport trends and predicted future trends, the reasons 
why our vision for cycling makes sense in a city like Cardiff, and the challenges we face in making the changes 
that will be needed. The Infrastructure chapter outlines the quality of routes necessary to build a cycle 
network for all ages and abilities and the steps we will take to achieve this. The Focus Areas chapter takes 
a closer look at how cycling can support three important aspects of city life: schools, workplaces and retail, 
in addition to outlining some of the steps City of Cardiff Council is taking to promote cycling among its own 
workforce. The Action Plan sets out the actions to be taken to deliver our vision and the timetable for delivery.

Related Documents

Page 11



Page 12



1	 INTRODUCTION

	 Current Trends	 8

	 Future Developments	 9

	 Challenges	 10

	 Why Cycling Is Essential	 11   	

	 Our Vision	 12

2	 INFRASTRUCTURE
	
	 Our Infrastructure Priorities	 16
	
	 The Cardiff Cycle Network	 17
	
	 Infrastructure Standards	 18
	
	 Next Steps	 22
	
	 XXXXXXXXXX	 23    

	

3	 KEY PARTNERSHIPS

	 Schools	 26

	 Workplaces	 28

	 Retail	 30

	 City of Cardiff Council	 32

4	 ACTION PLAN 
	
	 Action Plan	 36
	
	 Cycling Strategy Next Steps	 38

Contents

Page 13



Page 14



1. Introduction

Page 15



Current Trends

CYCLING TO WORK

•	 The proportion of Cardiff 	
	 residents travelling to work 	
	 by bike is 9.2%, compared to 	
	 56.1% who travel by car (2011-	
	 2015 rolling average). 

• 	 The proportion of residents 	
	 travelling to work by bike has 	
	 more than doubled since 2005.

GENERAL TRENDS

•	 Cardiff is growing. Over the 	
	 last 10 years the population 	
	 in Cardiff has increased by 	
	 11%. The number of jobs has 	
	 also increased by 13% 

•	 Footfall in the city centre has 	
	 increased by 58%. At the same 	
	 time journeys to the city centre 	
	 by car have dropped by 30% 	
	 and journeys by bike have 	
	 increased by 86%

TARGET MARKET
 
•	 28% of Cardiff residents say 	
	 that they do not currently 	
	 cycle, but would like to. 

•	 The majority of car trips 	
	 starting within Cardiff are of a 	
	 short enough distance to 	
	 comfortably cycle. 52% of car 	
	 journeys in 2011 would have 	
	 taken 20 minutes or less by 	
	 bike.

9.2%

56.1%

16.5%

16.7%
CYCLING
CAR
WALKING
PUBLIC TRANSPORT
OTHER

28%
DO NOT CYCLE BUT 
WOULD LIKE TO52%

48%

CAR TRIPS LESS 
THAN 5KM

CAR TRIPS MORE 
THAN 5KM

11%

GROWTH 2005-2015

POPULATION JOBS

58%

30%

86%

CITY CENTRE 2004-2014

13%

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

8

Page 16



TRANSPORT VISION

•	 The Council’s vision is for 50% 	
	 of all trips to be made by 	
	 sustainable modes by 2026. 

•   	 This vision is set out in the 	
	 Council’s Local Development 	
	 Plan and is essential to 	
	 accommodate the levels of 	
	 growth predicted for the city 	
	 within the transport network.

PREDICTED GROWTH 

•	 The population of Cardiff is 	
	 expected to grow by a further 	
	 79,918 between 2006 and 2026. 

•   	 During this period, the number 	
	 of jobs in Cardiff is expected to 	
	 increase by 40,000. 

•   	 The number of trips to, from 	
	 and within Cardiff is expected 	
	 to grow by 14%.

CYCLING VISION 

•	 In order to contribute to our 	
	 overall mode split target, the 	
	 Council’s vision as set out in 	
	 this Cycle Strategy is to double 	
	 the number of cycle trips by 	
	 2026, continuing the growth 	
	 trend from 2005. 

•	 To achieve this, the cycle 	
	 network must be able to 	
	 accommodate an additional 	
	 38,000 cycle trips a day.

Future Development

CYCLING MODE SHARE

2005
4.3%

2015
9.2%

2026
18.4%

36%

64%

50%50
%

SUSTAINABLE TRAVEL MODES
CAR BASED TRAVEL

2011 2026

+7
9,

91
8

+4
0,

00
0

14%

POPULATION JOBS TRIPS

PREDICTED GROWTH 2006-2026

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

9

Page 17



RIGHT
The Existing Route Map shows routes 
which meet the minimum standards 
set out in the Welsh Government 
Active Travel Design Guidance and 
demonstrates the fragmented nature 
of the existing network. 

BELOW 
Current investment in transport in 
Cardiff

The Challenges
FRAGMENTED NETWORK
The existing Cycle Network is fragmented and incomplete, as demonstrated by the 2015 Existing Route 
Map which only shows those routes which meet the minimum standards set out in Welsh Government 
Design Guidance. Some routes could be improved by addressing relatively short sections of missing links. 
However, many parts of the city, in particular the east, have very limited provision for cycling. 
 

RETROFITTING INFRASTRUCTURE IN EXISTING STREETS
Constrained urban corridors need to serve competing demands which makes the retrofitting of cycling 
infrastructure challenging. Many recent housing developments in Cardiff have been constructed with 
limited public transport access and no purpose-built cycling connections at all.
 

SAFETY: ACTUAL AND PERCIEVED
Cardiff residents feel that cycling is significantly less safe than other modes of transport. Although the 
number of people cycling for everyday journeys is growing in Cardiff, in order to maintain this growth, it is 
clear that safety issues, both real and perceptual, need to be addressed.
 

RESOURCES
Cardiff Council’s current annual capital expenditure on cycling infrastructure, including both Council capital 
funding and external grant funding, equates to just under £4 per resident, part of a total spend of just over 
£39 per head by the Council on all modes of transport. This has funded a number of recent improvements 
across the network, but is not sufficient to develop a comprehensive network of high quality routes. 78% of 
Cardiff residents would like to see more investment in cycling in Cardiff.
 

DEVELOPMENTS IN OTHER CITIES
21% of Cardiff residents currently cycle at least once a week, which compares well to cities like Edinburgh 
(21%) and Bristol (23%). However, a number of UK cities have seen a recent increase in funding for cycling 
infrastructure projects which has yet to be matched in Cardiff and may be reflected in future trends. The 
level of capital investment in cycling is also low compared to European cities with a strong reputation for 
cycling. Amsterdam and Copenhagen invest around £18 per head of population per year. 63% of residents 
in Copenhagen cycle to work, compared to 9.2% in Cardiff.

EXISTING ROUTES WHICH
MEET WELSH GOVERNMENT
MINIMUM STANDARDS

£39.24
PER RESIDENT
ALL MODES

£3.84
PER RESIDENT
CYCLING

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

10

Page 18



Why Cycling Is Essential
ECONOMIC BENEFIT
For current levels of 
cycling in Cardiff:
£14 million a year 
saving to individuals and 
the local economy for 
trips which are cycled 
instead of driven 1

£16 million a year 
benefit to health for all 
cycle trips 2

BUILDING A LIVEABLE CITY
A city that is good for cycling is an attractive city to live in and invest in. 
Increasing the amount of cycling is not a goal in itself. Many European cities 
with a strong reputation for the quality of life they offer their residents 
provide excellent facilities for cycling. 
 

TRAVEL TIME
In a dense urban environment like Cardiff, cycling can offer the quickest 
way of travelling from point to point. A 3 mile journey can be cycled at a 
comfortable pace within 20 minutes, which is a competitive travel time 
compared to the car, particularly during peak periods of congestion. 
 

EFFICIENT USE OF URBAN SPACE
Cycling requires less space to accommodate on the highway network 
compared to the private car. 12 cycles can be securely and conveniently 
parked in the space required to park one car. 
 
MANAGING GROWTH
The efficiency of cycling as a mode of transport makes it a realistic means 
of managing the increase in journeys on Cardiff’s transport network as the 
city grows. By providing the right infrastructure in the right places many 
journeys starting within Cardiff could be made by bike instead of the car. 
The city’s highway network is already under pressure, particularly at peak 
times. Expanding road space to accommodate additional traffic is neither 
affordable nor sustainable. Therefore, as the city grows, road space must be 
reallocated from private cars to more efficient transport modes including 
footways, cycle tracks and public transport to enable more people to move 
around the city as quickly and efficiently as possible. This will also ensure 
that adequate provision remains for those trips where the private car is the 
only reasonable option.
 
 
HEALTH
The health and wellbeing benefits of regular exercise are well documented 
and cycling for everyday journeys is an effortless way of realising these 
benefits. People who cycle regularly have the fitness of someone 10 years 
younger. Improvements to local air quality through reducing unnecessary 
car trips will also have a significant impact on health.
 

ACTIVE TRAVEL DUTY
All local authorities in Wales have a duty to plan for and make continuous 
improvement in the provision of facilities for cycling under the Active 
Travel (Wales) Act 2013. Cycling also has a significant contribution to make 
to all seven of the wellbeing goals as set out in the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

1	 Cardiff Bike Life 2015: Saving to individuals and the local economy for trips which are cycled 	
	 instead of driven. Value of savings derived from WebTAG
2	 Cardiff Bike Life 2015: Health benefit for all trips made by bike calculated with HEAT

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

11

Page 19



Our Vision
Our vision is for Cardiff to be a city where cycling is a normal and practical choice for short trips for people 
of all ages and abilities and to double the number of cycle trips in the city by 2026.

The following key actions outline how we will realise our vision:

INFRASTRUCTURE

•	 	 Improve the integration of cycling into transport planning and urban space 

•	 	 Provide infrastructure with the right quality in the right place to provide for all ages and abilities 
	 cycling

KEY PARTNERSHIPS

•	 	 Work with key partners, including workplaces, schools and retailers, to provide end of trip facilities 
	 and promote cycling to residents and visitors 

•	 	 Improve the integration of cycling with the way that the Council carries out its core business

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

12

Page 20



C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

13

Page 21



Page 22



2. Infrastructure

Page 23



Our Infrastructure Priorities

KEY CORRIDORS

Plans will be developed to create two primary route 
corridors as an exemplar for all ages and abilities 
cycling, to connect new development sites to major 
destinations across the city, including the City Centre 
and the Bay

CITY CENTRE
 
Plans will be developed to improve cycling 
connections through the City Centre as part of a City 
Centre Movement Strategy

MISSING LINKS
 
Missing links across the network will be 
identified and addressed, including schemes to 
address severance across the network, and local 
neighbourhood improvements to cycling conditions 
on local streets

MAINTENANCE
 
Maintenance of cycle routes will be prioritised 
to ensure that they continue to provide safe and 
comfortable conditions for cycling

	
NEW DEVELOPMENT
 
High quality cycling infrastructure will be fully 
integrated into new development from the outset, to 
provide an extensive internal network of routes and 
connections to the wider cycle network

INTEGRATION WITH HIGHWAY ACTIVITY 

Whenever work is being undertaken on the highway, 
opportunities will be taken where relevant to make 
improvements to cycle facilities at the same time 

INVOLVING STAKEHOLDERS 

Engagement with stakeholders, including local 
residents and businesses, will be an important part 
of designing solutions to get the best possible results

PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITY 

Implementation of new cycling infrastructure will be 
complemented by promotional activities to maximise 
the impact of infrastructure investmentC

Y
C

LI
N

G
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y

16

Page 24



The Cardiff Cycle Network

The Cardiff Cycle Network sets out a comprehensive network of cycle routes linking existing communities and 
strategic development sites with key destinations across the city. These routes include:

•	 Existing off road routes and signed on road routes 

•	 Routes defined in the Strategic Cycle Network (Enfys) Plan 2011 which are in development or yet 		
	 to be completed

•	 Additional routes required to address missing links and improve connectivity across the city

CYCLE NETWORK PLAN

A draft Cycle Network Plan has been developed identifying the routes which are to be developed over the 
next 10 years and beyond. This includes two primary route corridors running north-south and east-west 
which will connect strategic development sites with existing communities and major destinations. These 
primary route corridors will be our first priority for delivering continuous route corridors that provide the 
right conditions for all ages and abilities cycling. 

We will also seek to address missing links across the wider network to improve conditions for cycling and 
increase the options for everyday journeys, and address severance in key locations through a prioritised plan 
to include:

•	 Safety improvements to major junctions

•	 Segregated facilities on main roads in key locations

•	 Provision of new shortcuts, including bridges, contraflows, and cycle access through road ends

•	 Improvements for on road cycling on quiet local streets, including 20mph limits and traffic calming

PRIMARY ROUTE CORRIDORS TO BE 
DELIVERED BY 2020

OTHER ROUTE CORRIDORS

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT SITES

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

17

Page 25



Cycling For All Ages and Abilities

In order to achieve our vision of making cycling a normal and 
rational choice for short trips for people of all ages and abilities 
and doubling the number of cycle trips in the city, it is essential 
to provide infrastructure that gives everyone the confidence 
to cycle in Cardiff, including adults who do not cycle often and 
school children.

Improvements to the infrastructure for cycling will also improve 
the environment for other vulnerable road users, by reducing 
conflict between pedestrians and cyclists on segregated cycle 
routes and reducing vehicle speeds along on road cycle routes.

Cycling safety is a major concern to Cardiff residents. It is 
essential that cycle routes in Cardiff provide a safe environment, 
including segregation from motor traffic where it is needed. 

For cycling to be an attractive travel choice, cycling 
infrastructure must be comfortable to use. This means that 
it addresses the poor perception of safety, by providing 
segregation where needed, good quality surfaces and sufficient 
space to cater for the number of people using the route. 

One of the benefits of cycling in an urban environment is that 
it offers point to point travel. For this benefit to be realised, 
cycle routes must be well connected, with a dense network of 
routes and high quality links between cycle routes and the basic 
network of local streets. Cycle routes must be convenient to 
use, providing direct routes to destinations and wayfinding that 
is intuitive to follow.

As with any mode of transport, journey time is important when 
cycling. A bicycle journey time saving of 1 minute is worth 12.5p 
per person, per trip. Travel time is the most important factor for 
all Cardiff residents when choosing how to travel to work. 

Infrastructure Standards

50% OF CYCLISTS REGARD TRAVEL TIME
AS THE BIGGEST INFLUENCE ON HOW 
THEY TRAVEL TO WORK. 

47

%

ALL RESIDENTS

50

%
CYCLISTS

82%

THINK CYCLING SAFETY
NEEDS TO BE IMPROVED

33% 25%

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

18

Page 26



City of Cardiff Council will incorporate the following measures into scheme design where needed to ensure 
provision for all ages and abilities cycling. Further Guidance will be developed to set out how these measures 
should be applied in Cardiff to ensure that we provide infrastructure with the right level of quality to realise 
our vision for cycling, taking account of Welsh Government Design Guidance 

SAFETY 

•	 Segregation from motor traffic on main roads 

•	 20mph speed limits and traffic calming on 
streets with lower volumes of traffic 

•	 Early start for cyclists at signal junctions 

•	 Parking protected cycle lanes 

COMFORT 

•	 Segregation from motor traffic and 
pedestrians on main roads 

•	 Segregation from pedestrians on off road 
paths 

•	 Adequate space to accommodate both the 
current and the  expected number of route 
users  

•	 Good quality running surface 

•	 Appropriate lighting 

•	 Implementation of 20mph speed limits

Measures

PARKING PROTECTED CYCLE LANES, COPENHAGEN
Cycle lanes protected by car parking bays is a design 
feature which can improve the safety of a route.

CONNECTIVITY 

•	 Good network density 

•	 High quality links between segregated routes 
alongside roads, off street paths and traffic 
calmed minor roads to create a coherent 
network 

CONVENIENCE

•	 Direct routes to destinations 

•	 Cycle parking in convenient locations 

•	 Intuitive wayfinding
 
TRAVEL TIME

•	 Adequate space to accommodate the number of 
route users  

•	 Signal changes to reduce waiting time at 
junctions 

•	 Give priority to segregated cycle routes and 
footways over side roads 

•	 Contraflows for cycling on one way streets 

•	 Provide cycle access through road ends 

•	 Provide bridges to reduce severance caused by 
natural or man made barriers

CYCLE TRACK ACROSS SIDE STREET, COPENHAGEN
Segregation from motor traffic and pedestrians 
improves comfort for all users. Priority over side 
roads and contraflow arrangements reduce travel 
time

PH
O

TO
 C

RE
DI

T:
 G

EH
L

PH
O

TO
 C

RE
DI

T:
 G

EH
L

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

19

Page 27



In order to provide cycle infrastructure that meets the needs of all ages and abilities, it will often be 
necessary to provide some form of segregation from motor vehicles.

The decision on whether or not segregation is required is dependent on both speeds and flows of motor 
vehicles. Where speeds and flows are low cyclists will be able to comfortably share space with motor 
vehicles. The table below sets out the thresholds at which segregation from motor vehicles should be 
considered, based on best practice guidance from Denmark and the Netherlands.1

Segregation

SPEED LIMIT VEHICLE FLOWS  
(DAILY 2 WAY)

TREATMENT

20MPH

Less than 1000 vehicles per day •	 Segregation will not be required.  

•	 Additional traffic calming may be 
required to ensure that speed limit is 
observed if measured speeds indicate 
there is a problem.

Between 1000 and 3000 vehicles 
per day

•	 Segregation may be required. 

•	 If the decision is taken not to 
segregate, additional traffic calming 
may be required to ensure that speed 
limit is observed if measured speeds 
indicate there is a problem.

Over 3000 vehicles per day •	 Segregation will usually be required.

30MPH 
AND ABOVE

Any •	 Segregation will be required 

•	 If flows are light, consideration should 
be given to reducing the speed limit, 
with additional traffic calming if 
needed to ensure that the speed limit 
is observed.

CYCLE STREET, 
COPENHAGEN
In streets with low vehicle 
speeds and flows, cyclists 
can share space with 
motor vehicles. Traffic 
calming may be required 
to ensure motor vehicles 
travel at appropriate 
speeds to maintain a 
comfortable environment 
for cycling, for example 
through a ‘Bicycle Street’ 
treatment

PH
O

TO
 C

RE
DI

T:
 G

EH
L

1	 Bicycle Planning and Design Guidelines 2012 (draft), Urban Systems for City of Vancouver

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

20

Page 28



CONNECTIVITY
Cycle routes to destinations within new developments must be as direct as possible to reduce travel time 
and make cycling the most practical travel option for short, local trips.  Direct cycle routes may not always 
follow the main road network and could include a combination of short cuts through quieter streets, off 
road sections and filtered permeability through road ends. However, in order to maintain a comprehensive 
network that facilitates all point to point journeys within a development, provision of direct routes away 
from the main road does not eliminate the need to provide segregated facilities alongside main roads.
Connections between segregated cycle tracks and the basic network of local streets must be safe, direct, 
and intuitive, to create an attractive facility which is easy to use and reduces travel time. The same 
principles will apply to connections linking the new development to the wider cycle network for which 
contributions will be sought from developers through the planning process.

Cycling in New Developments
In order to manage the impact of new development on the transport network in Cardiff, new 
developments must be designed from the outset to facilitate cycling for everyday journeys for all ages and 
abilities. This requires provision of an extensive internal network of routes, connections to routes beyond 
the development itself, and cycle facilities including parking at all destinations within the development. 
Internal cycling networks should of a scale and quality which is sufficient to make cycling the easiest and 
most practical travel option for short local trips including to nearby destinations such as shops and schools.

CYCLE ROUTES 
ALONGSIDE MAIN 
ROADS
The preferred treatment 
option for main roads 
through development 
sites is a two way cycle 
track alongside the 
road, segregated from 
pedestrians. The cycle 
track must provide 
sufficient width for the 
number of users, which 
will require a minimum 
clear width of 3 metres. 
Cycle tracks and footways 
must be given priority 
over side roads to reduce 
travel time and maintain 
the comfort of the route. 

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

21

Page 29



Next Steps
•	 Develop concept designs for two primary 

route corridors: 

•		 North – South: Linking strategic sites in 
north east Cardiff to Cardiff Bay via the 
City Centre  

•		 East – West: Linking strategic sites at St 
Mellons to strategic sites in north west 
Cardiff via the City Centre 

•	 Develop a City Centre Movement Strategy 
for all modes including concept designs for 
cycling connections through the City Centre.  

•	 Develop a prioritized plan to address 
missing links across the wider cycle network 
and start eliminating missing links.

•	 Develop new guidelines for cycle 
infrastructure design in Cardiff, taking into 
account Welsh Government Active Travel 
Design Guidance. 

•	 Develop and deliver a training programme 
on the implementation of good cycle 
infrastructure design 

•	 Submit Final Network Plan as part of 
Integrated Network Map to Welsh 
Government for approval (September 2017.)   

•	 Establish a ring-fenced budget for 
maintenance of existing cycle routes

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

22

Page 30



C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

23

Page 31



Page 32



3. Key Partnerships

Page 33



Schools

4% of Cardiff children currently travel to school by bike, however 25% 
say that they would prefer to travel to school by bike. In contrast, 41% 
of Cardiff children travel to school by car. 16% of all trips undertaken on 
a weekday are escort trips (trips taken to transport somebody else) and 
just over half of these trips are made as car driver. Escort trips represent 
a significant cost to the individual, both in terms of time and transport 
costs. If children are able to travel to school independently, this saves 
their parents time and money. 

Government guidelines state that children and young people should 
engage in moderate to vigorous physical activity for at least 60 minutes 
a day. Cycling to school and for other short trips can contribute to 
increasing the amount of physical activity that children undertake. The 
benefits of cycling for children and young people include improved 
cardiovascular and bone health, maintaining a healthy weight, improved 
self-confidence and development of social skills.

16%

16% OF ALL TRIPS 
UNDERTAKEN ON A 
WEEKDAY ARE ESCORT 
TRIPS (TRIPS TAKEN TO 
TRANSPORT SOMEBODY ELSE)

4%

25
%

CY
CLE

 TO SCHOOL

WANT TO CYCLE TO SCHOOL

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

26

Page 34



CYCLE TRAINING
City of Cardiff Council offers cycle training to all primary schools in Cardiff to give children the skills they 
need to cycle on short journeys such as cycling to school or to the local shops. Training is also offered 
during the school holidays for children who are unable to attend training through their schools.

ACTIVE JOURNEYS 
The Active Journeys in Wales project is delivered by Sustrans to provide information, training and support 
to pupils, teachers and parents to enable more children to travel to school by bike, scooter or on foot. 
Schools are supported intensively over a three year period to enable them to establish a good founda-
tion to become an independent active journeys school. We currently have 10 supported Active Journeys 
schools in Cardiff and 35 schools who have completed the three year programme and have continued 
support through the Advice Service.

Promoting cycling in schools

At Whitchurch Primary we have a group of children in year six who are responsible for promoting cycling. 
We call them the Bike Crew. Each term we have some events which put the focus on cycling, for example 
we have an assembly to introduce the Bike Crew, we hold competitions such as design a poster to show 
how to stay safe on your bike, we have a “Bling your Bike” for Christmas event and every term we host a 
Bike Breakfast. 

In the summer term we run a bike club for year two children. We have involved parents in our events and 
we have used the smoothie maker/bike at our school fair.

Our most prominent event is our Big Pedal fortnight when everyone is urged to cycle to school as many 
times as possible.

Next Steps
•	 Develop a detailed programme to 

promote cycling to school 

•	 Improve promotion of existing schemes 

to promote cycling to school, including 

provision of free cycle stands to schools 

through the Park Your Bike scheme and 

school holiday cycle training sessions 

•	 Identify funding opportunities to improve 

provision of covered, secure cycle parking 

at schools

•	 Identify and address missing infrastructure 

links to existing schools, through the 

development and implementation of 

the Cycle Network Plan, including active 

engagement with schoolchildren in 

collaboration with Sustrans through Welsh 

Government’s Active Schools project 

•	 Identify opportunities to improve 

infrastructure links to new school sites in 

collaboration with the School Organisation 

project

Whitchurch Primary School

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

27

Page 35



Workplaces
214,600 jobs are based in Cardiff, making a vital contribution to the local economy and the quality of life 
offered to our residents. Cardiff residents make up 61% of commuting journeys to jobs based in Cardiff.

Around 9% of journeys to work currently made by Cardiff residents are by bike and almost half of all cycle 
trips made by Cardiff residents are for work purposes. However, there is significant scope to increase the 
number of people cycling to work in Cardiff, since 56% of Cardiff residents could reach their workplace 
within 20 minutes by bike.

The number of jobs in Cardiff is expected to grow with a number of new employment sites to be located 
in and around the City Centre, including the redevelopment at Central Square. Increasing the number of 
people cycling to work in Cardiff is an important measure to manage the impact of this growth on the 
transport network.

Cycling can offer many benefits to employers and employees in Cardiff. It is an easy way to incorporate 
physical activity into daily life, which benefits health and wellbeing and leads to a more productive 
workforce. Cycling reduces pressure on the demand for car parking spaces, and cycle parking takes 
up significantly less space than car parking. Cycling can also offer a cost effective option for business 
travel over short distances in an urban area due to the lower running costs and competitive travel times 
compared to the car. 

To increase the uptake of cycling to work 
and for business travel, the Council must 
address the missing links within the cycle 
network to facilitate the journeys between 
where people live and work in the city. 
Accompanying workplace based initiatives 
can maximise the impact of infrastructure 
improvements. The Council will continue 
to engage with local employers to identify 
priority areas for improvement and share 
knowledge on best practice for workplace 
initiatives.

•	 Secure cycle parking 

•	  Showers and changing facilities 

•	 Pool bikes for business travel

•	 Cycle mileage for business travel 

•	 Tax free bikes through the Cycle 	
to Work scheme

At our current HQ in Llandaff, we have plenty of on-site parking for staff.  However, our move to Central 
Square will mean that staff will have to consider new ways of commuting; being in the city centre means 
that parking spaces will be reserved for operational requirements and disabled drivers.  A staff Travel 
Survey showed us that around 20% of respondents are currently thinking of commuting on their bikes, 
and we are working hard to make cycling to work as accessible and straight forward as possible.  Our plans 
include secure indoor bike parking, staff showers and changing rooms, lockers for bike equipment, and a 
drying room for wet cycle gear.

BBC

Workplace Initiatives to Increase Cycling:

0-5km
20 MINUTES BY BIKE

5-10km
40 MINUTES BY BIKE

OVER 10km

56
%24%

20%

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

28

Page 36



Cardiff Metropolitan University has the largest work based Bike User Group in Wales with in excess of 300 
of their circa 1200 staff frequently cycling to work. This number is swelled by over 700 current students 
who have requested access to the University’s secure cycle stores in the past two years.

An increasing demand for car parking and inconsiderate parking resulted in the introduction of managed 
car parks. This in turn provided the University with the opportunity to ring fence funding and increase its 
focus on sustainable travel.

The University has continually focused on cycling over the past 15 years through numerous initiatives and 
capital expenditure including:

•	 The introduction of nine all weather card access cycle 		
	 stores. 
•	 Cycle lanes, changing, showering and locker facilities at 	
	 Llandaff Campus 
•	 28 days a year free breakfasts for staff cycling to work 
•	 Provision of Grade 10 security D Locks at a quarter of 		
	 their retail price 
•	 Social cycling events including the introduction of ‘Cycle 	
	 with the Dean’. 
•	 Continuation and extension of Cycle to Work scheme 
•	 Distribution of 1000 of the Council’s Walking & Cycling 	
	 Maps annually to students and staff 
•	 Dr Bike, Police Security Marking and Maintenance 		
	 Workshops termly for students and staff 
•	 Annual clearance of Western Avenue bridge of leaf litter 	
	 providing safer cycling for students and the public.  
•	 Annual removal of approximately 50 bicycles that have 	
	 been abandoned and donation to the Cardiff Cycle 		
	 Workshop for refurbishment and resale

Next Steps
•	 Improve provision of information and 

advice to workplaces on best practice for 

promoting cycling to employees 

•	 Establish a Business Cycling Group to 

share knowledge and communicate 

business needs to the Council 

•	 Identify and address missing infrastructure 

links to major workplaces, through the 

development and implementation of the 

Cycle Network Plan.

•	 Improve promotion of existing workplace 

initiatives offered by the Council, including 

the Park Your Bike scheme offering free 

cycle stands to organisations and Free 

Adult Cycle Training for anyone living, 

working or studying in the city 

•	 Pilot a bicycle station to enable small 

businesses to share facilities for 

employees travelling by bike

Cardiff Metropolitan University

“I have been commuting from Bristol by 
train and bicycle on average 3 times per 
week since last May. I have significantly 
reduced my annual mileage and car 
maintenance and bridge toll etc. I have 
managed to maintain a better level 
of fitness as I have continued cycling 
through the winter. Prior to commuting 
by bike I would generally only cycle at 
the weekend in winter. I also find it very 
convenient to combine exercise while 
commuting.” 

John Cappock, Chief Operating Officer, 
Cardiff Metropolitan University

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

29

Page 37



Retail

Measures to increase cycling to shops
•	 Improvements to infrastructure to provide 

direct and comfortable access to shopping 

locations 

•	 Provision of short stay cycle parking in 

locations close to shops in sufficient 

numbers to meet demand

On a typical weekday around 286,000 trips are made to shops in Cardiff, rising to around 388,000 trips 
on a typical Saturday. Cardiff city centre is a major shopping destination at a national level with over 40 
million visitors a year. Local shops, including those provided at district and local centres, provide important 
services to local communities and support the local economy particularly small businesses.

Cardiff residents currently make around 2.2 million cycle trips to the shops every year. The importance 
of cycling as a mode of transport for shopping trips is increasing, with an 86% increase in the number of 
people visiting the city centre by bike over the last 10 years.

As a mode of transport well suited to short, urban journeys, cycling can offer residents a means to access 
shops quickly and conveniently, with the provision of the right infrastructure in the right place, including 
speed reduction measures on local streets near local shops and provision of short stay cycle parking in 
convenient locations. These facilities will make shops in Cardiff, both within the city centre and at local 
shopping areas, more attractive to visit and encourage residents to spend locally.

£

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

30

Page 38



•	 Make a Business Case to the Business 

Improvement District (BID) to provide 

cycle friendly measures to increase 

footfall within the BID through better 

access by bicycle 

•	 Identify and address missing links to 

local shops, including district and local 

centres, through the development and 

implementation of the Cycle Network 

Plan. 

•	 Increase provision of cycle parking at key 

locations in the city centre

•	 Increase provision of cycle parking at local 

shops 

•	 Implement programme to remove 

abandoned bicycles in locations of high 

parking demand on a regular basis 

•	 Better promotion of Park Your Bike 

scheme to provide free Sheffield stands to 

local shops

Next Steps

CITY CENTRE

DISTRICT CENTRES

LOCAL CENTRES

Key Locations for Retail in Cardiff

Local shopping destinations are 
found in various locations across 
the city. Good access to local 
shops is important to support the 
local economy and build liveable 
neighbourhoods. 

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

31

Page 39



City Of Cardiff Council

As a major employer within the City, it important that City of Cardiff Council promotes cycling to its own 
staff for short journeys to and for work in order to save the Council and its employees time and money and 
contribute to the health and wellbeing of our workforce.

Some of the initiatives already in place to promote cycling and manage demand for car parking are set 
out below, however we recognise that more can be done and will be developing an internal action plan to 
improve the promotion of cycling to our staff. 

 
CYCLE FACILITIES FOR EMPLOYEES

•	 Cycle parking
•	 Shower and changing facilities at County Hall and Willcox House
•	 Lockers at main council sites
•	 Pool bikes for work travel with an online booking system at County Hall and Willcox House
•	 Free annual bike safety checks with Dr Bike
 
 
1 IN 5 
As part of the programme to rationalise the number of buildings operated by the Council, the number 
of staff based at County Hall has increased, leading to an increase in demand for car parking spaces. As 
a result, the Council has introduced a parking management scheme at County Hall where staff with car 
park permits are allocated one day a week where they are not permitted to park their car on site and are 
encouraged to travel to work on their car free day using sustainable modes.

•	 Develop an internal action plan to improve promotion of cycling to City of Cardiff Council 

staff

Next Steps

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

32

Page 40



C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

33

Page 41



Page 42



4. Action Plan

Page 43



17
/1

8

18
/1

9

19
/2

0

20
/2

1

21
/2

6

IN
FR

AS
TR

U
CT

U
RE

Develop two primary route corridors to all ages and abilities cycling 
standards, including a North – South route linking strategic sites in north 
east Cardiff to Cardiff Bay via the City Centre and an East – West route 
linking strategic sites at St Mellons to strategic sites in north west Cardif 
via the City Centre

Develop concept designs in consultation with residents, businesses, cycling 
groups and other stakeholders:

•

Start phased construction •
Complete construction •

Develop a city wide network of all ages and abilities primary routes

Develop phased implementation plan for city wide network of routes •
Develop concept designs for two additional primary route corridors 
highlighted in plan in consultation with residents, businesses, cycling groups 
and other stakeholders:

•

Phase construction of additional primary route corridors highlighted in plan •
Develop and implement a City Centre Movement Strategy for all modes 
through the City Centre

Develop concept designs including cycling connections through the City 
Centre in consultation with residents, businesses, cycling groups and other 
stakeholders

•

Start phased construction of cycling connections through the city centre 
as part of the delivery of provision for all modes through the City Centre 
Movement Strategy

•

Complete implementation of cycling connections through the city centre •
Develop and implement a prioritized plan to address missing links across 
the wider cycle network

Develop a prioritised plan to address missing links across the wider 
network, in consultation with residents, businesses, cycling groups and 
other stakeholders.

•

Establish a capital budget to address top priority missing links on an annual 
basis

•

Delivery of prioritised schemes to address missing links • • • •
Develop new guidelines for all ages and abilities cycle infrastructure 
design in Cardiff, taking into account Welsh Government Active Travel 
Design Guidance.

•

Develop and deliver a staff training programme on the implementation of 
good cycle infrastructure design

•

Submit Final Network Plan as part of Integrated Network Map to Welsh 
Government for approval

•

Establish an annual ring-fenced budget for maintenance of existing cycle 
routes

•

Launch a public on street cycle hire scheme •
Implement a Cycle Hub with secure cycle parking provision for 500 cycles 
as part of the redevelopment of Central Square

•

Action Plan

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

36

Page 44



17
/1

8

18
/1

9

19
/2

0

20
/2

1

21
/2

6

SC
HO

O
LS

Identify missing infrastructure links to existing schools, including active 
engagement with schoolchildren in collaboration with Sustrans through 
Welsh Government’s Active Schools project

•

Identify opportunities to improve infrastructure links to new school sites 
in collaboration with the School Organisation project

•

Develop a detailed programme to promote cycling to school •
Identify funding to improve provision of covered, secure cycle parking at 
schools

•

£

W
O

RK
PL

AC
ES

Improve provision of information and advice to workplaces on best 
practice for promoting cycling to employees

•

Improve promotion of existing workplace initiatives offered by the 
Council, including the Park Your Bike scheme offering free cycle stands to 
organisations and Free Adult Cycle Training for anyone living, working or 
studying in the city

•

Pilot a bicycle station to enable small businesses to share facilities for 
employees travelling by bike

•

RE
TA

IL

Make a Business Case to the Business Improvement District (BID) to 
provide cycle friendly measures to increase footfall within the BID through 
better access by bicycle

•

Develop an annual programme to increase provision of cycle parking at 
key locations in the city centre

•

Develop an annual programme to increase provision of cycle parking at 
local shops

•

Implement programme to remove abandoned bicycles in locations of high 
parking demand on a regular basis

•

Better promotion of Park Your Bike scheme to provide free Sheffield 
stands to local shops

•

Establish a Cycling Steering Group with membership open to business, 
public sector organisations and cycling interest groups

•

Review progress on action plan and identify additional actions to target 
additional key partners by 2026

•

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

37

Page 45



Cardiff Cycling Strategy:  
The Next Steps
This document forms the Draft Cycling Strategy for public consultation. The next steps for the publication 
of a new Cycle Strategy for Cardiff are as follows:

End of Public Consultation 27TH MARCH 2017

Review of Consultation Responses APRIL TO MAY 2017

Amendments Made to Cycle Strategy Where 
Required

MAY 2017

Council Approval of Cycle Strategy JULY 2017

Publication of Cycle Strategy JULY 2017

C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

38

Page 46



C
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

39

Page 47



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Cardiff Existing Routes Map Cycling

Produced by the Active Travel web site.   Gynhyrchwyd gan y wefan Teithio Llesol.

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100021874. Welsh Government. © Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata’r Goron 2014. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100021874.
Whilst the Welsh Government have made every effort to ensure that the information on this website is accurate and up-to-date, the Welsh Government takes no responsibility for any incorrect information. The data is compiled from Public Rights of Way, Ordnance Survey ITN, Ordnance Survey ITN Urban Path and aerial photography 
derived data supplemented by field survey. The online map is provided for guidance only and is not a legal record.
Er bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud pob ymdrech i sicrhau bod y wybodaeth ar y wefan hon yn gywir ac yn gyfredol, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cymryd unrhyw gyfrifoldeb am unrhyw wybodaeth anghywir. Lluniwyd y data o hawliau tramwy cyhoeddus, RhTI yr AO, Llwybrau Trefol RhTI yr AO a data sy'n deillio o ffotograffau o'r 
awyr wedi'i ategu gan arolwg maes. Yn y map ar-lein yn darparu canllaw yn unig ac nid yw cofnod cyfreithiol.

Cardiff Council
County Hall

Atlantic Wharf
Cardiff, CF10 4UW

Legend / Eglurhad

Active Travel Routes / Llwybrau Teithio Llesol

20 Jan 2016 14:19 PM

APPENDIX 2

Page 49



 

 

Cardiff Existing Routes Map Cycling: Statement and Explanation 

Colum Road 

Route offers dedicated facilities for cyclists on a traffic calmed street and provides an important link 

to employment and education at Cathays Park, however the 1.7m cycle lanes do not meet the 

desirable minimum width for this type of facility. The Colum Rd/Corbett Rd Toucan crossing has high 

pedestrian flows at peak times during term time. 

Cathays Terrace 

Route offers dedicated facilities for cyclists and provides an important link to employment and 

education, however the 1.8m cycle lanes do not meet the desirable minimum width for this type of 

facility. Furthermore, there is currently no formal crossing for cyclists to link Cathays Terrace to 

Senghenydd Road, and cyclists are therefore currently required to dismount to continue their 

journey. 

 

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg. 

Page 50



Cardiff Existing Routes Map Walking Ely and Caerau
Produced by the Active Travel web site.   Gynhyrchwyd gan y wefan Teithio Llesol.

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100021874. Welsh Government. © Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata’r Goron 2014. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100021874.
Whilst the Welsh Government have made every effort to ensure that the information on this website is accurate and up-to-date, the Welsh Government takes no responsibility for any incorrect information. The data is compiled from Public Rights 
of Way, Ordnance Survey ITN, Ordnance Survey ITN Urban Path and aerial photography derived data supplemented by field survey. The online map is provided for guidance only and is not a legal record.
Er bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud pob ymdrech i sicrhau bod y wybodaeth ar y wefan hon yn gywir ac yn gyfredol, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cymryd unrhyw gyfrifoldeb am unrhyw wybodaeth anghywir. Lluniwyd y data o hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus, RhTI yr AO, Llwybrau Trefol RhTI yr AO a data sy'n deillio o ffotograffau o'r awyr wedi'i ategu gan arolwg maes. Yn y map ar-lein yn darparu canllaw yn unig ac nid yw cofnod cyfreithiol.

Cardiff Council
County Hall

Atlantic Wharf
Cardiff, CF10 4UW

Legend / Eglurhad
Active Travel Routes / Llwybrau Teithio Llesol

20 Jan 2016 14:32 PM

P
age 51



Cardiff Existing Routes Map Walking Grangetown
Produced by the Active Travel web site.   Gynhyrchwyd gan y wefan Teithio Llesol.

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100021874. Welsh Government. © Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata’r Goron 2014. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100021874.
Whilst the Welsh Government have made every effort to ensure that the information on this website is accurate and up-to-date, the Welsh Government takes no responsibility for any incorrect information. The data is compiled from Public Rights 
of Way, Ordnance Survey ITN, Ordnance Survey ITN Urban Path and aerial photography derived data supplemented by field survey. The online map is provided for guidance only and is not a legal record.
Er bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud pob ymdrech i sicrhau bod y wybodaeth ar y wefan hon yn gywir ac yn gyfredol, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cymryd unrhyw gyfrifoldeb am unrhyw wybodaeth anghywir. Lluniwyd y data o hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus, RhTI yr AO, Llwybrau Trefol RhTI yr AO a data sy'n deillio o ffotograffau o'r awyr wedi'i ategu gan arolwg maes. Yn y map ar-lein yn darparu canllaw yn unig ac nid yw cofnod cyfreithiol.

Cardiff Council
County Hall

Atlantic Wharf
Cardiff, CF10 4UW

Legend / Eglurhad
Active Travel Routes / Llwybrau Teithio Llesol

20 Jan 2016 14:23 PM

P
age 52



Cardiff Existing Routes Map Walking Llanishen
Produced by the Active Travel web site.   Gynhyrchwyd gan y wefan Teithio Llesol.

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100021874. Welsh Government. © Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata’r Goron 2014. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100021874.
Whilst the Welsh Government have made every effort to ensure that the information on this website is accurate and up-to-date, the Welsh Government takes no responsibility for any incorrect information. The data is compiled from Public Rights 
of Way, Ordnance Survey ITN, Ordnance Survey ITN Urban Path and aerial photography derived data supplemented by field survey. The online map is provided for guidance only and is not a legal record.
Er bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud pob ymdrech i sicrhau bod y wybodaeth ar y wefan hon yn gywir ac yn gyfredol, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cymryd unrhyw gyfrifoldeb am unrhyw wybodaeth anghywir. Lluniwyd y data o hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus, RhTI yr AO, Llwybrau Trefol RhTI yr AO a data sy'n deillio o ffotograffau o'r awyr wedi'i ategu gan arolwg maes. Yn y map ar-lein yn darparu canllaw yn unig ac nid yw cofnod cyfreithiol.

Cardiff Council
County Hall

Atlantic Wharf
Cardiff, CF10 4UW

Legend / Eglurhad
Active Travel Routes / Llwybrau Teithio Llesol

20 Jan 2016 14:28 PM

P
age 53



Cardiff Existing Routes Map Walking Llanrumney
Produced by the Active Travel web site.   Gynhyrchwyd gan y wefan Teithio Llesol.

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100021874. Welsh Government. © Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata’r Goron 2014. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100021874.
Whilst the Welsh Government have made every effort to ensure that the information on this website is accurate and up-to-date, the Welsh Government takes no responsibility for any incorrect information. The data is compiled from Public Rights 
of Way, Ordnance Survey ITN, Ordnance Survey ITN Urban Path and aerial photography derived data supplemented by field survey. The online map is provided for guidance only and is not a legal record.
Er bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud pob ymdrech i sicrhau bod y wybodaeth ar y wefan hon yn gywir ac yn gyfredol, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cymryd unrhyw gyfrifoldeb am unrhyw wybodaeth anghywir. Lluniwyd y data o hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus, RhTI yr AO, Llwybrau Trefol RhTI yr AO a data sy'n deillio o ffotograffau o'r awyr wedi'i ategu gan arolwg maes. Yn y map ar-lein yn darparu canllaw yn unig ac nid yw cofnod cyfreithiol.

Cardiff Council
County Hall

Atlantic Wharf
Cardiff, CF10 4UW

Legend / Eglurhad
Active Travel Routes / Llwybrau Teithio Llesol

20 Jan 2016 14:29 PM

P
age 54



Cardiff Existing Routes Map Walking Roath
Produced by the Active Travel web site.   Gynhyrchwyd gan y wefan Teithio Llesol.

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100021874. Welsh Government. © Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata’r Goron 2014. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100021874.
Whilst the Welsh Government have made every effort to ensure that the information on this website is accurate and up-to-date, the Welsh Government takes no responsibility for any incorrect information. The data is compiled from Public Rights 
of Way, Ordnance Survey ITN, Ordnance Survey ITN Urban Path and aerial photography derived data supplemented by field survey. The online map is provided for guidance only and is not a legal record.
Er bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud pob ymdrech i sicrhau bod y wybodaeth ar y wefan hon yn gywir ac yn gyfredol, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cymryd unrhyw gyfrifoldeb am unrhyw wybodaeth anghywir. Lluniwyd y data o hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus, RhTI yr AO, Llwybrau Trefol RhTI yr AO a data sy'n deillio o ffotograffau o'r awyr wedi'i ategu gan arolwg maes. Yn y map ar-lein yn darparu canllaw yn unig ac nid yw cofnod cyfreithiol.

Cardiff Council
County Hall

Atlantic Wharf
Cardiff, CF10 4UW

Legend / Eglurhad
Active Travel Routes / Llwybrau Teithio Llesol

20 Jan 2016 14:21 PM

P
age 55



Cardiff Existing Routes Map Walking Whitchurch
Produced by the Active Travel web site.   Gynhyrchwyd gan y wefan Teithio Llesol.

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100021874. Welsh Government. © Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata’r Goron 2014. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100021874.
Whilst the Welsh Government have made every effort to ensure that the information on this website is accurate and up-to-date, the Welsh Government takes no responsibility for any incorrect information. The data is compiled from Public Rights 
of Way, Ordnance Survey ITN, Ordnance Survey ITN Urban Path and aerial photography derived data supplemented by field survey. The online map is provided for guidance only and is not a legal record.
Er bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud pob ymdrech i sicrhau bod y wybodaeth ar y wefan hon yn gywir ac yn gyfredol, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cymryd unrhyw gyfrifoldeb am unrhyw wybodaeth anghywir. Lluniwyd y data o hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus, RhTI yr AO, Llwybrau Trefol RhTI yr AO a data sy'n deillio o ffotograffau o'r awyr wedi'i ategu gan arolwg maes. Yn y map ar-lein yn darparu canllaw yn unig ac nid yw cofnod cyfreithiol.

Cardiff Council
County Hall

Atlantic Wharf
Cardiff, CF10 4UW

Legend / Eglurhad
Active Travel Routes / Llwybrau Teithio Llesol

20 Jan 2016 14:31 PM

P
age 56



KEY

   PRIORITY WALKING NETWORKS

FUTURE PROGRAMME OF PEDESTRIAN SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS

SCHOOL SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED

INTEGRATED NETWORK MAP: PRIORITY WALKING NETWORKS

WHITCHURCH

RADYR

WATERLOO GARDENS
& NEWPORT ROADROATH

ROATH PARK

PONTCANNA

LLANEDEYRN

LISVANE &
THORNHILL STATION

FAIRWATER

CYNCOED NORTH

APPENDIX 3

P
age 57



AMBERLEY CL

CLO S CWM DU

GELLI FRON G OCH

CL
O

S 
NANT Y CWM

HEO
L 

PONTPRENNAU

CLOS N
ANT M

W
LAN

AM
BE

RG
AT

E 
D

R

TARRAGON W
AY

TY CERRIG

LLWYN CASTAN

HY
SSO P C

L

BO
RA

G E CL

GLYN R H O
SY

N

G
LY

N
 RH

O
SYN

PEPPERMINT DR

BR
YN

 H
EU

LO
G

G
LYN

 EID
D

EW

BRYNCYN

C
O

ED
EN

 D
A

L

W
A

U
N

 FACH

BRYN PINWYDDEN

PENTWYN RD

DARTINGTON DR

FELBRIGG
 CRES

PE
N

TW
YN

 D
R

F ORSYTHIA D R

FO
RSYTH

IA
 D

R

MAGNOLIA CL

A
ZA

LEA CL

G
LYN

 C
O

ED
 RD

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

 R
D

W

OO
D

VA
LE

 A
VE

CELY N G
R

ALD
ER

BROOK

LLYSW
EN RD

BRYN
-G

W
YN

 RD

LLANGORSE RD

W
ES

TM
IN

ST
ER

 C
RE

S

SHERBORNE AVE

DERWEN RD

BETTWS-Y-C
OED RDRHYD-Y-P

ENAU RD

CLA
V

ERTO

N  WAY

CLOS NANT GLASW
G

BUTTERFIE

LD D
R

GW
ERN-RHUDDI RD

BRYN
-AW

ELO
N

 RD

TY-DRAW RD

PO
N

TFA
EN

CRANBOURNE W
AY

BA
LM

O
RA

L C
L

THE FAIRWAY

HA C KERFORD RD

HAMPTON CRES W

HURFORD PL

 
BL

AC
K 

O
AK 

RD

LO
N

G
LE

AT

 CL

CWRT CEFN

MILLGATE

M
IL

L 
RD W

O
O

D
SID

E CT

CHARTWELL DR

E RISE

N
 RI SE

S 
RI

SE

PENTWYN RD

MILL C
L

OLD M
ILL  R

D

FID
LA

S AVE
ELA

N
 RD

TO
W

 R
D

EWENNY RD

W
 R

IS
E

TH
E RISE

SO
LVA

 AVE

USK RD

LISVANE RD

OA K LEAFE
 D

R

CYNCOED RD

CY5 a.  Resurface footways. 
 b.  Replace radius kerbs at    
  driveways with modern    
  dropped kerb arrangement. 

Cyncoed Road

CY6 a.  Resurface footways. 

Gwern-Rhuddi Road

CY2 a.  Resurface footways.

Hurford Place CY3 a.  Resurface footways.    
 b.  Replace radius kerbs at    
  driveways with modern    
  dropped kerb arrangement. 

Hampton Crescent West

CY4 a.  Resurface and widen footways.

Westminster Drive

CY6 c.  Provide dropped kerbs and   
  tactile paving at zebra    
  crossing outside school.

CY6 b.  Provide pedestrian crossing   
  facilities in conjunction with 
  new development

CY1 b.  Provide dropped kerb and   
  tactile paving at the junction  
  of Black Oak and Hurford   
  Place.

CY5 c.  Provide pedestrian crossing   
  facilities at Cyncoed Rd/Rhyd  
  y Pennau Rd junction.

CYNCOED NORTH KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

P
age 58



HEOL FAIR

CA
TH

ED
RA

L CL

M
A

Y
N

A

R D CT

LLA
N

D
A

FF  CHASE

M
IT

RE
 P

L

BRIDGE ST

FORDWELL

LANSDOWNE AVE W

AU
BREY AVE

SU
RR

EY
 S

T

N
ES

TA
 R

D

TU
RN

ER
 R

D

ETHEL ST

FORREST RD

DAISY ST

KI
N

G
SL

A
N

D
 R

D

W
ES

SE
X

 S
T

T
H

E 
CR

ES
CENT

OVINGTON TERR

WESTBURY TERR

V
IC

TO
RI

A
 P

A
RK

 R
D

 E

HALSBU
RY

 R
D

VICTORIA AVE

IV
Y 

ST
CO

N
YB

EA
RE

 R
D

CHAPEL ST

PALACE RD

PA
LA

C
E AVE

HENDRE C
L

ELY RD

C
A

EW
A

L R
D

R O WAN CT

H
EN

D
RE G

D
N

S

HOW
EL

LS
 C

RE
S

ST MICHAELS RD

C
H

A
RG

O
T RD

PEN
C

ISELY RISE

PENCISELY AVE

G
REEN

W
IC

H
 RD

P
EN

CISELY C R ESW
IN

D
W

AY RD

C
A

EW
A

L RD

TH
E  GRA

N
G

E

VAUGHAN AVE

INSOLE G
D

N
S

HIG
H S

T

H
A

R
D

W
ICKE CT

BISH
O

PS W
A

LK

IN
SO

LE G
RO

VE W
PRO

S PEC
T D

R

BISHOPS PL
KEN

ILW
O

RTH
 C

T

PWLLMELIN LN

RO
O

KW
O

O
D

 AVE

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE E

ROOKWOOD CL

N
O

RBU
RY RD

M
ARIO

NVILLE G
D

N

S

BISHOPS AVE

VIC
TO

RIA
 PA

RK RD
 W

WINDWAY AVE

THOMPSON AVE

BERNARD AVE

KEN
SIN

G
TO

N
 AVE

GRAN
VILLE AVE

M
AYFIELD

 AVE

FA
IRFIELD

 AVE

REDCLIFFE AVE

PAPER MILL RD

SANATORIUM RD

W

 O
RCH

A
RD

 C
RE

S

BU
TL

EI
G

H
 A

V
E

ELY RD

ELY
 R

D

ELY
 R

D

ALD
SW

O
RTH

 RD

FAIRFIELD CL

BIRCH
FIELD

 CRES

D
AVIES PL

SHEARS RD

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE W

A48   WESTERN AVE

ST FA
G

A
N

S RD

BRO
O

K RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 T
ER

R

ARLES W
AY

BARNARD AVE

ROBERT ST

AIN
T

R
EE  DR

LITTLECROFT AVE

CHIC
HESTER W

AY

LLANGYNIDR RD

LLA
N

G
ATTO

CK RD
BAILEY CL

MILTON PL

DYFRIG RD

COLIN W
AY

PENGWERN RD

PENYGARN R
D

PENDIN
E RD

PEN
CAD

ER RD

RO
NALD PL

M
IL

L P
L

C
H

A
RTEERIS  RD

EVERSWELL AVE

THE CRESCEN
T

FERN PL PERROTS CL

O
XW

IC
H C

L

ELY RD

LIM ES L ADE CL

TH
E C

H
A

N
TRY

W
H

ITLAND
 CL

ELFED GRN

FAIRWATER RD

TH
E D

R

BIRCH RD

HEOL GWILYM

WRO
UGHTON PL

CLARKE ST

PALMERS DR

VINCENT RD

M
ORRIS FINER C L

H
EO

L-Y-FELIN

CH
ER

RY
D A L

E
 R

D

LLANBEDR RD

HEOL DENNANT

DOYLE AVE

LLA
N

D
ETTY RD

CYMRIC CL

AD
D

IC

OTT C
L

RED
 H

O
U

SE CL

CHO RLEY CL

SPINNEY CL

EFFORD RD

STANWAY PL

H
O

W
ELL RD

HILES RD

ABERTHAW
 RD

TRESEDER W
AY

FONMON CRES

HIGHMEAD RD

COWBRIDGE RD W

HIRST CRES

G
O

U
G

H
 RD

RED H
OUSE CRES

ST FA
G

A
N

S RISE

CA
RTW

RIG
H

T LN

EVERSW
ELL RD

FAIRW
AYS CRES

W
ELLRIG

H
T RD

HOLLY RD

FERRIER AVE

HONEYSUCKLE CL

LA
VE

NDER GR

SH
A

M
RO

CK
 R

D

BEE
CH R

D

BR
IA

R 
C

L

WILLOWDALE RD

ROCH
E 

CR
ES

VACHELL RD

HAZEL
 P

L

YEWTREE CL

FREWER AVE

POPLAR RD

PLAS-M
AW

R RD

HEOL-Y-PAVIN

FAIRWATER RD

PWLLMELIN RD

PWLLMELIN RD

M
O

O
RE RD

TY CO
C

H
 RD

ARCHER RD

MOORE C
L

ELDERBERRY RD

MAPLE RD

LIM
E G

R

FI
RS

 A
VE

G
LAN

 ELY CL

TATEM DR

CLOS T Y B
R

O
NN

A

ORANGE GR

GRAND AVE

HEOL MUSTON

PET
H

YB
RI

D
GE R

D

FRANK RD

C
H

A
RT

ER
IS

 C

RES

A
RC

H
ER

 C
RE

S

MILL RD

PLYMOUTH WOOD RD

GORSE PL

OAKWAY

NORBURY RD

FINCHLEY RD
BWLCH RD

RED
 H

O
U

SE RD

PLYMOUTH WOOD CRES

ARCHER RD

LLEW
ELLYN AVE

ROSED
ALE CL

HILL VIEW

COWBRID
GE RD W

EST

BEECHLEY DR

PENTREBANE RD

STANWAY RD

PL YMOUTHW O
O

D
 C

L

WAUNGRON RD

ST FAGANS RD

ROMILLY RD W

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

LANSDOWNE RD

CH
ATSW

O
RTH

 CL

ST
 D

AV
ID

S 
C

R
ES

FW1 a.  Resurface footways. 

Wroughton Place

FW7 a.  Resurface footways. 

Finchley Road

FW10 a.  Resurface footways. 

Plasmawr  Road

FW11 a.  Widen and resurface  
  footways. 

Fairwater Road

FW12 a.  Resurface footways.      
   b.  Provide dropped kerbs and tactile  
  paving at St Fagans Rd, Brook Rd   
  and Norbury Rd
    c.  Tra�c calming

Fairwater Road

FW9 a.  Resurface footways. 

St Fagans Road

FW15  a.  Tra�c calming and  
  formal crossings

Cantonian High

FW9 b.  Provide dropped kerb and  
  tactile paving at Norbury  
  Rd and Shears Rd.

FW3 a.  Resurface footways. 

Cowbridge Road West

FW6 a.  Resurface footways. 

St Fagans Road

FW5 a.  Resurface footways 
 b.  Provide dropped kerb and   
  tactile paving at Ely    
  Rd/Western Ave

Ely Road

FW8 a.  Resurface footways. 

Ely Road

FW16 a.  Tra�c calming

Bwlch Road

FW13  a.  Tra�c calming and formal   
  crossing near Ysgol Gyfun   
  Gymraeg Plasmawr FW14  a.  Formal crossing

FW8 b.  Provide dropped kerb and   
  tactile paving at Llangattock  
  St and Doyle Ave

FW4 a.  Resurface footways. 
 b.  Provide pedestrian crossing   
  facilities

Western Avenue

FW6 b.  Provide dropped kerb and tactile   
  paving at St Fagans Rise, Wellright  
  Rd, Everswell Rd and The Drive

FW6 b.  Provide dropped kerb and tactile   
  paving at St Fagans Rise, Wellright  
  Rd, Everswell Rd and The Drive

FW6 c.  Formal crossing facility

FW17  a.  Replace radius kerbs at    
  driveways with modern    
  dropped kerb arrangement

Mass action

FAIRWATER

KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

        MASS ACTION

P
age 59



C OTSWOLD A
VE

PLAS Y DELYN

LARCH GROVE

MILL PL

M
ILL RD

HEOL S
T 

D
EN

YS

MILLBROOK PARK

TH
E 

PA
DD

O
C

K

HOLLY GROVE

CH
ERRY ORC H ARD RD

ROWAN WAY

CARDINAL DR

RI
D

GE

WAY

RIDGEWAY

IVYDALE

BL
OSSOM D

R

H
EO

L CEFN O
NN

ROUNDEL CLAM
BERHEART DR

CHERRY ORCHARD RD

HEOL LL INOS

HEOL-Y-DE LYN

CL
O

S 
LL

YSF
A

EN

CHERITO
N

 D
R

ALW
EN DR

PIN

ECREST DR

RA
G

N
A

L L
 C

L
HEOL Y BARCUD

BRIARM

EAD
O

W

 DR

M
ILLRA

C
E C

L

M
IL

LW
O

O
D

W
O

O
DL AWN WAY

H
EO

L H
IR

B
R

O
O

KVALE DR

H
E

OL-Y-CARW

MAYFAIR DR

H

EO L-Y-CADNO

ORCHARD CASTLE

LOWFIELD  DR

H
AVEN

W
O

O
D DR

EXCALIBUR D
R

M4

LI1 a.  Resurface and widen existing  
  footways.
 b.  Provide additional footway   
  where space allows. 
 c. Tra�c calming

Cherry Orchard Road

LI2 a.  Resurface footways. 
 b.  Provide pedestrian crossing   
  facilities at desire lines.
 

Cherry Orchard Road

LI3 a.  Formal crossing footway   
  improvements in vicinity of   
  school

Llys Faen Primary

LI1 c.  Install dropped kerbs/tactile   
  paving near Heol Cefn Onn 

LISVANE & THORNHILL RAIL STATION KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

P
age 60



LLWYN CASTAN

BR
YN

 H
EU

LO
G

BRYN HAI D D

W
A

U
N

 FACH

P E N NSYLVANIA

WERN GOCH W

BRYN CELYN RD

PE
N

TW
YN

 D
R

THE HAW THORNS

THE H
A

W
TH

O
RN

S

LI
N

N
ET

 C
L

H
O

LLY
BUSH HGHTS

F ORSYTHIA D R

FO
RSYTH

IA
 D

R

H A W FIN
CH C

L

MAGNOLIA CL

A
ZA

LEA CL

CO
ED-Y-G

ORES

BR
YN

-Y
-N

A
N

T

COED-Y-G
ORES

AEL-Y-BRYN

PIN
EW

OOD C
RES

KING W
O

O
D

 CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

QUEENWOO D

ROUNDWOOD

LL
AN

ED
EY

RN
 D

R

LLA
N

ED
EYRN

 D
R

MAELFA

W
ELLW

O
O

D

LOTHIAN CRES

HOLLYBUSH RD

COED-Y-G
ORES

BR
YN

FEDW

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

G
LYN

 CO
ED

 RD

CHAPEL WOOD

BRYNFEDW

PENNSYLVANIA

TY
-G

W
YN

 R
D

OAK WOOD AVE

LONSDALE RD

O
RM

O
ND

E CL

W
ELL W

O
OD CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

GRAFTON CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

CARISBROOKE W
AY

TY-GWYN CRES

TY-GWYN AVE

SP
RI

N
GW

OOD

HILLRISE

CLEAR WATER WAY

SPRINGWOOD

H
ILLRISE

CEFN-CO E D G
D

N
S

FF
O

RD
D

 C
W

EL
LY

N

FFORD D  B
O

D
LY

N

PENNAN
T C

RES

WERNGOCH RD

RANNOCH D R

LO
M

ON
D CRES

A
RN

SI
D

E 
RD

H
U

RO
N

 C
RE

S

EVERARD WAY

W

OOLASTON AVE

HUNTERS RDG

FARM DR

ES
KD

A
LE

 C
L

EGREMONT RD

CYNCOED AVE

GLENW
OOD

C
YN

CO
ED

 RISE

C
YN

C
O

ED
 A

V
E

ST EDEYRNS RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

CYNCOED C

RES

GOLDCREST DR
WOODVALE AVE

CELY N G
R

LLYSWEN RD

BRYN
-G

W
YN

 RD

ALLTMAW
R RD

LLANGORSE RD

D
U

FFRYN
 RD

WESTMIN
STER C

RE
S

SHERBORNE AVE

DAN-Y-COED RD

CYNCOED PL

WINNIP

EG
 D

R

ONTARIO W
AY

C
EF

N
 C

O
ED

 A
V

E

HENLLYS RD

BETTWS-Y-C
OED RD

LEVEN CL

CLAERWEN DR

CARNEGIE DR

PA
D

A
RN

 C
L

OGWEN DR

D
U

FF
RY

N
 A

V
E

LLYN CL

G
W

YN
ANT CRES

DAN-Y-COED RD

NANT-FAWR CRES

N
A

N
T-

FA
W

R 
RD

LLANDENNIS AVE

CELYN AVE

CELYN AVE

RHYD-Y-P
ENAU RD

BIRCHW
OOD RD

BR
AN

D
RE

TH
 R

D

CORSHAM RD

TO
RR

EN
S 

D
R

BIRCHWOOD LN

MARYPORT RD

CEFN-COED RD

LA
KE

SI
D

E 
D

R

LAKESIDE DR

CI
RC

LE
 W

AY
 E

CIRCLE WAY E

C
IR

C
LE

 W
AY

 W

CIRCLE WAY W

CYNCOED RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

CYN
CO

ED
 RD

CYNCOED RD

L1 a.  Provide footways. 
 b.  Widen existing footway. 
 c.  Provide additional street   
  lighting. 
 d.  Remove overhanging    
  vegetation.
 f.  Provide tactile paving

Llanedeyrn Drive
Chapelwood to Roundwood

L6 a.  Improvements to footways   
  across whole area, including   
  resurfacing, widening and   
  removal of steps

Llanedeyrn estate
Mass action

L3 a.  Resurface footways.
 c.  Clear signage needed. 

Circle Way West/Glyn Coed

L2 a.  Provide footways on both   
  sides of road. 
 b.  Resurface and widen existing  
  footways. 

Llanedeyrn Drive

L4 a.  Resurface footways. 
 e.  Provide clear signage

Path connecting Llanedeyrn Drive 
to Circle Way West

L1 e.  Replace subway with at grade  
  crossing.

L5 a.  Provide footway

L2 d.  Redesign subway to remove   
  steps or replace with at grade  
  crossing.

L3 b.  Improve pedestrian facilities   
  at Pentwyn Drive

L4 b.  Redesign subway to remove   
  steps or replace with at grade  
  crossing

L4 c.  Improve crossing access to   
  school.
 d.  Dropped kerbs and tactile   
  paving at school car park   
  entrance.

L3 d.  Redesign subway to remove   
  steps or replace with at grade  
  crossing.

L2 c.  Tactile paving at Llanedeyrn   
  Drive/Circle Way East

LLANEDEYRN

KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

        MASS ACTION Page 61



LLANTRISANT ST

CARD
IFF RD

CARDIFF RD

LLA
N

D
A

FF RD

LLANDAFF RD

TINTERN ST

EG
ERTO

N
 ST

PARRY ST

LLAN DAFF PL

WESTMORELAND ST

CUMBERLAND ST

HANOVER ST

N
O

RT
H

U
M

BE
RL

A
N

D
 S

T

TH
EO

BA
LD

 S
T

BRECO
N

 ST PEN
-Y-PEEL RD

RA
D

N
O

R 
RD

CARDIGAN ST

PEMBROKE RD

SYR DAVID’S AVE

DULWICH GDNS

EG
H

A
M

 S
T

PE

NHIL L 
C

L

LANSDOWNE AVE E

LANSDOWNE AVE W

LAWRENNY AVE

YO
RK

 S
T

W
EM

BL
EY

 R
D

BROADHAVEN

BROADSTAIRS RD

BE
D

A
 R

D

N
O

RF
O

LK
 S

T

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

LI
O

N
EL

 R
D

SU
RR

EY
 S

T

N
ES

TA
 R

D

TU
RN

ER
 R

D

BRUNSWICK ST

N
O

TT
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

FE
RN

 S
T

FLINDO CRES

VERALLO
 D

R

HEOL TERRELL

ETHEL ST

FORREST RD

DAISY ST

KI
N

G
SL

A
N

D
 R

D

W
ES

SE
X

 S
T

T
H

E 
CR

ES
CENT

BURLINGTON TERR

M
IL

L 
LN

VISHWELL RD

OVINGTON TERR

WESTBURY TERR

V
IC

TO
RI

A
 P

A
RK

 R
D

 E

HALSBU
RY

 R
D

VICTORIA AVE

G
RO

SV
EN

O
R 

ST

C
LIV

E RD

IV
Y 

ST
C

O
N

YB
EA

RE
 R

D

CHAPEL ST

PALACE RD

PA
LA

C
E AVE

HENDRE C
L

ELY RD

C
A

EW
A

L R
D

R O WAN CT

HOW
EL

LS
 C

RE
S

ST MICHAELS RD

C
H

A
RG

O
T RD

PEN
C

ISELY RISE

PENCISELY AVE

G
REEN

W
IC

H
 RD

P
EN

CISELY C R ES

C
A

EW
A

L RD

HIG
H S

T

VIC
TO

RIA
 PA

RK RD
 W

THOMPSON AVE

BERNARD AVE

KEN
SIN

G
TO

N
 AVE

GRAN
VILLE AVE

REDCLIFFE AVE

PAPER MILL RD

SANATORIUM RD

ELY
 R

D

A48   WESTERN AVE

ROLLS ST

LITTLETO
N

 ST

CHANCERY LN REN
N

IE ST

TE
LF

O
RD

 S
T

WELLS ST LN

LECKWITH AVE

LECKWITH PL

R
AILW

AY TERR

D
EN

TO
N

 R
D

SUDCROFT ST

BR
O

AD
H

AV
EN

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

QUEEN ANNE SQ

CITY HALL RD

TUDOR LN

WEDMORE RD

PARK LNPLA
N

TA
G

EN
ET ST

BEA
U

C
H

A
M

P ST

MARK ST

CLARE PL
DESPENSER PL

GRE
EN

 S
T

RAWDEN MEWS

FITZH
AM

O
N

 EM
BAN

KM
EN

T

DESPENSER ST

NEVILLE P
L

G
LO

U
CESTER ST

BROOK ST

CRADDOCK ST

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 S
T

MACHEN PL

H
EA

TH
 P

L

RA
W

D
EN

 P
L

DE BURGH ST

NEVILLE ST

MA NDEVIL
LE S

T

TREHERBERT ST

D
A

RRA
N

 ST

FLORA ST
HIRWAIN ST

CORBETT RD

COLUM RD

COLU
M

 D
R

MAINDY RD

TREORKY ST

MINISTER ST

M
ERTHYR ST

CASTLE ST

N
O

RTH
 RD

HAMILTON ST

CRADDOCK ST

TREVETHIC
K ST

SOPHIA
 C

L

TALBOT ST

PLASTURTON P
L

KYVEILOG ST

BERTHW
IN

 STDOGO S
T

G
IL

ES
TO

N
 R

D

W
ELLS ST

LYNDHURST ST

A
LBERT ST

ORCHARD PL

KINGS RD

SNEYD ST

IE
ST

YN ST

SPRINGFIELD PL

GLYNNE ST

W
YNDHAM

 RD

SEVERN
 RD

G
RAY LN

DYFRIG
 S

T

GREENFIELD AV E

SEVERN
 G

RO
VE

RYDER ST

PLASTURTON AVE

PITM
AN ST

MALDWYN ST

CO
N

W
AY RD

MORTIMER RD

LO
W

ER
 C

AT
H

ED
RA

L 
RD

CATHEDRAL RD

CATHEDRAL RD

PENHILL RD
PENCISELY RD

PE
N

LL
YN

 R
D

C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

LLANFAIR RD

W
YNDHAM

 CRES

ROMILLY CRES

ROMILLY RD

ROMILLY RD W

CARMARTHEN ST

G
LA

M
O

RG
A

N
 ST

MARKET  PL

FAIRLEIGH RD

S 
M

O
RG

AN
 PL LEW

IS ST

TEIL
O S

T

PO
N

TC
A

N
N

A
 ST

SOPHIA
 W

K

SM
EA

TO
N

 S
T

TUDOR ST

NINIAN PARK RD

MAJOR RD
WYNDHAM PL

WYNDHAM
 PL

A
LBER T  ST

PICTON PL

BROAD ST

E ARLE PL

LEC
KW

ITH
 RD

RE
C

TO
RY

 R
D

M
A

RKET RD

A
LE

X
A

N
D

RA
 R

D

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

WELLINGTON ST

ATLAS R D

LANSDOWNE RD

C
LA

RE ST

FI
EL

D
S 

PA
RK

 R
D PO8 a.  Resurface footways.  

 b.  Relocate crossing   
  points to suit desire  
  lines.

Severn Grove

PO6 a.   Resurface footway

Pontcanna Street/Kings Road

PO3 a.   Resurface footway
 b. Provide dropped    
  kerbs and tactile paving.
 c. Tra�c calming

Conway Road

PO7 c.   Resurface footway

Romilly Cres. / Wyndham Cres.

PO9 a.  Improvement to   
  crossing facilities at  
  Cowbridge Road E   
  junction.

Severn Road

PO1 a.   Resurface footway

PO6 b.  Pedestrian crossing improvements at   
  Sneyd Street junction and Plasturton   
  Avenue junction, including provision   
  of dropped kerbs, tactile paving and   
  improved layout along desire lines.

Fields Park Road

PO1 b.  Provide dropped kerbs and   
  tactile paving at desire line at  
  Fairleigh Rd/Fields Park Rd   
  junction.

PO4 b.  Provide dropped kerbs and   
  tactile paving at Conway   
  Road junction.

PO8 a.  Provide raised zebra outside   
  school and school safety zone  
  with tra�c calming

PO8 b.  Improve junction layout to provide   
  improved pedestrian crossing facilities at  
  Romilly/Wyndham Crescent/Severn   
  Grove/Severn Road junction.

PONTCANNA KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

P
age 62



H
EO

L BA
KEM

O
RE

HEOL BOOKER

SPRINGHU
RST CL

HEOL PANTYCELY
N

LON-Y-CELYN

ARDW

YN

DAN Y GRAIG

CLOS COED HIR

H
A

R
FORD

 C
L

VELINDRE RD

PANTMAW
R RD

CORYTON RISE

G
REEN

 M
EAD

O
W

 RD

CORYTON CRES

PENDWYALLT RD

W
H

ITW

O R TH SQ

P
ENYDARREN

 D
R

FFO
R D

D
 M

ORG

A NWG

SAM
U

EL
S 

C
RE

S

FOREST FARM RD

CA
E 

LE
WIS

LLWY N MA LLT

GREENM
EADO

W
 DR

PANTGWYNLAIS

JU
N

C
TI

O
N

 T
ER

R

CA
STELL CO

CH
 VIEW

IRON BRID
GE RD

GRAIG LW
YD

M
IL

L R
D

LONGWOOD DR

QUEEN ST

A4054    MERTHYR RD

CHAPEL RD

FFORDD TREFORGAN

M
EADOW

FIE
LD W

AY

PEN
RHOS

BL
A

EN
-Y

-C
O

ED

MAES Y C
RO

FF
T

M
EL

IN
GR

IFFITH DR

T
Y-M

A
W

R RD

HEOL PENLAN

FISH
ER H

ILL W
AY

DE CLARE D
R

TY M
YN

YD
D

 C
L

MIN-Y-CO
ED

PARK RD

KINGS RD

PENTWYN

D
A

N
-Y-BRYN

 AVE

FFORDD LAS

H
EO

L 
IS

A
F

H
EO

L ISA
F

G
ELYN

IS TERR N
TY-NANT RD

STATION RD

W
IN

D
SO

R RD

WINDSO
R AVE

CEFN COCH

BRYN DERWEN

BRYN
 D

ERW
EN

DRYSGOL RD

CAE’R GRAIG

HAZEL TREE CL

G
O

ETR
E  FAWR

IR
O

N
 B

RI
D

G
E 

RD

A470

M4 JUNCTION 32

CWM GWYNLAIS

R1 a.  Dropped kerbs and tacile   
  paving at Heol Isaf junction. 
 b.  Provide signage to Radyr   
  station.

Station Road

R9 a.  Tra�c calming and school   
  safety zone outside Radyr   
  High School 
 b.  Bollards to prevent footway   
  parking

R3 a.  Resurface footway. 
 b.  Provide dropped kerbs and   
  tactile paving.
 c.  Create school safety zone   
  outside Radyr Primary School  
  with tra�c calming

Park  Road

R4 a.  Resurface footway. 
 b.  Replace radius kerbs at    
  driveways with modern    
  dropped kerb arrangement. 
 c.  Improve crossing facilities

Heol Isaf

R8 a.  School safety zone with   
  tra�c calming at Bryn Deri   
  Primary School

R6 a.  Widen and resurface    
  footways. 
 b.  Introduce dropped kerbs and  
  tactile paving at crossings.

Min-y-Coed

R6 a.  Widen and resurface    
  footways. 
 b.  Introduce dropped kerbs and  
  tactile paving at crossings.

Min-y-Coed

R7 a.  Widen and resurface    
  footways. 
 b.  Introduce dropped kerbs and  
  tactile paving at crossings.

Ty Mynydd

R5 a.  Widen footways. 
 b.  Introduce dropped kerbs and  
  tactile pavings at crossings.

R5 c.  Improve pedestrian crossing  
  facilities at Heol Isaf junction.

Maes Yr Awel

R6 c.  Create formal crossing facility  
  at Min-Y-Coed Junction

R2 a.  Resurface footway. 
 b.  Provide dropped kerbs and   
  tactile paving. 
 c.  Provide additional crossing   
  facilities

Heol Isaf

RADYR KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

P
age 63



LLWYN CASTAN

BRYNCYN

W
A

U
N

 FACH

BRYN PINWYDDEN

P E N NSYLVANIA

WERN GOCH W

BRYN CELYN RD

THE HAW THORNS

THE H
A

W
TH

O
RN

S

LI
N

N
ET

 C
L

H
O

LLY
BUSH HGHTS

F ORSYTHIA D R

FO
RSYTH

IA
 D

R
H A W FIN

CH C
L

MAGNOLIA CL

A
ZA

LEA CL

CO
ED-Y-G

ORES

COED-Y-G
ORES

AEL-Y-BRYN

PIN
EW

OOD C
RES

KING W
O

O
D

 CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

QUEENWOO D

ROUNDWOOD

LL
AN

ED
EY

RN
 D

R

LLA
N

ED
EYRN

 D
R

MAELFA

W
ELLW

O
O

D

LOTHIAN CRES

LLW
YN

-Y-G
RAN

T TERR

BA
RO

N
S C

T RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

COED-Y-G
ORES

BR
YN

FEDW

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

G
LYN

 CO
ED

 RD

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

 R
D

CHAPEL WOOD

BRYNFEDW

PENNSYLVANIA

IP
SW

IC
H

 R
D

SO
U

TH
CO

U
RT RD

WINCHESTER AVE

EA
RLS C

T RD

TY
-G

W
YN

 R
D

DORCHESTER AVE

HAMMOND WAY

OAK WOOD AVE

LONSDALE RD

O
RM

O
ND

E CL

W
ELL W

O
OD CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

HAMPTON CT RD

LLWYN-Y-GRANT RD

PEN
-Y-LAN

 TERR

GRAFTON CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

CARISBROOKE W
AY

TY-GWYN CRES

TY-GWYN AVE

SP
RI

N
GW

OOD

HILLRISE

CLEAR WATER WAY

SPRINGWOOD

H
ILLRISE

CEFN-CO E D G
D

N
S

FF
O

RD
D

 C
W

EL
LY

N

FFORD D  B
O

D
LY

N

PENNAN
T C

RES

WERNGOCH RD

RANNOCH D R

LO
M

ON
D CRES

A
RN

SI
D

E 
RD

H
U

RO
N

 C
RE

S

EVERARD WAY

W

OOLASTON AVE

HUNTERS RDG

FARM DR

ES
KD

A
LE

 C
L

EGREMONT RD

CYNCOED AVE

GLENW
OOD

C
YN

CO
ED

 RISE

C
YN

C
O

ED
 A

V
E

ST EDEYRNS RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

CYNCOED C

RES

GOLDCREST DR
WOODVALE AVE

CELY N G
R

LLYSWEN RD

BRYN
-G

W
YN

 RD

ALLTMAW
R RD

LLANGORSE RD

D
U

FFRYN
 RD

WESTMIN
STER C

RE
S

SHERBORNE AVE

DAN-Y-COED RD

CYNCOED PL

WINNIP

EG
 D

R

ONTARIO W
AY

C
EF

N
 C

O
ED

 A
V

E

HENLLYS RD

DERWEN RD

BETTWS-Y-C
OED RD

LEVEN CL

CLAERWEN DR

CARNEGIE DR

PA
D

A
RN

 C
L

OGWEN DR

D
U

FF
RY

N
 A

V
E

LLYN CL

G
W

YN
ANT CRES

DAN-Y-COED RD

NANT-FAWR CRES

N
A

N
T-

FA
W

R 
RD

LLANDENNIS AVE

CELYN AVE

CELYN AVE

H
EATH

BRO
O

K

TH
RE

E 
A

RC
H

ES
 A

V
E

ST DOGMAELS AVE

C

RUNDALE CRES

ST
 M

ARTINS CRES

KIM
BERLEY TERR

KEYES AVE

RHYD-Y-P
ENAU RD

TYRWHITT CRES

JELLICOE GDNS WILD GARDENS RD

H
EATH

 H
A

LT RD

C
RYSTA

L AVE

HEATHM EAD

NANT Y WEDAL 

WINGATE D
R

GIBSON CL

TRENCHARD DR

PORTFIE L D  C

RE
S

FISHGUARD
 C

L

W
AVELL C

L

LAKE RD N

H
EA

TH
 H

A
LT

 R
D

KING GEORGE V DR N

ST D
EN

IS RD

CEFN CARNAU RD

CRYSTAL W
OOD RD

ETON CT

ST GILD
AS RD

ST ISAN RD

M
O

U
N

TBATTEN
 C

L

KIN
G

 G
EO

RG
E V

 D
R E

BEATTY AVE

ED
IN

G
TO

N
 A

V
E

CRYSTA
L G

LEN

ST IN
A RD

BR
O

N
 W

YD
D

 A
VE

BIRCHW
OOD RD

BR
AN

D
RE

TH
 R

D

BRANDRETH RD

ALD
ER

 R
D

LI
N

D
EN

 A
VE

CORSHAM RD

TO
RR

EN
S 

D
R

BIRCHWOOD LN

CLOS DERWEN

PANT YR WYN

TYDFIL
 P

L

M
ORLA

IS
 S

T

MARYPORT RD

TY-DRAW RD

ENNERDALE C L

LA
D

Y 
M

A
RY

 R
D

CEFN-COED RD

LA
KE

SI
D

E 
D

R

LAKESIDE DR

SH
IRLEY RD

LA
KE RO

A
D

 E

WEDAL RD

HEATHWOOD GR

HIGHFIELD RD

LA
KE

 R
D

 W

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E 
A

V
E

C
LU

N
 TERR

M
ALE

FA
NT 

ST

TE
W

KES
BURY S

T

INGLEFIELD AVE

HEATH PARK WAY
HEATH PARK W

AY

C
EN

TR
A

L 
W

AY

LLANISHEN ST

SU
M

M
ER

FI
EL

D
 A

V
E

CLODIEN AVE

ALLENSBANK CRES

CROWN WAY

MANOR ST

HEATH PARK AVE

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

TALYGARN ST

HEATHWOOD RD

BRYN
-AW

ELO
N

 RD

FID
LA

S AVE
ELA

N
 RD

TO
W

 R
D

EWENNY RD

FISH
G

U
A

RD
 RD

FISH
G

U
A

RD
 RD

SO
LVA

 AVE

FID
LA

S RD

HEOL M
ERLIN

USK RD

MAES-Y-COED RD

TY GLAS AVE

LLANDE
N

N
IS

 RD CIRCLE WAY E

C
IR

C
LE

 W
AY

 W

CIRCLE WAY W

A48 EASTERN AVE

A48 EASTERN AVE

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

NINIAN RD

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

CYNCOED RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

CYN
CO

ED
 RD

CYNCOED RD

A469     WHITCHURCH RD

FA
IR

OAK RD

R1 a.  Resurface footways. 
 b.  Provide crossing facilities at   
  Lake Road E/W.

Lake Road North/East/West 

R2 a.  Resurface footways. 
 b.  Provide dropped kerbs and   
  tactile pavings at junctions. 

Celyn Avenue

R2 c. Provide tactile paving at   
  Celyn Ave/Cyncoed junction

Celyn Avenue

R2 d. Rectify uneven surface at   
  junction of Padarn/Celyn Ave

Celyn Avenue

R4 a. Resurface footways

Claerwen/Ogwen/Rannoch

R3 a. Replace radius kerbs at    
  driveways with modern    
  dropped kerb arrangement

Claerwen Drive

R3 a. Resurface footways 
 b. Replace radius kerbs at    
  driveways with modern    
  dropped kerb arrangement

Cyncoed Road

R5 c. Dropped kerbs and tactile   
  paving at junction of    
  Cyncoed Rd/Rannoch Dr

R3 c. Provide formal pedestrian
  crossings on Cyncoed Road

R1 d. Formal pedestrian crossing

R1 c.  Dropped Kerbs and tactile   
  paving at all junctions with   
  Lake Road E.

ROATH PARK KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

Page 64



DOE CL

DERI R
D

AMESBURY RD

ILTON RD

ALM
A R

D

BALA
CLA

VA
 R

D

CRESSY R
D

M
AFEK

IN
G

 R
D

HARRIS
M

IT
H R

D

WESTVILLE RD

A
N

G
U

S ST

PEN
-Y-LAN

 RD

LO
CHABER S

T

DALCROSS ST

SPENCER ST

GO
W

ER
 S

T

DANIEL ST

LU
CAS 

ST

D
AVIO

T ST

FLORENTIA ST

FA
NNY S

T

ROBERT ST

KIMBERLEY RD

MAY ST

TE
W

KES
BURY S

T

LLANTRISANT ST

BRITHDIR ST

CWMDARE ST

PENTYRCH S
T

SOUTHMINSTER RD

AXM
INSTER RD

FORT  ST
TYLER ST

FOX ST

STURM
INSTER RD

LA
D

YS
M

IT
H

 R
D

M
IN

ST
ER

 R
D

PRIEST RD

BRA
D

LEY ST

H
A

RO
LD

 ST
TH

EO
D

O
RA

 ST

H
ELEN

 ST

BURNABY ST

EYRE ST

COMET ST

SYSTEM
 ST

HOW
ARD GDNS

NEWPORT RD LN

EAST G
RO

VE

THE WALK

CH URCH TERR

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

TIMBERS SQ

STALLCOURT AVE

PEA
RL 

ST

D
IA

M
O

ND
 ST

AGATE ST

N
O

RA
 ST

IRON ST

DIAMOND ST

H
ELEN

 PL

CECIL ST

RIC
HARDS T

ERR

WATERLOO GDN S

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

BERTRA
M

 ST

EMERALD ST

SILVER ST

ORBIT ST

LONGCROSS ST

TOPAZ ST

LEAD ST

SUN ST

GOLD ST

SAPPHIRE ST

RUBY ST

COPPER ST

STAR ST

PLANET ST

M
ETAL ST

CA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

GORSEDD GDNS RD

WYEVERNE RD

LETTY ST

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

RO
AT

H
 C

O
U

RT
 P

L

SANDRINGHAM RD

G
RE

N
VI

LL
E 

RD

AGIN
CO

URT 
RD

UPPER KINCRAIG ST

LILY ST

ROSE ST

CLIFTO
N

 ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

MARLBOROUGH RD

CLAUDE PL

BLENHEIM
 RD

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

ARRAN PL

CLIVE PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

W
EL

LF
IE

LD
 S

T

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

BANGO
R S

T

A
RA

BELLA
 ST

D
O

N
A

LD
 ST

D
IA

N
A

 ST

TY’N-Y-COED PL

A
LFRED

 ST

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

STRATHNAIRN ST

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

OXFORD LN

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

CYFARTHFA ST

RUSSELL ST
TALW

ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

M
A

C
KIN

TO
SH

 PL

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

BEDFORD ST

C
RA

N
BRO

O
K ST

W
IN

D
SO

R PL

THE PARADE

NORTHCOTE LN

KIN
CRA

IG ST

N ORTHCOTE LN

RIC
H

M
O

ND CRES

G
O

RD
O

N
 RD

LLANTW
IT ST

ST ANDREWS PL
SA

LISBU
RY RDGLY

NRHONDDA ST

PA
RK G

RO
VE

MUSEUM PL

PA
RK LN

RHYMNEY TERR

CITY RD

CO
BU

RN
 ST

BASIL PL

RIC
HARDS 

ST

HARRIE
T S

T
FI

TZ
ROY ST

RUTHIN
 G

DNS

WYEVERNE RD

MUNDY PL

CATHERINE ST

FA
NNY S

T

BROADWAY

NEWPORT RD

D
U

M
FRIES PL

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

BOULEVARD DE NANTES

CITY HALL RD

M
USEUM

 AVE

LOWTHER RD

MISKIN ST

TIN ST

PEARL ST

GLOSSOP RD

ALBANY RDALBANY RD

RICHM
OND RD

ALEXANDER ST

SENGHENYDD RD

W
O

O
DVIL

LE
 R

D

TH
ESIG

ER ST

BRYDGES PL

IN
VERN

ESS PL

MOY RD

BRAEVAL ST

GLA
DYS 

STMINNY ST

M
O

NTH
ER

M
ER

 R
D

DALT
O

N S
T

TREHERBERT ST

D
A

RRA
N

 ST

FLORA ST
HIRWAIN ST

C
ATH

AYS T ERR

CORBETT RD

PARK PL

MAINDY RD

TREORKY ST

MINISTER ST

M
ERTHYR ST

NO
RTH RD C6 a.  Repair and re-surface footways

Lowther Road to Northcote Road

C2 a.  Repair and re-surface footways, where  
  required. 
 b. Widen footways. 
 c.  Identify locations for new formal   
  crossings of City Road
 d.  Renew dropped kerbs and tactile   
  paving. 

City Road

C3 a. Redesign/remove drainage channels. 
 b.  Repair and re-surface footways.   
 c.  Replace road narrowings with crossing  
  tables. 

Keppoch Road

C8 a. Provide pedestrian crossing at desire  
  lines
 b. Provide tra�c calming

Mackintosh Place

C7 a. Widen footway (Plasnewydd Road)
 b.  Provide formal crossing point   
  (Strathnairn St)

Albany Road Primary School
Safety Improvements

C4 a. Redesign/remove drainage channels. 
 b.  Repair and re-surface footways. 
 c.  Replace road narrowings with crossing  
  tables.

Kincraig Road

C1 b.  Review pedestrian crossing stages at  
  junction of Mackintosh Place, Albany  
  Road, Richmond Road, City Road,   
  Crwys Road.

C3 d.  Install dropped kerbs near the   
  Gate/Plasnewydd Road.

C4 d.  Install/replace dropped kerbs at City   
  Road end of Kincraig Street. 

C6 b.  Provide Formal Crossing on    
  Lowther Road

C6 c.  Review pedestrian crossing stages at  
  Richmond Road crossing.

C5 a. Redesign/remove drainage channels. 
 b.  Repair and re-surface footways.   
 c.  Replace road narrowings at either end  
  of route with crossing tables.

Arran Street

ROATH KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

P
age 65



PAGE D
R

DOE CL

BA
RO

N
S C

T RD

DERI R
D

IPSW

ICH RD

IP
SW

IC
H

 R
D

SIN C L AIR D
R

SO
U

TH
CO

U
RT RD

WINCHESTER AVE

EA
RLS C

T RD

MELROSE AVE

DORCHESTER AVE

HAMMOND WAY

HAMPTON CT RD

FO
S

TER  D R

AMESBURY RD

ILTON RD

PEN-Y
-L

AN P
L

ALM
A R

D

BALA
CLA

VA
 R

D

CRESSY R
D

M
AFEK

IN
G

 R
D

HARRIS
M

IT
H R

D

WESTVILLE RD

A
N

G
U

S ST

PEN
-Y-LAN

 RD

TY-
DRAW

 P
L

LO
CHABER S

T

W
ERFA

 S
T

LI
N

D
EN

 A
VE

BOLEYN WALK

KIMBERLEY RD

TY-DRAW RD

COLCHESTER AVE

H
A

RT
 PL

KENYON RD

STORRAR PL

C
A

IRM
U

IR RD

FFORDD PENGAMWHITAKER RD

TAYMUIR RD

GLANM
UIR RD

PA
LL

O
T 

W
AY

GLAN RHYMNI

NEWPORT RD

SPRIN
G G

ARDENS TERR

SPRING GARDENS PL

BERESFORD RD LN

WILSON ST

FLORENCE ST

ARTHUR ST

SOUTHMINSTER RD

AXM
INSTER RD

FORT  ST
TYLER ST

FOX ST

STURM
INSTER RD

LA
D

YS
M

IT
H

 R
D

M
IN

ST
ER

 R
D

PRIEST RD

ROVER WAY

BRA
D

LEY ST

BLAN
CHE ST

SKELM
U

IR RD

DEEMUIR RD

PENGAM RD

STO
RRA

R RD

TW
EEDSMUIR RD

D
A

LM
U

IR RD

C
RA

IG
M

U
IR RD

D
ESSM

U
IR RD

SKATHMUIR RD

KENMUIR RD

W
H

IT
M

U
IR

 R
D

C
LY

D
ES

M
U

IR
 R

D

H
A

RO
LD

 ST
TH

EO
D

O
RA

 ST

H
O

R
W

O
O

D CL

BERESFO
RD

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

H
ELEN

 ST

CH URCH TERR

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

TIMBERS SQ

STALLCOURT AVE

FF
O

R
DD

 N
O

W
EL

L

PEARL S
T

N
O

RA
 ST

H
ELEN

 PL

CECIL ST

RIC
HARDS T

ERR

WATERLOO GDN S

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

BERTRA
M

 ST

SAPPHIRE STCA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

RO
AT

H
 C

O
U

RT
 P

L

SANDRINGHAM RD

G
RE

N
VI

LL
E 

RD

AGIN
CO

URT 
RD

UPPER KINCRAIG ST

LILY ST

ROSE ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

NINIAN RD

MARLBOROUGH RD

CLAUDE PL

BLENHEIM
 RD

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

ARRAN PL

CLIVE PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

W
EL

LF
IE

LD
 S

T

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

BANGO
R S

T

D
IA

N
A

 ST

A
LFRED

 ST

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

CYFARTHFA ST

TALW
ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

KIN
CRA

IG ST

BROADWAY

ALBANY RD
ALBANY RD

P1 a.  Resurface footway
 c.  Additional crossing points at  
  Waterloo Road. 

Waterloo Road

P6 a.  Resurface and widen existing  
  footway. 
 b.  Provide additional footway   
  where needed. 
 c.  Address footway parking. 
 d.  Provide dropped kerbs and   
  tactile paving.

Dominion Way

P5 a.  Resurface footways
 b.  Address footway parking

Newport Road

P2 a.  Resurface footways

Albany Road

P4 a.  Resurface footways

Stacey Road

P1 b.  Dropped kerbs at Westville   
  Road and Waterloo Road

P5 c.  Provide tactile paving at   
  Dominion Way crossing

P1 d.  Widen footway near St  
  Margarets Church

P7 a.  Junction improvements  
  and tra�c calming

P3 b.  Resurface footways at   
  entrance to Stacey Road

P3 a.  Dropped kerbs at St  
  Margarets Crescent

P2 b.  Improve crossing facilities at    
  Marlborough Rd/Waterloo Rd   
  roundabout.

P8 a.  Tra�c calming
 b.  Pedestrian crossings
 c. Address footway parking

Howardian Primary School Safety 
ImprovementsWATERLOO GARDENS & NEWPORT ROAD

KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

P
age 66



PLAS-Y-LLAN

FORELAND RD
ST M

ARGARETS RD

ST M
ARYS RD

CAM
BOURNE A

VE

KELSTON PL

WEST RD

HAWTHORN RD W

ALFREDA RD

TH
E AVEN

U
E

ATHELSTAN RD

H
EO

L BA
KEM

O
RE

HEOL BOOKER

H
EO

L CH
A

PPELL

H
EO

L 
D

O
N

V
ELIN

D
RE PL

WESTBOURNE RD

TY’N-Y-PWLL RD

CAEDELYN RD

ST FRANCIS RD

C
U

RL
EW

 C
L

ST
 JO

HNS CRES
PARK LN

HEOL PANT Y RHYN

LON-Y-CELYN

CLOS COED HIR

PARK AVE
PARK CRES

VELINDRE RD

PENDWYALLT RD

BLANDON WAY

LIT
TLE MILL

CO
LW

IN
STO

NE C
L

BISHO
PS CL

BISHOPS PL

CALDY RD

EVANSFIELD RD

WINGFIELD RD

THE PARADE

COLWINSTONE STHAWTHORN RD E

BELLE VU
E CRES

RADYR RD

HAZELHURST RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 R
D

H
EO

L D
O

N

KELSTON RD

TY-MAWR RD

HEOL PENLAN

H
EO

L G
W

YN
ED

D

S T  A
ID

A
N

 C
RE

S

PEDAIR ERW RD

HEOL POWIS

HEOL DYFED

ST AGATHA RD

ST
 A

LB
A

N
 A

V
E

ST
 H

EL
EN

S 
RD

JU
BILEE GDN

S

A
RM

O
U

RY D
R

MILESTONE CL

WAUN-FAWR RD

PHILIP CL
FA

IRFA
X

 RD

TY-W
ERN

 AVE

PORTHAMAL RD

TAIR ERW RD

LLW
YN

FED
W

 G
D

N
S

ST GEORGES RD

RHYDHELIG AVE

N
O

RTO
N

 A
V

E

VIO
LET PL

C
A

ERPH
ILLY RD

C
A

ER
PH

IL
LY

 R
D

LO
N-Y-GROES

PUM ERW RD

DRYBURGH AVE

THREIPLAN D D
R

SUMMERFIELD PL

MURRAYFIELD RD

DALE AVE

GROVE  P
L

PANTBACH AVE

CORONATION RD

CROMWELL RD

WELWYN RD

H
O

M
ELA

N
D

S RD

PHOENIX WAY

M
A

V
IS G

R

TH
O

RN
BU

RY CL

GREENFIELD RD

KE
YN

SH
AM

 R
D

PANTBACH PL

HEOL WERNLAS

WESTFIELD RD

HEOL DOLWEN

H
EA

T
H  PARK LN

ST
 A

G
N

ES
 R

D

RO
SEM

O
U

N
T PL

RIC
H

S RD

LLWYNDERW
 RD

SUNNYBA N K CL

CELTIC RD

H
EO

L M
A

D
O

C

M
A

ELO
G

 RD

PEN
 Y FA

I

BI
RCHWOO

D
 G

DNS

C
RA

D
O

C
 RD

HEOL CARNE

LON MADOC

FR
A

N
KL

EN
 R

D

KYLE AVE

LO
N

-Y-PA
RC

HEOL IFOR

HEOL NEST

KEN
FIG RD

TWYN-Y-FEDWEN

HEOL Y GORS

PLAS TREODA

CAE GWYN RD

CA
E 

G
W

YN
 R

D

M
A

N
O

R 
RI

SE

KY
LE

 C
RE

S

CAE YORATH YO
RATH

 RD

HEOL IESTYN

H
EO

L CO
ED

 CAE

CO
U

RT RD

HEOL GABRIEL

W
A

U
N

TREO
D

A
 RD

TY’N-Y-CAE GR

LEAMINGTON RD

LON PENLLYN

NORTHERN AVE

CO
LLEG

E C
L

H
EO

L STRA
D

LIN
G

M
ERVYN

 RD

COTTRELL RD

HEOL-Y-W
AUN

L IMEBOURNE CT

FELIN
 FACH

CLAS TEILO

HEO
L CATTW

G

C
O

ED ARIAN

H
EO

L W
AU

N
 Y N

AN
T

HEO
L TY’N

-Y-CAE

H
EO

L-
Y-

N
AN

T

ST DAVIDS RD

TYNANT

BEATRICE RD

BIRCHGROVE RD

THE PHILOG

MERTHYR RD

PENLLINE RD

GLANDWR PL

HEOL GWRGAN

BISHOPS RD

NORTHERN AVE

A470

HEO
L-Y-FO

RLAN

TYN
EW

YD
D

ERW LAS

MAES GLAS

GLAN-Y-NANT TERR

G
LA

N
-Y-N

A
N

T RD

VICTORIA RD

MAES-Y-COED RD

TY-WERN RD

TY’N-Y-PARC RD

O
LD

 C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

CHURCH RD

H
EO

L W
EN

HEOL-Y-DERI

PEN-Y-DRE

TYNEWYDD

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

GROVELAND RD

W1 a.  Resurface footways
 b.  Radius kerbs to be   
  removed

Bishops Road

W2 d.  Improve pedestrian crossing  
  facilities at Mervyn Street

W6 a.  Upgrade existing crossing
  to include pedestrian facility

W4 d.  Improve pedestrian crossing  
  facilities at Northern Avenue.

W3 a.  Resurface footways

Penlline Road

W2 b.  Resurface footways. 

Merthyr Road

W5 a.  Resurface footways. 

Glan-y-Nant Terr./Glan-y-Nant Rd

W4 a.  Resurface and widen footways   
  where possible.    
 b.  Provide dropped kerbs and    
  tactile paving. 
 c.  Relocate bus stops to improve   
  pavement widths

Old Church Road

WHITCHURCH KEY

        IMPROVEMENTS

        FOOTPATH 

P
age 67



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



KEY

CYCLE NETWORK ROUTES

PRIMARY ROUTES

PRIMARY ROUTES: ALTERNATIVE ALIGNMENT

STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES

INTEGRATED NETWORK MAP: CYCLE ROUTES

APPENDIX 4

P
age 69



CARDIFF RD

LLA
N

D
A

FF RD

LLANDAFF RD

TINTERN ST

EG
ERTO

N
 ST

PARRY ST

LLAN DAFF PL

WESTMORELAND ST

CUMBERLAND ST

HANOVER ST

N
O

RT
H

U
M

BE
RL

A
N

D
 S

T

TH
EO

BA
LD

 S
T

BRECO
N

 ST PEN
-Y-PEEL RD

RA
D

N
O

R 
RD

CARDIGAN ST

HAD
F

IE LD CL

PEMBROKE RD

SYR DAVID’S AVE

DULWICH GDNS

EG
H

A
M

 S
T

PE

NHIL L 
C

L

LANSDOWNE AVE E

LANSDOWNE AVE W

LAWRENNY AVE
YO

RK
 S

T

W
EM

BL
EY

 R
D

BROADHAVEN

BROADSTAIRS RD

BE
D

A
 R

D

AU
BREY AVE

N
O

RF
O

LK
 S

T

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

LI
O

N
EL

 R
D

SU
RR

EY
 S

T

N
ES

TA
 R

D

TU
RN

ER
 R

D

BRUNSWICK ST

N
O

TT
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

FE
RN

 S
T

FLINDO CRES

VERALLO
 D

R

HEOL TERRELL

ETHEL ST

FORREST RD

DAISY ST

KI
N

G
SL

A
N

D
 R

D

W
ES

SE
X

 S
T

BURLINGTON TERR

VISHWELL RD

OVINGTON TERR

WESTBURY TERR

V
IC

TO
RI

A
 P

A
RK

 R
D

 E

HALSBU
RY

 R
D

VICTORIA AVE

G
RO

SV
EN

O
R 

ST

C
LIV

E RD

IV
Y 

ST
C

O
N

YB
EA

RE
 R

D

PALACE RD

C
A

EW
A

L R
D

R O WAN CT

H
EN

D
RE G

D
N

S

HOW
EL

LS
 C

RE
S

ST MICHAELS RD

C
H

A
RG

O
T RD

PEN
C

ISELY RISE

PENCISELY AVE

G
REEN

W
IC

H
 RD

P
EN

CISELY C R ESW
IN

D
W

AY RD

C
A

EW
A

L RD

VAUGHAN AVE

BISH
O

PS W
A

LK

IN
SO

LE G
RO

VE W
PRO

S PEC
T D

R

KEN
ILW

O
RTH

 C
T

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE E

N
O

RBU
RY RD

EM
BLEM

 CL

VIC
TO

RIA
 PA

RK RD
 W

WINDWAY AVE

THOMPSON AVE

BERNARD AVE

KEN
SIN

G
TO

N
 AVE

GRAN
VILLE AVE

M
AYFIELD

 AVE

FA
IRFIELD

 AVE

REDCLIFFE AVE

PAPER MILL RD

SANATORIUM RD

W

 O
RCH

A
RD

 C
RE

S

BU
TL

EI
G

H
 A

V
E

ELY RD

ELY
 R

D

ELY
 R

D

ALD
SW

O
RTH

 RD

FAIRFIELD CL

BIRCH
FIELD

 CRES

D
AVIES PL

SHEARS RD

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE W

A48   WESTERN AVE

ST FA
G

A
N

S RD

BRO
O

K RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 T
ER

R

ARLES W
AY

BARNARD AVE

ROBERT ST

AIN
T

R
EE  DR

LITTLECROFT AVE

CHIC
HESTER W

AY

DYFRIG RD

COLIN W
AY

DEW CRES

PE
N-Y

-T
URN

PI
KE 

RD

PEN-Y-TURN
PIKE RD

LE
C

K
W

IT
H

 R
D

LECKW
ITH

 RD

O
XW

IC
H C

L

ELY RD

LIM ES L ADE CLWRO
UGHTON PL

CLARKE ST

VINCENT RD

M
ORRIS FINER C L

ST MICHAELS CL

NORBURY RD

FINCHLEY RD

PEN
ALLY RD

KENYON RD

STORRAR PL

HA N DLEY RD
C

A
IRM

U
IR RD

FFORDD PENGAMWHITAKER RD

TAYMUIR RD

GLANM
UIR RD

NEWPORT RD

CAMERON ST

SPRIN
G G

ARDENS TERR

SPRING GARDENS PL

BERESFORD RD LN

WILSON ST

FLORENCE ST

ARTHUR ST

SOUTHMINSTER RD

FORT  ST
TYLER ST

FOX ST

M
IN

ST
ER

 R
D

PRIEST RD

ROVER W
AY

TI
D

E 
FI

EL
D

S 
RD

SEAWALL RD

M
ERED

EITH
 RD

M
ERC

IA
 RD

M
O

NA PL

DUNSMUIR RD

BRA
D

LEY ST

BLAN
CHE ST

SKELM
U

IR RD

DEEMUIR RD

STO
RRA

R RD

TW
EEDSMUIR RD

D
A

LM
U

IR RD

C
RA

IG
M

U
IR RD

D
ESSM

U
IR RD

SKATHMUIR RD

KENMUIR RD

W
H

IT
M

U
IR

 R
D

C
LY

D
ES

M
U

IR
 R

D

PO
RTM

A
N

M
O

O
R RD

SWINTON ST

H
A

RO
LD

 ST
TH

EO
D

O
RA

 ST

DARBY RD

M
AR

TI
N

 R
D

VIKING PL

RO
V

ER
 W

AY

FORESHORE RD

GLASS AVE

FRESHMOOR RD

TIDAL SIDINGS

PACIFIC RD

ROVER W
AY

OLD CLIPPER RD

LO
NGSHIP

S R
D

FARMVILLE RD

RUNWAY RD

ME IR
IO

N P

L

H
O

R
W

O
O

D CL

BERESFO
RD

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

WILLOWS AVE

MERVYN RD

M
A

D
O

C RD

PO
RTM

AN
M

O
O

R RD

H
ELEN

 ST

TITAN RD

KEEN
 RD

BURNABY ST

EYRE ST

COVENY ST

SEYMOUR ST

M
OIR

A ST ECLIPSE ST

COMET ST SPLOTT RD

M
U

IRTO
N

 RD

ORDELL ST

HABE
RS

HO
N S

T

WALKER RD

CO
URTE

NAY
 R

D

ABERYSTWYTH ST

HINTON ST

VANGUARD WAY

JANET ST

MARION ST

SINGLETON RD

ADELINE ST

RAIL
W

AY S
T

HOWARD ST

BAYSID
E RD

CU
M

RA
E ST

CARL
IS

LE
 S

T

SANQUHAR ST

CUMNOCK PL

CLYDE ST

KERRYCRO
Y ST

A
SG

O
G

 ST

KILCATTA
N

 ST

LADY MARGARET TERR

ROATH DOCK RD

CLIPPER RD

CO
LD

 S
TO

RE
S 

RD

QUEENS R
D S

 
CARGO R

D

COMPASS RD

PIE
RHEAD ST TYN

ESID
E RD

NETTLEFORD RD

E M
O

O
RS RD

SPRUCE C
L

OCEAN WAY

LEW
IS RD

EAST TYNDALL ST

A

PPL EW OOD CL

E M
O

O
RS RD

SYSTEM
 ST

PRINCE LEOPOLD ST

KAM
ES PL

GALSTON ST

ADAMSDOWN LN

ADA

MSDOWN S Q

A DAM
S

C ROFT PL

EAST TYNDALL ST

CEN
TRA

L LIN
K

M

ORGAN ST

ATLANTIC WHARF

HOW
ARD GDNS

NEWPORT RD LN

EAST G
RO

VE

THE WALK

PE
N

A
RT

H
 P

O
RT

W
AY

JOHN BATCHELOR WAY

EMPIRE WAY

C
H

A
N

DL

ERS WAY

HEMINGWAY RD

W
 B

U
TE

 S
TM

O
UN

T STUART SQ

HEOL GLANRHEIDOL

RERESBY  CT

OVERS TON
E CT

YS
TR

A
D

 S
T

ABER
CYNO

N S
T

KESTELL D
R

CO
RVETTE CT

LLANSANNOR DR

S LOUDOUN PL

HANNAH ST

A
LICE ST

WEST CL

LETTON RD

LO
U

D
O

U
N

 SQ

MARIA ST

W
ESLEY LN

LO

UISA PL

A
D

ELA
ID

E ST

H
A

R
RO

W
BY

 S
T

ELEANOR PL

C
H

A
N

D
LERY W

AY

H
A

RR
O

W
BY

 L
N

CLARENCE PL

WINDSOR ESPLANADE

AVONDAL E GDNS

TA
FF

 T
ER

R

POMEROY ST

HUNTER STCLARENCE EMBANKMENT

CA
M

BR
ID

G
E 

ST

AVOND AL E  G
DNS

JI
M

 D
RI

SC
O

LL
 W

AY

FERRY RD

MOORDALE RD

NEWPORT ST

COSSLETT PL

BRADFORD ST

C

O RY P L

H
A

RRISO
N

 W
A Y

INTERNATIONAL DR

O
LYM

PIA
N

 D
R

CAMPBELL DR

FERRY RD
BARGOED S

TCLY
DACH S

T

CYM
M

ER S
T

LLANBRADACH S
T

G
RA

N
G

E G
D

N
S

BESSBOROUGH D R

AM
YAS CL

ROLLS ST

LITTLETO
N

 ST

CHANCERY LN REN
N

IE ST

TE
LF

O
RD

 S
T

PLAS TALIESIN

LLWYN PASSAT

MARCONI AVE

TERRA NOVA WAY

RIVER VIEW

W
ATKISS WAY

FERRY RD

DUNLEAVY DR

OLD BARRY RD

DUNLEAVY DR

UPLA N D S C
RES

PENARTH RD

DYLAN CL

PA
N

T YCELYN RD

A4232   GRANGETOWN LINK

A4232 GRANGETOW
N LIN

K

DOCHDWY RD

LLANDOUGH HILL

CH
URC H VIEW

 C L

TUSCA
N

 CL
LEWIS RD

GREENWAY CL

LANGH
A

M

 W AY

FONTHIL L PL

WELLS ST LN

LECKWITH AVE

LECKWITH PL

R
AILW

AY TERR

FABER W
AY
W

ATERH O

U
SE

 D
R

NEWTON RD

ST D
O

N
ATS RD

DUNRA
VE

N RD

P
O

W
D

ERH
AM

 DR

D
EN

TO
N

 R
D

WHITTLE RD

BE
SS

EM
ER

 R
D

HOLDEN RD

BESSEMER CL

SUDCROFT ST

BR
O

AD
H

AV
EN

TIMBERS SQ

PEA
RL 

ST

D
IA

M
O

ND
 ST

AGATE ST

N
O

RA
 ST

IRON ST

DIAMOND ST

AN

DERSON PL

ZINC ST

H
ELEN

 PL

CECIL ST

RIC
HARDS T

ERR

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

BERTRA
M

 ST

EMERALD ST

SILVER ST

ORBIT ST

LONGCROSS ST

TOPAZ ST

LEAD ST

SUN ST

GOLD ST

SAPPHIRE ST

RUBY ST

COPPER ST

STAR ST

PLANET ST

M
OIR

A TERR

M
ETAL ST

CA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

GORSEDD GDNS RD

WYEVERNE RD

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

QUEEN ANNE SQ

UPPER KINCRAIG ST

LILY ST

ROSE ST

CLIFTO
N

 ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

CLIVE PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

OXFORD LN

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

THARSIS CL

DAVIS ST

CYFARTHFA ST

RUSSELL ST

TALW
ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

BEDFORD ST

C
RA

N
BRO

O
K ST

W
IN

D
SO

R PL

THE PARADE

KNOX RD

NORTHCOTE LN

KIN
CRA

IG ST

N ORTHCOTE LN

RIC
H

M
O

ND CRES

G
O

RD
O

N
 RD

LLANTW
IT ST

ST ANDREWS PL

SA
LISBU

RY RDGLY
NRHONDDA ST

PA
RK G

RO
VE

MUSEUM PL

PA
RK LN

RHYMNEY TERR

CO
BU

RN
 ST

RIC
HARDS 

ST

HARRIE
T S

T
FI

TZ
ROY ST

RUTHIN
 G

DNS

WYEVERNE RD

MUNDY PL

CATHERINE ST

BROADWAY

NEWPORT RD

D
U

M
FRIES PL

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

BOULEVARD DE NANTES

CRO

C KHERBTOWN LN

CITY HALL RD

M
USEUM

 AVE

LOWTHER RD

MISKIN ST

FITZALAN RD MOIRA PL

CONSTELLATIO
N ST

TIN ST

PEARL ST

AUGUSTA ST

WINDSOR PL

M
ETEO

R ST

GLOSSOP RD

HEN
KE C

T

N
 L

U
TO

N
 P

L
S 

LU
TO

N P
L

CELERITY DR

RO
SE

M

ARY ST

ELLEN
 ST

SC
HO

O
N

ER
 W

AY

SILU
RIA

N
 PL

SILU
RIAN

 PL

BRIG

A N TINE PL

PELLETT ST

SANDON ST

A
N

G
ELIN

A ST

W CAN AL W

HARF

CRA
IG

LEE D
R

N EDWARD STQUEEN ST

BRIDGE ST

STATIO
N

 TERR

CHURC

H
 P

L

CH
ARLES ST

DA

VID
 S

T

CAROLIN
E ST

CALLAGHAN SQ

LLO
YD

 G
EO

RG
E AVE

TYNDALL ST

HERBERT ST

C ALLAGHA N SQ

JOHN ST

CHURCHILL W
AY

RICHM
OND RD

FITZA
LA

N
 PL

ADAM ST

BUTE TERR

CUS TOM HOUSE ST

THE HAYES

WORKING ST

ST M
ARYS ST

H
IG

H
 ST

SAU NDERS RD

GREAT W
ESTERN

 LN

SENGHENYDD RD

W
O

O
DVIL

LE
 R

D

TH
ESIG

ER ST

BRYDGES PL

CANAL PARADE

TRA DE 
ST

 L
N

TRA
D

E ST

D
U

M
BA

LLS RD

D
U

M
BALLS RD

BURT 
ST

ABE
R 

ST

C
U

RRA
N

 EM
BA

N
K

M
EN

T

C
U

RRA
N

 RD

BROMFIELD ST
AVONDALE C R ES

GRANGE PL

CORPORATION RD

TAFF EM
BANKM

ENT

FERNDALE ST

H
A

FO
D

 ST

PENTRE G
DNS

COEDCAE S
T

TA
FF EM

BA
N

KM
EN

T

TA
FFS M

EA
D

 EM
BA

N
KM

EN
T

TUDOR LN

UNIVERSAL ST

D
IN

A
S ST

MERCHES GDNS

M
A

RD
Y ST

M
A

RD
Y ST

ALLERTON ST

W
A

RW
IC

K 
PL

CHESTER ST

JU BILEE ST

SUSSEX ST

COMPTON STSOMERSET ST

STAFFORD RD

WEDMORE RD

W
ED

M
O

RE RD

TYN
AN

T ST

CORNW
ALL ST

VIRGIL ST

VIRG
IL CT

WARW
ICK ST

D
EVO

N
 ST

PARK LN

CHURCH ST
WESTGATE ST

PLA
N

TA
G

EN
ET ST

BEA
U

C
H

A
M

P ST

MARK ST

CLARE PL
DESPENSER PL

GRE
EN

 S
T

RAWDEN MEWS

FITZH
AM

O
N

 EM
BAN

KM
EN

T

DESPENSER ST

NEVILLE P
L

G
LO

U
CESTER ST

BROOK ST

CRADDOCK ST

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 S
T

MACHEN PL

H
EA

TH
 P

L

RA
W

D
EN

 P
L

DE BURGH ST

NEVILLE ST

MA NDEVIL
LE S

T

RUTLAND ST

PENDYRIS ST

COURT R
D

DORSET ST

C
ATH

AYS T ERR

CORBETT RD

GREYFRIARS RD

PARK PL

COLUM RD

COLU
M

 D
R

MAINDY RD

CASTLE ST
DUKE  S

T

N
O

RTH
 RD

HAMILTON ST

CRADDOCK ST

TREVETHIC
K ST

SOPHIA
 C

L

TALBOT ST

PLASTURTON P
L

KYVEILOG STBERTHW
IN

 ST

DOGO S
T

G
IL

ES
TO

N
 R

D

W
ELLS ST

LYNDHURST ST

A
LBERT ST

ORCHARD PL

KINGS RD

SNEYD ST

IE
ST

YN ST

SPRINGFIELD PL

GLYNNE ST

W
YNDHAM

 RD

SEVERN
 RD

G
RAY LN

DYFRIG
 S

T

GREENFIELD AV E

SEVERN
 G

RO
VE

RYDER ST

PLASTURTON AVE

PITM
AN ST

MALDWYN ST

CO
N

W
AY RD

MORTIMER RD

LO
W

ER
 C

AT
H

ED
RA

L 
RD

CATHEDRAL RD

CATHEDRAL RD

PENHILL RD
PENCISELY RD

WAUNGRON RD

PE
N

LL
YN

 R
D

C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

LLANFAIR RD

W
YNDHAM

 CRES

ROMILLY CRES

ROMILLY RD

ROMILLY RD W

CARMARTHEN ST

G
LA

M
O

RG
A

N
 ST

MARKET  PL

FAIRLEIGH RD

S 
M

O
RG

AN
 PL LEW

IS ST

TEIL
O S

T

PO
N

TC
A

N
N

A
 ST

SOPHIA
 W

K

SM
EA

TO
N

 S
T

WOOD ST

TUDOR ST

NINIAN PARK RD

MAJOR RD
WYNDHAM PL

WYNDHAM
 PL

A
LBER T  ST

PICTON PL

BROAD ST

E ARLE PL

LEC
KW

ITH
 RD

LECKW
IT

H R
D

RE
C

TO
RY

 R
D

M
A

RKET RD

A
LE

X
A

N
D

RA
 R

D

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

WELLINGTON ST

ATLAS R D

LANSDOWNE RD

LUDLOW ST

AMHERST STEARL L N

SEAGER DR

CH
A

N
N

EL VIEW
 RD

KENT ST

SEVEN
O

A
KS ST

O
A

KLEY PL

FERRY RD

H
O

LM
ES

D
AL

E 
ST

EARL ST

BROMSGROVE ST

W
O

RCESTER ST

PENHEVAD ST

LLANMAES ST

ST FAGANS CT

PA
G

ET ST

C
LA

RE ST

C
LA

RE ST

AVONDALE RD

REDLAVER ST

STOCKLAND ST

S C
LIVE ST

PENTREBANE ST

C
LIVE LN

C
LIVE ST

N
 C

LIVE ST

DURHAM ST

HAVELOCK PL

COLERIDGE RD

HADFIELD RD

FLEET WAY

G
LY

N
ST

EL
L 

CL

BR
IN

D
LE

Y 
RD

PE
N

AR
TH

 R
D

LYON CL

PENARTH
 R

D

PENARTH RD

PE
N

AR
TH

 R
D

COGAN PILL RD

COGAN PILL RD

SPENC E R DR

ANDREW RD

CORBETT RD

A4055

BARRY RD

PEN
LLA

N
 RD

LECKWITH RD

FI
EL

D
S 

PA
RK

 R
D

SLO
PER RD

BU
TE ST

HAVANNAH ST

BUTE PL

JAMES ST

CLARENCE RD

WHARTON ST

TREDEGAR ST

M
IL

L 
LN

HILLS ST

18 a  Widen sections of o� road route

      b  Southern end of Hamadryad Road: 
  Change access barrier 
  

a

b

21 a  Penarth Road: Provision of light segregation

      b  Penarth Rd/Tresillian Way junction: Improvements 
  to allow southbound cyclists to access southwest 
  bound cycle lanes on Penarth Road  

      c  North section of route: On road cycle lanes

b

c

a

30 Ta� Embankment: Tra�c calming, 
 resurfacing and side road entry treatments

ROUTE 8: UPGRADE

25 a  Llanda� Rd Jct: Early start for cyclists provided 
  through signal timing changes at signal junction

      b  Lansdowne Road jct: Early start for cyclists provided 
  through signal timing changes at signal junction

      c  Llanda� Rd to Victoria Park: 20mph limit

a

c

b

ROUTE 6: UPGRADE

f

29 a  James St between Bute St and Bute Pl junction: Widen footway and convert to shared use 
  and reduce tra�c lanes and widen cycle lane 
 
      b  James St/Mermaid Quay: Upgrade pedestrian crossing to Toucan and remove guard rail 

      c  Mermaid Quay: Designate as shared use area

      d  Harrowby Street junction: Continue cycle lane through junction 

      e  Clarence Bridge: Remove substandard cycle lanes, improve surface and install cycle symbols

      f   James St/Bute St junction: Early start for cyclists

b

c

d

e a

ROUTE 8: UPGRADE

90 a  Windway Avenue:  Tra�c calming and 
  extension of 20mph limit

      b  Thompson Ave/Romilly Rd jct:  Refresh 
  road markings

      c  Windway Ave/Thompson Ave jct: Raised 
  table

c b

a

93 a  Romilly Crescent to Romilly Road W: 
  Introduce 20mph limit, tra�c calming, 
  centre line removal, surface improvements
  and treatment of side roads

      b  Romilly Cr/Llanda� Rd jct: Provide 
  Advance Stop Lines

a
b

118   City Centre Hub Tyndall Street between Central Link and 
  Bute Street: Widen northern footway and convert to shared 
  use cycle track

119  Length of section alongside dock: Surface improvements

120  Hemingway Road: Provision of 
  o� road cycle facilities 

138 a   Tyndall St/Schooner Way junction: Provision of 
  Toucan crossings on all arms of junction 

         b   Schooner Way: Provision of tra�c calming 

a

b

22 a  Existing footway along Ta� Embankment: 
  Widen and convert to shared use 
  
      b  Near Blaenclydach Street: Install tra�c 
  island 

      c  Corporation Rd/Redlaver St junction: 
  Improve link to zebra crossing 
 
     d  Clive Street/Penarth Rd junction: Upgrade 
  to Toucan crossing

a

b

c

d

ROUTE 5: UPGRADE

57 Route to be re-assessed following 
 completion of The Mill development

KEY

        CYCLE NETWORK ROUTES

        PROPOSED EXTENSIONS TO CYCLE NETWORK

        STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
        INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES
     

CANTON, GRANGETOWN AND BUTETOWN

P
age 70



CORNELLY
 S

T

PLAS-Y-LLAN

FORELAND RD
ST M

ARGARETS RD

ST M
ARYS RD

CAM
BOURNE A

VE

KELSTON PL

WEST RD

HAWTHORN RD W

ALFREDA RD

KIN
G

SLA
N

D
 RD

TH
E AVEN

U
E

ATHELSTAN RD

H
EO

L BA
KEM

O
RE

HEOL BOOKER

H
EO

L CH
A

PPELL

H
EO

L 
D

O
N

V
ELIN

D
RE PL

WOODLAND RD
WESTBOURNE RD

TY’N-Y-PWLL RD

ST FRANCIS RD

ST
 JO

HNS CRES
PARK LN

H
A

R
FORD

 C
L

VELINDRE RD

PENDWYALLT RD

P
ENYDARREN

 D
R

FFO
R D

D
 M

ORG

A NWG

SAM
U

EL
S 

C
RE

S

FOREST FARM RD

JU
N

C
TI

O
N

 T
ER

R

BLANDON WAY

LIT
TLE MILL

CO
LW

IN
STO

NE C
LC

O
R

W
EN CRES

WHITEFIELD RD

FESTINIOG RD

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

BLOSS E RD

GABALFA AVE

WATSON RD

COPLESTON RD

BA
LA

 R
D

M
A

N
O

D
 R

D

BISHO
PS CL

BISHOPS PL

CORNELLY
 C

L

CALDY RD

EVANSFIELD RD

WINGFIELD RD

THE PARADE

W
ESTBOURN

E CRES

CLARBESTON RD

ANDREWS RD

MARY ST

COLWINSTONE STHAWTHORN RD E

HILTON PL

RIVERSDALE

BELLE VU
E CRES

RADYR RD

HAZELHURST RD

CHAM
BERLAIN RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 R
D

H
EO

L D
O

N

KELSTON RD

RADYR CT CL

RA
D

YR CT RD

GERDD
I TA

F

TR
ISC

OM BE D
R

HIGHFIELDS

WHITEHALL RD

CLOS TY C LYD

M
EL

IN
GR

IFFITH DR

TY-MAWR RD

T
Y-M

A
W

R RD

HEOL PENLAN

H
O

RNCHURCH CL

FA
IR

W
O

O
D

 RD

FISH
ER H

ILL W
AY

DE CLARE D
R

VISTA RISE

B
R ACKEN PL

ED
W

A
RD

 C
LA

RKE CL

GREE
NW

OO
D R

D

RADYR CT RD

DOUGLAS CL

RA
C

H
EL CL

ALLAN D
U

RST CL

PI
PE

R C
L

HEO
L URBAN

BEALE 
C

L

C
A

D
O

C
 PL

NICHOLSON WEB B CL

ASHD ENE CL

TANGMERE DR

JEVAN  CL

HERBERT MARCH CL

A4119

DANESCOURT W
AY

D
AN

ESCO
U

RT W
AY

HEOL A
RA

DUR

EPSTEIN
 C

L

HEOL SEDD ON

PACE CL

RADYR CT RD

COSHESTON RD

DE BRAOSE CL

BU
C

K
LEY C

L

BL E T HIN CL

TIM
O

THY REES CL

PECKH AM CL

PLAS-Y-MYNACH

WOODFIELD AVE

CLOS PARC RADYR

PARK RD

DRO V E RS W

AY

KINGS RD

D
A

N
-Y-BRYN

 AVE

FFORDD LAS

H
EO

L 
IS

A
F

H
EO

L ISA
F

STATION RD

W
IN

D
SO

R RD

WINDSO
R AVE

CEDAR GR

BRYN
 D

ERW
EN

DRYSGOL RD

LL
EW

EL
LY

N G
O

C
H

RH
YDLAFA R D

R

O
LD

 M
ILL D

R

WINDSOR CLIVE DR

PRINCE  OF WALES DR

LLANTRISANT RD

LLANTRISANT RD

G
O

ETR
E  FAWR

ABERDULAIS RD

DOLWEN RD

GABALFA AVE

BO
N

CA
TH

 R
D

ABERPORTH RD

L IMEBOURNE CT

FELIN
 FACH

ST DAVIDS RD

BEATRICE RD

M
ERTHYR RD

BISHOPS RD

NORTHERN AVE

HEO
L-Y-FO

RLAN

TYN
EW

YD
D

ERW LAS

MAES GLAS

VICTORIA RD

O
LD

 C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

CHURCH RD

HEOL FAIR

M
A

Y
N

A

R D CT

LLA
N

D
A

FF  CHASE

TYNEWYDD

COLLEGE R
D

M
IT

RE
 P

L

BRIDGE ST

FORDWELL

LLANTRISANT RD

CARD
IFF RD

CO
LW

IL
L 

RD

RIVER VIEW

G
ABALFA RD

BR
ID

G
E 

RD

BRIDGE RD

AU
BREY AVE

CHAPEL ST

HENDRE C
L

ELY RD

C
A

EW
A

L R
D

R O WAN CT

H
EN

D
RE G

D
N

S

ST MICHAELS RD

PEN
C

ISELY RISE

PENCISELY AVE

P
EN

CISELY C R ESW
IN

D
W

AY RD

C
A

EW
A

L RD

TH
E  GRA

N
G

E

VAUGHAN AVE

INSOLE G
D

N
S

HIG
H S

T

H
A

R
D

W
ICKE CT

BISH
O

PS W
A

LK

IN
SO

LE G
RO

VE W
PRO

S PEC
T D

R

BISHOPS PL

KEN
ILW

O
RTH

 C
T

PWLLMELIN LN

RO
O

KW
O

O
D

 AVE

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE E

ROOKWOOD CL

N
O

RBU
RY RD

M
ARIO

NVILLE G
D

N

S

BISHOPS AVE

ARGYLE WAY

OLD SC
HOOL RD

EM
BLEM

 CL

EBWY CT

VIC
TO

RIA
 PA

RK RD
 W

WINDWAY AVE

THOMPSON AVE

BERNARD AVE

KEN
SIN

G
TO

N
 AVE

GRAN
VILLE AVE

M
AYFIELD

 AVE

FA
IRFIELD

 AVE

REDCLIFFE AVE

PAPER MILL RD

SANATORIUM RD

W

 O
RCH

A
RD

 C
RE

S

BU
TL

EI
G

H
 A

V
E

ELY RD

ELY
 R

D

ELY
 R

D

ALD
SW

O
RTH

 RD

FAIRFIELD CL

BIRCH
FIELD

 CRES

D
AVIES PL

SHEARS RD

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE W

A48   WESTERN AVE

ST FA
G

A
N

S RD

BRO
O

K RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 T
ER

R

ARLES W
AY

BARNARD AVE

ROBERT ST

AIN
T

R
EE  DR

LITTLECROFT AVE

CHIC
HESTER W

AY

LLANGYNIDR RD

LLA
N

G
ATTO

CK RD

BAILEY CL

MILTON PL

DYFRIG RD

COLIN W
AY

PENGWERN RD

PENYGARN R
D

PENDIN
E RD

BROMLEY D
R

DEW CRES

PEN
CAD

ER RD

RO
NALD PL

M
IL

L P
L

C
H

A
RTEERIS  RD

EVERSWELL AVE

THE CRESCEN
T

FERN PL PERROTS CL

O
XW

IC
H C

L

ELY RD

LIM ES L ADE CL

TH
E C

H
A

N
TRY

FAIRW
O

O
D

 RD

KIRTON CL

W
H

ITLAND
 CL

KEYSTON RD

W
H

ITLA
N

D
 CR ES

ELFED GRN

FAIRWATER RD

TH
E D

R

CARTER PL

BIRCH RD

HEOL GWILYM

WRO
UGHTON PL

CLARKE ST

PALMERS DR

VINCENT RD

M
ORRIS FINER C L

H
EO

L-Y-FELIN

CH
ER

RY
D A L

E
 R

D

LLANBEDR RD

AMETHYST RD

HEOL DENNANT

DOYLE AVE

LLA
N

D
ETTY RD

CYMRIC CL

AD
D

IC

OTT C
L

OGMORE RD

NEYLAND PL

BROMLEY DR

LLANDOW RD

CAMROSE RD

PEN
D

EG
RA

ST PL

RED
 H

O
U

SE CL

CHO RLEY CL

SPINNEY CL

EFFORD RD

STANWAY PL

H
O

W
ELL RD

HILES RD

ILLTYD RD

HEOL EGLWYS

C
A

LD
IC

O
TT

 R
D

HAVERFORD WAY

CHURCH RD

HEOL DEVA

HEOL CARNAU

CH
URCH RD

HILLFORT CL

CW
RT-YR-ALA RD

C
A

N
A

STO
N

 PL

H
EO

L EBW
Y

H
EO

L SO
LVA

H
EO

L PEN
M

A
R

HEOL EBWY

BISHOPSTON RD

HEOL PANTYDERI

N
EW

G
ATE PL

BISHOPSTON RD

TIDENHAM RD

HEOL-Y-GAER

DEERE PL

HEOL TRELAI

NOTTAGE RD

ABERTHAW
 RD

AM
RO

TH
 RD

TRESEDER W
AY

FONMON CRES

HIGHMEAD RD

COWBRIDGE RD W

HIRST CRES

G
O

U
G

H
 RD

NARBERTH RD

RED H
OUSE CRES

ST FA
G

A
N

S RISE

CA
RTW

RIG
H

T LN

EVERSW
ELL RD

FAIRW
AYS CRES

W
ELLRIG

H
T RD

HOLLY RD

FERRIER AVE

HONEYSUCKLE CL

LA
VE

NDER GR

SH
A

M
RO

CK
 R

D

BEE
CH R

D

BR
IA

R 
C

L

WILLOWDALE RD

HER
ITAG E  DR

MURREL CL

EM

ERSO

N DR

KNI
GH

TS
W

EL
L C

L

THO
RN

E W
AY

ROCH
E 

CR
ES

LL
ANW

ERN RD

ADDISON CRES

HILLSN
O

O
K R

D

HIGHBURY RD

VACHELL RD

HAZEL
 P

L

YEWTREE CL

FREWER AVE

POPLAR RD

LLANTRISANT RD

W
AT

ER
H

A
LL

 R
D

PLAS-M
AW

R RD

HEOL-Y-PAVIN

FAIRWATER RD

PWLLMELIN RD

PWLLMELIN RD

LAURISTO N PK

HEOL-Y-BERLLAN

CAERAU RD

PYLE RD

CAERA

U CT RD

PORTHCAW
L R

D

CAERAU PARK CRES

CAERAU PARK RD

CLOS CU
LVER

G
W

ENT RD

SW
ELDON CL

HEOL H
O

M
FR

AY

YARRO W CL

CAERWENT RD

HAIG PL

BRUND

ALL C
RES

ST FAG
AN

S CT

CW RT-Y
-C

ADNO

LON-Y-FFIN

LON WERDD

STIRLING RD

M
O

O
RE RD

WHINBERRY WAY

CR
OS

SW
ELL

S
 W

AY

PENMARK GRN

M
ARG

U
ER

IT
ES

 W
AY

TY CO
C

H
 RD

CRO
SSW

AYS RD

CAERAU LN

ARCHER RD

PERSONDY LN

CLOS-Y-CWARRA

MOORE C
L

LL
AN

O
V

ER
 R

D

ELDERBERRY RD

MAPLE RD

LIM
E G

R

BI
SH

O
P 

H
AN

NON DR

VERVAIN CL

FI
RS

 A
VE

G
LAN

 ELY CL

TATEM DR

CLOS T Y B
R

O
NN

A

ORANGE GR

ASHCROFT CRES

MARCROSS RD

MEYRICK RD

GRAND AVE

GRAND AVE

M
A

RLO
ES RD

CAD
VAN

 RD

COURTIS RD

W
ILSON

 RD

W
ILSO

N RD

JACKSON RD

CE
LA

N
D

IN
E 

RD
M

O
ST

YN
 R

D

C
RO

FFT-Y-G
ENAU RD

C
RO

FFT-Y-GENAU RD

ST FAGAN
S D

R

M
E IRWE N  DR

KNIGHTSW
ELL RD

HEOL-Y-CASTELL

CW
RT-YR-ALA RD

C
A

ER
A

U
 L

N

THE SANCTUARY

S
A

N
CTU A RY CT

PATREANE WAY

HEOL MUSTON

PET
H

YB
RI

D
GE R

D

FRANK RD

PETHYBRIDGE RD

C
H

A
RT

ER
IS

 C

RES

A
RC

H
ER

 C
RE

S

MILL RD

PLYMOUTH WOOD RD

GORSE PL

OAKWAY

NORBURY RD

FINCHLEY RD
BWLCH RD

RED
 H

O
U

SE RD

PLYMOUTH WOOD CRES

ARCHER RD

LLEW
ELLYN AVE

LLEWELLYN AVE

G
LYN

D
W

R RD

ROSED
ALE CL

HILL VIEW

HEOL-YR-O
D

YN

LON OWAIN

HEOL POYSTON

PARKER PL
DEERE RD

WHEATLEY RD

SEVENOAKS RD

SEVENOAKS RD

CYNTWELL CRESCAMBRIA
 RD

CWRT-YR-ALA RD

PEN
ALLY RD

HEOL TRELAI

HEOL TRELAI

D
EERE C

L

PA
RKER RD

FARM
H

OUSE WAY

M
IC

H
A

ELSTO
N

 RD

M
IC

H
A

EL
ST

O
N

 R
D

COWBRIDGE RD W
EST

COWBRIDGE RD W

COWBRID
GE RD W

EST

PE
N

M
AR

K 
RDM

A
N

SE
LL

 AVE

COED
RIGLAN

 D
R

ROYDE CL

D
ENISON W

AY

NANT 
Y 

RH
O

S

CO
E

D
 A

R H YD

G
RE

EN
W

O
O

D
 L

N

ST FAGANS DR

ST BRIDES RD
BEECHLEY DR

PENTREBANE RD

GREEN FARM RD

STANWAY RD

SN
O

W
D

EN
 R

D

M
AC

D
O

N
A

LD
 R

D
PL YMOUTHW O

O
D

 C
L

A4232

PENCISELY RD

WAUNGRON RD

ST FAGANS RD

CARDIFF RD

CA
STLE HILL

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

LANSDOWNE RD

PENTREBANE RD

CH
ATSW

O
RTH

 CL

ST
 D

AV
ID

S 
C

R
ES

26 Cowbridge Road West: Provision of o� road 
 cycle facilities or hybrid cycle track

27 Grand Avenue: Cycle Lanes

125  Bwlch Road: Improvements 
  to access barriers 
 

126 Heol Trelai: Provide cycle 
 bypasses through buildouts

127  a   Path between Bromley Drive/Treseder Way: Remove gates

          b  Bishopston Road and Amroth Road: 20mph speed restriction and 
  review of tra�c calming to ensure compliance, surface improvements 

          c   Bromley Drive and Treseder Way: 20mph speed restriction and review 
  of tra�c calming to ensure compliance 

a c

b

131   Fairwater Road from Pwllmelin Rd to Plas-Mawr Rd: 
  Centre line removal and provision of advisory cycle lanes, 
  subject to space

141  Llantrisant Road: Provision of o� road 
  facilities in conjunctionwith new development

CAERAU, ELY, FAIRWATER AND ST FAGANS & CREIGIAU

KEY

        CYCLE NETWORK ROUTES

        PROPOSED EXTENSIONS TO CYCLE NETWORK

        STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
        INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES
     

P
age 71



CORNELLY
 S

T

PLAS-Y-LLAN

FORELAND RD
ST M

ARGARETS RD

ST M
ARYS RD

CAM
BOURNE A

VE

KELSTON PL

WEST RD

HAWTHORN RD W

ALFREDA RD

KIN
G

SLA
N

D
 RD

TH
E AVEN

U
E

ATHELSTAN RD

H
EO

L BA
KEM

O
RE

HEOL BOOKER

H
EO

L CH
A

PPELL

H
EO

L 
D

O
N

V
ELIN

D
RE PL

WOODLAND RD
WESTBOURNE RD

TY’N-Y-PWLL RD

SPRINGHU
RST CL

LON YSGUBOR

CAEDELYN RD

ST FRANCIS RD

C
U

RL
EW

 C
L

ST
 JO

HNS CRES

HEOL PENTW
YN

PARK LN

HEOL PANT Y RHYN

TYLA TEG

HEOL PANTYCELY
N

LON-Y-CELYN

GLAS-Y-PANT

ARDW

YN

HEOL F
FYN

N
O

N
 W

EN

DAN Y GRAIG

CLOS COED HIR

PARK AVE
PARK CRES

H
A

R
FORD

 C
L

VELINDRE RD

PA
N

TM
AW

R 
RD

PANTMAW
R RD

C
A

ER
 W

EN
A

LL
T

CORYTON RISE

G
REEN

 M
EAD

O
W

 RD

CORYTON CRES

PENDWYALLT RD

W
H

ITW

O R TH SQ

P
ENYDARREN

 D
R

FFO
R D

D
 M

ORG

A NWG
SAM

U
EL

S 
C

RE
S

FOREST FARM RD

CA
E 

LE
WIS

LLWY N MA LLT

GREENM
EADO

W
 DR

PANTGWYNLAIS

JU
N

C
TI

O
N

 T
ER

R

CA
STELL CO

CH
 VIEW

IRON BRID
GE RD

GRAIG LW
YD

CATH
ERIN

E D
R

M
IL

L R
D

C
A

ST

LE RD

HEOL-Y-FFOREST

LONGWOOD DR

QUEEN ST

A4054    MERTHYR RD

CHAPEL RD

FFORDD TREFORGAN

M
EADOW

FIE
LD W

AY

PEN
RHOS

BL
A

EN
-Y

-C
O

ED

MAES Y C
RO

FF
T

BLANDON WAY

LIT
TLE MILL

CO
LW

IN
STO

NE C
LC

O
R

W
EN CRES

WHITEFIELD RD

FESTINIOG RD

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

BLOSS E RD

GABALFA AVE

WATSON RD

COPLESTON RD

BA
LA

 R
D

M
A

N
O

D
 R

D

BISHO
PS CL

BISHOPS PL

CORNELLY
 C

L

CALDY RD

EVANSFIELD RD

WINGFIELD RD

THE PARADE

W
ESTBOURN

E CRES

CLARBESTON RD

ANDREWS RD

MARY ST

COLWINSTONE STHAWTHORN RD E

HILTON PL

RIVERSDALE

BELLE VU
E CRES

RADYR RD

HAZELHURST RD

CHAM
BERLAIN RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 R
D

H
EO

L D
O

N

KELSTON RD

RADYR CT CL

RA
D

YR CT RD

GERDD
I TA

F

TR
ISC

OM BE D
R

HIGHFIELDS

WHITEHALL RD

CLOS TY C LYD

M
EL

IN
GR

IFFITH DR

TY-MAWR RD

T
Y-M

A
W

R RD

HEOL PENLAN

H
O

RNCHURCH CL

FA
IR

W
O

O
D

 RD

FISH
ER H

ILL W
AY

DE CLARE D
R

VISTA RISE

B
R ACKEN PL

ED
W

A
RD

 C
LA

RKE CL

GREE
NW

OO
D R

D

RADYR CT RD

DOUGLAS CL

RA
C

H
EL CL

ALLAN D
U

RST CL

PI
PE

R C
L

HEO
L URBAN

BEALE 
C

L

C
A

D
O

C
 PL

NICHOLSON WEB B CL

ASHD ENE CL

TANGMERE DR

JEVAN  CL

HERBERT MARCH CL

A4119

DANESCOURT W
AY

D
AN

ESCO
U

RT W
AY

HEOL A
RA

DUR

EPSTEIN
 C

L

HEOL SEDD ON

PACE CL

RADYR CT RD

COSHESTON RD

DE BRAOSE CL

BU
C

K
LEY C

L

BL E T HIN CL

TIM
O

THY REES CL

PECKH AM CL

PLAS-Y-MYNACH

WOODFIELD AVE

TY M
YN

YD
D

 C
L

MIN-Y-CO
ED

CLOS PARC RADYR

PARK RD

DRO V E RS W

AY

KINGS RD

PENTWYN

D
A

N
-Y-BRYN

 AVE

FFORDD LAS

H
EO

L 
IS

A
F

H
EO

L ISA
F

G
ELYN

IS TERR N
TY-NANT RD

STATION RD

W
IN

D
SO

R RD

WINDSO
R AVE

CEDAR GR

CEFN COCH

BRYN DERWEN

BRYN
 D

ERW
EN

DRYSGOL RD

CAE’R GRAIG

HAZEL TREE CL

LL
EW

EL
LY

N G
O

C
H

RH
YDLAFA R D

R

O
LD

 M
ILL D

R

WINDSOR CLIVE DR

PRINCE  OF WALES DR

LLANTRISANT RD

G
O

ETR
E  FAWR

IR
O

N
 B

RI
D

G
E 

RD

H
EO

L G
W

YN
ED

D

S T  A
ID

A
N

 C
RE

S

ST A
U

G
U

STIN
E RD

PEDAIR ERW RD

HEOL POWIS

HEOL DYFED

ST AGATHA RD

TO
N

-Y
R-

Y
W

EN
 A

V
E

ST A
M

BRO
SE RD

ST
 A

LB
A

N
 A

V
E

ST
 H

EL
EN

S 
RD

LO
N

G
SP

EA
RS

 A
VE

ST BRIGID RD

JU
BILEE GDN

S

A
RM

O
U

RY D
R

MILESTONE CL

WAUN-FAWR RD

PHILIP CL

FA
IRFA

X
 RD

TY-W
ERN

 AVE

PORTHAMAL RD

TAIR ERW RD

LLW
YN

FED
W

 G
D

N
S

ST GEORGES RD

RHYDHELIG AVE

N
O

RTO
N

 A
V

E

VIO
LET PL

C
A

ERPH
ILLY RD

C
A

ER
PH

IL
LY

 R
D

LO
N-Y-GROES

PUM ERW RD
ST TANWG RD

DRYBURGH AVE

THREIPLAN D D
R

SUMMERFIELD PL

MURRAYFIELD RD

DALE AVE

GROVE  P
L

PANTBACH AVE

CORONATION RD

CROMWELL RD

WELWYN RD

H
O

M
ELA

N
D

S RD

PHOENIX WAY

M
A

V
IS G

R

TH
O

RN
BU

RY CL

GREENFIELD RD

KE
YN

SH
AM

 R
D

PANTBACH PL

HEOL WERNLAS

WESTFIELD RD

HEOL DOLWEN

W
AT

ER
ST

O
N

 R
D

ABERDULAIS RD

CA
TH

ED
RA

L 
VI

EW

HEOL AMLWCH

DOLWEN RD

AB

ERDULAIS CRES

BA
C

TO
N

 R
D

GABALFA AVE

BO
N

CA
TH

 R
D

ABERPORTH RD

HEO
L 

BR
YN

G
LA

S

H
EA

T
H  PARK LN

ST ANGELA RD

ST
 A

G
N

ES
 R

D

CAERLEON RD

PILTO
N

 PL

MARGAM R D

RO
SEM

O
U

N
T PL

RIC
H

S RD

LLANTARNAM
 RD

LLWYNDERW
 RD

SUNNYBA N K CL

BEVAN PL

PORTHKERRY PL

MYNACHDY RD

RA
DYR PL

GARTH PL

EX
CE

LS
IO

R R

D

CELTIC RD

BATCHELOR RD

CLOS M
ENTER

EXCELSIOR RD

GABALFA AVE

H
EO

L M
A

D
O

C

M
A

ELO
G

 RD

PEN
 Y FA

I

BI
RCHWOO

D
 G

DNS

C
RA

D
O

C
 RD

TROTMAN DICKENSON PL

LLYS TA L- Y-B
ONT R

D

APPLEDORE RD
CEFN RD

MATTH E W SON C
L

ABERBRAN RD

ABERDORE RD

SILVER BIRCH CL

LL
AN

D
IN

AM
 C

RES

LL
AN

M
O

RL
AI

S 
RD

W
ES

TE
RN

 D
R

LYDSTEP CRES

RIVER VIEW

W
ES

TE
RN

 A
VE

 W

ABERTEIFI CRES

MYNACHDY RD

ABERPORTH RD

HEOL CARNE

LON MADOC

FR
A

N
KL

EN
 R

D

KYLE AVE

LO
N

-Y-PA
RC

HEOL IFOR

HEOL NEST

KEN
FIG RD

TWYN-Y-FEDWEN

HEOL Y GORS

PLAS TREODA

CAE GWYN RD

CA
E 

G
W

YN
 R

D

M
A

N
O

R 
RI

SE

KY
LE

 C
RE

S

CAE YORATH YO
RATH

 RD

HEOL IESTYN

H
EO

L CO
ED

 CAE

CO
U

RT RD

HEOL GABRIEL

W
A

U
N

TREO
D

A
 RD

TY’N-Y-CAE GR

LEAMINGTON RD

LON PENLLYN

NORTHERN AVE

CO
LLEG

E C
L

H
EO

L STRA
D

LIN
G

M
ERVYN

 RD

COTTRELL RD

HEOL-Y-W
AUN

L IMEBOURNE CT

FELIN
 FACH

CLAS TEILO

HEO
L CATTW

G

C
O

ED ARIAN

H
EO

L W
AU

N
 Y N

AN
T

HEO
L TY’N

-Y-CAE

H
EO

L-
Y-

N
AN

T

ST DAVIDS RD

TYNANT

BEATRICE RD

HEATHWOOD RD

BIRCHGROVE RD

THE PHILOG

MERTHYR RD

M
ERTHYR RD

GLANDWR PL

HEOL GWRGAN

BISHOPS RD

NORTHERN AVE

A470

HEO
L-Y-FO

RLAN

TYN
EW

YD
D

ERW LAS

MAES GLAS

GLAN-Y-NANT TERR

G
LA

N
-Y-N

A
N

T RD

VICTORIA RD

HEOL LL INOS

MERLIN CL

W
O

O
DL AWN WAY

MAES-Y-COED RD

TY-WERN RD

TY’N-Y-PARC RD

O
LD

 C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

CHURCH RD

C
H

IL
TE

RN
 C

L

FIELD
 W

AY

MOSTYN SQ

CO ED COCHWYN AVE

TASKER DR

W
ATKIN

S SQ TATHAM RD

MALVERN DR

SMITH RD

A
SH

BO
U

RN
 W

AY

TATHAM RD

CO
ED

 G
LA

S 
RD

CLO
S H

EN
D

RE

CO
ED YR YNN

TEMPLETON AVE

TY GLAS RD

TY GLAS AVE

WAUN-Y-GROES AVE

HEOL CAERHYS

W
H

ITE BA
RN

 RD

CI
LG

ER
A

N
 C

RE
S

LON Y MYNYDD

PEN
 Y G

RO
ES RD

C
A

E M
AW

R RD

CORNFIELD CL

MAYFLOWER AVE

H
EO

L-Y

R-EFAIL

HEOL HENDRE

HEOL AER

CLOS TO
N

 M
A

W
R

H

EO L-Y-CADNO

PE
RC

IV
A

L 
C

L

TANSY CL

W
O O D RUFF W

AY

LO
N

 C
AE

 PORTH

CHARLOTTE SQ

TY
 G

W
YN R

D

HEOL ISCOED

HEOL-Y-BONT

WAUN-Y-GROES RD

H
EO

L Y W
ERN

H
EO

L 
TY

N
-Y

-C
O

ED

CL
O

S 
M

A
BO

N

HEOL MABON

LO
N-Y-DDERW

EN

RHOS LLAN

HEOL Y  FELIN

ERW W
EN

MUR G
WYN

LO
N-Y-DERI

MAES-Y-D
ERI

CEFN
 N

AN
T

GRON FFORDD

LON-Y-RHYD

LO
N

-Y-D
AIL

LON ISA

H
EO

L W
EN

LON UCHA

GRO
ES LO

N

HEOL LLANISHEN FACH

HEO
L DERLW

YN

PE
N

YG
R

A
IG

CEFN GRAIG

HEOL-Y-DERI

RHIW

BINA HILL

HEOL-Y-COED

HEOL-Y
-B

RYN

ORCHARD CASTLE

BARDSEY CRES

GLE
NMOUN T WAY

LOWFIELD  DR

H
AVEN

W
O

O
D DR

HEOL PEREDUR

CAE G ARW

LAUNCELOT CRES

C
A

M
ELO

T  W

AY

AVO NRI

DGE

CH
ARLOCK CL

ANGELICA
 W

AY

LU
C

ER
N

E 
DR

PEN Y CEFN

EXCALIBUR DR

BRYN GLA
S

GAR ETH
 C

L

RH
I W

LA
S

TH
O

RN
H

ILL RD

M

OR RIS  AVE

JOHNSTON RD

LLANGRANOG RD

GUENEVER CL

GA L A HAD C
L

HEOL ERWIN

HEOL ISAF

H
EO

L 
LE

W
IS

CL
O

S 
W

IL
LIA

M

HEOL B
RI

W
NA

NT

H
EO

L 
N

A
N

T 
C

A
ST

A
N

M
4

M4 JUNCTION 32

PEN-Y-DRE

BEULAH RD

BLA
EN

 Y C
O

ED

HEOL UCHAF

BR
YN

TE
G

CLO
S Y BRYN

HEOL FAIR

CA
TH

ED
RA

L CL

M
A

Y
N

A

R D CT

LLA
N

D
A

FF  CHASE

TYNEWYDD

COLLEGE R
D

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

M
IT

RE
 P

L

BRIDGE ST

FORDWELL

LLANTRISANT RD

CARD
IFF RD

CARDIFF RD

LLA
N

D
A

FF RD

LLANIDLOES RD

CO
LW

IL
L 

RD

RIVER VIEW

G
ABALFA RD

BR
ID

G
E 

RD

BRIDGE RD

COED Y WENALLT

LLAN DAFF PL

SYR DAVID’S AVE

DULWICH GDNS

EG
H

A
M

 S
T

PE

NHIL L 
C

L

AU
BREY AVE

FE
RN

 S
T

T
H

E 
CR

ES
CENT

BURLINGTON TERR

M
IL

L 
LN

VISHWELL RD

OVINGTON TERR

WESTBURY TERR

V
IC

TO
RI

A
 P

A
RK

 R
D

 E

HALSBU
RY

 R
D

C
LIV

E RD

IV
Y 

ST
CO

N
YB

EA
RE

 R
D

CHAPEL ST

PALACE RD

PA
LA

C
E AVE

HENDRE C
L

ELY RD

C
A

EW
A

L R
D

R O WAN CT

H
EN

D
RE G

D
N

S

HOW
EL

LS
 C

RE
S

ST MICHAELS RD

C
H

A
RG

O
T RD

PEN
C

ISELY RISE

PENCISELY AVE

G
REEN

W
IC

H
 RD

P
EN

CISELY C R ESW
IN

D
W

AY RD

C
A

EW
A

L RD

TH
E  GRA

N
G

E

VAUGHAN AVE

INSOLE G
D

N
S

HIG
H S

T

H
A

R
D

W
ICKE CT

BISH
O

PS W
A

LK

IN
SO

LE G
RO

VE W
PRO

S PEC
T D

R

BISHOPS PL

KEN
ILW

O
RTH

 C
T

PWLLMELIN LN

RO
O

KW
O

O
D

 AVE

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE E

ROOKWOOD CL

N
O

RBU
RY RD

M
ARIO

NVILLE G
D

N

S

BISHOPS AVE

VIC
TO

RIA
 PA

RK RD
 W

WINDWAY AVE

THOMPSON AVE

KEN
SIN

G
TO

N
 AVE

GRAN
VILLE AVE

W

 O
RCH

A
RD

 C
RE

S

BU
TL

EI
G

H
 A

V
E

ELY RD

ELY
 R

D

ELY
 R

D

ALD
SW

O
RTH

 RD

FAIRFIELD CL

BIRCH
FIELD

 CRES

D
AVIES PL

SHEARS RD

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE W

A
48

   
 W

ES
TE

ER
N

 A
VE

A48   WESTERN AVE

ST FA
G

A
N

S RD

BRO
O

K RD

LLANGYNIDR RD

LLA
N

G
ATTO

CK RD

BAILEY CL

MILTON PL

EVERSWELL AVE

THE CRESCEN
T

FERN PL PERROTS CL

O
XW

IC
H C

L

ELY RD

LIM ES L ADE CL

TH
E C

H
A

N
TRY

FAIRW
O

O
D

 RD

KIRTON CL

W
H

ITLAND
 CL

KEYSTON RD

W
H

ITLA
N

D
 CR ES

ELFED GRN

FAIRWATER RD

TH
E D

R

CARTER PL

BIRCH RD

HEOL GWILYM

WRO
UGHTON PL

LLANBEDR RD

AMETHYST RD

HEOL DENNANT

DOYLE AVE

LLA
N

D
ETTY RD

CHO RLEY CL

HIRST CRES

ST FA
G

A
N

S RISE

CA
RTW

RIG
H

T LN

EVERSW
ELL RD

FAIRW
AYS CRES

W
ELLRIG

H
T RD

HOLLY RD

FERRIER AVE

HONEYSUCKLE CL

LA
VE

NDER GR

SH
A

M
RO

CK
 R

D

BEE
CH R

D

BR
IA

R 
C

L

WILLOWDALE RD

ROCH
E 

CR
ES

HAZEL
 P

L

YEWTREE CL

FREWER AVE

POPLAR RD

LLANTRISANT RD

W
AT

ER
H

A
LL

 R
D

PLAS-M
AW

R RD

HEOL-Y-PAVIN

FAIRWATER RD

PWLLMELIN RD

PWLLMELIN RD

ELDERBERRY RD

MAPLE RD

LIM
E G

R

BI
SH

O
P 

H
AN

NON DR

FI
RS

 A
VE

G
LAN

 ELY CL

TATEM DR

CLOS T Y B
R

O
NN

A

ORANGE GR

ASHCROFT CRES

C
RO

FFT-Y-G
ENAU RD

C
RO

FFT-Y-GENAU RD

ST FAGAN
S D

R

GORSE PL

OAKWAY

NORBURY RD

FINCHLEY RD
BWLCH RD

ROSED
ALE CL

HILL VIEW

G
RE

EN
W

O
O

D
 L

N

ST FAGANS DR

ST BRIDES RD
BEECHLEY DR

PENTREBANE RD

A469     WHITCHURCH RDN
O

RTH
 RD

KYVEILOG STBERTHW
IN

 ST

DOGO S
T

G
IL

ES
TO

N
 R

D

KINGS RD

SNEYD ST

IE
ST

YN ST

DYFRIG
 S

T

GREENFIELD AV E

SEVERN
 G

RO
VE

PLASTURTON AVE

MALDWYN ST

CO
N

W
AY RD

MORTIMER RD

CATHEDRAL RD

PENHILL RD
PENCISELY RD

WAUNGRON RD

ST FAGANS RD

CARDIFF RD

CA
STLE HILL

LLANFAIR RD

ROMILLY RD W

FAIRLEIGH RD

TEIL
O S

T

PO
N

TC
A

N
N

A
 ST

SOPHIA
 W

K

FI
EL

D
S 

PA
RK

 R
D

CWM GWYNLAIS

PENTREBANE RD

GROVELAND RD

CH
ATSW

O
RTH

 CL

MAINDY RD

128 Llantrisant Road: Provide cycle lanes and reduce 
 build-out widths. Provide o� road cycle track on 
 one side.

129 Bridge Street: Provide signage to 
 warn motorists of the presence of 
 cyclists

131  a    Fairwater Road: Existing o� road facility

          b Heol y Pavin:  Signage improvements

b

a

38 Merthyr Road: Review tra�c calming to ensure compliance with 20mph 
 zone, centre line removal and possible cycle lanes; surface improvements, 
 cycle bypasses at buildouts

72 Merthyr Road: Improvements to tra�c calming 
 and road surface 
 

140 Entrance to Greenmeadow Springs Business Park: 
 Provide cycle link from business park to Merthyr 
 Road to bypass Coryton interchange

142 Clos Parc Radyr: Provision of o� road facilities
 in conjunction with new development

141 Llantrisant Road: Provision of o� road 
 facilities in conjunction with new development

143 Bridge Road: Provision of o� road facilities
 in conjunction with new development

139 A470 slip road: Improve crossing 
 facility at slip road

75 Northern Avenue Railway bridge to Whitchurch 
 High School: Improve signage to clearly mark shared 
 use sections, remove/relocate potential obstacles on 
 shared path

84 Llanda� Cathedral: 
 O� road path to 
 Llanda� Cathedral

96   a Western Ave N/Abertei� Crescent: Junction 
  improvements to make crossing easier for 
  cyclists 

        b Cardi� Met to Gabalfa Interchange: 
  Widen shared use path 

       c  Improve access to Ta� Trail

a

b

c

132 Gabalfa Avenue: Road marking 
 treatments to alert motorists to 
 presence of cyclists at roundabouts

133 a   Between College Road and Merthyr Road at water course: Dropped kerb
 
  b   Merthyr Road in vicinity of Mervyn Road: Widen existing advisory cycle 
  lanes and remove centre line 

          c   College Road: 20mph speed restriction, tra�c calming features, centre line 
  removal and provision of advisory cycle lanes, subject to space

         d  Merthyr Road along length of shopping area: 20mph speed limit and 
  associated tra�c calming, review of parking and waiting restrictions 

d

a
b

c

134  a   College Road: Widen existing 
  cycle bypasses
 
          b   Station Rd/Hawthorn Rd East 
  junction: Install raised table

a
b

146 Manor Way/Pantmawr Road: 
 Provide toucan crossing

LLANDAFF NORTH, LLANDAFF, RADYR, WHITCHURCH

KEY

        CYCLE NETWORK ROUTES

        PROPOSED EXTENSIONS TO CYCLE NETWORK

        STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
        INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES
     Page 72



CORNELLY
 S

T

PLAS-Y-LLAN

FORELAND RD
ST M

ARGARETS RD

ST M
ARYS RD

CAM
BOURNE A

VE

KELSTON PL

WEST RD

HAWTHORN RD W

ALFREDA RD

KIN
G

SLA
N

D
 RD

TH
E AVEN

U
E

ATHELSTAN RD

H
EO

L BA
KEM

O
RE

HEOL BOOKER

H
EO

L CH
A

PPELL

H
EO

L 
D

O
N

V
ELIN

D
RE PL

WOODLAND RD
WESTBOURNE RD

TY’N-Y-PWLL RD

SPRINGHU
RST CL

LON YSGUBOR

CAEDELYN RD

ST FRANCIS RD

C
U

RL
EW

 C
L

ST
 JO

HNS CRES

HEOL PENTW
YN

PARK LN

HEOL PANT Y RHYN

TYLA TEG

HEOL PANTYCELY
N

LON-Y-CELYN

GLAS-Y-PANT

ARDW

YN

HEOL F
FYN

N
O

N
 W

EN

DAN Y GRAIG

CLOS COED HIR

PARK AVE
PARK CRES

H
A

R
FORD

 C
L

VELINDRE RD

PA
N

TM
AW

R 
RD

PANTMAW
R RD

C
A

ER
 W

EN
A

LL
T

CORYTON RISE

G
REEN

 M
EAD

O
W

 RD

CORYTON CRES

PENDWYALLT RD

W
H

ITW

O R TH SQ

P
ENYDARREN

 D
R

FFO
R D

D
 M

ORG

A NWG

SAM
U

EL
S 

C
RE

S

FOREST FARM RD

HEOL-Y-FFOREST

BLANDON WAY

LIT
TLE MILL

CO
LW

IN
STO

NE C
LC

O
R

W
EN CRES

WHITEFIELD RD

FESTINIOG RD

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

BLOSS E RD

GABALFA AVE

WATSON RD

COPLESTON RD

BA
LA

 R
D

M
A

N
O

D
 R

D

BISHO
PS CL

BISHOPS PL

CORNELLY
 C

L

CALDY RD

EVANSFIELD RD

WINGFIELD RD

THE PARADE

W
ESTBOURN

E CRES

CLARBESTON RD

ANDREWS RD

MARY ST

COLWINSTONE STHAWTHORN RD E

HILTON PL

RIVERSDALE

BELLE VU
E CRES

RADYR RD

HAZELHURST RD

CHAM
BERLAIN RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 R
D

H
EO

L D
O

N

KELSTON RD

RADYR CT CL

RA
D

YR CT RD

GERDD
I TA

F

HIGHFIELDS

CLOS TY C LYD

M
EL

IN
GR

IFFITH DR

TY-MAWR RD

T
Y-M

A
W

R RD

HEOL PENLAN

ED
W

A
RD

 C
LA

RKE CL

RADYR CT RD

DOUGLAS CL

ALLAN D
U

RST CL

PI
PE

R C
L

HEO
L URBAN

BEALE 
C

L

C
A

D
O

C
 PL

NICHOLSON WEB B CL

TANGMERE DR

A4119

D
AN

ESCO
U

RT W
AY

HEOL SEDD ON

RADYR CT RD

DE BRAOSE CL

BL E T HIN CL

HERITAGE PK

NEWLANDS RD

W
ENTWORTH LN

CLO S -YR-O N NEN

HARRISON
 D

R

W
ALW

YN
 PL

BR
O

ADW
ELL CL

PITME
D

EN
 CL

COLEFORD DR

H
ERITA

G
E  PK

HER I TAG
E 

P
K

WILLOW GR

PWLL Y PLACA

H
EO

L M
AES EIRW

GWILLOWBROOK DR

MACHEN CL

N
EW

EN
T RD

RISCA C
L

CRUMLIN DR

WAKEHURST PLBROCKHAMPTON RD

JAMES CT

OAKM EADO W DR

C
RICKHOWELL RD

GREEN MEADOWS
M

ATTH Y SENS WAY

JE
NKINS W

AY

SOAREL CL

PA
V

ALA
N D

 CL

CRAG

SIDE CL

C
EM

A
ES C

R E S

COLEFORD DR

WESTONBIRT CL

HEOL 
TR

O
ST

RE

ROGERSTONE CL

ST A

RVA
NS CERES

SPENC

ER DAVID WA Y

FFO
RD

D
 D

A
N

IE
L 

LE
W

IS

HARRISON D
R

TRECINON R
D

TREBORTH RD

CRIC
KHOW

ELL
 R

D

BO D N A N T CL

ASPEN C
L

TREBANOG CL

LLA N INA GR

CRICKHOWELL RD

T
REBANOG CRES

W
ILLO

W
BRO

O
K D

R

HAZEL
W

O
O

D
 D

R

PENSARN RD

PORT M
ADOC RD

GLAN
-Y-M

O
R RD

TREFASER CRES

TR
OW

BRID
G

E 
G

R

GWBERT CL

CATH
 C

O
B 

C
L

B
RO

O
KFIELD

 D
R

F ERNTREE 
D

R

TRO
W

BR
ID

G
E 

GR

TRESIGIN RD

GLANDOVEY GR

ABERGELE RD

CAER
NA

RV
O

N
 W

AY

D
O

VE
Y 

CL

H
EN

D
R

E  R
D

HENDRE RD

ORC
HA

RD PK

TARW
IC

K D
R

BETH
A

N
IA

 RO
W

PURCELL R
D

COATES PL

O
LD

 H
IL

L

PRE
ST

AT
YN

 R
D

M
EA

DVALE RD

INSTOW PL

D
U

LV
ER

TO
N

 A
VE

D
U

N
ST

ER
 R

D

PORLOCK RD

BLACKMOOR PL

LI
M

EWOOD C L

MELVILLE AVE

OLD N
EW

PORTR RD

VAENDRE LN

EID
ER  C L

SA
N

D
ER

LI
N

G
 D

R

KINGFIS H ER CL

OLD NEWPORT RD

ALLEN CL

PARKSTONE AVE

G
O

U L D CL

WERN FAWR LN

H
A

STIN
G

S CRES

HASTIN

GS CRES

TY-TO-MAEN CL

FFORD
D

 BRYN
H

Y
FRYD

MILL LN

RUPERA CL

BL
A

CK
BI

RD
S 

WAY

OKEH
AM

PTO
N

 A
VE

BLUEBE
LL

 D
R

MILL LN

BRAYFORD PL

WITHYCOMBE RD

O
THERY PL

ARNOLD AVEBRONTE CRES

BR
ID

G
W

AT
ER

 R
D

LA
N

G
PO

RT
 A

VE

M
O

U
N

T 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

LN

A
XB

RI
D

G
E 

CR
ES

MINEHEAD RD

TY
 W

IN
C

H
 R

D

BEG
A

N
 RD

CHUR C H LN

WILLITON RD

MALMSM
EAD

 R
D

SE
DGEM

OOR R
D

M
IL

VE
RT

O
N

 R
D

TORRIN
GTO

N
 R

D

WASHFORD A
VE

CREDIT
O

N
 R

D

M OUNT PLEASANT AVE

BAMPTON RD

DURLEIGH CL

HONIT
O

N
 R

D

A SH
BU

RT
O

N
 A

VE

CROYDE AVE

ILCHESTER RD

DRYDEN CL

RUSKIN CLKIPLING CL

BROW
NING CL

RHOSSILLY RD

CHESTERTON AVE

THACKERAY C
RES

MACAULAY AVE

LA

SCELLES D

R

HAZLITT CL
BOSWELL CL

HOUSMAN CL

CLOS A
LY

N

C
LO

S  G W Y

CLOS C W
M

 C
R

EU
N

A
N

THEOL PONTPRENNAU

CLOS Y FFYNNON

TH
E 

FARTHI N
G

S

AMBERLEY CL

CLO S CWM DU

GELLI FRON GOCH

CL
O

S 
NANT Y CWM

HEO
L 

PONTPRENNAU H
EO

L GLAN

DULAIS

CLOS N
ANT M

W
LAN

AM
BE

RG
AT

E 
D

R

CLO
S N

AN

T D

D
U

HEOL GLAND
ULAIS

PA
NT 

GLAS

ALMOND DR

W
H

A
RF

ED
A

LE
 R

D

GLYN COLLEN

TH
E M

ALTINGS
TARRAGON W

AY

TY CERRIG

LLWYN CASTAN

HY
SSO P C

L

BO
RA

G E CL

GLYN R H O
SY

N

G
LY

N
 RH

O
SYN

PEPPERMINT DR

NEW
TON RD

M
O

RF
A

 C
RE

S

WENTLOOG AVE

DOLGOCH CL

HEOL NEW
YDD

VALLEY V
IE

W

PARKWAY

HARRIS AVE

LETTERSTON RD

B R Y N BALA W
AY

ABERDARON RD

PARKWAY

TOW
YN RD

MULLIN

S AVE

TROW
BRIDGE RD

CAER CASTELL PL

BRO A
THRO

W
OOLACOMBE AVE

LA
U

G
H

A
RN

E 
RD

HER O N RD

HARRIS
 A

VE

RELF  RD

H
A

RL
EC

H
 R

D

LA
N

G
LA

N
D

 RD

MAXWELL RD

PE
N

RH
O

S 
CR

ES

ILFRACOMBE C
RES

M
ARDY RD

HOLMSVIEW CLLLAN
GW

N P
L

LLANDUDNO R
D

WENTLOOG AVE

MONKSTONE RISE

ARLINGTON CRES

CANNINGTON AVE

LA
M

BY W
AY

RHYL RD

G
RE

EN
W

AY
 R

D

GRE
EN

W
AY

 R
D

GREE
NW

AY R
D

G
RE

EN
W

AY
 R

D

GOODWICK RD

GREENWAY AVE

S VIEW DR

M
A

N
O

RB
IE

R 
CRES

LLANSTEPHAN RD

C
A

EG L AS RD

BE
AU

M
AR

IS
 R

D

FA
RM

LEIG
H

DOWNTON RISE

DO W N TON RISE

CA
EG

LA
S 

RD

BRACHDY LN

WENTLOOG  C
L

BA
RM

OUTH RD

THE GRO
VE

CLAREMONT CRES

W
ENTLOOG RD

NEW RD

LIN D E N GR

N
EV

IN
 C

RE
S

TY-FRY RD

TRELAWNEY AVE

TYR-Y-SARN RD

THE WALK

TYM
AWR CL

W
H

IT
EH

A
LL

 P
A

R
A

D
E

NORTHLANDS

U
PL

A
N

D
S 

RD

CRANLEI GH RISE

NEWPORT RD

LY
N

M
O

U
TH

 C
RE

S

CASTLE R
IS

E

TREDELERCH RD

W
IT

LA
 C

T 
RD

BI
D

EF
O

RD
 R

D

CH
ED

D
AR

 CRES

CLAREMONT AVE

CO
LW

YN
 RD

TY
-F

RY
 G

D
N

S

WATCHET CL

TA
UNTO

N C
RESTA

UNTO
N A

VE

CHARD A
VE

FISHPOND RD

G
LA

ST
O

N
BU

RY
 TERR

CLEVEDON RD

LY
N

TO
N

 C
L

WORLE AVE

W
ES

TO
N

 R
D

W
O

RL
E 

PL

KEWSTOKE AVE

U
PH

IL
L 

RD

LY
N

TO
N

 T
ER

R

HARTLAN
D

 R
D

EX
FO

RD CRES

N
O

RT
H

A
M

 A
V

E

CLO
VELLY CRES

MENDIP RD

TY-MAW
R RD

QUARRY DALE

SW
IF

T C
L

FI
EL

D
IN

G
 C

L

DIC
KENS A

VE

PA
RR

ACOMBE CRES

BRAUNTON AVE

BRAUNTON CRES

BARNSTABLE RD

BA
LL

 R
D

LYNTON PL

CHURCH R
D

TY
-M

AW
R AVE

NEWPORT RD

NEWPORT R
D

NEW
PORT R

D

BR
YN

 H
EU

LO
G

BRYN HAI D D

G
LYN

 EID
D

EW

BRYNCYN

C
O

ED
EN

 D
A

L

W
A

U
N

 FACH

BRYN PINWYDDEN

PENTWYN RD

DARTINGTON DR

FELBRIGG
 CRES

RI
D

G
EW

AY
 R

D

PATC
H

W
AY C

RES

K
EN

NERLEIG
H

 RD

WIDECOMBE DR

TI
VE

RT
O

N
 D

R

H
AT

H
ER

LE
IG

H
 R

D

P E N NSYLVANIA

WERN GOCH W

PENTW
YN R

D

BRYN CELYN RD

PE
N

TW
YN

 D
R

THE HAW THORNS

THE H
A

W
TH

O
RN

S

LI
N

N
ET

 C
L

H
O

LLY
BUSH HGHTS

F ORSYTHIA D R

FO
RSYTH

IA
 D

R

H A W FIN
CH C

L

MAGNOLIA CL

A
ZA

LEA CL

CO
ED-Y-G

ORES

BR
YN

-Y
-N

A
N

T

COED-Y-G
ORES

AEL-Y-BRYN

PIN
EW

OOD C
RES

KING W
O

O
D

 CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

QUEENWOO D

ROUNDWOOD

LL
AN

ED
EY

RN
 D

R

LLA
N

ED
EYRN

 D
R

MAELFA

W
ELLW

O
O

D

LOTHIAN CRES

LLW
YN

-Y-G
RAN

T TERR

BA
RO

N
S C

T RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

COED-Y-G
ORES

BR
YN

FEDW

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

G
LYN

 CO
ED

 RD

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

 R
D

CHAPEL WOOD

BRYNFEDW

PENNSYLVANIA

A4232

SO
U

TH
CO

U
RT RD

EA
RLS C

T RD

TY
-G

W
YN

 R
D

DORCHESTER AVE

OAK WOOD AVE

LONSDALE RD

O
RM

O
ND

E CL

W
ELL W

O
OD CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

HAMPTON CT RD

LLWYN-Y-GRANT RD

PEN
-Y-LAN

 TERR

GRAFTON CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

CARISBROOKE W
AY

TY-GWYN CRES

TY-GWYN AVE

SP
RI

N
GW

OOD

HILLRISE

CLEAR WATER WAY

SPRINGWOOD

H
ILLRISE

CEFN-CO E D G
D

N
S

FF
O

RD
D

 C
W

EL
LY

N

FFORD D  B
O

D
LY

N

PENNAN
T C

RES

WERNGOCH RD

RANNOCH D R

LO
M

ON
D CRES

A
RN

SI
D

E 
RD

H
U

RO
N

 C
RE

S

EVERARD WAY

W

OOLASTON AVE

HUNTERS RDG

FARM DR

ES
KD

A
LE

 C
L

EGREMONT RD

CYNCOED AVE

GLENW
OOD

C
YN

CO
ED

 RISE

C
YN

C
O

ED
 A

V
E

ST EDEYRNS RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

CYNCOED C

RES

GOLDCREST DR
WOODVALE AVE

CELY N G
R

ALD
ER

BROOK

LLYSWEN RD

BRYN
-G

W
YN

 RD

ALLTMAW
R RD

LLANGORSE RD

D
U

FFRYN
 RD

WESTMIN
STER C

RE
S

SHERBORNE AVE

DAN-Y-COED RD

CYNCOED PL

WINNIP

EG
 D

R

ONTARIO W
AY

C
EF

N
 C

O
ED

 A
V

E

HENLLYS RD

DERWEN RD

BETTWS-Y-C
OED RD

LEVEN CL

CLAERWEN DR

CARNEGIE DR

PA
D

A
RN

 C
L

OGWEN DR

D
U

FF
RY

N
 A

V
E

LLYN CL

G
W

YN
ANT CRES

DAN-Y-COED RD

NANT-FAWR CRES

N
A

N
T-

FA
W

R 
RD

LLANDENNIS AVE

CELYN AVE

CELYN AVE

H
EATH

BRO
O

K

TH
RE

E 
A

RC
H

ES
 A

V
E

ST DOGMAELS AVE

C

RUNDALE CRES

ST
 M

ARTINS CRES

KIM
BERLEY TERR

LU
N

D
Y CL

W
ATTO

N
 C

L

ILEX C
L

KEYES AVE

RHYD-Y-P
ENAU RD

TYRWHITT CRES

JELLICOE GDNS WILD GARDENS RD

H
EATH

 H
A

LT RD

C
RYSTA

L AVE

HEATHM EAD

NANT Y WEDAL 

WINGATE D
R

GIBSON CL

TRENCHARD DR

PORTFIE L D  C

RE
S

FISHGUARD
 C

L

W
AVELL C

L

LAKE RD N

H
EA

TH
 H

A
LT

 R
D

KING GEORGE V DR N

ST D
EN

IS RD

CEFN CARNAU RD

CRYSTAL W
OOD RD

ETON CT

ST
 B

RI
O

C
 R

D

ST GILD
AS RD

ST ISAN RD

H
EO

L G
W

YN
ED

D

ST MALO RD

ST ED
W

EN
 G

D
N

S

H
EATH

W
AY

S T  A
ID

A
N

 C
RE

S

ST A
U

G
U

STIN
E RD

ST
 A

N
TH

O
N

Y 
RD

PEDAIR ERW RD

HEOL POWIS

HEOL DYFED

M
O

U
N

TBATTEN
 C

L

KIN
G

 G
EO

RG
E V

 D
R E

BEATTY AVE

ED
IN

G
TO

N
 A

V
E

CRYSTA
L G

LEN

ST IN
A RD

HEATHFIELD PL

M
A

IT
LA

N
D

 S
T

FL
A

X
LA

N
D

 A
VE

ST AGATHA RD

TO
N

-Y
R-

Y
W

EN
 A

V
E

ST A
M

BRO
SE RD

ST
 A

LB
A

N
 A

V
E

ST
 H

EL
EN

S 
RD

ST A
N

TH
O

N
Y RD

KI
N

G
 G

EO
RG

E 
V

 D
R 

W

ST BEN
ED

IC
T C

RES

HEATHFIELD RD

LO
N

G
SP

EA
RS

 A
VE

ST BRIGID RD

JU
BILEE GDN

S

PA
RC

 T
Y 

G
LA

S

PA
RC

 T
Y 

G
LA

S

A
RM

O
U

RY D
R

MILESTONE CL

WAUN-FAWR RD

PHILIP CL

FA
IRFA

X
 RD

TY-W
ERN

 AVE

PORTHAMAL RD

TAIR ERW RD

LLW
YN

FED
W

 G
D

N
S

ST GEORGES RD

RHYDHELIG AVE

N
O

RTO
N

 A
V

E

VIO
LET PL

C
A

ERPH
ILLY RD

C
A

ER
PH

IL
LY

 R
D

LO
N-Y-GROES

PUM ERW RD
ST TANWG RD ST CADOC RDDRYBURGH AVE

THREIPLAN D D
R

SUMMERFIELD PL

MURRAYFIELD RD

DALE AVE

GROVE  P
L

PANTBACH AVE

CORONATION RD

CROMWELL RD

WELWYN RD

H
O

M
ELA

N
D

S RD

PHOENIX WAY

M
A

V
IS G

R

TH
O

RN
BU

RY CL

GREENFIELD RD

KE
YN

SH
AM

 R
D

PANTBACH PL

HEOL WERNLAS

WESTFIELD RD

HEOL DOLWEN

W
AT

ER
ST

O
N

 R
D

ABERDULAIS RD

CA
TH

ED
RA

L 
VI

EW

HEOL AMLWCH

DOLWEN RD

AB

ERDULAIS CRES

BA
C

TO
N

 R
D

GABALFA AVE

BO
N

CA
TH

 R
D

ABERPORTH RD

HEO
L 

BR
YN

G
LA

S

BR
O

N
 W

YD
D

 A
VE

BIRCHW
OOD RD

BR
AN

D
RE

TH
 R

D

BRANDRETH RD

ALD
ER

 R
D

CORSHAM RD

TO
RR

EN
S 

D
R

BIRCHWOOD LN

CLOS DERWEN

PANT YR WYN

TYDFIL
 P

L

MARYPORT RD

TY-DRAW RD

ENNERDALE C L

LA
D

Y 
M

A
RY

 R
D

CEFN-COED RD

LA
KE

SI
D

E 
D

R

LAKESIDE DR

SH
IRLEY RD

LA
KE RO

A
D

 E

WEDAL RD

HEATHWOOD GR

HIGHFIELD RD

LA
KE

 R
D

 W

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E 
A

V
E

M
ALE

FA
NT 

ST

INGLEFIELD AVE

HEATH PARK WAY
HEATH PARK W

AY

C
EN

TR
A

L 
W

AY

CANADA RD

THE GATEWAY

LLANISHEN ST

SOBERT O
N

 A
V

E

SU
M

M
ER

FI
EL

D
 A

V
E

SA
C

H
V

IL
LE

 A
V

E

CLODIEN AVE

AFRICA GDNS

NEW
 Z

EALAND RD

A
C

A
D

EM
IC

 A
VE

MANOR ST

HEATH PARK AVE

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

TALYGARN ST

PEN-Y-B
RYN RD

PEN-Y-BRYN PL

NEW
FOUNDLAND RD

AUSTRALIA
 RD

H
EA

T
H  PARK LN

ST ANGELA RD

ST
 A

G
N

ES
 R

D

CAERLEON RD

PILTO
N

 PL

MARGAM R D

RO
SEM

O
U

N
T PL

RIC
H

S RD

LLANTARNAM
 RD

LLWYNDERW
 RD

SUNNYBA N K CL

PORTHKERRY PL

MYNACHDY RD

RA
DYR PL

GARTH PL

EX
CE

LS
IO

R R

D

CELTIC RD

BATCHELOR RD

CLOS M
ENTERGABALFA AVE

H
EO

L M
A

D
O

C

M
A

ELO
G

 RD

PEN
 Y FA

I

BI
RCHWOO

D
 G

DNS

C
RA

D
O

C
 RD

APPLEDORE RD
CEFN RD

MATTH E W SON C
L

ABERBRAN RD

ABERDORE RD

SILVER BIRCH CL

W
ES

TE
RN

 D
R

W
ES

TE
RN

 A
VE

 W

ABERTEIFI CRES

MYNACHDY RD

ABERPORTH RD

HEOL CARNE

LON MADOC

FR
A

N
KL

EN
 R

D

KYLE AVE

LO
N

-Y-PA
RC

HEOL IFOR

HEOL NEST

KEN
FIG RD

TWYN-Y-FEDWEN

HEOL Y GORS

PLAS TREODA

CAE GWYN RD

CA
E 

G
W

YN
 R

D

M
A

N
O

R 
RI

SE

KY
LE

 C
RE

S

CAE YORATH YO
RATH

 RD

HEOL IESTYN

H
EO

L CO
ED

 CAE

CO
U

RT RD

HEOL GABRIEL

W
A

U
N

TREO
D

A
 RD

TY’N-Y-CAE GR

LEAMINGTON RD

LON PENLLYN

NORTHERN AVE

CO
LLEG

E C
L

H
EO

L STRA
D

LIN
G

M
ERVYN

 RD

COTTRELL RD

HEOL-Y-W
AUN

L IMEBOURNE CT

FELIN
 FACH

CLAS TEILO

HEO
L CATTW

G

C
O

ED ARIAN

H
EO

L W
AU

N
 Y N

AN
T

HEO
L TY’N

-Y-CAE

H
EO

L-
Y-

N
AN

T

ST DAVIDS RD

TYNANT

BEATRICE RD

HEATHWOOD RD

BIRCHGROVE RD

THE PHILOG

MERTHYR RD

M
ERTHYR RD

GLANDWR PL

HEOL GWRGAN

BISHOPS RD

NORTHERN AVE

A470

HEO
L-Y-FO

RLAN

TYN
EW

YD
D

ERW LAS

MAES GLAS

GLAN-Y-NANT TERR

G
LA

N
-Y-N

A
N

T RD

VICTORIA RD

CLA
V

ERTO

N  WAY

CLOS NANT GLASW
G

CEFN M
ABLY

 R
D

BUTTERFIE

LD D
R

GW
ERN-RHUDDI RD

BRYN
-AW

ELO
N

 RD

TY-DRAW RD

PO
N

TFA
EN

CRANBOURNE W
AY

C OTSWOLD A
VE

BA
LM

O
RA

L C
L

THE FAIRWAY

HA C KERFORD RD

HAMPTON CRES W

HURFORD PL

 
BL

AC
K 

O
AK 

RD

PLAS Y DELYN

LARCH GROVE

MILL PL

LO
N

G
LE

AT

 CL

M
ILL RD

CWRT CEFN

MILLGATE

M
IL

L 
RD W

O
O

D
SID

E CT

CHARTWELL DR

HEOL S
T 

D
EN

YS

MILLBROOK PARK

TH
E 

PA
DD

O
C

K

HOLLY GROVE

E RISE

N
 RI SE

S 
RI

SE

COURT FIELD L
N

CH
ERRY ORC H ARD RD

ROWAN WAY

PENTWYN RD

RUDRY R
D

CHURCH
 RD

MAERDY LN

CARDINAL DR

RI
D

GE

WAY

RIDGEWAY

IVYDALE

BL
OSSOM D

R

H
EO

L CEFN O
NN

ROUNDEL CLAM
BERHEART DR

CHERRY ORCHARD RD

HEOL LL INOS

MILL C
L

OLD M
ILL  R

D

HEOL-Y-DE LYN

CL
O

S 
LL

YSF
A

EN

TENSI
N

G
 C

L

SPRIN
G

 G
R

O
VE

CHERITO
N

 D
R

ALW
EN DR

PIN

ECREST DR

RA
G

N
A

L L
 C

L

PIC
K

W
IC

K CL

HEOL Y BARCUD

BRIARM

EAD
O

W

 DR

FID
LA

S AVE
ELA

N
 RD

TO
W

 R
D

EWENNY RD

M
ILLRA

C
E CL

M
IL

LW
O

O
D

W
 R

IS
E

TH
E RISE

FISH
G

U
A

RD
 RD

FISH
G

U
A

RD
 RD

SO
LVA

 AVE

FID
LA

S RD

HEOL M
ERLIN

MELBOURNE RD

USK RD

FIDLAS RD

R E DWOOD CT

EVEREST W
AL K

COPPERFIELD
 D

R

EVEREST AVE

BRIDGE RD
ST MELLONS RD

ST MELLONS RD

LISVANE RD

GARRICK DR

H
EO

L H
IR

NORW
O

O D

LYRIC WAY

G
LEN

D
A

LE AVE
TRECA

STLE A
V

E

WOLFS CASTLE AVE

GILWERN CRES

MERLIN CL

W
O

O
DL AWN WAY

LLANON RD

NE W
BO

R
O

U
G

H
 A

VE

MAES-Y-COED RD

MAES-Y-COED RD

TY-WERN RD

TY’N-Y-PARC RD

O
LD

 C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

CHURCH RD

C
H

IL
TE

RN
 C

L

FIELD
 W

AY

MOSTYN SQ

CO ED COCHWYN AVE BLU
E H

O
U

SE RD

TASKER DR

W
ATKIN

S SQ TATHAM RD

MALVERN DR

SMITH RD

A
SH

BO
U

RN
 W

AY

TATHAM RD

CO
ED

 G
LA

S 
RD

CLO
S H

EN
D

RE

CO
ED YR YNN

TEMPLETON AVE

TY GLAS RD

TY GLAS AVE

WAUN-Y-GROES AVE

HEOL CAERHYS

W
H

ITE BA
RN

 RD

CI
LG

ER
A

N
 C

RE
S

LON Y MYNYDD

PEN
 Y G

RO
ES RD

C
A

E M
AW

R RD

CORNFIELD CL

MAYFLOWER AVE

H
EO

L-Y

R-EFAIL

HEOL HENDRE

HEOL AER

CLOS TO
N

 M
A

W
R

H
EO

L H
IR

B
R

O
O

KVALE DR

H
E

OL-Y-CARW

MAYFAIR DR

H

EO L-Y-CADNO

PE
RC

IV
A

L 
C

L

TANSY CL

W
O O D RUFF W

AY

LO
N

 C
AE

 PORTH

CHARLOTTE SQ

TY
 G

W
YN R

D

HEOL ISCOED

HEOL-Y-BONT

WAUN-Y-GROES RD

H
EO

L Y W
ERN

H
EO

L 
TY

N
-Y

-C
O

ED

CL
O

S 
M

A
BO

N

HEOL MABON

LO
N-Y-DDERW

EN

RHOS LLAN

HEOL Y  FELIN

ERW W
EN

MUR G
WYN

LO
N-Y-DERI

MAES-Y-D
ERI

CEFN
 N

AN
T

GRON FFORDD

LON-Y-RHYD

LO
N

-Y-D
AIL

LON ISA

H
EO

L W
EN

LON UCHA

GRO
ES LO

N

HEOL LLANISHEN FACH

HEO
L DERLW

YN

PE
N

YG
R

A
IG

CEFN GRAIG

HEOL-Y-DERI

RHIW

BINA HILL

HEOL-Y-COED

HEOL-Y
-B

RYN

ORCHARD CASTLE

BARDSEY CRES

GLE
NMOUN T WAY

LOWFIELD  DR

H
AVEN

W
O

O
D DR

HEOL PEREDUR

CAE G ARW

LAUNCELOT CRES

C
A

M
ELO

T  W

AY

AVO NRI

DGE

CH
ARLOCK CL

ANGELICA
 W

AY

LU
C

ER
N

E 
DR

PEN Y CEFN

EXCALIBUR DR

BRYN GLA
S

GAR ETH
 C

L

RH
I W

LA
S

TH
O

RN
H

ILL RD

M

OR RIS  AVE

JOHNSTON RD

LLANGRANOG RD

GUENEVER CL

GA L A HAD C
L

HEOL ERWIN

HEOL ISAF

H
EO

L 
LE

W
IS

CL
O

S 
W

IL
LIA

M

HEOL B
RI

W
NA

NT

H
EO

L 
N

A
N

T 
C

A
ST

A
N

M4

M
4

M4 JUNCTION 32

PEN-Y-DRE

BEULAH RD

BLA
EN

 Y C
O

ED

HEOL UCHAF

BR
YN

TE
G

CLO
S Y BRYN

TYNEWYDD

COLLEGE R
D

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

LLANIDLOES RD

CO
LW

IL
L 

RD

G
ABALFA RD

BR
ID

G
E 

RD

COED Y WENALLT

OA K LEAFE
 D

R

LLANDE
N

N
IS

 RD

CI
RC

LE
 W

AY
 E

CIRCLE WAY E

C
IR

C
LE

 W
AY

 W

CIRCLE WAY W

LLA
N

EIRW
G

 W
AY

M
EN

A
I W

AY

LL
ANRUM

NEY A
VE

LL
A

N
RU

M
N

EY
 A

VE

BU
RN

H
A

M
 AVE

BURNHAM AVE

CO
U

N
TI

SB
U

RY
 A

VE

ELGAR CRES

A48 EASTERN AVE

A48 EASTERN AVE

A
48

   
 W

ES
TE

ER
N

 A
VE

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

NINIAN RD

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

CYNCOED RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

CYN
CO

ED
 RD

CYNCOED RD

A469     WHITCHURCH RD

FA
IR

OAK RD

N
O

RTH
 RD

GROVELAND RD

PEPYS C
L

LLANISHEN, LISVANE, CYNCOED, HEATH AND RHIWBINA

KEY

        CYCLE NETWORK ROUTES

        PROPOSED EXTENSIONS TO CYCLE NETWORK

        STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
        INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES
     

1   a   Allensbank Road between Wedal Rd and King George V Drive: 
  Review waiting restrictions and provide tra�c calming and 
  Advance Stop Lines at signal controlled junctions 
  

a

2  a  Junction of King George V Drive and King George V Drive East:  
  Provide cycle exemption to road closure 
     
    b       Allensbank Road and Heath Park Avenue: Provide tra�c calming

a

b

47 a  Lake Rd East and West: Introduce 
  one way system, 20mph restrictions

a

83 Rhydhelig Avenue: Removal of centre line 
 and installation of advisory cycle lanes, 
 subject to space 

85  a Nant Fawr Woods path: Widen to provide shared use path 
  with appropriate lighting 
 
       b Lake Road North: Tra�c calming, centre line removal and 
  advisory cycle lanes, subject to space

a

b

105  a   Ty Glas Ave: Widen advisory cycle lanes and bypasses through tra�c calming, removal of centre line, 
  prevent parking in cycle lanes at school start/�nish times

          b   Fidlas Road: Provide tra�c calming and removal of centre lines, review waiting restrictions and provide 
  advisory cycle lanes, subject to space 

          c   Station Road: Extend tra�c calming, remove centre lines, review waiting restrictions and provide 
  advisory cycle lanes, subject to space

a

b

c

106 •   Heol Hir: Centre line removal and provision of advisory 
  cycle lanes, subject to space

 •   Heol Hir priority working: Southbound cycle  bypass

107  Cyncoed Road: Tra�c calming, centre line removal 
  and advisory cycle lanes, subject to space

135 Pantbach Road: Provide cycle lanes with no 
 centre line including advanced stop lines

146 Manor Way/Pantmawr Road: 
 Provide toucan crossing

136 Caerphilly Rd/Summer�eld Place jct: 
 Tabled junction and provision of right turn 
 pocket for cyclists turning into Pedair Erw 
 Road and Summer�eld Place 
 

75 Northern Avenue Railway bridge to Whitchurch
 High School: Improve signage to clearly mark shared
 use sections, remove/relocate potential obstacles on
 shared path

144 Heathwood Ave/Ton-yr-Ywen Ave: 
 Improved crossing facilities

145 Maes Y Coed Road: 
 Light segregation

P
age 73



H
EO

L LAS

M
AES-Y-C

R
O

C
H

AN

MINSMERE 
C

L

HERITAGE PK

WATER AVENS CL

C
YPRESS D

RWILLO W HERB CL

COBOL RD

SAFFRON DR

VAENDRE CL

FORTRAN RD

NEWLANDS RD

WILLIA M
 B

ELCHER DR

TEALHAM
 D

R

A
BE

RN
AT

H
Y 

CL

M
EADOW SWEET D

R

ORCHID CL

SANDBROOK RD

B
U

L R U SH CL

GLEN
RI

SE
 C

L

BR
YN

M

AWR CL
SWAN A GE C

L

WICK E N
 C

L

CYPRESS DR

CLOS TYLA BACH

LOCKE G
R

LODW
ICK RS

KE
M

BE
R 

CL

W

ILLOW
BRO

O
K 

D
R

FIELDFAR E D
R

JO
N

QUIL C
L

JASM INE  DR

PENN
YRO

YA

L  CL

W
ENTWORTH LN

CLO S -YR-O N NEN

MITCHELL CL

AS TON PL

HARRIS
ON D

R

HARRISON
 D

R

W
ALW

YN
 PL

BR
O

ADW
ELL CL

PITME
D

EN
 CL

COLEFORD DR

H
ERITA

G
E  PK

HER I TAG
E 

P
K

WILLOW GR

FA
IR

H
A

V
E

N
 C

L

VERBENA CL

W
ILLO

W
D

EN
E W

AY

HE OL 
M

AES 
EI

RW
G

PWLL Y PLACA
H

EO
L M

AES EIRW
GWILLOWBROOK DR

MACHEN CL

CAERL EO
N

 C
L

RAGLAN CL

N
EW

EN
T RD

RISCA C
L

CRUMLIN DR

WAKEHURST PLBROCKHAMPTON RD

JAMES CT

OAKM EADO W DR

C
RICKHOWELL RD

GREEN MEADOWS
M

ATTH Y SENS WAY

JE
NKINS W

AY

SOAREL CL

PA
V

ALA
N D

 CL

CRAG

SIDE CL

C
EM

A
ES C

R E S

COLEFORD DR

WESTONBIRT CL

HEOL 
TR

O
ST

RE

ROGERSTONE CL

ST A

RVA
NS CERES

SPENC

ER DAVID WA Y

FFO
RD

D
 D

A
N

IE
L 

LE
W

IS

HARRISON D
R

TRECINON R
D

TREBORTH RD

CRIC
KHOW

ELL
 R

D

BO D N A N T CL

ASPEN C
L

TREBANOG CL

LLA N INA GR

CRICKHOWELL RD

T
REBANOG CRES

W
ILLO

W
BRO

O
K D

R

HAZEL
W

O
O

D
 D

R

PENSARN RD

PORT M
ADOC RD

GLAN
-Y-M

O
R RD

TREFASER CRES

TR
OW

BRID
G

E 
G

R

GWBERT CL

CATH
 C

O
B 

C
L

B
RO

O
KFIELD

 D
R

F ERNTREE 
D

R

TRO
W

BR
ID

G
E 

GR

TRESIGIN RD

GLANDOVEY GR

ABERGELE RD

CAER
NA

RV
O

N
 W

AY

D
O

VE
Y 

CL

H
EN

D
R

E  R
D

HENDRE RD

ORC
HA

RD PK

TARW
IC

K D
R

BETH
A

N
IA

 RO
W

PURCELL R
D

COATES PL

O
LD

 H
IL

L

PRE
ST

AT
YN

 R
D

M
EA

DVALE RD

INSTOW PL

D
U

LV
ER

TO
N

 A
VE

D
U

N
ST

ER
 R

D

PORLOCK RD

BLACKMOOR PL

LI
M

EWOOD C L

MELVILLE AVE

OLD N
EW

PORTR RD

VAENDRE LN

EID
ER  C L

SA
N

D
ER

LI
N

G
 D

R

KINGFIS H ER CL

OLD NEWPORT RD

ALLEN CL

PARKSTONE AVE

G
O

U L D CL

WERN FAWR LN

H
A

STIN
G

S CRES

HASTIN

GS CRES

TY-TO-MAEN CL

FFORD
D

 BRYN
H

Y
FRYD

MILL LN

RUPERA CL

BL
A

CK
BI

RD
S 

WAY

OKEH
AM

PTO
N

 A
VE

BLUEBE
LL

 D
R

MILL LN

BRAYFORD PL

WITHYCOMBE RD

O
THERY PL

ARNOLD AVEBRONTE CRES

BR
ID

G
W

AT
ER

 R
D

LA
N

G
PO

RT
 A

VE

M
O

U
N

T 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

LN

A
XB

RI
D

G
E 

CR
ES

MINEHEAD RD

TY
 W

IN
C

H
 R

D

BEG
A

N
 RD

CHUR C H LN

WILLITON RD

MALMSM
EAD

 R
D

SE
DGEM

OOR R
D

M
IL

VE
RT

O
N

 R
D

TORRIN
GTO

N
 R

D

WASHFORD A
VE

CREDIT
O

N
 R

D

M OUNT PLEASANT AVE

BAMPTON RD

DURLEIGH CL

HONIT
O

N
 R

D

A SH
BU

RT
O

N
 A

VE

CROYDE AVE

ILCHESTER RD

DRYDEN CL

RUSKIN CLKIPLING CL

BROW
NING CL

RHOSSILLY RD

CHESTERTON AVE

THACKERAY C
RES

MACAULAY AVE

LA

SCELLES D

R

HAZLITT CL
BOSWELL CL

HOUSMAN CL

CLOS A
LY

N

C
LO

S  G W Y

CLOS C W
M

 C
R

EU
N

A
N

THEOL PONTPRENNAU

CLOS Y FFYNNON

TH
E 

FARTHI N
G

S

AMBERLEY CL

CLO S CWM DU

GELLI FRON GOCH

CL
O

S 
NANT Y CWM

HEO
L 

PONTPRENNAU H
EO

L GLAN

DULAIS

CLOS N
ANT M

W
LAN

AM
BE

RG
AT

E 
D

R

CLO
S N

AN

T D

D
U

HEOL GLAND
ULAIS

PA
NT 

GLAS

ALMOND DR

W
H

A
RF

ED
A

LE
 R

D

GLYN COLLEN

TH
E M

ALTINGS
TARRAGON W

AY

TY CERRIG

LLWYN CASTAN

HY
SSO P C

L

BO
RA

G E CL

GLYN R H O
SY

N

G
LY

N
 RH

O
SYN

PEPPERMINT DR

NEW
TON RD

M
O

RF
A

 C
RE

S
WENTLOOG AVE

DOLGOCH CL

HEOL NEW
YDD

VALLEY V
IE

W

PARKWAY

HARRIS AVE

LETTERSTON RD

B R Y N BALA W
AY

ABERDARON RD

HE
OL Y RHOS OG

PARKWAY

TOW
YN RD

MULLIN

S AVE

TROW
BRIDGE RD

CAER CASTELL PL

BRO A
THRO

MARDY RD

W
OOLACOMBE AVE

LA
U

G
H

A
RN

E 
RD

HER O N RD

HARRIS
 A

VE

RELF  RD

H
A

RL
EC

H
 R

D

LA
N

G
LA

N
D

 RD

MAXWELL RD

PE
N

RH
O

S 
CR

ES

ILFRACOMBE C
RES

M
ARDY RD

HOLMSVIEW CLLLAN
GW

N P
L

LLANDUDNO R
D

WENTLOOG AVE

MONKSTONE RISE

ARLINGTON CRES

CANNINGTON AVE

LA
M

BY W
AY

RHYL RD

G
RE

EN
W

AY
 R

D

GRE
EN

W
AY

 R
D

GREE
NW

AY R
D

G
RE

EN
W

AY
 R

D

GOODWICK RD

GREENWAY AVE

S VIEW DR

M
A

N
O

RB
IE

R 
CRES

LLANSTEPHAN RD

C
A

EG L AS RD

BE
AU

M
AR

IS
 R

D

FA
RM

LEIG
H

DOWNTON RISE

DO W N TON RISE

CA
EG

LA
S 

RD

BRACHDY LN

WENTLOOG  C
L

BA
RM

OUTH RD

THE GRO
VE

CLAREMONT CRES

W
ENTLOOG RD

NEW RD

LIN D E N GR

N
EV

IN
 C

RE
S

TY-FRY RD

TRELAWNEY AVE

TYR-Y-SARN RD

THE WALK

TYM
AWR CL

W
H

IT
EH

A
LL

 P
A

R
A

D
E

NORTHLANDS

U
PL

A
N

D
S 

RD

CRANLEI GH RISE

NEWPORT RD

LY
N

M
O

U
TH

 C
RE

S

CASTLE R
IS

E

TREDELERCH RD

W
IT

LA
 C

T 
RD

BI
D

EF
O

RD
 R

D

CH
ED

D
AR

 CRES

CLAREMONT AVE

CO
LW

YN
 RD

TY
-F

RY
 G

D
N

S

WATCHET CL

TA
UNTO

N C
RESTA

UNTO
N A

VE

CHARD A
VE

FISHPOND RD

G
LA

ST
O

N
BU

RY
 TERR

CLEVEDON RD

LY
N

TO
N

 C
L

WORLE AVE
W

ES
TO

N
 R

D

W
O

RL
E 

PL
KEWSTOKE AVE

U
PH

IL
L 

RD

LY
N

TO
N

 T
ER

R

HARTLAN
D

 R
D

EX
FO

RD CRES

N
O

RT
H

A
M

 A
V

E

CLO
VELLY CRES

MENDIP RD

TY-MAW
R RD

QUARRY DALE

PAGE D
R

SW
IF

T C
L

FI
EL

D
IN

G
 C

L

DIC
KENS A

VE

PA
RR

ACOMBE CRES

BRAUNTON AVE

BRAUNTON CRES

BARNSTABLE RD

BA
LL

 R
D

LYNTON PL

CHURCH R
D

TY
-M

AW
R AVE

NEWPORT RD

NEWPORT R
D

NEW
PORT R

D

BR
YN

 H
EU

LO
G

BRYN HAI D D

G
LYN

 EID
D

EW

BRYNCYN

C
O

ED
EN

 D
A

L

W
A

U
N

 FACH

BRYN PINWYDDEN

PENTWYN RD

DARTINGTON DR

FELBRIGG
 CRES

RI
D

G
EW

AY
 R

D

PATC
H

W
AY C

RES

K
EN

NERLEIG
H

 RD

WIDECOMBE DR

TI
VE

RT
O

N
 D

R

H
AT

H
ER

LE
IG

H
 R

D

P E N NSYLVANIA

WERN GOCH W

PENTW
YN R

D

BRYN CELYN RD

PE
N

TW
YN

 D
R

THE HAW THORNS

THE H
A

W
TH

O
RN

S

LI
N

N
ET

 C
L

H
O

LLY
BUSH HGHTS

F ORSYTHIA D R

FO
RSYTH

IA
 D

R

H A W FIN
CH C

L

MAGNOLIA CL

A
ZA

LEA CL

CO
ED-Y-G

ORES

BR
YN

-Y
-N

A
N

T

COED-Y-G
ORES

AEL-Y-BRYN

PIN
EW

OOD C
RES

KING W
O

O
D

 CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

QUEENWOO D

ROUNDWOOD

LL
AN

ED
EY

RN
 D

R

LLA
N

ED
EYRN

 D
R

MAELFA

W
ELLW

O
O

D

LOTHIAN CRES

LLW
YN

-Y-G
RAN

T TERR

DOE CL

BA
RO

N
S C

T RD

DERI R
D

HOLLYBUSH RD

COED-Y-G
ORES

BR
YN

FEDW

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

G
LYN

 CO
ED

 RD

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

 R
D

CHAPEL WOOD

BRYNFEDW

PENNSYLVANIA

IPSW

ICH RD

IP
SW

IC
H

 R
D

A4232

SIN C L AIR D
R

SO
U

TH
CO

U
RT RD

WINCHESTER AVE

EA
RLS C

T RD

TY
-G

W
YN

 R
D

MELROSE AVE

DORCHESTER AVE

HAMMOND WAY

OAK WOOD AVE

LONSDALE RD

O
RM

O
ND

E CL

W
ELL W

O
OD CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

HAMPTON CT RD

FO
S

TER  D R

LLWYN-Y-GRANT RD

PEN
-Y-LAN

 TERR

GRAFTON CL

AMESBURY RD

ILTON RD

PEN-Y
-L

AN P
L

ALM
A R

D

BALA
CLA

VA
 R

D

CRESSY R
D

M
AFEK

IN
G

 R
D

HARRIS
M

IT
H R

D

LLANEDEYRN RD

CARISBROOKE W
AY

TY-GWYN CRES

TY-GWYN AVE

SP
RI

N
GW

OOD

HILLRISE

SPRINGWOOD

H
ILLRISE

FFORD D  B
O

D
LY

N

PENNAN
T C

RES

WERNGOCH RD

RANNOCH D R

LO
M

ON
D CRES

A
RN

SI
D

E 
RD

W

OOLASTON AVE

HUNTERS RDG

FARM DR

EGREMONT RD

CYNCOED AVE

GLENW
OOD

C
YN

CO
ED

 RISE

C
YN

C
O

ED
 A

V
E

ST EDEYRNS RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

CYNCOED C

RES

GOLDCREST DR
WOODVALE AVE

CELY N G
R

ALD
ER

BROOK

LLYSWEN RD

BRYN
-G

W
YN

 RD

ALLTMAW
R RD

LLANGORSE RD

D
U

FFRYN
 RD

WESTMIN
STER C

RE
S

SHERBORNE AVE

DAN-Y-COED RD

CYNCOED PL

WINNIP

EG
 D

R

ONTARIO W
AY

C
EF

N
 C

O
ED

 A
V

E

HENLLYS RD

DERWEN RD

BETTWS-Y-C
OED RD

CLAERWEN DR

OGWEN DR

G
W

YN
ANT CRES

LLANDENNIS AVE

CELYN AVE

RHYD-Y-P
ENAU RD

WESTVILLE RD

A
N

G
U

S ST

PEN
-Y-LAN

 RD

BR
O

N
 W

YD
D

 A
VE

BIRCHW
OOD RD

BRANDRETH RD

TY-
DRAW

 P
L

LO
CHABER S

T

DALCROSS ST

LI
N

D
EN

 A
VE

CORSHAM RD

BIRCHWOOD LN

BOLEYN WALK

CLOS DERWEN

KIMBERLEY RD

TY-DRAW RD

CEFN-COED RD

CLA
V

ERTO

N  WAY

CLOS NANT GLASW
G

BUTTERFIE

LD D
R

GW
ERN-RHUDDI RD

BRYN
-AW

ELO
N

 RD

TY-DRAW RD

PO
N

TFA
EN

CRANBOURNE W
AY

THE FAIRWAY

HA C KERFORD RD

HAMPTON CRES W

HURFORD PL

 
BL

AC
K 

O
AK 

RD

PENTWYN RD

MAERDY LN

BRIDGE RD

ST MELLONS RD

ST MELLONS RD

LISVANE RD

BRYTHON DR

COLCHESTER AVE

OA K LEAFE
 D

R

CI
RC

LE
 W

AY
 E

CIRCLE WAY E

C
IR

C
LE

 W
AY

 W

CIRCLE WAY W

LLA
N

EIRW
G

 W
AY

WILLOWBROOK D
R

M
EN

A
I W

AY

LL
ANRUM

NEY A
VE

LL
A

N
RU

M
N

EY
 A

VE

BU
RN

H
A

M
 AVE

BURNHAM AVE

CO
U

N
TI

SB
U

RY
 A

VE

ELGAR CRES

A48 EASTERN AVE

H
A

RT
 PL

LAMBY W
AY

HIND C L

CLOS AVRO

SEAWALL RD

KENYON RD

STORRAR PL

HA N DLEY RD

FFO
RD

D
 PEN

G
A

M

C
A

IRM
U

IR RD

DE H
AVIL

LA
ND RD

FFORDD PENGAMWHITAKER RD

TAYMUIR RD

GLANM
UIR RD

PA
LL

O
T 

W
AY

GLAN RHYMNI

NEWPORT RD

CAMERON ST

SPRIN
G G

ARDENS TERR

SPRING GARDENS PL

BERESFORD RD LN

WILSON ST

FLORENCE ST

ARTHUR ST

SOUTHMINSTER RD

AXM
INSTER RD

FORT  ST
TYLER ST

FOX ST

STURM
INSTER RD

LA
D

YS
M

IT
H

 R
D

M
IN

ST
ER

 R
D

PRIEST RD

ROVER W
AY

SEAWALL RD

ROVER WAY

M
ERED

EITH
 RD

M
ERC

IA
 RD

M
O

NA PL

DUNSMUIR RD

BRA
D

LEY ST

BLAN
CHE ST

SKELM
U

IR RD

DEEMUIR RD

PENGAM RD

STO
RRA

R RD

TW
EEDSMUIR RD

D
A

LM
U

IR RD

C
RA

IG
M

U
IR RD

D
ESSM

U
IR RD

SKATHMUIR RD

KENMUIR RD

W
H

IT
M

U
IR

 R
D

C
LY

D
ES

M
U

IR
 R

D

SWINTON ST

H
A

RO
LD

 ST
TH

EO
D

O
RA

 ST

RUNWAY RD

ME IR
IO

N P

L

H
O

R
W

O
O

D CL

BERESFO
RD

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

MERVYN RD

M
A

D
O

C RD

H
ELEN

 ST

BURNABY ST

EYRE ST

COVENY ST

SEYMOUR ST

ECLIPSE ST

COMET ST SPLOTT RD

M
U

IRTO
N

 RD

HABE
RS

HO
N S

T

CO
URTE

NAY
 R

D

MARION ST

ADELINE ST

RAIL
W

AY S
T

CARL
IS

LE
 S

TSYSTEM
 ST

HOW
ARD GDNS

NEWPORT RD LN

EAST G
RO

VE

CH URCH TERR

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

TIMBERS SQ

STALLCOURT AVE

FF
O

R
DD

 N
O

W
EL

L

PEA
RL 

ST

D
IA

M
O

ND
 ST

AGATE ST

N
O

RA
 ST

IRON ST

DIAMOND ST

AN

DERSON PL

ZINC ST

H
ELEN

 PL

CECIL ST

RIC
HARDS T

ERR

WATERLOO GDN S

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

BERTRA
M

 ST

EMERALD ST

SILVER ST

ORBIT ST

LONGCROSS ST

TOPAZ ST

LEAD ST

SUN ST

GOLD ST

SAPPHIRE ST

RUBY ST

COPPER ST

STAR ST

PLANET ST

M
OIR

A TERR

M
ETAL ST

CA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

RO
AT

H
 C

O
U

RT
 P

L

SANDRINGHAM RD

G
RE

N
VI

LL
E 

RD

AGIN
CO

URT 
RD

UPPER KINCRAIG ST

LILY ST

ROSE ST

CLIFTO
N

 ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

NINIAN RD

MARLBOROUGH RD

CLAUDE PL

BLENHEIM
 RD

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

ARRAN PL

CLIVE PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

W
EL

LF
IE

LD
 S

T

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

CYNCOED RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

CYN
CO

ED
 RD

CYNCOED RD

BANGO
R S

T

D
IA

N
A

 ST

A
LFRED

 ST

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

STRATHNAIRN ST

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

OXFORD LN

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

CYFARTHFA ST

TALW
ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

THE PARADE

KNOX RD

KIN
CRA

IG ST

BROADWAY

NEWPORT RD

CONSTELLATIO
N ST

TIN ST

PEARL ST

AUGUSTA ST

M
ETEO

R ST

GLOSSOP RD

ALBANY RDALBANY RD

FITZA
LA

N
 PL

MOY RD

PEPYS C
L

52 Rumney Trail: Provide lighting

53a  Ball Lane: Amend access barrier

      b  O� road link from Pentwyn Drive 
  to Rumney Trail: Provide lighting

a
b

110  Greenway Road: Alterations to tra�c calming and
  provision of cycle bypasses at buildouts, surface 
  improvements, tightening kerb radii at side roads

112  a  •    Newport Road from Southern Way to New Road: Widen existing shared 
   use cycle/footway and extend to junction with New Road 
       
    •  New Road/Newport Road junction: Provide link from New Road to o� road 
   facility

         b     New Road: 20mph speed restriction, amendments to existing tra�c calming, 
   provide cycle bypasses at priority workings

b
a

115  Trowbridge Road: Improvements 
  to existing cycle lanes
 

116  a   Brachdy Road/Quarry Dale junction: Provide cycle bypass through 
  road closure

          b   Brachdy Rd and Llanstephan Rd: Surface improvements

a

b

b

117  a   Ty Mawr Road: Provide on road cycle lanes

          b   Rumney Hill Gardens: Widen woodland path to provide 
  shared use cycle/footway with appropriate lighting

           c    Newport Road: Improve signage of existing shared use 
  path 

a

c

b

PENTWYN, LLANRUMNEY, RUMNEY, TROWBRIDGE & ST MELLONS

KEY

        CYCLE NETWORK ROUTES

        PROPOSED EXTENSIONS TO CYCLE NETWORK

        STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
        INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES
     

P
age 74



RHOSSILLY RD

PARKWAY

HARRIS AVE

LETTERSTON RD

HE
OL Y RHOS OG

TOW
YN RD

MULLIN

S AVE

TROW
BRIDGE RD

CAER CASTELL PL

MARDY RD

LA
U

G
H

A
RN

E 
RD

HER O N RD

HARRIS
 A

VE

RELF  RD

H
A

RL
EC

H
 R

D

LA
N

G
LA

N
D

 RD

MAXWELL RD

PE
N

RH
O

S 
CR

ES

M
ARDY RD

HOLMSVIEW CLLLAN
GW

N P
L

LLANDUDNO R
D

WENTLOOG AVE

MONKSTONE RISE

LA
M

BY W
AY

RHYL RD GREE
NW

AY R
D

G
RE

EN
W

AY
 R

D

GOODWICK RD

GREENWAY AVE

S VIEW DR

M
A

N
O

RB
IE

R 
CRES

LLANSTEPHAN RD

C
A

EG L AS RD

BE
AU

M
AR

IS
 R

D

FA
RM

LEIG
H

DOWNTON RISE

DO W N TON RISE

CA
EG

LA
S 

RD

BRACHDY LN

WENTLOOG  C
L

BA
RM

OUTH RD

THE GRO
VE

CLAREMONT CRES

W
ENTLOOG RD

NEW RD

LIN D E N GR

N
EV

IN
 C

RE
S

TY-FRY RD

TRELAWNEY AVE

TYR-Y-SARN RD

THE WALK

TYM
AWR CL

W
H

IT
EH

A
LL

 P
A

R
A

D
E

NORTHLANDS

U
PL

A
N

D
S 

RD

CRANLEI GH RISE

NEWPORT RD

LY
N

M
O

U
TH

 C
RE

S

CASTLE R
IS

E

TREDELERCH RD

W
IT

LA
 C

T 
RD

CH
ED

D
AR

 CRES

CLAREMONT AVE

CO
LW

YN
 RD

TY
-F

RY
 G

D
N

S

WATCHET CL

TA
UNTO

N C
RESTA

UNTO
N A

VE

LY
N

TO
N

 C
L

WORLE AVE

W
ES

TO
N

 R
D

W
O

RL
E 

PL

KEWSTOKE AVE

U
PH

IL
L 

RD

LY
N

TO
N

 T
ER

R

HARTLAN
D

 R
D

TY-MAW
R RD

QUARRY DALE

PAGE D
R

LYNTON PL

CHURCH R
D

TY
-M

AW
R AVE

NEWPORT R
D

NEW
PORT R

D

RI
D

G
EW

AY
 R

D

PATC
H

W
AY C

RES

K
EN

NERLEIG
H

 RD

WIDECOMBE DR

TI
VE

RT
O

N
 D

R

H
AT

H
ER

LE
IG

H
 R

D

P E N NSYLVANIA

BR
YN

-Y
-N

A
N

T

AEL-Y-BRYN

PIN
EW

OOD C
RES

KING W
O

O
D

 CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

QUEENWOO D

ROUNDWOOD

LL
AN

ED
EY

RN
 D

R

LLA
N

ED
EYRN

 D
R

MAELFA

W
ELLW

O
O

D

LOTHIAN CRES

LLW
YN

-Y-G
RAN

T TERR

DOE CL

BA
RO

N
S C

T RD

DERI R
D

CHAPEL WOOD

PENNSYLVANIA

IPSW

ICH RD

IP
SW

IC
H

 R
D

A4232

SIN C L AIR D
R

SO
U

TH
CO

U
RT RD

WINCHESTER AVE

EA
RLS C

T RD

TY
-G

W
YN

 R
D

MELROSE AVE

DORCHESTER AVE

HAMMOND WAY

OAK WOOD AVE

LONSDALE RD

O
RM

O
ND

E CL

W
ELL W

O
OD CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

HAMPTON CT RD

FO
S

TER  D R

LLWYN-Y-GRANT RD

PEN
-Y-LAN

 TERR

GRAFTON CL

AMESBURY RD

ILTON RD

PEN-Y
-L

AN P
L

ALM
A R

D

BALA
CLA

VA
 R

D

CRESSY R
D

M
AFEK

IN
G

 R
D

HARRIS
M

IT
H R

D

LLANEDEYRN RD

CARISBROOKE W
AY

TY-GWYN CRES

TY-GWYN AVE

SP
RI

N
GW

OOD

CLEAR WATER WAY

SPRINGWOOD

CEFN-CO E D G
D

N
S

FF
O

RD
D

 C
W

EL
LY

N

FFORD D  B
O

D
LY

N

LO
M

ON
D CRES

A
RN

SI
D

E 
RD

H
U

RO
N

 C
RE

S

EVERARD WAY

W

OOLASTON AVE

HUNTERS RDG

FARM DR

ES
KD

A
LE

 C
L

EGREMONT RD

WINNIP

EG
 D

R

ONTARIO W
AY

C
EF

N
 C

O
ED

 A
V

E

CARNEGIE DR CELYN AVEKEYES AVE

JELLICOE GDNS WILD GARDENS RD

HEATHM EAD

NANT Y WEDAL 

H
EA

TH
 H

A
LT

 R
D

KING GEORGE V DR N

M
O

U
N

TBATTEN
 C

L

KIN
G

 G
EO

RG
E V

 D
R E

BEATTY AVE

WESTVILLE RD

A
N

G
U

S ST

PEN
-Y-LAN

 RD

BR
O

N
 W

YD
D

 A
VE

BIRCHW
OOD RD

BR
AN

D
RE

TH
 R

D

BRANDRETH RD

TY-
DRAW

 P
L

LO
CHABER S

T

ALD
ER

 R
D

HEN
DY S

T

W
ERFA

 S
T

DALCROSS ST

TY’N-Y-COED LN

SPENCER ST

GO
W

ER
 S

T

DANIEL ST

LU
CAS 

ST

D
AVIO

T STFLORENTIA ST

FA
NNY S

T

GWEN
N

Y
TH

 ST

BRUCE ST

ROBERT ST

HAZELDENE AVE LI
N

D
EN

 A
VE

CORSHAM RD

TO
RR

EN
S 

D
R

BIRCHWOOD LN

BOLEYN WALK

CLOS DERWEN

PANT YR WYN

BO
VER

TO
N S

T

TYDFIL
 P

L

M
ORLA

IS
 S

T

MARYPORT RD

KIMBERLEY RD

TY-DRAW RD

ENNERDALE C L

LA
D

Y 
M

A
RY

 R
D

CEFN-COED RD

LA
KE

SI
D

E 
D

R

LAKESIDE DR

PEN-Y-WAIN RD

SH
IRLEY RD

LA
KE RO

A
D

 E

WEDAL RD

HEATHWOOD GR

HIGHFIELD RD

LA
KE

 R
D

 W

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E 
A

V
E

C
LU

N
 TERR

M
ALE

FA
NT 

ST
DO

GFI
EL

D S
T

MAY ST

TE
W

KES
BURY S

T

INGLEFIELD AVE

HEATH PARK W
AY

LLANISHEN ST

MAINDY RD

CLODIEN AVE

LLANTRISANT ST

GELLIG
AER ST

ALLENSBANK CRES

MANOR ST

COSMESTON ST

BRITHDIR ST

CWMDARE ST

HEATH PARK AVE

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

PENTYRCH S
T

RHYGOES S
T

RHIG
OS G

DNS

TALYGARN ST

COLCHESTER AVE

CI
RC

LE
 W

AY
 E

C
IR

C
LE

 W
AY

 W

CIRCLE WAY W

LL
ANRUM

NEY A
VE

LL
A

N
RU

M
N

EY
 A

VE

A48 EASTERN AVE

A48 EASTERN AVE

H
A

RT
 PL

LAMBY W
AY

HIND C L

CLOS AVRO

SEAWALL RD

KENYON RD

STORRAR PL

HA N DLEY RD

FFO
RD

D
 PEN

G
A

M

C
A

IRM
U

IR RD

DE H
AVIL

LA
ND RD

FFORDD PENGAMWHITAKER RD

TAYMUIR RD

GLANM
UIR RD

PA
LL

O
T 

W
AY

GLAN RHYMNI

NEWPORT RD

CAMERON ST

SPRIN
G G

ARDENS TERR

SPRING GARDENS PL

BERESFORD RD LN

WILSON ST

FLORENCE ST

ARTHUR ST

SOUTHMINSTER RD

AXM
INSTER RD

FORT  ST
TYLER ST

FOX ST

STURM
INSTER RD

LA
D

YS
M

IT
H

 R
D

M
IN

ST
ER

 R
D

PRIEST RD

ROVER W
AY

TI
D

E 
FI

EL
D

S 
RD

SEAWALL RD

ROVER WAY

M
ERED

EITH
 RD

M
ERC

IA
 RD

M
O

NA PL

DUNSMUIR RD

BRA
D

LEY ST

BLAN
CHE ST

SKELM
U

IR RD

DEEMUIR RD

PENGAM RD

STO
RRA

R RD

TW
EEDSMUIR RD

D
A

LM
U

IR RD

C
RA

IG
M

U
IR RD

D
ESSM

U
IR RD

SKATHMUIR RD

KENMUIR RD

W
H

IT
M

U
IR

 R
D

C
LY

D
ES

M
U

IR
 R

D

PO
RTM

A
N

M
O

O
R RD

SWINTON ST

H
A

RO
LD

 ST
TH

EO
D

O
RA

 ST

DARBY RD

M
AR

TI
N

 R
D

VIKING PL

RO
V

ER
 W

AY

FORESHORE RD

GLASS AVE

FRESHMOOR RD

TIDAL SIDINGS

PACIFIC RD

ROVER W
AY

OLD CLIPPER RD

LO
NGSHIP

S R
D

FARMVILLE RD

RUNWAY RD

ME IR
IO

N P

L

H
O

R
W

O
O

D CL

BERESFO
RD

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

WILLOWS AVE

MERVYN RD

M
A

D
O

C RD

PO
RTM

AN
M

O
O

R RD

H
ELEN

 ST

TITAN RD

KEEN
 RD

BURNABY ST

EYRE ST

COVENY ST

SEYMOUR ST

M
OIR

A ST ECLIPSE ST

COMET ST SPLOTT RD

M
U

IRTO
N

 RD

ORDELL ST

HABE
RS

HO
N S

T

WALKER RD

CO
URTE

NAY
 R

D

ABERYSTWYTH ST

HINTON ST

VANGUARD WAY

JANET ST

MARION ST

SINGLETON RD

ADELINE ST

RAIL
W

AY S
T

HOWARD ST

BAYSID
E RD

CU
M

RA
E ST

CARL
IS

LE
 S

T

SANQUHAR ST

CUMNOCK PL

CLYDE ST

KERRYCRO
Y ST

A
SG

O
G

 ST

KILCATTA
N

 ST

LADY MARGARET TERR

ROATH DOCK RD

CLIPPER RD

COMPASS RD

PIE
RHEAD ST TYN

ESID
E RD

NETTLEFORD RD

E M
O

O
RS RD

SPRUCE C
L

OCEAN WAY

LEW
IS RD

EAST TYNDALL ST

A

PPL EW OOD CL

E M
O

O
RS RD

SYSTEM
 ST

PRINCE LEOPOLD ST

KAM
ES PL

GALSTON ST

ADAMSDOWN LN

ADA

MSDOWN S Q

A DAM
S

C ROFT PL

EAST TYNDALL ST

CEN
TRA

L LIN
K

M

ORGAN ST

ATLANTIC WHARF

HOW
ARD GDNS

NEWPORT RD LN

EAST G
RO

VE

THE WALK

HEMINGWAY RD

W
 B

U
TE

 S
TM

O
UN

T STUART SQ

HEOL GLANRHEIDOL

RERESBY  CT

OVERS TON
E CT

YS
TR

A
D

 S
T

ABER
CYNO

N S
T

CO
RVETTE CT

LLANSANNOR DR

S LOUDOUN PL

HANNAH ST

A
LICE ST

WEST CL

LETTON RD

LO
U

D
O

U
N

 SQ

MARIA ST

W
ESLEY LN

LO

UISA PL

A
D

ELA
ID

E ST

H
A

R
RO

W
BY

 S
T

C
H

A
N

D
LERY W

AY

H
A

RR
O

W
BY

 L
NAVONDAL E GDNS

TA
FF

 T
ER

R

POMEROY ST

CLARENCE EMBANKMENT

CA
M

BR
ID

G
E 

ST

AVOND AL E  G
DNS

MOORDALE RD

NEWPORT ST

COSSLETT PL

BRADFORD ST

BARGOED S
TCLY

DACH S
T

CYM
M

ER S
T

LLANBRADACH S
T

G
RA

N
G

E G
D

N
S

CH URCH TERR

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

TIMBERS SQ

STALLCOURT AVE

FF
O

R
DD

 N
O

W
EL

L

PEA
RL 

ST

D
IA

M
O

ND
 ST

AGATE ST

N
O

RA
 ST

IRON ST

DIAMOND ST

AN

DERSON PL

ZINC ST

H
ELEN

 PL

CECIL ST

RIC
HARDS T

ERR
WATERLOO GDN S

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

BERTRA
M

 ST

EMERALD ST

SILVER ST

ORBIT ST

LONGCROSS ST

TOPAZ ST

LEAD ST

SUN ST

GOLD ST

SAPPHIRE ST

RUBY ST

COPPER ST

STAR ST

PLANET ST

M
OIR

A TERR

M
ETAL ST

CA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

GORSEDD GDNS RD

WYEVERNE RD

LETTY ST

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

QUEEN ANNE SQ

RO
AT

H
 C

O
U

RT
 P

L

SANDRINGHAM RD

G
RE

N
VI

LL
E 

RD

AGIN
CO

URT 
RD

UPPER KINCRAIG ST

LILY ST

ROSE ST

CLIFTO
N

 ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

NINIAN RD

MARLBOROUGH RD

CLAUDE PL

BLENHEIM
 RD

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

ARRAN PL

CLIVE PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

W
EL

LF
IE

LD
 S

T

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

CYNCOED RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

BANGO
R S

T

A
RA

BELLA
 ST

KE
LV

IN
 R

D

D
O

N
A

LD
 ST

D
IA

N
A

 ST

TY’N-Y-COED PL

A
LFRED

 ST

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

STRATHNAIRN ST

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

OXFORD LN

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

THARSIS CL

DAVIS ST

CYFARTHFA ST

RUSSELL ST

TALW
ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

M
A

C
KIN

TO
SH

 PL

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

BEDFORD ST

C
RA

N
BRO

O
K ST

W
IN

D
SO

R PL

THE PARADE

KNOX RD

NORTHCOTE LN

KIN
CRA

IG ST

N ORTHCOTE LN

RIC
H

M
O

ND CRES

G
O

RD
O

N
 RD

LLANTW
IT ST

ST ANDREWS PL

SA
LISBU

RY RDGLY
NRHONDDA ST

PA
RK G

RO
VE

MUSEUM PL

PA
RK LN

RHYMNEY TERR

CITY RD

A469     WHITCHURCH RD

CO
BU

RN
 ST

BASIL PL

RIC
HARDS 

ST

HARRIE
T S

T
FI

TZ
ROY ST

RUTHIN
 G

DNS

WYEVERNE RD

MUNDY PL

CATHERINE ST

FA
NNY S

T

BROADWAY

NEWPORT RD

D
U

M
FRIES PL

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

BOULEVARD DE NANTES

CRO

C KHERBTOWN LN

CITY HALL RD

M
USEUM

 AVE

LOWTHER RD

MISKIN ST

FITZALAN RD MOIRA PL

CONSTELLATIO
N ST

TIN ST

PEARL ST

AUGUSTA ST

WINDSOR PL

M
ETEO

R ST

GLOSSOP RD

HEN
KE C

T

N
 L

U
TO

N
 P

L
S 

LU
TO

N P
L

CELERITY DR

RO
SE

M

ARY ST

ELLEN
 ST

SC
HO

O
N

ER
 W

AY

SILU
RIA

N
 PL

SILU
RIAN

 PL

BRIG

A N TINE PL

PELLETT ST

SANDON ST

A
N

G
ELIN

A ST

W CAN AL W

HARF

CRA
IG

LEE D
R

N EDWARD STQUEEN ST

BRIDGE ST

STATIO
N

 TERR

CHURC

H
 P

L

CH
ARLES ST

DA

VID
 S

T

CAROLIN
E ST

CALLAGHAN SQ

LLO
YD

 G
EO

RG
E AVE

TYNDALL ST

HERBERT ST

C ALLAGHA N SQ

JOHN ST

CHURCHILL W
AY

ALBANY RDALBANY RD

RICHM
OND RD

FITZA
LA

N
 PL

ADAM ST

BUTE TERR

CUS TOM HOUSE ST

THE HAYES

WORKING ST

ST M
ARYS ST

H
IG

H
 ST

SAU NDERS RD

GREAT W
ESTERN

 LN

ALEXANDER ST

SENGHENYDD RD

W
O

O
DVIL

LE
 R

D

TH
ESIG

ER ST

BRYDGES PL

IN
VERN

ESS PL

MOY RD

BRAEVAL ST

CANAL PARADE

TRA DE 
ST

 L
N

TRA
D

E ST

D
U

M
BA

LLS RD

D
U

M
BALLS RD

BURT 
ST

ABE
R 

ST

C
U

RRA
N

 EM
BA

N
K

M
EN

T

C
U

RRA
N

 RD

BROMFIELD ST
AVONDALE C R ES

GRANGE PL

CORPORATION RD

TAFF EM
BANKM

ENT

FERNDALE ST
H

A
FO

D
 ST

PENTRE G
DNS

COEDCAE S
T

TA
FF EM

BA
N

KM
EN

T

TA
FFS M

EA
D

 EM
BA

N
KM

EN
T

TUDOR LN

UNIVERSAL ST

D
IN

A
S ST

MERCHES GDNS

M
A

RD
Y ST

GLA
DYS 

STMINNY ST

M
O

NTH
ER

M
ER

 R
D

DALT
O

N S
T

PARK LN

CHURCH ST
WESTGATE ST

PLA
N

TA
G

EN
ET ST

DESPENSER PL

FITZH
AM

O
N

 EM
BAN

KM
EN

T

DESPENSER ST

BROOK ST

PENDYRIS ST

TREHERBERT ST

LISVANE ST

D
A

RRA
N

 ST

FLORA ST
HIRWAIN ST

FA
IR

OAK RD

C
ATH

AYS T ERR

CORBETT RD

GREYFRIARS RD

PARK PL

COLUM RD

COLU
M

 D
R

MAINDY RD

TREORKY ST

MINISTER ST

M
ERTHYR ST

CASTLE ST
DUKE  S

T

N
O

RTH
 RD

WOOD ST

TUDOR ST

LUDLOW ST

KENT ST

SEVEN
O

A
KS ST

O
A

KLEY PL

H
O

LM
ES

D
AL

E 
ST

BROMSGROVE ST

PENHEVAD ST

LLANMAES ST

ST FAGANS CT

PA
G

ET ST

AVONDALE RD

STOCKLAND ST

PENTREBANE ST

PENARTH
 R

D

PENARTH RD

BU
TE ST

BUTE PL

JAMES ST

CLARENCE RD

WHARTON ST

TREDEGAR ST

M
IL

L 
LN

HILLS ST

6a Lowther Road from Salisbury Road to 
 Richmond Road: Improve road surface and 
 refresh markings  
   
  b  Lowther Road under railway bridge: Priority 
 working with cycle bypasses 

ab

7 Richmond Road between Northcote Street and 
 Lowther Road: Revise road markings to provide clear 
 route for cyclists

10a   Newport Road from Southern Way to Queen Street: Review of 
  existing route to improve on-carriageway cycle facilities. 

     b  Newport Road outside Carpet Right: Relocate street furniture 
  associated with bus stop.

     c  East of Rover Way: Widen existing shared use cycle track and improve 
  levels / gradients 

     d  South western approach to junction of Newport Road and Rover 
  Way: Widen existing cycle track at expense of advanced stop line and 
  provide  toucan crossings; also improve visibility for pedestrians and 
  cyclists crossing Rover Way.

     e  Newport Road: Relocate street furniture associated with bus stop 
  outside No 302.

a

b

c

d

e

49  Llanedeyrn Road:  Option 1:  Provision of o� road facilities
     Option 2:  Centre line removal and provision 
        of advisory cycle lanes, improvements
        to existing tra�c calming and provision
        of additional tra�c calming

55 Junction of Central Link and Adam Street:   
 Provide toucan crossing and associated 
 cycle track links 
 

56 a  Pearl Street: Improve road surface and provide dropped kerb at 
  road end

      b Beresford Road: Remove centre line, widen ghost island for 
  cyclists

a

b

108   Ty Gwyn Road: 20mph speed restriction, 
  review tra�c calming, surface improvements 

111 Newport Rd to Four Elms Rd: Shared use cycle/
 footway or hybrid cycle track 

113 Broadway: Relocation of route to Broadway. 20mph 
 speed restriction, tra�c calming, centre line removal, 
 entry treatments at side roads

118a   Sanquahar Street/ Windsor Road junction: Crossing 
  and link

121  Carlisle Street: Surfacing and road marking
  improvements at junctions

122 •    Adam Street between Central Link and Morgan Street: 
  Creation of two way o� road cycle track on eastern side of 
  road 
      
 •   Between Central Link and Morgan Street: Provision of 
  signalled cycle crossing facility 

 •   Central Link junction: Conversion of existing pedestrian 
  crossing to provide cycle crossing to Davis Street and eastern 
  side of Adam Street with as few stages as possible

a

148 Waterloo Road: Provision of o�-road facilities

147 Richmond Road: Provision of advisory cycle lanes
 and centre line removal, subject to space 

PENYLAN, PLASNEWYDD, SPLOTT AND ADAMSDOWN

47a   Lake Rd East and West: Introduce 
  one way system, 20mph restrictions

     b  Fairoak Roundabout: Remove cycle lane 
  leading to Wedal Road

      c  Lake Road East/Fairoak Road junction: 
  Install hatching around central island of 
  roundabout 

b
c

KEY

        CYCLE NETWORK ROUTES

        PROPOSED EXTENSIONS TO CYCLE NETWORK
Page 75



CORNELLY
 S

T

LIT
TLE MILL

CO
LW

IN
STO

NE C
LC

O
R

W
EN CRES

WHITEFIELD RD

FESTINIOG RD

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

GABALFA AVE

WATSON RD

COPLESTON RD

BA
LA

 R
D

M
A

N
O

D
 R

D

CORNELLY
 C

L

CALDY RD

COLWINSTONE ST

LOTHIAN CRES

LLW
YN

-Y-G
RAN

T TERR

BA
RO

N
S C

T RD

DERI R
D

SO
U

TH
CO

U
RT RD

WINCHESTER AVE

EA
RLS C

T RD

TY
-G

W
YN

 R
D

MELROSE AVE

DORCHESTER AVE

LLWYN-Y-GRANT RD

PEN
-Y-LAN

 TERR

GRAFTON CL

AMESBURY RD

ILTON RD

PEN-Y
-L

AN P
L

ALM
A R

D

BALA
CLA

VA
 R

D

CRESSY R
D

M
AFEK

IN
G

 R
D

HARRIS
M

IT
H R

D

LLANEDEYRN RD

CARISBROOKE W
AY

TY-GWYN CRES

TY-GWYN AVE

CEFN-CO E D G
D

N
S

FF
O

RD
D

 C
W

EL
LY

N

FFORD D  B
O

D
LY

N

A
RN

SI
D

E 
RD

FARM DR

ES
KD

A
LE

 C
L

EGREMONT RD

HEATHM EAD

NANT Y WEDAL 

ST
 A

N
TH

O
N

Y 
RD

ED
IN

G
TO

N
 A

V
E

HEATHFIELD PL

M
A

IT
LA

N
D

 S
T

FL
A

X
LA

N
D

 A
VE

ST AGATHA RD

ST
 H

EL
EN

S 
RD

HEATHFIELD RD

LO
N

G
SP

EA
RS

 A
VE

ST GEORGES RD

RHYDHELIG AVE

N
O

RTO
N

 A
V

E

VIO
LET PL

LO
N-Y-GROES

W
AT

ER
ST

O
N

 R
D

ABERDULAIS RD

CA
TH

ED
RA

L 
VI

EW

HEOL AMLWCH

DOLWEN RD

AB

ERDULAIS CRES

BA
C

TO
N

 R
D

GABALFA AVE

BO
N

CA
TH

 R
D

ABERPORTH RD

WESTVILLE RD

A
N

G
U

S ST

PEN
-Y-LAN

 RD

BR
O

N
 W

YD
D

 A
VE

BIRCHW
OOD RD

BR
AN

D
RE

TH
 R

D

BRANDRETH RD

TY-
DRAW

 P
L

LO
CHABER S

T

ALD
ER

 R
D

HEN
DY S

T

W
ERFA

 S
T

DALCROSS ST

TY’N-Y-COED LN

SPENCER ST

GO
W

ER
 S

T

DANIEL ST

LU
CAS 

ST

D
AVIO

T STFLORENTIA ST

FA
NNY S

T

GWEN
N

Y
TH

 ST

BRUCE ST

ROBERT ST

HAZELDENE AVE LI
N

D
EN

 A
VE

CORSHAM RD

BIRCHWOOD LN

BOLEYN WALK

CLOS DERWEN

PANT YR WYN

BO
VER

TO
N S

T

TYDFIL
 P

L

M
ORLA

IS
 S

T

MARYPORT RD

KIMBERLEY RD

TY-DRAW RD

ENNERDALE C L

LA
D

Y 
M

A
RY

 R
D

CEFN-COED RD

PEN-Y-WAIN RD

SH
IRLEY RD

WEDAL RD

HEATHWOOD GR

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E 
A

V
E

C
LU

N
 TERR

M
ALE

FA
NT 

ST
DO

GFI
EL

D S
T

MAY ST

TE
W

KES
BURY S

T

INGLEFIELD AVE

HEATH PARK WAY
HEATH PARK W

AY

C
EN

TR
A

L 
W

AY

CANADA RD

THE GATEWAY

LLANISHEN ST

SOBERT O
N

 A
V

E

SU
M

M
ER

FI
EL

D
 A

V
E

MAINDY RD

SA
C

H
V

IL
LE

 A
V

E

CLODIEN AVE

AFRICA GDNS

NEW
 Z

EALAND RD

A
C

A
D

EM
IC

 A
VE

LLANTRISANT ST

GELLIG
AER ST

ALLENSBANK CRES

CROWN WAY

MANOR ST

COSMESTON ST

BRITHDIR ST

CWMDARE ST

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

PENTYRCH S
T

RHYGOES S
T

RHIG
OS G

DNS

TALYGARN ST

PEN-Y-B
RYN RD

PEN-Y-BRYN PL

NEW
FOUNDLAND RD

AUSTRALIA
 RD

H
EA

T
H  PARK LN

ST ANGELA RD

ST
 A

G
N

ES
 R

D

CAERLEON RD

PILTO
N

 PL

MARGAM R D

RO
SEM

O
U

N
T PL

RIC
H

S RD

LLANTARNAM
 RD

LLWYNDERW
 RD

SUNNYBA N K CL

BEVAN PL

PORTHKERRY PL

MYNACHDY RD

RA
DYR PL

GARTH PL

EX
CE

LS
IO

R R

D

CELTIC RD

BATCHELOR RD

CLOS M
ENTER

EXCELSIOR RD

GABALFA AVE

H
EO

L M
A

D
O

C

M
A

ELO
G

 RD

BI
RCHWOO

D
 G

DNS

C
RA

D
O

C
 RD

TROTMAN DICKENSON PL

LLYS TA L- Y-B
ONT R

D

APPLEDORE RD
CEFN RD

MATTH E W SON C
L

ABERBRAN RD

ABERDORE RD

SILVER BIRCH CL

LL
AN

D
IN

AM
 C

RES

LL
AN

M
O

RL
AI

S 
RD

W
ES

TE
RN

 D
R

LYDSTEP CRES

RIVER VIEW

W
ES

TE
RN

 A
VE

 W

ABERTEIFI CRES

MYNACHDY RD

ABERPORTH RD

HEOL CARNE

LON MADOC

FR
A

N
KL

EN
 R

D

KEN
FIG RD

TWYN-Y-FEDWEN

HEOL Y GORS

H
EO

L CO
ED

 CAE

CO
U

RT RD

HEOL GABRIEL

W
A

U
N

TREO
D

A
 RD

CO
LLEG

E C
L

HEOL-Y-W
AUN

L IMEBOURNE CT

FELIN
 FACH

CLAS TEILO

HEO
L CATTW

G

C
O

ED ARIAN

H
EO

L W
AU

N
 Y N

AN
T

TYNANT

THE PHILOG

MERTHYR RD

ERW LAS

MAES GLAS

HEOL FAIR

CA
TH

ED
RA

L CL

M
A

Y
N

A

R D CT

TYNEWYDD

COLLEGE R
D

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

M
IT

RE
 P

L

BRIDGE ST

FORDWELL

CARD
IFF RD

CARDIFF RD

LLA
N

D
A

FF RD

LLANDAFF RD

LLANIDLOES RD

CO
LW

IL
L 

RD

RIVER VIEW

CIRCLE WAY W

TINTERN ST

EG
ERTO

N
 ST

PARRY ST

LLAN DAFF PL

WESTMORELAND ST

CUMBERLAND ST

HANOVER ST

N
O

RT
H

U
M

BE
RL

A
N

D
 S

T

TH
EO

BA
LD

 S
T

BRECO
N

 ST PEN
-Y-PEEL RD

RA
D

N
O

R 
RD

CARDIGAN ST

PEMBROKE RD

SYR DAVID’S AVE

DULWICH GDNS

EG
H

A
M

 S
T

PE

NHIL L 
C

L

LANSDOWNE AVE E

LANSDOWNE AVE W

LAWRENNY AVE

YO
RK

 S
T

W
EM

BL
EY

 R
D

BROADHAVEN

BROADSTAIRS RD

BE
D

A
 R

D

N
O

RF
O

LK
 S

T

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

LI
O

N
EL

 R
D

SU
RR

EY
 S

T

N
ES

TA
 R

D

TU
RN

ER
 R

D

BRUNSWICK ST

N
O

TT
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

FE
RN

 S
T

FLINDO CRES

VERALLO
 D

R

HEOL TERRELL

ETHEL ST

FORREST RD

DAISY ST

KI
N

G
SL

A
N

D
 R

D

W
ES

SE
X

 S
T

T
H

E 
CR

ES
CENT

BURLINGTON TERR

M
IL

L 
LN

VISHWELL RD

OVINGTON TERR

WESTBURY TERR

V
IC

TO
RI

A
 P

A
RK

 R
D

 E

HALSBU
RY

 R
D

VICTORIA AVE

G
RO

SV
EN

O
R 

ST

C
LIV

E RD

IV
Y 

ST
CO

N
YB

EA
RE

 R
D

CHAPEL ST

PALACE RD

PA
LA

C
E AVE

HENDRE C
L

ELY RD

C
A

EW
A

L R
D

R O WAN CT

HOW
EL

LS
 C

RE
S

ST MICHAELS RD

C
H

A
RG

O
T RD

PEN
C

ISELY RISE

PENCISELY AVE

G
REEN

W
IC

H
 RD

P
EN

CISELY C R ES

C
A

EW
A

L RD

HIG
H S

T

VIC
TO

RIA
 PA

RK RD
 W

WINDWAY AVE

THOMPSON AVE

BERNARD AVE

KEN
SIN

G
TO

N
 AVE

GRAN
VILLE AVE

REDCLIFFE AVE

PAPER MILL RD

SANATORIUM RD

ELY
 R

D

A48 EASTERN AVE

A48 EASTERN AVE

A
48

   
 W

ES
TE

ER
N

 A
VE

A48   WESTERN AVE

HEOL-Y-PAVIN

FAIRWATER RD

LA
D

YS
M

IT
H

 R
D

PRIEST RD

H
ELEN

 ST

TITAN RD

KEEN
 RD

M
OIR

A ST ECLIPSE ST

COMET ST

ORDELL ST

VANGUARD WAY

JANET ST

ADELINE ST

RAIL
W

AY S
T

HOWARD ST

BAYSID
E RD

CU
M

RA
E ST

SANQUHAR ST

CUMNOCK PL

CLYDE ST

KERRYCRO
Y ST

A
SG

O
G

 ST

KILCATTA
N

 ST

LADY MARGARET TERR

NETTLEFORD RD

E M
O

O
RS RD

SPRUCE C
L

OCEAN WAY

EAST TYNDALL ST

A

PPL EW OOD CL

E M
O

O
RS RD

SYSTEM
 ST

PRINCE LEOPOLD ST

KAM
ES PL

GALSTON ST

ADAMSDOWN LN

ADA

MSDOWN S Q

A DAM
S

C ROFT PL

EAST TYNDALL ST

CEN
TRA

L LIN
K

M

ORGAN ST

ATLANTIC WHARF

HOW
ARD GDNS

NEWPORT RD LN

EAST G
RO

VE

THE WALK

CO
RVETTE CT

LLANSANNOR DR

LETTON RDMARIA ST

W
ESLEY LN

BESSBOROUGH D R

AM
YAS CL

ROLLS ST

LITTLETO
N

 ST

CHANCERY LN REN
N

IE ST

TE
LF

O
RD

 S
T

WELLS ST LN

LECKWITH AVE

LECKWITH PL

R
AILW

AY TERR

NEWTON RD

ST D
O

N
ATS RD

DUNRA
VE

N RD

P
O

W
D

ERH
AM

 DR

D
EN

TO
N

 R
D

SUDCROFT ST

BR
O

AD
H

AV
EN

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

TIMBERS SQ

STALLCOURT AVE

D
IA

M
O

ND
 ST

AGATE ST

N
O

RA
 ST

IRON ST

DIAMOND ST

AN

DERSON PL

ZINC ST

H
ELEN

 PL

RIC
HARDS T

ERR

WATERLOO GDN S

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

EMERALD ST

SILVER ST

ORBIT ST

LONGCROSS ST

TOPAZ ST

LEAD ST

SUN ST

GOLD ST

SAPPHIRE ST

RUBY ST

COPPER ST

STAR ST

PLANET ST

M
OIR

A TERR

M
ETAL ST

CA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

GORSEDD GDNS RD

WYEVERNE RD

LETTY ST

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

QUEEN ANNE SQ

RO
AT

H
 C

O
U

RT
 P

L

SANDRINGHAM RD

G
RE

N
VI

LL
E 

RD

AGIN
CO

URT 
RD

UPPER KINCRAIG ST

LILY ST

ROSE ST

CLIFTO
N

 ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

NINIAN RD

MARLBOROUGH RD

CLAUDE PL

BLENHEIM
 RD

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

ARRAN PL

CLIVE PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

W
EL

LF
IE

LD
 S

T

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

CYNCOED RD

BANGO
R S

T

A
RA

BELLA
 ST

KE
LV

IN
 R

D

D
O

N
A

LD
 ST

D
IA

N
A

 ST

TY’N-Y-COED PL

A
LFRED

 ST

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

STRATHNAIRN ST

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

OXFORD LN

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

THARSIS CL

DAVIS ST

CYFARTHFA ST

RUSSELL ST

TALW
ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

M
A

C
KIN

TO
SH

 PL

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

BEDFORD ST

C
RA

N
BRO

O
K ST

W
IN

D
SO

R PL

THE PARADE

KNOX RD

NORTHCOTE LN

KIN
CRA

IG ST

N ORTHCOTE LN

RIC
H

M
O

ND CRES

G
O

RD
O

N
 RD

LLANTW
IT ST

ST ANDREWS PL

SA
LISBU

RY RDGLY
NRHONDDA ST

PA
RK G

RO
VE

MUSEUM PL

PA
RK LN

RHYMNEY TERR

CITY RD

A469     WHITCHURCH RD

CO
BU

RN
 ST

BASIL PL

RIC
HARDS 

ST

HARRIE
T S

T
FI

TZ
ROY ST

RUTHIN
 G

DNS

WYEVERNE RD

MUNDY PL

CATHERINE ST

FA
NNY S

T

BROADWAY

NEWPORT RD

D
U

M
FRIES PL

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

BOULEVARD DE NANTES

CRO

C KHERBTOWN LN

CITY HALL RD

M
USEUM

 AVE

LOWTHER RD

MISKIN ST

FITZALAN RD MOIRA PL

CONSTELLATIO
N ST

TIN ST

PEARL ST

AUGUSTA ST

WINDSOR PL

M
ETEO

R ST

GLOSSOP RD

HEN
KE C

T

N
 L

U
TO

N
 P

L
S 

LU
TO

N P
L

CELERITY DR

RO
SE

M

ARY ST

ELLEN
 ST

SILU
RIAN

 PL

BRIG

A N TINE PL

PELLETT ST

SANDON ST

A
N

G
ELIN

A ST

W CAN AL W

HARF

CRA
IG

LEE D
R

N EDWARD STQUEEN ST

BRIDGE ST

STATIO
N

 TERR

CHURC

H
 P

L

CH
ARLES ST

DA

VID
 S

T

CAROLIN
E ST

CALLAGHAN SQ

TYNDALL ST

HERBERT ST

C ALLAGHA N SQ

JOHN ST

CHURCHILL W
AY

ALBANY RDALBANY RD

RICHM
OND RD

FITZA
LA

N
 PL

ADAM ST

BUTE TERR

CUS TOM HOUSE ST

THE HAYES

WORKING ST

ST M
ARYS ST

H
IG

H
 ST

SAU NDERS RD

GREAT W
ESTERN

 LN

ALEXANDER ST

SENGHENYDD RD

W
O

O
DVIL

LE
 R

D

TH
ESIG

ER ST

BRYDGES PL

IN
VERN

ESS PL

MOY RD

BRAEVAL ST

CANAL PARADE

TRA DE 
ST

 L
N

TRA
D

E ST

D
U

M
BA

LLS RD

C
U

RRA
N

 EM
BA

N
K

M
EN

T

C
U

RRA
N

 RD

H
A

FO
D

 ST

PENTRE G
DNS

TA
FF EM

BA
N

KM
EN

T

TA
FFS M

EA
D

 EM
BA

N
KM

EN
T

TUDOR LN

UNIVERSAL ST

D
IN

A
S ST

MERCHES GDNS

M
A

RD
Y ST

M
A

RD
Y ST

ALLERTON ST

W
A

RW
IC

K 
PL

CHESTER ST

JU BILEE ST

SUSSEX ST

COMPTON STSOMERSET ST

STAFFORD RD

WEDMORE RD

W
ED

M
O

RE RD

TYN
AN

T ST

CORNW
ALL ST

VIRGIL ST

WARW
ICK ST

D
EVO

N
 ST

GLA
DYS 

STMINNY ST

M
O

NTH
ER

M
ER

 R
D

DALT
O

N S
T

PARK LN

CHURCH ST
WESTGATE ST

PLA
N

TA
G

EN
ET ST

BEA
U

C
H

A
M

P ST

MARK ST

CLARE PL
DESPENSER PL

GRE
EN

 S
T

RAWDEN MEWS

FITZH
AM

O
N

 EM
BAN

KM
EN

T

DESPENSER ST

NEVILLE P
L

G
LO

U
CESTER ST

BROOK ST

CRADDOCK ST

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 S
T

MACHEN PL

H
EA

TH
 P

L

RA
W

D
EN

 P
L

DE BURGH ST

NEVILLE ST

MA NDEVIL
LE S

T

RUTLAND ST

PENDYRIS ST

COURT R
D

DORSET ST

TREHERBERT ST

LISVANE ST

D
A

RRA
N

 ST

FLORA ST
HIRWAIN ST

FA
IR

OAK RD

C
ATH

AYS T ERR

CORBETT RD

GREYFRIARS RD

PARK PL

COLUM RD

COLU
M

 D
R

MAINDY RD

TREORKY ST

MINISTER ST

M
ERTHYR ST

CASTLE ST
DUKE  S

T

N
O

RTH
 RD

N
O

RTH
 RD

HAMILTON ST

CRADDOCK ST

TREVETHIC
K ST

SOPHIA
 C

L

TALBOT ST

PLASTURTON P
L

KYVEILOG STBERTHW
IN

 ST

DOGO S
T

G
IL

ES
TO

N
 R

D

W
ELLS ST

LYNDHURST ST

A
LBERT ST

ORCHARD PL

KINGS RD

SNEYD ST

IE
ST

YN ST

SPRINGFIELD PL

GLYNNE ST

W
YNDHAM

 RD

SEVERN
 RD

G
RAY LN

DYFRIG
 S

T

GREENFIELD AV E

SEVERN
 G

RO
VE

RYDER ST

PLASTURTON AVE

PITM
AN ST

MALDWYN ST

CO
N

W
AY RD

MORTIMER RD

LO
W

ER
 C

AT
H

ED
RA

L 
RD

CATHEDRAL RD

CATHEDRAL RD

PENHILL RD
PENCISELY RD

PE
N

LL
YN

 R
D

C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

LLANFAIR RD

W
YNDHAM

 CRES

ROMILLY CRES

ROMILLY RD

ROMILLY RD W

CARMARTHEN ST

G
LA

M
O

RG
A

N
 ST

MARKET  PL

FAIRLEIGH RD

S 
M

O
RG

AN
 PL LEW

IS ST

TEIL
O S

T

PO
N

TC
A

N
N

A
 ST

SOPHIA
 W

K

SM
EA

TO
N

 S
T

WOOD ST

TUDOR ST

NINIAN PARK RD

MAJOR RD
WYNDHAM PL

WYNDHAM
 PL

A
LBER T  ST

PICTON PL

BROAD ST

E ARLE PL

LEC
KW

ITH
 RD

LECKW
IT

H R
D

RE
C

TO
RY

 R
D

M
A

RKET RD

A
LE

X
A

N
D

RA
 R

D

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

WELLINGTON ST

ATLAS R D

LANSDOWNE RD

C
LA

RE ST

C
LA

RE ST

N
 C

LIVE ST

PENARTH
 R

D

PENARTH RD

FI
EL

D
S 

PA
RK

 R
D

WHARTON ST

TREDEGAR ST

M
IL

L 
LN

HILLS ST

1 a  Allensbank Rd south of Wedal Rd: Review waiting restrictions 
 and provide tra�c calming 
 

a

3 a Cathays terrace/Crwys Road junction: Early start for cyclists, right turn for cyclists only onto Crwys 
 Road, feeder lane for westbound cyclists  
 
   b Woodville Pub: Introduce cycle access through road end and convert pedestrian crossing to Toucan 
 crossing 
 
   c  Cathays Terrace: Reduce central motor tra�c lane and widen cycle lanes, remove existing tra�c islands
 and introduce zebra crossings
 
   d Cathays Terrace/Catherine Street junction: Cycle bypass 
 
   e Bridge linking to Corbett Road: Improve surface quality, reduce southbound lanes to one
 

a

c

d

b

e

ROUTE 1: UPGRADE

6 a  Salisbury Road to Richmond Road: Improve 
 road surface and refresh markings
   
   b Lowther Road under railway bridge: Priority 
 working with cycle bypasses 
   

ab

40 a Colum Road: Introduce 20mph limit and widen 
 cycle lanes by reducing running lane

      b Colum Road/North Road junction: Convert to 
 single stage crossing
 

b

a

ROUTE 9: UPGRADE

41 a Boulevard de Nantes/Park Place junction: 
 Toucan crossing and associated cycle track links 

      b  Between City Hall Road and park: Dropped 
 kerb and direct cycle connection 

b
a

45 a Footbridge over Western Avenue within Gabalfa 
 Interchange: Remove cyclists dismount signs. Potentially 
 provide higher parapets. 

a

87 Access from Llanda� Fields 
 to Fields Park Road:  Relocation
 of bollard, surface improvements

91 Cathedral Road / Talbot Street junction: 
 Early start for cyclists and surface 
 improvements 

92 a Ryder Street to Romilly Crescent: Improvements to surface 
 and road markings  

      b Ryder Street/Plasturton Place, Plasturton Avenue/Sneyd 
 Street, Kings Road/Severn Grove: Treatment of side roads

b

b

b

a

99 North Road alongside road from Newport Road to 
 Castle Street: Provide continuous segregated o� 
 road cycle route 
 

100 a   Reduce delay for cyclists at signal junctions

         b   Bute Terrace from Customhouse St to Adam St: 
  Provide continuous segregated o� road cycle route 
 

a

a
a

b

101  Queen Street: 
 Permit cycling
 

102   a   Reduce delay for cyclists at signal junctions

 b   Station Terrace from Bute Terrace to Newport Road: 
  Provision of on road cycle lanes

a

a

a

a

a

b

104 Cathays Cemetery: Permit cycling 

123 a   Wood Street/Clare Street junction: Provision of a 
  signalised bus gate & Advanced Stop Line on Tudor 
  Street 
    
         b   Wood Street junction: Advanced Stop Lines with 
     access to railway station.

        c   Wood Street: Widen and convert southern footway to 
  shared use between station access and bridge over 
  River Ta�

a

b

c

137 Option 1 -  Cardi� Bridge to High Street: 
 Extension of existing hybrid cycle tracks 

 Option 2 - Castle Street: Eastbound tra�c lane 
 to be converted to bus lane shared with cycles 
 or dedicated cycle track with bypass at bus stops

24  a  Cardi� Bridge to Cathedral Road: Reduce tra�c lane widths and 
  widen cycle lanes 

       b  Cathedral Road/Cowbridge Road junction: Early start for 
  cyclists 

       c  Cathedral Road to Neville Street: Reduce tra�c lanes to one in 
  each direction and widen cycle lanes 

       d  Neville Street junction: Early start for cyclists

d c
b

a

ROUTE 6: UPGRADE

98 a  Pedestrian link between Mill Lane and Tredegar Street: Permit cycling. 

      b   St Mary Street: Provide contra�ow or exemption to one-way street and 
  utilise wide raised signal controlled crossing.

a

b

103 •  St Mary St/Wood St jct: Early start for cyclists
  • On road section of St Mary St: Provision of advisory cycle lanes 

25     Delta Street junction: 
 Cycle bypass at signals

ROUTE 6: UPGRADE

96   a Western Ave N/Abertei� Crescent: Junction 
  improvements to make crossing easier for 
  cyclists 

        b Cardi� Met to Gabalfa Interchange: 
  Widen shared use path 

       c  Improve access to Ta� Trail

a

b

c

93 a  Romilly Crescent to Romilly Road W: 
  Introduce 20mph limit, tra�c calming, 
  centre line removal, surface improvements
  and treatment of side roads

      b  Romilly Cr/Llanda� Rd jct: Provide 
  Advance Stop Lines

a
b

RIVERSIDE, CATHAYS AND GABALFA

KEY

        CYCLE NETWORK ROUTES

        PROPOSED EXTENSIONS TO CYCLE NETWORK

        STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
        INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES
     

P
age 76



CATHAYS

CYNCOED

PENTWYN

PLASNEWYDD

SPLOTT

PENYLAN

LLANRUMNEY

RUMNEY

TROWBRIDGE
& ST MELLONS

M
AES-Y-C

R
O

C
H

AN

MINSMERE 
C

L

HERITAGE PK

WATER AVENS CL

C
YPRESS D

RWILLO W HERB CL

COBOL RD

SAFFRON DR

VAENDRE CL

FORTRAN RD

NEWLANDS RD

WILLIA M
 B

ELCHER DR
TEALHAM

 D
R

A
BE

RN
AT

H
Y 

CL

M
EADOW SWEET D

R

ORCHID CL

SANDBROOK RD

B
U

L R U SH CL

GLEN
RI

SE
 C

L

BR
YN

M

AWR CL
SWAN A GE C

L

WICK E N
 C

L

CYPRESS DR

CLOS TYLA BACH

LOCKE G
R

LODW
ICK RS

KE
M

BE
R 

CL

W

ILLOW
BRO

O
K 

D
R

FIELDFAR E D
R

JO
N

QUIL C
L

JASM INE  DR

PENN
YRO

YA

L  CL

W
ENTWORTH LN

CLO S -YR-O N NEN

MITCHELL CL

AS TON PL

HARRIS
ON D

R

HARRISON
 D

R

W
ALW

YN
 PL

BR
O

ADW
ELL CL

PITME
D

EN
 CL

COLEFORD DR

H
ERITA

G
E  PK

HER I TAG
E 

P
K

WILLOW GR

FA
IR

H
A

V
E

N
 C

L

VERBENA CL

W
ILLO

W
D

EN
E W

AY

HE OL 
M

AES 
EI

RW
G

PWLL Y PLACA

H
EO

L M
AES EIRW

GWILLOWBROOK DR

MACHEN CL

CAERL EO
N

 C
L

RAGLAN CL

N
EW

EN
T RD

RISCA C
L

CRUMLIN DR

WAKEHURST PLBROCKHAMPTON RD

JAMES CT

OAKM EADO W DR

C
RICKHOWELL RD

GREEN MEADOWS
M

ATTH Y SENS WAY

JE
NKINS W

AY

SOAREL CL

PA
V

ALA
N D

 CL

CRAG

SIDE CL

C
EM

A
ES C

R E S

COLEFORD DR

WESTONBIRT CL

HEOL 
TR

O
ST

RE

ROGERSTONE CL

ST A

RVA
NS CERES

SPENC

ER DAVID WA Y

FFO
RD

D
 D

A
N

IE
L 

LE
W

IS

HARRISON D
R

TRECINON R
D

TREBORTH RD

CRIC
KHOW

ELL
 R

D

BO D N A N T CL

ASPEN C
L

TREBANOG CL

LLA N INA GR

CRICKHOWELL RD

T
REBANOG CRES

W
ILLO

W
BRO

O
K D

R

HAZEL
W

O
O

D
 D

R

PENSARN RD

PORT M
ADOC RD

GLAN
-Y-M

O
R RD

TREFASER CRES

TR
OW

BRID
G

E 
G

R

GWBERT CL

CATH
 C

O
B 

C
L

B
RO

O
KFIELD

 D
R

F ERNTREE 
D

R

TRO
W

BR
ID

G
E 

GR

TRESIGIN RD

GLANDOVEY GR

ABERGELE RD

CAER
NA

RV
O

N
 W

AY

D
O

VE
Y 

CL
H

EN
D

R
E  R

D

HENDRE RD

ORC
HA

RD PK

TARW
IC

K D
R

BETH
A

N
IA

 RO
W

PURCELL R
D

COATES PL

O
LD

 H
IL

L

PRE
ST

AT
YN

 R
D

M
EA

DVALE RD

INSTOW PL

D
U

LV
ER

TO
N

 A
VE

D
U

N
ST

ER
 R

D

PORLOCK RD

BLACKMOOR PL

LI
M

EWOOD C L

MELVILLE AVE

OLD N
EW

PORTR RD

VAENDRE LN

EID
ER  C L

SA
N

D
ER

LI
N

G
 D

R

KINGFIS H ER CL

OLD NEWPORT RD

ALLEN CL

PARKSTONE AVE

G
O

U L D CL

WERN FAWR LN

H
A

STIN
G

S CRES

HASTIN

GS CRES

TY-TO-MAEN CL

FFORD
D

 BRYN
H

Y
FRYD

MILL LN

RUPERA CL

BL
A

CK
BI

RD
S 

WAY

OKEH
AM

PTO
N

 A
VE

BLUEBE
LL

 D
R

MILL LN

BRAYFORD PL

WITHYCOMBE RD

O
THERY PL

ARNOLD AVEBRONTE CRES

BR
ID

G
W

AT
ER

 R
D

LA
N

G
PO

RT
 A

VE

M
O

U
N

T 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

LN

A
XB

RI
D

G
E 

CR
ES

MINEHEAD RD

TY
 W

IN
C

H
 R

D

CHUR C H LN

WILLITON RD

MALMSM
EAD

 R
D

SE
DGEM

OOR R
D

M
IL

VE
RT

O
N

 R
D

TORRIN
GTO

N
 R

D

WASHFORD A
VE

CREDIT
O

N
 R

D

M OUNT PLEASANT AVE

BAMPTON RD

DURLEIGH CL

HONIT
O

N
 R

D

A SH
BU

RT
O

N
 A

VE

CROYDE AVE

ILCHESTER RD

DRYDEN CL

RUSKIN CLKIPLING CL

BROW
NING CL

RHOSSILLY RD

CHESTERTON AVE

THACKERAY C
RES

MACAULAY AVE

LA

SCELLES D

R

HAZLITT CL
BOSWELL CL

HOUSMAN CL

TH
E 

FARTHI N
G

S

AMBERLEY CL

AM
BE

RG
AT

E 
D

R

PA
NT 

GLAS

ALMOND DR

W
H

A
RF

ED
A

LE
 R

D

GLYN COLLEN

TH
E M

ALTINGS
TARRAGON W

AY

TY CERRIG

LLWYN CASTAN

HY
SSO P C

L

BO
RA

G E CL

GLYN R H O
SY

N

G
LY

N
 RH

O
SYN

PEPPERMINT DR

NEW
TON RD

M
O

RF
A

 C
RE

S

WENTLOOG AVE

DOLGOCH CL

HEOL NEW
YDD

VALLEY V
IE

W

PARKWAY

HARRIS AVE

LETTERSTON RD

B R Y N BALA W
AY

ABERDARON RD

HE
OL Y RHOS OG

PARKWAY

TOW
YN RD

MULLIN

S AVE

TROW
BRIDGE RD

CAER CASTELL PL

BRO A
THRO

MARDY RD

W
OOLACOMBE AVE

LA
U

G
H

A
RN

E 
RD

HER O N RD

HARRIS
 A

VE

RELF  RD

H
A

RL
EC

H
 R

D

LA
N

G
LA

N
D

 RD

MAXWELL RD

PE
N

RH
O

S 
CR

ES

ILFRACOMBE C
RES

M
ARDY RD

HOLMSVIEW CLLLAN
GW

N P
L

LLANDUDNO R
D

WENTLOOG AVE

MONKSTONE RISE

ARLINGTON CRES

CANNINGTON AVE

LA
M

BY W
AY

RHYL RD

G
RE

EN
W

AY
 R

D

GRE
EN

W
AY

 R
D

GREE
NW

AY R
D

G
RE

EN
W

AY
 R

D

GOODWICK RD

GREENWAY AVE

S VIEW DR

M
A

N
O

RB
IE

R 
CRES

LLANSTEPHAN RD

C
A

EG L AS RD

BE
AU

M
AR

IS
 R

D

FA
RM

LEIG
H

DOWNTON RISE

DO W N TON RISE

CA
EG

LA
S 

RD

BRACHDY LN

WENTLOOG  C
L

BA
RM

OUTH RD

THE GRO
VE

CLAREMONT CRES

W
ENTLOOG RD

NEW RD

LIN D E N GR

N
EV

IN
 C

RE
S

TY-FRY RD

TRELAWNEY AVE

TYR-Y-SARN RD

THE WALK

TYM
AWR CL

W
H

IT
EH

A
LL

 P
A

R
A

D
E

NORTHLANDS

U
PL

A
N

D
S 

RD

CRANLEI GH RISE

NEWPORT RD

LY
N

M
O

U
TH

 C
RE

S

CASTLE R
IS

E

TREDELERCH RD

W
IT

LA
 C

T 
RD

BI
D

EF
O

RD
 R

D

CH
ED

D
AR

 CRES

CLAREMONT AVE

CO
LW

YN
 RD

TY
-F

RY
 G

D
N

S

WATCHET CL

TA
UNTO

N C
RESTA

UNTO
N A

VE

CHARD A
VE

FISHPOND RD

G
LA

ST
O

N
BU

RY
 TERR

CLEVEDON RD

LY
N

TO
N

 C
L

WORLE AVE

W
ES

TO
N

 R
D

W
O

RL
E 

PL

KEWSTOKE AVE

U
PH

IL
L 

RD

LY
N

TO
N

 T
ER

R

HARTLAN
D

 R
D

EX
FO

RD CRES

N
O

RT
H

A
M

 A
V

E

CLO
VELLY CRES

MENDIP RD

TY-MAW
R RD

QUARRY DALE

PAGE D
R

SW
IF

T C
L

FI
EL

D
IN

G
 C

L

DIC
KENS A

VE

PA
RR

ACOMBE CRES

BRAUNTON AVE

BRAUNTON CRES

BARNSTABLE RD

BA
LL

 R
D

LYNTON PL

CHURCH R
D

TY
-M

AW
R AVE

NEWPORT RD

NEWPORT R
D

NEW
PORT R

D

BR
YN

 H
EU

LO
G

BRYN HAI D D

G
LYN

 EID
D

EW

BRYNCYN

C
O

ED
EN

 D
A

L

W
A

U
N

 FACH

BRYN PINWYDDEN

PENTWYN RD

DARTINGTON DR

FELBRIGG
 CRES

RI
D

G
EW

AY
 R

D

PATC
H

W
AY C

RES

K
EN

NERLEIG
H

 RD

WIDECOMBE DR

TI
VE

RT
O

N
 D

R

H
AT

H
ER

LE
IG

H
 R

D

P E N NSYLVANIA

WERN GOCH W

PENTW
YN R

D

BRYN CELYN RD

PE
N

TW
YN

 D
R

THE HAW THORNS

THE H
A

W
TH

O
RN

S

LI
N

N
ET

 C
L

H
O

LLY
BUSH HGHTS

F ORSYTHIA D R

FO
RSYTH

IA
 D

R

H A W FIN
CH C

L

MAGNOLIA CL

A
ZA

LEA CL

CO
ED-Y-G

ORES

BR
YN

-Y
-N

A
N

T

COED-Y-G
ORES

AEL-Y-BRYN

PIN
EW

OOD C
RES

KING W
O

O
D

 CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

QUEENWOO D

ROUNDWOOD

LL
AN

ED
EY

RN
 D

R

LLA
N

ED
EYRN

 D
R

MAELFA

W
ELLW

O
O

D

LOTHIAN CRES

LLW
YN

-Y-G
RAN

T TERR

DOE CL

BA
RO

N
S C

T RD

DERI R
D

HOLLYBUSH RD

COED-Y-G
ORES

BR
YN

FEDW

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

G
LYN

 CO
ED

 RD

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

 R
D

CHAPEL WOOD

BRYNFEDW

PENNSYLVANIA

IPSW

ICH RD

IP
SW

IC
H

 R
D

A4232
SIN C L AIR D

R

SO
U

TH
CO

U
RT RD

WINCHESTER AVE

EA
RLS C

T RD

TY
-G

W
YN

 R
D

MELROSE AVE

DORCHESTER AVE

HAMMOND WAY

OAK WOOD AVE

LONSDALE RD

O
RM

O
ND

E CL

W
ELL W

O
OD CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

HAMPTON CT RD

FO
S

TER  D R

LLWYN-Y-GRANT RD

PEN
-Y-LAN

 TERR

GRAFTON CL

AMESBURY RD

ILTON RD

PEN-Y
-L

AN P
L

ALM
A R

D

BALA
CLA

VA
 R

D

CRESSY R
D

M
AFEK

IN
G

 R
D

HARRIS
M

IT
H R

D

LLANEDEYRN RD

CARISBROOKE W
AY

TY-GWYN CRES

TY-GWYN AVE

SP
RI

N
GW

OOD

HILLRISE

CLEAR WATER WAY

SPRINGWOOD

H
ILLRISE

CEFN-CO E D G
D

N
S

FF
O

RD
D

 C
W

EL
LY

N

FFORD D  B
O

D
LY

N

PENNAN
T C

RES

WERNGOCH RD

RANNOCH D R

LO
M

ON
D CRES

A
RN

SI
D

E 
RD

H
U

RO
N

 C
RE

S

EVERARD WAY

W

OOLASTON AVE

HUNTERS RDG

FARM DR

ES
KD

A
LE

 C
L

EGREMONT RD

CYNCOED AVE

GLENW
OOD

C
YN

CO
ED

 RISE

C
YN

C
O

ED
 A

V
E

ST EDEYRNS RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

CYNCOED C
RES

GOLDCREST DR
WOODVALE AVE

CELY N G
R

ALD
ER

BROOK

LLYSWEN RD

BRYN
-G

W
YN

 RD

ALLTMAW
R RD

LLANGORSE RD

D
U

FFRYN
 RD

WESTMIN
STER C

RE
S

SHERBORNE AVE

DAN-Y-COED RD

CYNCOED PL

WINNIP

EG
 D

R

ONTARIO W
AY

C
EF

N
 C

O
ED

 A
V

E

HENLLYS RD

DERWEN RD

BETTWS-Y-C
OED RD

LEVEN CL

CLAERWEN DR

CARNEGIE DR

PA
D

A
RN

 C
L

OGWEN DR

D
U

FF
RY

N
 A

V
E

LLYN CL

G
W

YN
ANT CRES

DAN-Y-COED RD

NANT-FAWR CRES

N
A

N
T-

FA
W

R 
RD

LLANDENNIS AVE

CELYN AVE

CELYN AVE

TH
RE

E 
A

RC
H

ES
 A

V
E

KEYES AVE

RHYD-Y-P
ENAU RD

TYRWHITT CRES

JELLICOE GDNS WILD GARDENS RD

H
EATH

 H
A

LT RD

C
RYSTA

L AVE

HEATHM EAD

NANT Y WEDAL 

LAKE RD N

H
EA

TH
 H

A
LT

 R
D

M
O

U
N

TBATTEN
 C

L

BEATTY AVE

WESTVILLE RD

A
N

G
U

S ST

PEN
-Y-LAN

 RD

BR
O

N
 W

YD
D

 A
VE

BIRCHW
OOD RD

BR
AN

D
RE

TH
 R

D

BRANDRETH RD

TY-
DRAW

 P
L

LO
CHABER S

T

ALD
ER

 R
D

HEN
DY S

T

W
ERFA

 S
T

DALCROSS ST

TY’N-Y-COED LN

SPENCER ST

GO
W

ER
 S

T

DANIEL ST

LU
CAS 

ST

D
AVIO

T STFLORENTIA ST

FA
NNY S

T

GWEN
N

Y
TH

 ST

BRUCE ST

ROBERT ST

HAZELDENE AVE LI
N

D
EN

 A
VE

CORSHAM RD

TO
RR

EN
S 

D
R

BIRCHWOOD LN

BOLEYN WALK

CLOS DERWEN

PANT YR WYN

BO
VER

TO
N S

T

TYDFIL
 P

L

M
ORLA

IS
 S

T

MARYPORT RD

KIMBERLEY RD

TY-DRAW RD

ENNERDALE C L

LA
D

Y 
M

A
RY

 R
D

CEFN-COED RD

LA
KE

SI
D

E 
D

R

LAKESIDE DR

PEN-Y-WAIN RD

SH
IRLEY RD

LA
KE RO

A
D

 E

WEDAL RD

HEATHWOOD GR

HIGHFIELD RD

LA
KE

 R
D

 W

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E 
A

V
E

C
LU

N
 TERR

M
ALE

FA
NT 

ST
DO

GFI
EL

D S
T

MAY ST

TE
W

KES
BURY S

T

GW
ERN-RHUDDI RD

BRYN
-AW

ELO
N

 RD

PO
N

TFA
EN

CRANBOURNE W
AY

THE FAIRWAY

HA C KERFORD RD

HAMPTON CRES W

HURFORD PL

 
BL

AC
K 

O
AK 

RD

E RISE

N
 RI SE

S 
RI

SE

COURT FIELD L
N

PENTWYN RD

FID
LA

S AVE
ELA

N
 RD

TO
W

 R
D

EWENNY RD

W
 R

IS
E

TH
E RISE

SO
LVA

 AVE

FID
LA

S RD

USK RD

BRYTHON DR

COLCHESTER AVE

OA K LEAFE
 D

R

LLANDE
N

N
IS

 RD

CI
RC

LE
 W

AY
 E

CIRCLE WAY E

C
IR

C
LE

 W
AY

 W

CIRCLE WAY W

LLA
N

EIRW
G

 W
AY

WILLOWBROOK D
R

M
EN

A
I W

AY

LL
ANRUM

NEY A
VE

LL
A

N
RU

M
N

EY
 A

VE

BU
RN

H
A

M
 AVE

BURNHAM AVE

CO
U

N
TI

SB
U

RY
 A

VE

ELGAR CRES

A48 EASTERN AVE

H
A

RT
 PL

LAMBY W
AY

HIND C L

CLOS AVRO

SEAWALL RD

KENYON RD

STORRAR PL

HA N DLEY RD

FFO
RD

D
 PEN

G
A

M

C
A

IRM
U

IR RD

DE H
AVIL

LA
ND RD

FFORDD PENGAMWHITAKER RD

TAYMUIR RD

GLANM
UIR RD

PA
LL

O
T 

W
AY

GLAN RHYMNI

NEWPORT RD

CAMERON ST

SPRIN
G G

ARDENS TERR

SPRING GARDENS PL

BERESFORD RD LN

WILSON ST

FLORENCE ST

ARTHUR ST

SOUTHMINSTER RD

AXM
INSTER RD

FORT  ST
TYLER ST

FOX ST

STURM
INSTER RD

LA
D

YS
M

IT
H

 R
D

M
IN

ST
ER

 R
D

PRIEST RD

SEAWALL RD

ROVER WAY

M
ERED

EITH
 RD

M
ERC

IA
 RD

M
O

NA PL

DUNSMUIR RD

BRA
D

LEY ST

BLAN
CHE ST

SKELM
U

IR RD
DEEMUIR RD

PENGAM RD

STO
RRA

R RD

TW
EEDSMUIR RD

D
A

LM
U

IR RD

C
RA

IG
M

U
IR RD

D
ESSM

U
IR RD

SKATHMUIR RD

KENMUIR RD

W
H

IT
M

U
IR

 R
D

C
LY

D
ES

M
U

IR
 R

D

SWINTON ST

H
A

RO
LD

 ST
TH

EO
D

O
RA

 ST

FARMVILLE RD

RUNWAY RD

ME IR
IO

N P

L

H
O

R
W

O
O

D CL

BERESFO
RD

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

WILLOWS AVE

MERVYN RD

M
A

D
O

C RD

H
ELEN

 ST

BURNABY ST

EYRE ST

COVENY ST

SEYMOUR ST

M
OIR

A ST ECLIPSE ST

COMET ST SPLOTT RD

M
U

IRTO
N

 RD

ORDELL ST

HABE
RS

HO
N S

T

WALKER RD

CO
URTE

NAY
 R

D

JANET ST

MARION ST

ADELINE ST

RAIL
W

AY S
T

CARL
IS

LE
 S

TSYSTEM
 ST

PRINCE LEOPOLD ST
GALSTON ST

HOW
ARD GDNS

NEWPORT RD LN

EAST G
RO

VE

THE WALK

CH URCH TERR

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

TIMBERS SQ

STALLCOURT AVE

FF
O

R
DD

 N
O

W
EL

L

PEA
RL 

ST

D
IA

M
O

ND
 ST

AGATE ST

N
O

RA
 ST

IRON ST

DIAMOND ST

AN

DERSON PL
ZINC ST

H
ELEN

 PL

CECIL ST

RIC
HARDS T

ERR

WATERLOO GDN S

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

BERTRA
M

 ST

EMERALD ST

SILVER ST

ORBIT ST

LONGCROSS ST

TOPAZ ST

LEAD ST

SUN ST

GOLD ST

SAPPHIRE ST

RUBY ST

COPPER ST

STAR ST

PLANET ST

M
OIR

A TERR

M
ETAL ST

CA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

GORSEDD GDNS RD

WYEVERNE RD

LETTY ST

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

RO
AT

H
 C

O
U

RT
 P

L

SANDRINGHAM RD

G
RE

N
VI

LL
E 

RD

AGIN
CO

URT 
RD

UPPER KINCRAIG ST

LILY ST

ROSE ST

CLIFTO
N

 ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

NINIAN RD

MARLBOROUGH RD

CLAUDE PL

BLENHEIM
 RD

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

ARRAN PL

CLIVE PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

W
EL

LF
IE

LD
 S

T

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

CYNCOED RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

CYN
CO

ED
 RD

CYNCOED RD

BANGO
R S

T

A
RA

BELLA
 ST

KE
LV

IN
 R

D

D
O

N
A

LD
 ST

D
IA

N
A

 ST

TY’N-Y-COED PL

A
LFRED

 ST

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

STRATHNAIRN ST

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

OXFORD LN

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

CYFARTHFA ST

RUSSELL ST

TALW
ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

M
A

C
KIN

TO
SH

 PL

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

BEDFORD ST

C
RA

N
BRO

O
K ST

W
IN

D
SO

R PL

THE PARADE

KNOX RD

NORTHCOTE LN

KIN
CRA

IG ST

N ORTHCOTE LN

RIC
H

M
O

ND CRES

G
O

RD
O

N
 RD

LLANTW
IT ST

ST ANDREWS PL

SA
LISBU

RY RDGLY
NRHONDDA ST

PA
RK G

RO
VE

MUSEUM PL

PA
RK LN

RHYMNEY TERR

CITY RD

CO
BU

RN
 ST

BASIL PL

RIC
HARDS 

ST

HARRIE
T S

T
FI

TZ
ROY ST

RUTHIN
 G

DNS

WYEVERNE RD

MUNDY PL

CATHERINE ST

FA
NNY S

T

BROADWAY

NEWPORT RD

D
U

M
FRIES PL

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

BOULEVARD DE NANTES

CRO

C KHERBTOWN LN

CITY HALL RD

M
USEUM

 AVE

LOWTHER RD

MISKIN ST

FITZALAN RD MOIRA PL

CONSTELLATIO
N ST

TIN ST

PEARL ST

AUGUSTA ST

M
ETEO

R ST

GLOSSOP RD

N
 L

U
TO

N
 P

LN EDWARD STQUEEN ST

STATIO
N

 TERR

CHURC

H
 P

L

ALBANY RDALBANY RD

RICHM
OND RD

FITZA
LA

N
 PL

ALEXANDER ST

SENGHENYDD RD

W
O

O
DVIL

LE
 R

D

TH
ESIG

ER ST

BRYDGES PL

IN
VERN

ESS PL

MOY RD

BRAEVAL ST

GLA
DYS 

STMINNY ST

M
O

NTH
ER

M
ER

 R
D

DALT
O

N S
T

FLORA ST

FA
IR

OAK RD

C
ATH

AYS T ERR

CORBETT RD

GREYFRIARS RD

PARK PL

MAINDY RD

DUKE  S
T

PEPYS C
L

EW1  O� road cycle track utilising wide southern   
  verge/footway area.

EW2  Install Toucan Crossing

EW3  Provide segregated two-way cycle track on   
  western side of carriageway using southern  
  verge area (and carriageway where    
  necessary). 
  Cycle track to have priority at junction with  
  Willowdene Lane.
  Crossing facility to be provided to allow   
  cycle access to Pascal Close. 

EW7  Continue proposed two-way cycle track on  
  southern side of Newport Road. 
  Removal of existing mandatory cycle lanes.

EW9  Continue proposed two-way cycle track on  
  eastern side of Newport Road. Cycle track   
  to have priority at junctions with Clos    
  Hendre Gadno and link to carpark.

EW4  Provide two-way kerbed or light segregated   
  cycle track through roundabout and continuing  
  along southern side of Newport Road.

EW5  Provide Toucan Crossing between start of    
  existing westbound bus layby and start of    
  existing eastbound bus layby, linking to new   
  o�-road facility to Wern Fawr Lane.

EW8  Removal of roundabout control and     
  replacement with tra�c signals, including low   
  level cycle aspects, to enable segregated    
  two-way cycle facility to continue through    
  junction.

EW10  Existing crossing to be incoprorated into 
   signalled treatment to enable movement   
   from one-way facility northeast bound to   
   two way facility on southern side.

EW11  Widen existing cycle lanes on both sides  
   of carriageway and introduce light   
   segregation. Where necessary parking  
   and loading to be provided on    
   carriageway side of cycle lanes.

EW12  Widen bus lanes and install cycle lanes  
    within the bus lanes.
   Cycle lanes to continue through junction  
   of Mount Pleasant Avenue. Signalised   
   junction to include low level cycle signal  
   aspects.

EW13  One directional segregated facility to be  
   installed on either side of carriageway.  
   Where necessary parking and loading to  
   be provided on carriageway side

EW14  Introduce 'parking protected' cycle lanes  
   on either side of carriageway and reduce  
   motor tra�c lanes to one lane in each   
   direction. 

EW15  Redesign carriageway to allow    
   introduction of cycle lanes with light   
   segregation or hybrid cycle lanes on   
   either side of the carriageway

EW17  Option 1: Install high quality  transition  
   between  segregated cycle lanes and   
   o�-road provision. Remove guardrail and  
   reduce carriageway width to allow for   
   widening of  o�-road provision to create  
   cycle track separated from pedestrians.

   Option 2: install additional cycle bridge  
   alongside existing Rumney River Bridge.

EW18  Signals reviewed and altered where   
   necessary. Crossing facilities for cyclists to  
   be improved.

EW19  Introduce two-way segregated cycle track   
   along east side of Newport Road.

EW25  Option 1: Convert Broadway and Four   
   Elms Road to one-way eastbound only,  
   use remaining carriageway space for   
   parking and 'parking protected' cycle   
   lanes on both sides of carriageway. West  
   of Fox Street 'parking protected' cycle   
   lanes to continue on northern side of   
   carriageway only, light segregation to   
   continue on southern side.

   Option 2: Convert Broadway to ‘Bicycle  
   Street’ 

EW28b  Eastbound: cycle track to continue. 
   
   Westbound (to tie into N-S Primary   
   Route): Provide segregated two-way   
   cycle track on western side of    
   carriageway. Provide bus stop island(s)  
   at northbound bus stops between   
   Station Terrace and Windsor Place.   
   Provide cycle priority crossing at    
   junction of Windsor Place.

EW26  Introduce signal junction to allow cycle  
   access to/from eastbound bus lane to   
   Four Elms Road using segregated   
   facilities or low level cycle signal aspects  
   as appropriate.

EW27  Redesign carriageway: cycle lane to be  
   installed within eastbound bus lane,   
   westbound cycle track, separated from  
   pedestrians, remaining carriageway lane  
   widths reduced 

EW28a  Option 1: Cycle lanes to be installed in   
   both east and westbound bus lanes.
   Option 2: Remove one or both bus lanes  
   and install segregated cycle track    
   alongside road, separated from    
   pedestrians. 

EW24  Redesign junction to allow crossing from  
   two- way cycle track to/from Newport   
   Road and to/from Broadway using low  
   level cycle signal aspects and segregated  
   facilities where appropriate. Remove right  
   hand right turn only lane on approach to  
   junction from Broadway and convert to  
   cycle track.

EW20  Remove roundabout and replace with   
   signalised junction with phase for cycle  
   crossing with low level cycle signal   
   aspects

EW16  Provide signalised junction to include   
   cycle facilities enabling cross-over   
   movement from proposed single    
   directional cycle lanes to bi-directional  
   o�-road cycle track under Southern Way.  
   Proposed signalised junction to include  
   low level cycle signals.

EW6  Provide island bus stop (or suitable variation)

EW21  Introduce two-way segregated cycle track   
   along east side of Newport Road.

EW22  Redesign junction to allow cyclists to   
   cross in all directions using low level cycle  
   signal aspects and segregated crossing  
   facilities such as toucan crossings.

EW23  Continue two-way segregated cycletrack   
   along east side of Newport Road.    
   Redesign junctions at Rover Way and   
   Dominion Way to improve facility for   
   cyclists.

PRIMARY ROUTE: EAST-WEST (SECTION 1)

KEY

        PRIMARY ROUTES

        PRIMARY ROUTE ALTERNATIVE ALIGNMENT     

        CYCLE NETWORK LINKS TO PRIMARY ROUTES

           STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
           INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES   

P
age 77



FAIRWATER LLANDAFF

LLANDAFF
NORTH GABALFA

CATHAYS

ELY

CAERAU

CANTON

RADYR
& MORGANSTOWN

RHIWBINA

HEATH

CYNCOED

PLASNEWYDD

WHITCHURCH
& TONGWYNLAIS

CORNELLY
 S

T

PLAS-Y-LLAN

FORELAND RD
ST M

ARGARETS RD

ST M
ARYS RD

CAM
BOURNE A

VE

KELSTON PL

WEST RD

HAWTHORN RD W

ALFREDA RD

KIN
G

SLA
N

D
 RD

TH
E AVEN

U
E

ATHELSTAN RD

H
EO

L BA
KEM

O
RE

HEOL BOOKER

H
EO

L CH
A

PPELL

H
EO

L 
D

O
N

V
ELIN

D
RE PL

WOODLAND RD
WESTBOURNE RD

TY’N-Y-PWLL RD

SPRINGHU
RST CL

CAEDELYN RD

ST FRANCIS RD

C
U

RL
EW

 C
L

ST
 JO

HNS CRES

HEOL PENTW
YN

PARK LN

HEOL PANT Y RHYN

HEOL PANTYCELY
N

LON-Y-CELYN

GLAS-Y-PANT

ARDW

YN

DAN Y GRAIG

CLOS COED HIR

PARK AVE
PARK CRES

H
A

R
FORD

 C
L

VELINDRE RD

PA
N

TM
AW

R 
RD

PANTMAW
R RD

C
A

ER
 W

EN
A

LL
T

CORYTON RISE

G
REEN

 M
EAD

O
W

 RD

CORYTON CRES

PENDWYALLT RD

W
H

ITW

O R TH SQ

P
ENYDARREN

 D
R

FFO
R D

D
 M

ORG

A NWG

SAM
U

EL
S 

C
RE

S

FOREST FARM RD

JU
N

C
TI

O
N

 T
ER

R

IRON BRID
GE RD

LONGWOOD DR

BLANDON WAY

LIT
TLE MILL

CO
LW

IN
STO

NE C
LC

O
R

W
EN CRES

WHITEFIELD RD

FESTINIOG RD

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

BLOSS E RD

GABALFA AVE

WATSON RD

COPLESTON RD

BA
LA

 R
D

M
A

N
O

D
 R

D

BISHO
PS CL

BISHOPS PL

CORNELLY
 C

L

CALDY RD

EVANSFIELD RD

WINGFIELD RD

THE PARADE

W
ESTBOURN

E CRES

CLARBESTON RD

ANDREWS RD

MARY ST

COLWINSTONE STHAWTHORN RD E

HILTON PL

RIVERSDALE

BELLE VU
E CRES

RADYR RD

HAZELHURST RD

CHAM
BERLAIN RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 R
D

H
EO

L D
O

N

KELSTON RD

RADYR CT CL

RA
D

YR CT RD

GERDD
I TA

F

TR
ISC

OM BE D
R

HIGHFIELDS

WHITEHALL RD

CLOS TY C LYD

M
EL

IN
GR

IFFITH DR

TY-MAWR RD

T
Y-M

A
W

R RD

HEOL PENLAN

H
O

RNCHURCH CL

FA
IR

W
O

O
D

 RD

FISH
ER H

ILL W
AY

DE CLARE D
R

VISTA RISE

B
R ACKEN PL

ED
W

A
RD

 C
LA

RKE CL

GREE
NW

OO
D R

D

RADYR CT RD

DOUGLAS CL

RA
C

H
EL CL

ALLAN D
U

RST CL

PI
PE

R C
L

HEO
L URBAN

BEALE 
C

L

C
A

D
O

C
 PL

NICHOLSON WEB B CL

ASHD ENE CL

TANGMERE DR

JEVAN  CL

HERBERT MARCH CL

A4119

DANESCOURT W
AY

D
AN

ESCO
U

RT W
AY

HEOL A
RA

DUR

EPSTEIN
 C

L

HEOL SEDD ON

PACE CL

RADYR CT RD

COSHESTON RD

DE BRAOSE CL

BU
C

K
LEY C

L

BL E T HIN CL

TIM
O

THY REES CL

PECKH AM CL

PLAS-Y-MYNACH

WOODFIELD AVE

CLOS PARC RADYR

DRO V E RS W

AY

KINGS RD

H
EO

L 
IS

A
F

H
EO

L ISA
F

STATION RD

W
IN

D
SO

R RD

CEDAR GR

G
O

ETR
E  FAWR

CLEAR WATER WAY

H
U

RO
N

 C
RE

S

EVERARD WAY

W

OOLASTON AVE

FARM DR

ES
KD

A
LE

 C
L

EGREMONT RD

LLYSWEN RD
BETTWS-Y-C

OED RD

LEVEN CL

CARNEGIE DR

PA
D

A
RN

 C
L

D
U

FF
RY

N
 A

V
E

DAN-Y-COED RD

NANT-FAWR CRES

N
A

N
T-

FA
W

R 
RD

LLANDENNIS AVE

CELYN AVE

H
EATH

BRO
O

K

TH
RE

E 
A

RC
H

ES
 A

V
E

ST DOGMAELS AVE

C

RUNDALE CRES

ST
 M

ARTINS CRES

KIM
BERLEY TERRILEX C

L

KEYES AVE

RHYD-Y-P
ENAU RD

TYRWHITT CRES

JELLICOE GDNS WILD GARDENS RD

H
EATH

 H
A

LT RD

C
RYSTA

L AVE

HEATHM EAD

NANT Y WEDAL 

WINGATE D
R

GIBSON CL

TRENCHARD DR

PORTFIE L D  C

RE
S

FISHGUARD
 C

L

W
AVELL C

L

LAKE RD N

H
EA

TH
 H

A
LT

 R
D

KING GEORGE V DR N

ST D
EN

IS RD

CEFN CARNAU RD

CRYSTAL W
OOD RD

ETON CT

ST
 B

RI
O

C
 R

D

ST GILD
AS RD

ST ISAN RD

H
EO

L G
W

YN
ED

D

ST MALO RD

ST ED
W

EN
 G

D
N

S

H
EATH

W
AY

S T  A
ID

A
N

 C
RE

S

ST A
U

G
U

STIN
E RD

ST
 A

N
TH

O
N

Y 
RD

PEDAIR ERW RD

HEOL POWIS

HEOL DYFED

M
O

U
N

TBATTEN
 C

L

KIN
G

 G
EO

RG
E V

 D
R E

BEATTY AVE

ED
IN

G
TO

N
 A

V
E

CRYSTA
L G

LEN

ST IN
A RD

HEATHFIELD PL

M
A

IT
LA

N
D

 S
T

FL
A

X
LA

N
D

 A
VE

ST AGATHA RD

TO
N

-Y
R-

Y
W

EN
 A

V
E

ST A
M

BRO
SE RD

ST
 A

LB
A

N
 A

V
E

ST
 H

EL
EN

S 
RD

ST A
N

TH
O

N
Y RD

KI
N

G
 G

EO
RG

E 
V

 D
R 

W

ST BEN
ED

IC
T C

RES

HEATHFIELD RD

LO
N

G
SP

EA
RS

 A
VE

ST BRIGID RD

JU
BILEE GDN

S

PA
RC

 T
Y 

G
LA

S

PA
RC

 T
Y 

G
LA

S

A
RM

O
U

RY D
R

MILESTONE CL

WAUN-FAWR RD

PHILIP CL

FA
IRFA

X
 RD

TY-W
ERN

 AVE

PORTHAMAL RD

TAIR ERW RD

LLW
YN

FED
W

 G
D

N
S

ST GEORGES RD

RHYDHELIG AVE

N
O

RTO
N

 A
V

E

VIO
LET PL

C
A

ERPH
ILLY RD

C
A

ER
PH

IL
LY

 R
D

LO
N-Y-GROES

PUM ERW RD
ST TANWG RD ST CADOC RDDRYBURGH AVE

THREIPLAN D D
R

SUMMERFIELD PL

MURRAYFIELD RD

DALE AVE

GROVE  P
L

PANTBACH AVE

CORONATION RD

CROMWELL RD

WELWYN RD

H
O

M
ELA

N
D

S RD

PHOENIX WAY

M
A

V
IS G

R

TH
O

RN
BU

RY CL

GREENFIELD RD

KE
YN

SH
AM

 R
D

PANTBACH PL

HEOL WERNLAS

WESTFIELD RD

HEOL DOLWEN

W
AT

ER
ST

O
N

 R
D

ABERDULAIS RD

CA
TH

ED
RA

L 
VI

EW

HEOL AMLWCH

DOLWEN RD

AB

ERDULAIS CRES

BA
C

TO
N

 R
D

GABALFA AVE

BO
N

CA
TH

 R
D

ABERPORTH RD

HEO
L 

BR
YN

G
LA

S

BR
AN

D
RE

TH
 R

D
ALD

ER
 R

D

HEN
DY S

T

DALCROSS ST

TY’N-Y-COED LN

SPENCER ST

GO
W

ER
 S

T

DANIEL ST

LU
CAS 

ST

D
AVIO

T STFLORENTIA ST

FA
NNY S

T

GWEN
N

Y
TH

 ST

BRUCE ST

ROBERT ST

HAZELDENE AVE

TO
RR

EN
S 

D
R

CLOS DERWEN

PANT YR WYN

BO
VER

TO
N S

T

TYDFIL
 P

L

M
ORLA

IS
 S

T

MARYPORT RD

TY-DRAW RD

ENNERDALE C L

LA
D

Y 
M

A
RY

 R
D

CEFN-COED RD

LA
KE

SI
D

E 
D

R

LAKESIDE DR

PEN-Y-WAIN RD

SH
IRLEY RD

LA
KE RO

A
D

 E

WEDAL RD

HEATHWOOD GR

HIGHFIELD RD

LA
KE

 R
D

 W

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E 
A

V
E

C
LU

N
 TERR

M
ALE

FA
NT 

ST
DO

GFI
EL

D S
T

MAY ST

TE
W

KES
BURY S

T

INGLEFIELD AVE

HEATH PARK WAY
HEATH PARK W

AY

C
EN

TR
A

L 
W

AY

CANADA RD

THE GATEWAY

LLANISHEN ST

SOBERT O
N

 A
V

E

SU
M

M
ER

FI
EL

D
 A

V
E

MAINDY RD

SA
C

H
V

IL
LE

 A
V

E

CLODIEN AVE

AFRICA GDNS

NEW
 Z

EALAND RD

A
C

A
D

EM
IC

 A
VE

LLANTRISANT ST

GELLIG
AER ST

ALLENSBANK CRES

CROWN WAY

MANOR ST

COSMESTON ST

BRITHDIR ST

CWMDARE ST

HEATH PARK AVE

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

PENTYRCH S
T

RHYGOES S
T

RHIG
OS G

DNS

TALYGARN ST

PEN-Y-B
RYN RD

PEN-Y-BRYN PL

NEW
FOUNDLAND RD

AUSTRALIA
 RD

H
EA

T
H  PARK LN

ST ANGELA RD

ST
 A

G
N

ES
 R

D

CAERLEON RD

PILTO
N

 PL

MARGAM R D

RO
SEM

O
U

N
T PL

RIC
H

S RD

LLANTARNAM
 RD

LLWYNDERW
 RD

SUNNYBA N K CL

BEVAN PL

PORTHKERRY PL

MYNACHDY RD

RA
DYR PL

GARTH PL

EX
CE

LS
IO

R R

D

CELTIC RD

BATCHELOR RD

CLOS M
ENTER

EXCELSIOR RD

GABALFA AVE

H
EO

L M
A

D
O

C

M
A

ELO
G

 RD

PEN
 Y FA

I

BI
RCHWOO

D
 G

DNS

C
RA

D
O

C
 RD

TROTMAN DICKENSON PL

LLYS TA L- Y-B
ONT R

D

APPLEDORE RD
CEFN RD

MATTH E W SON C
L

ABERBRAN RD

ABERDORE RD

SILVER BIRCH CL

LL
AN

D
IN

AM
 C

RES

LL
AN

M
O

RL
AI

S 
RD

W
ES

TE
RN

 D
R

LYDSTEP CRES

RIVER VIEW

W
ES

TE
RN

 A
VE

 W

ABERTEIFI CRES

MYNACHDY RD

ABERPORTH RD

HEOL CARNE

LON MADOC

FR
A

N
KL

EN
 R

D

KYLE AVE

LO
N

-Y-PA
RC

HEOL IFOR

HEOL NEST

KEN
FIG RD

TWYN-Y-FEDWEN

HEOL Y GORS

PLAS TREODA

CAE GWYN RD

CA
E 

G
W

YN
 R

D

M
A

N
O

R 
RI

SE

KY
LE

 C
RE

S

CAE YORATH YO
RATH

 RD

HEOL IESTYN

H
EO

L CO
ED

 CAE

CO
U

RT RD

HEOL GABRIEL
W

A
U

N
TREO

D
A

 RD

TY’N-Y-CAE GR

LEAMINGTON RD

LON PENLLYN

NORTHERN AVE

CO
LLEG

E C
L

H
EO

L STRA
D

LIN
G

M
ERVYN

 RD

COTTRELL RD

HEOL-Y-W
AUN

L IMEBOURNE CT

FELIN
 FACH

CLAS TEILO

HEO
L CATTW

G

C
O

ED ARIAN

H
EO

L W
AU

N
 Y N

AN
T

HEO
L TY’N

-Y-CAE

H
EO

L-
Y-

N
AN

T

ST DAVIDS RD

TYNANT

BEATRICE RD

HEATHWOOD RD

BIRCHGROVE RD

THE PHILOG

MERTHYR RD

M
ERTHYR RD

GLANDWR PL

HEOL GWRGAN

BISHOPS RD

NORTHERN AVE

A470

HEO
L-Y-FO

RLAN

TYN
EW

YD
D

ERW LAS

MAES GLAS

GLAN-Y-NANT TERR

G
LA

N
-Y-N

A
N

T RD

VICTORIA RD

FID
LA

S AVE
ELA

N
 RD

TO
W

 R
D

EWENNY RD

FISH
G

U
A

RD
 RD

FISH
G

U
A

RD
 RD

SO
LVA

 AVE

FID
LA

S RD

HEOL M
ERLIN

USK RD

FIDLAS RD
MAES-Y-COED RD

MAES-Y-COED RD

TY-WERN RD

TY’N-Y-PARC RD

O
LD

 C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

CHURCH RD

C
H

IL
TE

RN
 C

L

FIELD
 W

AY

MOSTYN SQ

TASKER DR

W
ATKIN

S SQ TATHAM RD

MALVERN DR

SMITH RD

A
SH

BO
U

RN
 W

AY

TATHAM RD

CO
ED

 G
LA

S 
RD

CLO
S H

EN
D

RE

TY GLAS RD

TY GLAS AVE

WAUN-Y-GROES AVE

HEOL CAERHYS

LON Y MYNYDD

PEN
 Y G

RO
ES RD

C
A

E M
AW

R RD

H
EO

L-Y

R-EFAIL

HEOL AER

CHARLOTTE SQ

TY
 G

W
YN R

D

HEOL ISCOED

HEOL-Y-BONT

WAUN-Y-GROES RD

H
EO

L Y W
ERN

H
EO

L 
TY

N
-Y

-C
O

ED

LO
N-Y-DDERW

EN

RHOS LLAN

HEOL Y  FELIN

ERW W
EN

MUR G
WYN

LO
N-Y-DERI

MAES-Y-D
ERI

LON-Y-RHYD

LO
N

-Y-D
AIL

LON ISA

H
EO

L W
EN

LON UCHA

GRO
ES LO

N

HEOL LLANISHEN FACH

HEO
L DERLW

YN

HEOL-Y-DERI

HEOL-Y-COED

HEOL-Y
-B

RYN

M4 JUNCTION 32

PEN-Y-DRE

BEULAH RD

BLA
EN

 Y C
O

ED

HEOL FAIR

CA
TH

ED
RA

L CL

M
A

Y
N

A

R D CT

LLA
N

D
A

FF  CHASE

TYNEWYDD

COLLEGE R
D

CO
LL

EG
E 

RD

M
IT

RE
 P

L

BRIDGE ST

FORDWELL

LLANTRISANT RD

CARD
IFF RD

CARDIFF RD

LLA
N

D
A

FF RD

LLANDAFF RD

LLANIDLOES RD

CO
LW

IL
L 

RD

RIVER VIEW

G
ABALFA RD

BR
ID

G
E 

RD

BRIDGE RD

LLANDE
N

N
IS

 RD

TINTERN ST

EG
ERTO

N
 ST

PARRY ST

LLAN DAFF PL

WESTMORELAND ST

CUMBERLAND ST

HANOVER ST

N
O

RT
H

U
M

BE
RL

A
N

D
 S

T

TH
EO

BA
LD

 S
T

BRECO
N

 ST PEN
-Y-PEEL RD

RA
D

N
O

R 
RD

CARDIGAN ST

PEMBROKE RD

SYR DAVID’S AVE

DULWICH GDNS

EG
H

A
M

 S
T

PE

NHIL L 
C

L

LANSDOWNE AVE E

LANSDOWNE AVE W

LAWRENNY AVE

YO
RK

 S
T

W
EM

BL
EY

 R
D

BROADHAVEN

BROADSTAIRS RD

BE
D

A
 R

D

AU
BREY AVE

N
O

RF
O

LK
 S

T

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

LI
O

N
EL

 R
D

SU
RR

EY
 S

T

N
ES

TA
 R

D

TU
RN

ER
 R

D

BRUNSWICK ST

N
O

TT
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

FE
RN

 S
T

FLINDO CRES

VERALLO
 D

R

HEOL TERRELL

ETHEL ST

FORREST RD

DAISY ST

KI
N

G
SL

A
N

D
 R

D

W
ES

SE
X

 S
T

T
H

E 
CR

ES
CENT

BURLINGTON TERR

M
IL

L 
LN

VISHWELL RD

OVINGTON TERR

WESTBURY TERR

V
IC

TO
RI

A
 P

A
RK

 R
D

 E

HALSBU
RY

 R
D

VICTORIA AVE

G
RO

SV
EN

O
R 

ST

C
LIV

E RD

IV
Y 

ST
CO

N
YB

EA
RE

 R
D

CHAPEL ST

PALACE RD

PA
LA

C
E AVE

HENDRE C
L

ELY RD

C
A

EW
A

L R
D

R O WAN CT

H
EN

D
RE G

D
N

S

HOW
EL

LS
 C

RE
S

ST MICHAELS RD

C
H

A
RG

O
T RD

PEN
C

ISELY RISE

PENCISELY AVE

G
REEN

W
IC

H
 RD

P
EN

CISELY C R ESW
IN

D
W

AY RD

C
A

EW
A

L RD

TH
E  GRA

N
G

E

VAUGHAN AVE

INSOLE G
D

N
S

HIG
H S

T

H
A

R
D

W
ICKE CT

BISH
O

PS W
A

LK

IN
SO

LE G
RO

VE W
PRO

S PEC
T D

R

BISHOPS PL

KEN
ILW

O
RTH

 C
T

PWLLMELIN LN

RO
O

KW
O

O
D

 AVE

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE E

ROOKWOOD CL

N
O

RBU
RY RD

M
ARIO

NVILLE G
D

N

S

BISHOPS AVE

OLD SC
HOOL RD

VIC
TO

RIA
 PA

RK RD
 W

WINDWAY AVE

THOMPSON AVE

BERNARD AVE

KEN
SIN

G
TO

N
 AVE

GRAN
VILLE AVE

M
AYFIELD

 AVE

FA
IRFIELD

 AVE

REDCLIFFE AVE

PAPER MILL RD

SANATORIUM RD

W

 O
RCH

A
RD

 C
RE

S

BU
TL

EI
G

H
 A

V
E

ELY RD

ELY
 R

D

ELY
 R

D

ALD
SW

O
RTH

 RD

FAIRFIELD CL

BIRCH
FIELD

 CRES

D
AVIES PL

SHEARS RD

FA
IRW

ATER G
RO

VE W

A48 EASTERN AVE

A
48

   
 W

ES
TE

ER
N

 A
VE

A48   WESTERN AVE

ST FA
G

A
N

S RD

BRO
O

K RD

ST
AT

IO
N

 T
ER

R

ARLES W
AY

BARNARD AVE

ROBERT ST

AIN
T

R
EE  DR

LITTLECROFT AVE

CHIC
HESTER W

AY

LLANGYNIDR RD

LLA
N

G
ATTO

CK RD

BAILEY CL

MILTON PL

DYFRIG RD

COLIN W
AY

PENGWERN RD

PENYGARN R
D

PENDIN
E RD

BROMLEY D
R

DEW CRES

PEN
CAD

ER RD

RO
NALD PL

M
IL

L P
L

C
H

A
RTEERIS  RD

EVERSWELL AVE

THE CRESCEN
T

FERN PL PERROTS CL

O
XW

IC
H C

L

ELY RD

LIM ES L ADE CL

TH
E C

H
A

N
TRY

FAIRW
O

O
D

 RD

KIRTON CL

W
H

ITLAND
 CL

KEYSTON RD

W
H

ITLA
N

D
 CR ES

ELFED GRN

FAIRWATER RD

TH
E D

R

CARTER PL

BIRCH RD

HEOL GWILYM

WRO
UGHTON PL

CLARKE ST

PALMERS DR

VINCENT RD

M
ORRIS FINER C L

H
EO

L-Y-FELIN

CH
ER

RY
D A L

E
 R

D

LLANBEDR RD

AMETHYST RD

HEOL DENNANT

DOYLE AVE

LLA
N

D
ETTY RD

CYMRIC CL

AD
D

IC

OTT C
L

OGMORE RD

NEYLAND PL

BROMLEY DR

LLANDOW RD

CAMROSE RD

RED
 H

O
U

SE CL

CHO RLEY CL

SPINNEY CL

EFFORD RD

H
O

W
ELL RD

HILES RD

HEOL EGLWYS

C
A

LD
IC

O
TT

 R
D

HAVERFORD WAY

HEOL EBWY

BISHOPSTON RD

DEERE PL

NOTTAGE RD

ABERTHAW
 RD

AM
RO

TH
 RD

TRESEDER W
AY

FONMON CRES

HIGHMEAD RD

COWBRIDGE RD W

HIRST CRES

G
O

U
G

H
 RD

NARBERTH RD

RED H
OUSE CRES

ST FA
G

A
N

S RISE

CA
RTW

RIG
H

T LN

EVERSW
ELL RD

FAIRW
AYS CRES

W
ELLRIG

H
T RD

HOLLY RD

FERRIER AVE

HONEYSUCKLE CL

LA
VE

NDER GR

SH
A

M
RO

CK
 R

D

BR
IA

R 
C

L

WILLOWDALE RD

ROCH
E 

CR
ES

LL
ANW

ERN RD

ADDISON CRES

HILLSN
O

O
K R

D

HIGHBURY RD

VACHELL RD

HAZEL
 P

L

YEWTREE CL

FREWER AVE

POPLAR RD

LLANTRISANT RD

W
AT

ER
H

A
LL

 R
D

PLAS-M
AW

R RD

HEOL-Y-PAVIN

FAIRWATER RD

PWLLMELIN RD

PWLLMELIN RD

CAERA

U CT RD

PORTHCAW
L R

D

CAERAU PARK RD

M
O

O
RE RD

TY CO
C

H
 RD

CRO
SSW

AYS RD

ARCHER RD

MOORE C
L

ELDERBERRY RD

MAPLE RD

LIM
E G

R

FI
RS

 A
VE

G
LAN

 ELY CL

TATEM DR

CLOS T Y B
R

O
NN

A

ORANGE GR

ASHCROFT CRES

GRAND AVE

W
ILSON

 RD

HEOL MUSTON

PET
H

YB
RI

D
GE R

D

FRANK RD

PETHYBRIDGE RD

C
H

A
RT

ER
IS

 C

RES

A
RC

H
ER

 C
RE

S

MILL RD

PLYMOUTH WOOD RD

GORSE PL

OAKWAY

NORBURY RD

FINCHLEY RD
BWLCH RD

RED
 H

O
U

SE RD

PLYMOUTH WOOD CRES

ARCHER RD

LLEW
ELLYN AVE

ROSED
ALE CL

HILL VIEW

WHEATLEY RD

PEN
ALLY RD

HEOL TRELAI

COWBRIDGE RD W

COWBRID
GE RD W

EST

BEECHLEY DR

PENTREBANE RD

STANWAY RD

PL YMOUTHW O
O

D
 C

L

W
ESLEY LN

ROLLS ST

LITTLETO
N

 ST

CHANCERY LN REN
N

IE ST

TE
LF

O
RD

 S
T

WELLS ST LN

LECKWITH AVE

LECKWITH PL

R
AILW

AY TERR

D
EN

TO
N

 R
D

SUDCROFT ST

BR
O

AD
H

AV
EN

GORSEDD GDNS RD

WYEVERNE RD

LETTY ST

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

QUEEN ANNE SQ

NINIAN RD

A
RA

BELLA
 ST

KE
LV

IN
 R

D

D
O

N
A

LD
 ST

TY’N-Y-COED PL

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

STRATHNAIRN ST

RUSSELL ST

M
A

C
KIN

TO
SH

 PL

CITY RD

BEDFORD ST

C
RA

N
BRO

O
K ST

W
IN

D
SO

R PL

NORTHCOTE LN

N ORTHCOTE LN

RIC
H

M
O

ND CRES

G
O

RD
O

N
 RD

LLANTW
IT ST

ST ANDREWS PL

SA
LISBU

RY RDGLY
NRHONDDA ST

PA
RK G

RO
VE

MUSEUM PL

PA
RK LN

RHYMNEY TERR

CITY RD

A469     WHITCHURCH RD

CO
BU

RN
 ST

BASIL PL

RIC
HARDS 

ST

HARRIE
T S

T
FI

TZ
ROY ST

RUTHIN
 G

DNS

WYEVERNE RD

MUNDY PL

CATHERINE ST

FA
NNY S

T

D
U

M
FRIES PL

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

BOULEVARD DE NANTES

CRO

C KHERBTOWN LN

CITY HALL RD

M
USEUM

 AVE

LOWTHER RD

MISKIN ST

BRIG

A N TINE PL

PELLETT ST

SANDON ST

W CAN AL W

HARF

N EDWARD STQUEEN ST

BRIDGE ST

STATIO
N

 TERR

CHURC

H
 P

L

CH
ARLES ST

DA

VID
 S

T

CAROLIN
E ST

CALLAGHAN SQ

TYNDALL ST

HERBERT ST

C ALLAGHA N SQ

JOHN ST

CHURCHILL W
AY

ALBANY RD

RICHM
OND RD

ADAM ST

BUTE TERR

CUS TOM HOUSE ST

THE HAYES

WORKING ST

ST M
ARYS ST

H
IG

H
 ST

SAU NDERS RD

GREAT W
ESTERN

 LN

ALEXANDER ST

SENGHENYDD RD

W
O

O
DVIL

LE
 R

D

TH
ESIG

ER ST

BRYDGES PL

IN
VERN

ESS PL

MOY RD

BRAEVAL ST

TUDOR LN

M
A

RD
Y ST

ALLERTON ST

JU BILEE ST
STAFFORD RD

WEDMORE RD

GLA
DYS 

STMINNY ST

M
O

NTH
ER

M
ER

 R
D

DALT
O

N S
T

PARK LN

CHURCH ST
WESTGATE ST

PLA
N

TA
G

EN
ET ST

BEA
U

C
H

A
M

P ST

MARK ST

CLARE PL
DESPENSER PL

GRE
EN

 S
T

RAWDEN MEWS

FITZH
AM

O
N

 EM
BAN

KM
EN

T

DESPENSER ST

NEVILLE P
L

G
LO

U
CESTER ST

BROOK ST

CRADDOCK ST

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 S
T

MACHEN PL

H
EA

TH
 P

L

RA
W

D
EN

 P
L

DE BURGH ST

NEVILLE ST

MA NDEVIL
LE S

T

PENDYRIS ST

COURT R
D

TREHERBERT ST

LISVANE ST

D
A

RRA
N

 ST

FLORA ST
HIRWAIN ST

FA
IR

OAK RD

C
ATH

AYS TERR

CORBETT RD

GREYFRIARS RD

PARK PL

COLUM RD

COLU
M

 D
R

MAINDY RD

TREORKY ST

MINISTER ST

M
ERTHYR ST

CASTLE ST
DUKE  S

T

N
O

RTH
 RD

N
O

RTH
 RD

HAMILTON ST

CRADDOCK ST

TREVETHIC
K ST

SOPHIA
 C

L

TALBOT ST

PLASTURTON P
L

KYVEILOG STBERTHW
IN

 ST

DOGO S
T

G
IL

ES
TO

N
 R

D

W
ELLS ST

LYNDHURST ST

A
LBERT ST

ORCHARD PL

KINGS RD

SNEYD ST

IE
ST

YN ST

SPRINGFIELD PL

GLYNNE ST

W
YNDHAM

 RD

SEVERN
 RD

G
RAY LN

DYFRIG
 S

T

GREENFIELD AV E

SEVERN
 G

RO
VE

RYDER ST

PLASTURTON AVE

PITM
AN ST

MALDWYN ST

CO
N

W
AY RD

MORTIMER RD

LO
W

ER
 C

AT
H

ED
RA

L 
RD

CATHEDRAL RD

CATHEDRAL RD

PENHILL RD
PENCISELY RD

WAUNGRON RD

ST FAGANS RD

PE
N

LL
YN

 R
D

C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

LLANFAIR RD

W
YNDHAM

 CRES

ROMILLY CRES

ROMILLY RD

ROMILLY RD W

CARMARTHEN ST

G
LA

M
O

RG
A

N
 ST

MARKET  PL

FAIRLEIGH RD

S 
M

O
RG

AN
 PL LEW

IS ST

TEIL
O S

T

PO
N

TC
A

N
N

A
 ST

SOPHIA
 W

K

SM
EA

TO
N

 S
T

WOOD ST

TUDOR ST

NINIAN PARK RD

MAJOR RD
WYNDHAM PL

WYNDHAM
 PL

A
LBER T  ST

PICTON PL

BROAD ST

E ARLE PL

LEC
KW

ITH
 RD

LECKW
IT

H R
D

RE
C

TO
RY

 R
D

M
A

RKET RD

A
LE

X
A

N
D

RA
 R

D

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

WELLINGTON ST

ATLAS R D

LANSDOWNE RD

C
LA

RE ST

FI
EL

D
S 

PA
RK

 R
D

WHARTON ST

TREDEGAR ST

M
IL

L 
LN

HILLS ST

GROVELAND RD

CH
ATSW

O
RTH

 CL

ST
 D

AV
ID

S 
C

R
ES

EW29  Option 1: Install cycle track alongside   
   road, separated from pedestrians.
   
   Option 2: One existing westbound   
   tra�c lane to be converted to two way  
   cycle track alongside road, separated   
   from pedestrians.
   
   Option 3: Further improve existing   
   o�-road cycle track, ensure widths meet  
   WG guidance and provide junction   
   schemes at either end to allow better   
   continuity. 

EW30  Junction redesigned to allow for cycle   
   movements through the junction from  
   provision on Bld de Nantes to Bute Park  
   entrance and from Bld de Nantes to   
   proposed route on Castle Street. 
   Redesign to allow for bus and general   
   tra�c �ow through junction. 

EW31  Kerb line and tra�c lane amendments  
   to provide segregated two-way cycle   
   track along east side.

EW32  Kerb line and tra�c lane amendments  
   to provide segregated two way cycle   
   track along south side

EW33  Redesign junction to incorporate    
   proposed segregated cycle facilities and  
   permit cyclist turning movements. 

EW34  Amend layout to align with proposed   
   treatment along rest of Castle Street   
   route.

EW35  Upgrade access to existing toucan   
   crossing from proposed cycle track on  
   Cardi� Bridge. 

EW36  Widen and resurface existing    
   path to create cycle track away from   
   road, separated from pedestrians.

EW37  Resurface, remove/replace humps,  
   redesign roundabout. Potential to  
   provide pedestrian improvements  
   also.

EW38  Install cycle track away from road,   
   separated from pedestrians following   
   desire line where possible.

EW39  Widen waiting area. 
   Widen crossing area. 
   Adjust signals to be more reactive to   
   pedestrians/cyclists at all times. 
   Investigate options for single stage   
   crossing for cyclists.

EW40  Widen existing route and provide cycle  
   track away from road, separated from   
   pedestrians.

EW44  Signalise junction with appropriate   
   cycle and pedestrian facilities.

EW45  Remove one northbound tra�c lane   
   and redesign carriageway to provide   
   cycle lane with light segregation in each  
   direction

EW48  Option 1: Convert roundabout to signal  
   controlled junction to allow for    
   segregation of cyclists from general   
   motor tra�c. 

   Option 2: Continue segregated cycle   
   facilities through roundabout with part  
   signalisation.

EW41  Clear signing to highlight route and   
   presence of cyclists. 

EW42  Clear signing to highlight route and   
   presence of cyclists. 

EW43  Clear signing to highlight route and   
   presence of cyclists. 

EW46  Convert roundabout to signal controlled  
   junction to allow for segregation of   
   cyclists from general motor tra�c. 

EW49  Clear signing to highlight route and   
   presence of cyclists. 

EW50  Upgrade existing path to cycle track   
   away from road, separated from    
   pedestrians.

EW47  Option 1: Cycle lanes to become cycle   
   tracks using grass verge and carriageway  
   to provide necessary widths. Cycle track  
   to have priority at side roads. 

   Option 2: Remove centreline and install  
   wide advisory cycle lanes. 
   
   Option 3: Install o� road cycle    
   track on one side only with appropriate
   crossings at each end.

PRIMARY ROUTE: EAST-WEST (SECTION 2)

KEY

        PRIMARY ROUTES

        PRIMARY ROUTE ALTERNATIVE ALIGNMENT     

        CYCLE NETWORK LINKS TO PRIMARY ROUTES

           STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
           INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES   Page 78



RADYR
& MORGANSTOWN

ST FAGANS
& CREIGIAU

GRAIG LW
YD

CHAPEL RD

M
EADOW

FIE
LD W

AY

PEN
RHOS

BL
A

EN
-Y

-C
O

ED

MAES Y C
RO

FF
T

TY M
YN

YD
D

 C
L

MIN-Y-CO
ED

CLOS PARC RADYR

PARK RD

DRO V E RS W

AY

PENTWYN

D
A

N
-Y-BRYN

 AVE

FFORDD LAS

H
EO

L ISA
F

G
ELYN

IS TERR N

W
IN

D
SO

R RD

WINDSO
R AVE

CEFN COCH

BRYN DERWEN

BRYN
 D

ERW
EN

DRYSGOL RD

CAE’R GRAIG

HAZEL TREE CL

LL
EW

EL
LY

N G
O

C
H

RH
YDLAFA R D

R

O
LD

 M
ILL D

R

WINDSOR CLIVE DR

PRINCE  OF WALES DR

LLANTRISANT RD

LLANTRISANT RD

SH
A

M
RO

CK
 R

D

BEE
CH R

D

WILLOWDALE RD

ELDERBERRY RD

MAPLE RD

LIM
E G

R

BI
SH

O
P 

H
AN

NON DR

FI
RS

 A
VE

TATEM DR

CLOS T Y B
R

O
NN

A

ASHCROFT CRES

C
RO

FFT-Y-G
ENAU RD

C
RO

FFT-Y-GENAU RD

ST FAGAN
S D

R

G
RE

EN
W

O
O

D
 L

N

ST FAGANS DR

ST BRIDES RD
BEECHLEY DR

ST FAGANS RD

PENTREBANE RD

EW51  Segregated cycle route through new   
   development with spur routes to local  
   centres, and priority at junctions over   
   other transport modes.

EW52  Segregated cycle route.

EW55  Segregated cycle route. 

EW54  Segregated cycle route through   
   new development with spur    
   routes to local centres, and    
   priority at junctions over other   
   transport modes.

EW53  Segregated cycle route through   
   new development with spur    
   routes to local centres and    
   priority at junctions over other   
   transport modes

PRIMARY ROUTE: EAST-WEST (SECTION 3)

KEY

        PRIMARY ROUTES

        PRIMARY ROUTE ALTERNATIVE ALIGNMENT     

        CYCLE NETWORK LINKS TO PRIMARY ROUTES

           STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
           INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES   

P
age 79



C
A

IRM
U

IR RD

TAYMUIR RD
NEWPORT RD

CAMERON ST

SPRIN
G G

ARDENS TERR

SPRING GARDENS PL

BERESFORD RD LN

WILSON ST

FLORENCE ST

ARTHUR ST

FORT  ST
TYLER ST

FOX ST

PRIEST RD

SEAWALL RD

M
ERED

EITH
 RD

M
O

NA PL

DUNSMUIR RD

BRA
D

LEY ST

BLAN
CHE ST

SKELM
U

IR RD

DEEMUIR RD

TW
EEDSMUIR RD

D
A

LM
U

IR RD

C
RA

IG
M

U
IR RD

D
ESSM

U
IR RD

SKATHMUIR RD

KENMUIR RDC
LY

D
ES

M
U

IR
 R

D

PO
RTM

A
N

M
O

O
R RD

SWINTON ST

H
A

RO
LD

 ST
TH

EO
D

O
RA

 ST

VIKING PL

RO
V

ER
 W

AY

FORESHORE RD

GLASS AVE

FRESHMOOR RD

TIDAL SIDINGS

PACIFIC RD

ROVER W
AY

OLD CLIPPER RD

LO
NGSHIP

S R
D

FARMVILLE RD

H
O

R
W

O
O

D CL

BERESFO
RD

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

WILLOWS AVE

MERVYN RD

M
A

D
O

C RD

PO
RTM

AN
M

O
O

R RD

H
ELEN

 ST

TITAN RD

KEEN
 RD

BURNABY ST

EYRE ST

COVENY ST

SEYMOUR ST

M
OIR

A ST ECLIPSE ST

COMET ST SPLOTT RD

M
U

IRTO
N

 RD

ORDELL ST

HABE
RS

HO
N S

T

WALKER RD

CO
URTE

NAY
 R

D

ABERYSTWYTH ST

HINTON ST

VANGUARD WAY

JANET ST

MARION ST

SINGLETON RD

ADELINE ST

RAIL
W

AY S
T

HOWARD ST

BAYSID
E RD

CU
M

RA
E ST

CARL
IS

LE
 S

T

SANQUHAR ST

CUMNOCK PL

CLYDE ST

KERRYCRO
Y ST

A
SG

O
G

 ST

KILCATTA
N

 ST

LADY MARGARET TERR

ROATH DOCK RD

CLIPPER RD

CO
LD

 S
TO

RE
S 

RD

CARGO R
D

COMPASS RD

PIE
RHEAD ST TYN

ESID
E RD

NETTLEFORD RD

E M
O

O
RS RD

SPRUCE C
L

OCEAN WAY

LEW
IS RD

EAST TYNDALL ST

A

PPL EW OOD CL

E M
O

O
RS RD

SYSTEM
 ST

PRINCE LEOPOLD ST

KAM
ES PL

GALSTON ST

ADAMSDOWN LN

ADA

MSDOWN S Q

A DAM
S

C ROFT PL

EAST TYNDALL ST

CEN
TRA

L LIN
K

M

ORGAN ST

ATLANTIC WHARF

HOW
ARD GDNS

NEWPORT RD LN

EAST G
RO

VE

THE WALK

HEMINGWAY RD

W
 B

U
TE

 S
TM

O
UN

T STUART SQ

HEOL GLANRHEIDOL

RERESBY  CT

OVERS TON
E CT

YS
TR

A
D

 S
T

ABER
CYNO

N S
T

CO
RVETTE CT

LLANSANNOR DR

S LOUDOUN PL

HANNAH ST

A
LICE ST

WEST CL

LETTON RD

LO
U

D
O

U
N

 SQ

MARIA ST

W
ESLEY LN

LO

UISA PL

A
D

ELA
ID

E ST

H
A

R
RO

W
BY

 S
T

ELEANOR PL

C
H

A
N

D
LERY W

AY

H
A

RR
O

W
BY

 L
N

CLARENCE PL

WINDSOR ESPLANADE

AVONDAL E GDNS

TA
FF

 T
ER

R

POMEROY ST

HUNTER STCLARENCE EMBANKMENT

CA
M

BR
ID

G
E 

ST

AVOND AL E  G
DNS

JI
M

 D
RI

SC
O

LL
 W

AY

MOORDALE RD

NEWPORT ST

COSSLETT PL

BRADFORD ST

BARGOED S
TCLY

DACH S
T

CYM
M

ER S
T

LLANBRADACH S
T

G
RA

N
G

E G
D

N
S

BESSBOROUGH D R

AM
YAS CL

ROLLS ST

LITTLETO
N

 ST

CHANCERY LN REN
N

IE ST

TE
LF

O
RD

 S
T

A4232   GRANGETOWN LINK

LANGH
A

M

 W AY

FONTHIL L PL

WELLS ST LN

R
AILW

AY TERR

FABER W
AY

W

ATERH O

U
SE

 D
R

NEWTON RD

ST D
O

N
ATS RD

DUNRA
VE

N RD

P
O

W
D

ERH
AM

 DR

WHITTLE RD

BE
SS

EM
ER

 R
D

HOLDEN RD

PEA
RL 

ST

D
IA

M
O

ND
 ST

AGATE ST

N
O

RA
 ST

IRON ST

DIAMOND ST

AN

DERSON PL

ZINC ST

H
ELEN

 PL

CECIL ST

RIC
HARDS T

ERR

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

BERTRA
M

 ST

EMERALD ST

SILVER ST

ORBIT ST

LONGCROSS ST

TOPAZ ST

LEAD ST

SUN ST

GOLD ST

SAPPHIRE ST

RUBY ST

COPPER ST

STAR ST

PLANET ST

M
OIR

A TERR

M
ETAL ST

CA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

GORSEDD GDNS RD

WYEVERNE RD

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

QUEEN ANNE SQ

LILY ST

ROSE ST

CLIFTO
N

 ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

CLIVE PL

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

OXFORD LN

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

THARSIS CL

DAVIS ST

CYFARTHFA ST

RUSSELL ST

TALW
ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

BEDFORD ST

C
RA

N
BRO

O
K ST

W
IN

D
SO

R PL

THE PARADE

KNOX RD

NORTHCOTE LN

KIN
CRA

IG ST

N ORTHCOTE LN

RIC
H

M
O

ND CRES

G
O

RD
O

N
 RD

LLANTW
IT ST

ST ANDREWS PL

SA
LISBU

RY RDGLY
NRHONDDA ST

PA
RK G

RO
VE

MUSEUM PL

PA
RK LN

RHYMNEY TERR

CO
BU

RN
 ST

FI
TZ

ROY ST

RUTHIN
 G

DNS

WYEVERNE RD

MUNDY PL

BROADWAY

NEWPORT RD

D
U

M
FRIES PL

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

BOULEVARD DE NANTES

CRO

C KHERBTOWN LN

CITY HALL RD

M
USEUM

 AVE

LOWTHER RD

MISKIN ST

FITZALAN RD MOIRA PL

CONSTELLATIO
N ST

TIN ST

PEARL ST

AUGUSTA ST

WINDSOR PL

M
ETEO

R ST

GLOSSOP RD

HEN
KE C

T

N
 L

U
TO

N
 P

L
S 

LU
TO

N P
L

CELERITY DR

RO
SE

M

ARY ST

ELLEN
 ST

SC
HO

O
N

ER
 W

AY

SILU
RIA

N
 PL

SILU
RIAN

 PL

BRIG

A N TINE PL

PELLETT ST

SANDON ST

A
N

G
ELIN

A ST

W CAN AL W

HARF

CRA
IG

LEE D
R

N EDWARD STQUEEN ST

BRIDGE ST

STATIO
N

 TERR

CHURC

H
 P

L

CH
ARLES ST

DA

VID
 S

T

CAROLIN
E ST

CALLAGHAN SQ

LLO
YD

 G
EO

RG
E AVE

TYNDALL ST

HERBERT ST

C ALLAGHA N SQ

JOHN ST

CHURCHILL W
AY

RICHM
OND RD

FITZA
LA

N
 PL

ADAM ST

BUTE TERR

CUS TOM HOUSE ST

THE HAYES

WORKING ST

ST M
ARYS ST

H
IG

H
 ST

SAU NDERS RD

GREAT W
ESTERN

 LN

SENGHENYDD RD

W
O

O
DVIL

LE
 R

D

TH
ESIG

ER ST

CANAL PARADE

TRA DE 
ST

 L
N

TRA
D

E ST

D
U

M
BA

LLS RD

D
U

M
BALLS RD

BURT 
ST

ABE
R 

ST

C
U

RRA
N

 EM
BA

N
K

M
EN

T

C
U

RRA
N

 RD

BROMFIELD ST
AVONDALE C R ES

GRANGE PL

CORPORATION RD

TAFF EM
BANKM

ENT

FERNDALE ST

H
A

FO
D

 ST

PENTRE G
DNS

COEDCAE S
T

TA
FF EM

BA
N

KM
EN

T

TA
FFS M

EA
D

 EM
BA

N
KM

EN
T

TUDOR LN

UNIVERSAL ST

D
IN

A
S ST

MERCHES GDNS

M
A

RD
Y ST

M
A

RD
Y ST

ALLERTON ST

W
A

RW
IC

K 
PL

CHESTER ST

JU BILEE ST

SUSSEX ST

COMPTON STSOMERSET ST

STAFFORD RD

WEDMORE RD

W
ED

M
O

RE RD

TYN
AN

T ST

CORNW
ALL ST

VIRGIL ST

VIRG
IL CT

WARW
ICK ST

D
EVO

N
 ST

PARK LN

CHURCH ST
WESTGATE ST

PLA
N

TA
G

EN
ET ST

BEA
U

C
H

A
M

P ST

MARK ST

CLARE PL
DESPENSER PL

GRE
EN

 S
T

RAWDEN MEWS

FITZH
AM

O
N

 EM
BAN

KM
EN

T

DESPENSER ST

NEVILLE P
L

G
LO

U
CESTER ST

BROOK ST

CRADDOCK ST

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 S
T

MACHEN PL

H
EA

TH
 P

L

RA
W

D
EN

 P
L

DE BURGH ST

NEVILLE ST

MA NDEVIL
LE S

T

RUTLAND ST

PENDYRIS ST

COURT R
D

DORSET ST

C
ATH

AYS T ERR

CORBETT RD

GREYFRIARS RD

PARK PL

COLUM RD

MAINDY RD

CASTLE ST
DUKE  S

T

N
O

RTH
 RD

HAMILTON ST

CRADDOCK ST

TREVETHIC
K ST

SOPHIA
 C

L

TALBOT ST

PLASTURTON P
L

KYVEILOG STBERTHW
IN

 ST

DOGO S
T

G
IL

ES
TO

N
 R

D

W
ELLS ST

LYNDHURST ST

A
LBERT ST

ORCHARD PL

KINGS RD

SNEYD ST

IE
ST

YN ST

SPRINGFIELD PL

GLYNNE ST

W
YNDHAM

 RD

SEVERN
 RD

DYFRIG
 S

T

SEVERN
 G

RO
VE

RYDER ST

PLASTURTON AVE

PITM
AN ST

MALDWYN ST

MORTIMER RD

LO
W

ER
 C

AT
H

ED
RA

L 
RD

CATHEDRAL RD

CATHEDRAL RD

W
YNDHAM

 CRES

ROMILLY CRES

FAIRLEIGH RD

S 
M

O
RG

AN
 PL LEW

IS ST

TEIL
O S

T

PO
N

TC
A

N
N

A
 ST

SOPHIA
 W

K

SM
EA

TO
N

 S
T

WOOD ST

TUDOR ST

NINIAN PARK RD

MAJOR RD
WYNDHAM PL

WYNDHAM
 PL

A
LBER T  ST

PICTON PL
E ARLE PL

LEC
KW

ITH
 RD

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

WELLINGTON ST

ATLAS R D

LUDLOW ST

AMHERST STEARL L N

CH
A

N
N

EL VIEW
 RD

KENT ST

SEVEN
O

A
KS ST

O
A

KLEY PL

FERRY RD

H
O

LM
ES

D
AL

E 
ST

EARL ST

BROMSGROVE ST

W
O

RCESTER ST

PENHEVAD ST

LLANMAES ST

ST FAGANS CT

PA
G

ET ST

C
LA

RE ST

C
LA

RE ST

AVONDALE RD

REDLAVER ST

STOCKLAND ST

S C
LIVE ST

PENTREBANE ST

C
LIVE LN

C
LIVE ST

N
 C

LIVE ST

DURHAM ST

HAVELOCK PL

COLERIDGE RD

HADFIELD RD

FLEET WAY

G
LY

N
ST

EL
L 

CL

BR
IN

D
LE

Y 
RD

PE
N

AR
TH

 R
D

LYON CL

PENARTH
 R

D

PENARTH RD

PE
N

AR
TH

 R
D

SLO
PER RD

BU
TE ST

HAVANNAH ST

BUTE PL

JAMES ST

CLARENCE RD

WHARTON ST

TREDEGAR ST

M
IL

L 
LN

HILLS ST

NS1  Provide appropriate cycle markings on existing shared 
  space area to clearly indicate the presence of a cycle route.

NS2  Convert existing two-stage toucan crossing to   
  provide parallel single-stage crossing for cyclists,  
  with low-level cycle signals.

NS3  Provide segregated two-way cycle track    
  on eastern side of carriageway. Replace existing   
  block paving with surface appropriate for cycling.

NS4  Widen existing Toucan crossing to provide parallel cycle   
  crossing with low-level cycle signals. Remove guardrailing 
  at side road junctions to allow continuity for cyclists.

NS8  Install pu�n crossing with parallel signalised cycle   
  crossing with low-level cycle signals

NS9  Option 1: Provide footpath and segregated cycle lanes  
  in each direction

  Option 2: Provide wide two-way raised cycle track on  
  one side with footway on the other
  
  Option 3: Retain existing unsegregated shared-use   
  facility

NS10 Ensure clear continuity of route with appropriate signing

NS11 Remove westernmost line of car parking spaces in  
  Adam Street car park (18 spaces) and provide   
  segregated two-way cycle track on eastern    
  side of carriageway

NS14 Continue proposed segregated two-way cycle   
  track on northern side of carriageway

NS15 Widen existing shared-use path to provide     
  wide northbound segregated cycle track on    
  western side of carriageway. Southbound cyclists   
  to be accommodated on carriageway given    
  one-way system and low tra�c �ows. Resurface    
  carriageway and clearly mark as primary route.

NS16 Convert existing  advisory northbound cycle lane  
  and convert to mandatory cycle lane with light   
  segregation throughout.
  Southbound cyclists to be accommodated on   
  carriageway given low tra�c �ows. Resurface   
  carriageway and clearly sign as primary route.
  Provide transition between Guildford Crescent and  
  proposed segregated two-way cycle track on   
  eastern side of Guildford Street. Amendments to  
  the existing kerb radii likely to be required.

NS5  Continue proposed segregated two-way cycle   
  track on eastern side of Lloyd George Avenue.   
  Remove signal control from side roads and convert  
  each to priority junctions with parallel zebra   
  crossings for Pedestrians & Cyclists. Remove   
  guardrailing at side road junctions. Replace   
  existing block paving with appropriate smooth   
  surface suitable for cycling.

NS6  Redesign junction to allow for segregated    
  two-way cycle track on eastern side of Lloyd   
  George Avenue and southern side of Herbert   
  Street.

NS7  Continue proposed segregated two-way cycle   
  track on southern side of carriageway. Relocate   
  westbound bus stop or incorporate into design.

NS12 Continue segregated two-way cycle track on  
  southern side of carriageway. 

NS13 Widen existing Toucan crossing to provide parallel  
  cycle crossing with low-level cycle signals

NS19 Provide segregated two-way cycle track on      
  western/southern side of carriageway. Provide     
  bus stop island(s) at northbound bus stops  between    
  Station Terrace and Windsor Place. Provide cycle priority   
  crossing at junction of Windsor Place.

NS17 Provide segregated two-way cycle track    
  on southern/eastern side of carriageway

NS18 Redesign junction to include dedicated cycle   
  signals, allowing cyclists to connect to/from Station  
  Terrace and Dumfries Place/Newport Road,   
  including between the E-W and N-S primary routes.

NS20 Convert existing pedestrian crossing of Windsor Place to    
  provide parallel single-stage crossing for cyclists. Widen central  
  island at Windsor Place to  accommodate pedestrians and cyclists.   
  Convert existing two-stage toucan crossing across Stuttgarter   
  Strasse to provide parallel single-stage crossing for cyclists, with  
  low-level cycle signals.

NS21 Retain one-way system for all tra�c with cyclists to  
  be accommodated on-street given low tra�c �ows.  
  Ensure surface is of appropriate quality. Provide   
  appropriate signing and markings. Introduce   
  20mph speed limit.

NS22 Option 1: Retention of priority control. Extend   
  20mph zone to St Andrews Crescent.
  Option 2: Signalise junction.

NS23 Provide advisory cycle lanes on both sides of   
  carriageway. Remove one tra�c lane westbound  
  under bridge and one tra�c lane eastbound on   
  approach to signal junction to accommodate.   
  Amend signal staging to run east and westbound  
  seperately. Provide high quality surfacing. Provide  
  road markings for cyclists and consider coloured  
  surfacing.

PRIMARY ROUTE: NORTH-SOUTH (SECTION 1)

KEY

        PRIMARY ROUTES

        PRIMARY ROUTE ALTERNATIVE ALIGNMENT     

        CYCLE NETWORK LINKS TO PRIMARY ROUTES

           STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
           INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES   

P
age 80



C
LO

S  G W Y

HEOL PONTPRENNAU

AMBERLEY CL

CLO S CWM DU

GELLI FRON GOCH

CL
O

S 
NANT Y CWM

HEO
L 

PONTPRENNAU H
EO

L GLAN

DULAIS

CLOS N
ANT M

W
LAN

AM
BE

RG
AT

E 
D

R

ALMOND DR

TH
E M

ALTINGS
TARRAGON W

AY

TY CERRIG

LLWYN CASTAN

HY
SSO P C

L

BO
RA

G E CL

GLYN R H O
SY

N

G
LY

N
 RH

O
SYN

PEPPERMINT DR

BR
YN

 H
EU

LO
G

BRYN HAI D D

G
LYN

 EID
D

EW

BRYNCYN

C
O

ED
EN

 D
A

L

W
A

U
N

 FACH

BRYN PINWYDDEN

PENTWYN RD

DARTINGTON DR

FELBRIGG
 CRES

P E N NSYLVANIA

WERN GOCH W

BRYN CELYN RD

PE
N

TW
YN

 D
R

THE HAW THORNS

THE H
A

W
TH

O
RN

S

LI
N

N
ET

 C
L

H
O

LLY
BUSH HGHTS

F ORSYTHIA D R

FO
RSYTH

IA
 D

R

H A W FIN
CH C

L

MAGNOLIA CL

A
ZA

LEA CL

CO
ED-Y-G

ORES

BR
YN

-Y
-N

A
N

T

COED-Y-G
ORES

AEL-Y-BRYN

PIN
EW

OOD C
RES

KING W
O

O
D

 CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

QUEENWOO D

ROUNDWOOD

LL
AN

ED
EY

RN
 D

R

LLA
N

ED
EYRN

 D
R

MAELFA

W
ELLW

O
O

D

LOTHIAN CRES

LLW
YN

-Y-G
RAN

T TERR

DOE CL

BA
RO

N
S C

T RD

DERI R
D

HOLLYBUSH RD

COED-Y-G
ORES

BR
YN

FEDW

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

G
LYN

 CO
ED

 RD

G
LY

N
 C

O
ED

 R
D

CHAPEL WOOD

BRYNFEDW

PENNSYLVANIA

IPSW

ICH RD

IP
SW

IC
H

 R
D

A4232

SIN C L AIR D
R

SO
U

TH
CO

U
RT RD

WINCHESTER AVE

EA
RLS C

T RD

TY
-G

W
YN

 R
D

MELROSE AVE

DORCHESTER AVE

HAMMOND WAY

OAK WOOD AVE

LONSDALE RD

O
RM

O
ND

E CL

W
ELL W

O
OD CL

LLANEDEYRN RD

HAMPTON CT RD

FO
S

TER  D R

LLWYN-Y-GRANT RD

PEN
-Y-LAN

 TERR

GRAFTON CL

AMESBURY RD

ILTON RD

PEN-Y
-L

AN P
L

ALM
A R

D

BALA
CLA

VA
 R

D

CRESSY R
D

M
AFEK

IN
G

 R
D

HARRIS
M

IT
H R

D

LLANEDEYRN RD

CARISBROOKE W
AY

TY-GWYN CRES

TY-GWYN AVE

SP
RI

N
GW

OOD

HILLRISE

CLEAR WATER WAY

SPRINGWOOD

H
ILLRISE

CEFN-CO E D G
D

N
S

FF
O

RD
D

 C
W

EL
LY

N

FFORD D  B
O

D
LY

N

PENNAN
T C

RES

WERNGOCH RD

RANNOCH D R

LO
M

ON
D CRES

A
RN

SI
D

E 
RD

H
U

RO
N

 C
RE

S

EVERARD WAY

W

OOLASTON AVE

HUNTERS RDG

FARM DR

ES
KD

A
LE

 C
L

EGREMONT RD

CYNCOED AVE

GLENW
OOD

C
YN

CO
ED

 RISE

C
YN

C
O

ED
 A

V
E

ST EDEYRNS RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

HOLLYBUSH RD

CYNCOED C

RES

GOLDCREST DR
WOODVALE AVE

CELY N G
R

ALD
ER

BROOK

LLYSWEN RD

BRYN
-G

W
YN

 RD

ALLTMAW
R RD

LLANGORSE RD

D
U

FFRYN
 RD

WESTMIN
STER C

RE
S

SHERBORNE AVE

DAN-Y-COED RD

CYNCOED PL

WINNIP

EG
 D

R

ONTARIO W
AY

C
EF

N
 C

O
ED

 A
V

E

HENLLYS RD

DERWEN RD

BETTWS-Y-C
OED RD

LEVEN CL

CLAERWEN DR

CARNEGIE DR

PA
D

A
RN

 C
L

OGWEN DR

D
U

FF
RY

N
 A

V
E

LLYN CL

G
W

YN
ANT CRES

DAN-Y-COED RD

NANT-FAWR CRES

N
A

N
T-

FA
W

R 
RD

LLANDENNIS AVE

CELYN AVE

CELYN AVE

H
EATH

BRO
O

K

TH
RE

E 
A

RC
H

ES
 A

V
E

ST DOGMAELS AVE

C

RUNDALE CRES

ST
 M

ARTINS CRES

KIM
BERLEY TERR

LU
N

D
Y CL

W
ATTO

N
 C

L

ILEX C
L

KEYES AVE

RHYD-Y-P
ENAU RD

TYRWHITT CRES

JELLICOE GDNS WILD GARDENS RD

H
EATH

 H
A

LT RD

C
RYSTA

L AVE

HEATHM EAD

NANT Y WEDAL 

WINGATE D
R

GIBSON CL

TRENCHARD DR

PORTFIE L D  C

RE
S

FISHGUARD
 C

L

W
AVELL C

L

LAKE RD N

H
EA

TH
 H

A
LT

 R
D

KING GEORGE V DR N

ST D
EN

IS RD

CEFN CARNAU RD

CRYSTAL W
OOD RD

ETON CT

ST
 B

RI
O

C
 R

D

ST GILD
AS RD

ST ISAN RD

H
EO

L G
W

YN
ED

D

ST MALO RD

ST ED
W

EN
 G

D
N

S

H
EATH

W
AY

S T  A
ID

A
N

 C
RE

S

ST A
U

G
U

STIN
E RD

ST
 A

N
TH

O
N

Y 
RD

PEDAIR ERW RD

HEOL POWIS

HEOL DYFED

M
O

U
N

TBATTEN
 C

L

KIN
G

 G
EO

RG
E V

 D
R E

BEATTY AVE

ED
IN

G
TO

N
 A

V
E

CRYSTA
L G

LEN

ST IN
A RD

HEATHFIELD PL

M
A

IT
LA

N
D

 S
T

FL
A

X
LA

N
D

 A
VE

ST AGATHA RD

TO
N

-Y
R-

Y
W

EN
 A

V
E

ST A
M

BRO
SE RD

ST
 A

LB
A

N
 A

V
E

ST
 H

EL
EN

S 
RD

ST A
N

TH
O

N
Y RD

KI
N

G
 G

EO
RG

E 
V

 D
R 

W

ST BEN
ED

IC
T C

RES

HEATHFIELD RD

LO
N

G
SP

EA
RS

 A
VE

ST BRIGID RD

JU
BILEE GDN

S

PA
RC

 T
Y 

G
LA

S

PA
RC

 T
Y 

G
LA

S

A
RM

O
U

RY D
R

MILESTONE CL

WAUN-FAWR RD

PHILIP CL

FA
IRFA

X
 RD

TY-W
ERN

 AVE

PORTHAMAL RD

TAIR ERW RD

LLW
YN

FED
W

 G
D

N
S

ST GEORGES RD

RHYDHELIG AVE

N
O

RTO
N

 A
V

E

VIO
LET PL

C
A

ERPH
ILLY RD

C
A

ER
PH

IL
LY

 R
D

LO
N-Y-GROES

PUM ERW RD
ST TANWG RD ST CADOC RDDRYBURGH AVE

THREIPLAN D D
R

SUMMERFIELD PL

MURRAYFIELD RD

DALE AVE

GROVE  P
L

PANTBACH AVE

CORONATION RD

CROMWELL RD

WELWYN RD

H
O

M
ELA

N
D

S RD

PHOENIX WAY

M
A

V
IS G

R

TH
O

RN
BU

RY CL

GREENFIELD RD

KE
YN

SH
AM

 R
D

PANTBACH PL

HEOL WERNLAS

WESTFIELD RD

HEOL DOLWEN

WESTVILLE RD

A
N

G
U

S ST

PEN
-Y-LAN

 RD

BR
O

N
 W

YD
D

 A
VE

BIRCHW
OOD RD

BR
AN

D
RE

TH
 R

D

BRANDRETH RD

TY-
DRAW

 P
L

LO
CHABER S

T

ALD
ER

 R
D

HEN
DY S

T

W
ERFA

 S
T

DALCROSS ST

TY’N-Y-COED LN

SPENCER ST

GO
W

ER
 S

T

DANIEL ST

LU
CAS 

ST

D
AVIO

T STFLORENTIA ST

FA
NNY S

T

GWEN
N

Y
TH

 ST

BRUCE ST

ROBERT ST

HAZELDENE AVE LI
N

D
EN

 A
VE

CORSHAM RD

TO
RR

EN
S 

D
R

BIRCHWOOD LN

BOLEYN WALK

CLOS DERWEN

PANT YR WYN

BO
VER

TO
N S

T

TYDFIL
 P

L

M
ORLA

IS
 S

T

MARYPORT RD

KIMBERLEY RD

TY-DRAW RD

ENNERDALE C L

LA
D

Y 
M

A
RY

 R
D

CEFN-COED RD

LA
KE

SI
D

E 
D

R

LAKESIDE DR

PEN-Y-WAIN RD

SH
IRLEY RD

LA
KE RO

A
D

 E

WEDAL RD

HEATHWOOD GR

HIGHFIELD RD

LA
KE

 R
D

 W

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E 
A

V
E

C
LU

N
 TERR

M
ALE

FA
NT 

ST
DO

GFI
EL

D S
T

MAY ST

TE
W

KES
BURY S

T

INGLEFIELD AVE

HEATH PARK WAY
HEATH PARK W

AY

C
EN

TR
A

L 
W

AY

CANADA RD

THE GATEWAY

LLANISHEN ST

SOBERT O
N

 A
V

E

SU
M

M
ER

FI
EL

D
 A

V
E

MAINDY RD

SA
C

H
V

IL
LE

 A
V

E

CLODIEN AVE

AFRICA GDNS

NEW
 Z

EALAND RD

A
C

A
D

EM
IC

 A
VE

LLANTRISANT ST

GELLIG
AER ST

ALLENSBANK CRES

CROWN WAY

MANOR ST

COSMESTON ST

BRITHDIR ST

CWMDARE ST

HEATH PARK AVE

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

A
LL

EN
SB

A
N

K 
RD

PENTYRCH S
T

RHYGOES S
T

RHIG
OS G

DNS

TALYGARN ST

PEN-Y-B
RYN RD

PEN-Y-BRYN PL

NEW
FOUNDLAND RD

AUSTRALIA
 RD

H
EA

T
H  PARK LN

ST ANGELA RD

ST
 A

G
N

ES
 R

D

CAERLEON RD

PILTO
N

 PL

MARGAM R D

RO
SEM

O
U

N
T PL

RIC
H

S RD

LLANTARNAM
 RD

LLWYNDERW
 RD

SUNNYBA N K CL

BEVAN PL

PORTHKERRY PL

MYNACHDY RD

RA
DYR PL

GARTH PL

EX
CE

LS
IO

R R

D

CELTIC RD

BATCHELOR RD

CLOS M
ENTER

EXCELSIOR RD

GABALFA AVE

H
EO

L M
A

D
O

C

M
A

ELO
G

 RD

PEN
 Y FA

I

BI
RCHWOO

D
 G

DNS

C
RA

D
O

C
 RD

TROTMAN DICKENSON PL

LLYS TA L- Y-B
ONT R

D

APPLEDORE RD
CEFN RD

MATTH E W SON C
L

ABERBRAN RD

ABERDORE RD

SILVER BIRCH CL

W
ES

TE
RN

 D
R

LYDSTEP CRES

W
ES

TE
RN

 A
VE

 W

ABERTEIFI CRES

MYNACHDY RD

ABERPORTH RD

HEOL CARNE

LON MADOC

FR
A

N
KL

EN
 R

D

KYLE AVE

HEOL NEST

KEN
FIG RD

TWYN-Y-FEDWEN

HEOL Y GORS

CA
E 

G
W

YN
 R

DKY
LE

 C
RE

S

CO
U

RT RD

HEOL GABRIEL

W
A

U
N

TREO
D

A
 RD

HEATHWOOD RD

BIRCHGROVE RD

THE PHILOG

MERTHYR RD

NORTHERN AVE

CLA
V

ERTO

N  WAY

CLOS NANT GLASW
G

CEFN M
ABLY

 R
D

BUTTERFIE

LD D
R

GW
ERN-RHUDDI RD

BRYN
-AW

ELO
N

 RD

TY-DRAW RD

PO
N

TFA
EN

CRANBOURNE W
AY

C OTSWOLD A
VE

BA
LM

O
RA

L C
L

THE FAIRWAY

HA C KERFORD RD

HAMPTON CRES W

HURFORD PL

 
BL

AC
K 

O
AK 

RD

PLAS Y DELYN

LARCH GROVE

MILL PL

LO
N

G
LE

AT

 CL

M
ILL RD

CWRT CEFN

MILLGATE

M
IL

L 
RD W

O
O

D
SID

E CT

CHARTWELL DR

HEOL S
T 

D
EN

YS

MILLBROOK PARK

E RISE

N
 RI SE

S 
RI

SE

COURT FIELD L
N

ROWAN WAY

PENTWYN RD

RUDRY R
D

CHURCH
 RD

MAERDY LN

RI
D

GE

WAY

RIDGEWAY

IVYDALE

H
EO

L CEFN O
NN

CHERRY ORCHARD RD

MILL C
L

OLD M
ILL  R

D

HEOL-Y-DE LYN

CL
O

S 
LL

YSF
A

EN

TENSI
N

G
 C

L

SPRIN
G

 G
R

O
VE

CHERITO
N

 D
R

PIN

ECREST DR

RA
G

N
A

L L
 C

L

PIC
K

W
IC

K CL

BRIARM

EAD
O

W

 DR

FID
LA

S AVE
ELA

N
 RD

TO
W

 R
D

EWENNY RD

M
ILLRA

C
E CL

M
IL

LW
O

O
D

W
 R

IS
E

TH
E RISE

FISH
G

U
A

RD
 RD

FISH
G

U
A

RD
 RD

SO
LVA

 AVE

FID
LA

S RD

HEOL M
ERLIN

MELBOURNE RD

USK RD

FIDLAS RD

R E DWOOD CT

EVEREST W
AL K

COPPERFIELD
 D

R

EVEREST AVE

ST MELLONS RD

ST MELLONS RD

LISVANE RD

GARRICK DR

H
EO

L H
IR

NORW
O

O D

LYRIC WAY

G
LEN

D
A

LE AVE
TRECA

STLE A
V

E

WOLFS CASTLE AVE

GILWERN CRES

MERLIN CL

W
O

O
DL AWN WAY

LLANON RD

NE W
BO

R
O

U
G

H
 A

VE

MAES-Y-COED RD

MAES-Y-COED RD

TY-WERN RD

TY’N-Y-PARC RD

C
H

IL
TE

RN
 C

L

FIELD
 W

AY

MOSTYN SQ

CO ED COCHWYN AVE BLU
E H

O
U

SE RD

TASKER DR

W
ATKIN

S SQ TATHAM RD

MALVERN DR

SMITH RD

A
SH

BO
U

RN
 W

AY

TATHAM RD

CO
ED

 G
LA

S 
RD

CLO
S H

EN
D

RE

CO
ED YR YNN

TEMPLETON AVE

TY GLAS RD

TY GLAS AVE

WAUN-Y-GROES AVE

HEOL CAERHYS

W
H

ITE BA
RN

 RD

CI
LG

ER
A

N
 C

RE
S

LON Y MYNYDD

PEN
 Y G

RO
ES RD

C
A

E M
AW

R RD

CORNFIELD CL

MAYFLOWER AVE

H
EO

L-Y

R-EFAIL

HEOL HENDRE

HEOL AER

CLOS TO
N

 M
A

W
R

H
EO

L H
IR

B
R

O
O

KVALE DR

H
E

OL-Y-CARW

MAYFAIR DR

H

EO L-Y-CADNO

PE
RC

IV
A

L 
C

L

TANSY CL

W
O O D RUFF W

AY

LO
N

 C
AE

 PORTH

CHARLOTTE SQ

TY
 G

W
YN R

D

HEOL ISCOED

HEOL-Y-BONT

WAUN-Y-GROES RD

H
EO

L Y W
ERN

H
EO

L 
TY

N
-Y

-C
O

ED

RHOS LLAN

HEOL Y  FELIN

MUR G
WYN

HEOL LLANISHEN FACH

HEOL-Y-DERI

ORCHARD CASTLE

BARDSEY CRES

GLE
NMOUN T WAY

LOWFIELD  DR

H
AVEN

W
O

O
D DR

HEOL PEREDUR

CAE G ARW

LAUNCELOT CRES

C
A

M
ELO

T  W

AY

AVO NRI

DGE

CH
ARLOCK CL

ANGELICA
 W

AY

LU
C

ER
N

E 
DR

PEN Y CEFN

EXCALIBUR DR

BRYN GLA
S

GAR ETH
 C

L

RH
I W

LA
S

TH
O

RN
H

ILL RD

M

OR RIS  AVE

JOHNSTON RD

LLANGRANOG RD

GUENEVER CL

GA L A HAD C
L

HEOL ERWIN

HEOL ISAF

H
EO

L 
LE

W
IS

M
4

BEULAH RD

BLA
EN

 Y C
O

ED

HEOL UCHAF

CARDIFF RD

LLA
N

D
A

FF RD

LLANDAFF RD

COLCHESTER AVE

OA K LEAFE
 D

R

LLANDE
N

N
IS

 RD

CI
RC

LE
 W

AY
 E

CIRCLE WAY E

C
IR

C
LE

 W
AY

 W

CIRCLE WAY W

PARRY ST

N
O

RT
H

U
M

BE
RL

A
N

D
 S

T

TH
EO

BA
LD

 S
T

BRECO
N

 ST PEN
-Y-PEEL RD

RA
D

N
O

R 
RD

CARDIGAN ST

PEMBROKE RD

BE
D

A
 R

D

BRUNSWICK ST

A48 EASTERN AVE

A48 EASTERN AVE

A
48

   
 W

ES
TE

ER
N

 A
VE

NEWPORT RD

CAMERON ST

SPRIN
G G

ARDENS TERR

SPRING GARDENS PL

BERESFORD RD LN

WILSON ST

FLORENCE ST

ARTHUR ST

SOUTHMINSTER RD

AXM
INSTER RD

FORT  ST
TYLER ST

FOX ST

STURM
INSTER RD

LA
D

YS
M

IT
H

 R
D

M
IN

ST
ER

 R
D

PRIEST RD

SEAWALL RD

ROVER WAY

DUNSMUIR RD

BRA
D

LEY ST

BLAN
CHE ST

SKELM
U

IR RD TW
EEDSMUIR RD

D
A

LM
U

IR RD

C
RA

IG
M

U
IR RD

SKATHMUIR RD

C
LY

D
ES

M
U

IR
 R

D

SWINTON ST

H
A

RO
LD

 ST
TH

EO
D

O
RA

 ST

FARMVILLE RD

H
O

R
W

O
O

D CL

BERESFO
RD

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

M
O

O
RLA

N
D

 RD

WILLOWS AVE

H
ELEN

 ST

BURNABY ST

EYRE ST

COVENY ST

SEYMOUR ST

M
OIR

A ST ECLIPSE ST

COMET ST SPLOTT RD

M
U

IRTO
N

 RD

ORDELL ST

HABE
RS

HO
N S

T

WALKER RD

CO
URTE

NAY
 R

D

JANET ST

MARION ST

ADELINE ST

RAIL
W

AY S
T

CARL
IS

LE
 S

TSYSTEM
 ST

PRINCE LEOPOLD ST
GALSTON ST

HOW
ARD GDNS

NEWPORT RD LN

EAST G
RO

VE

THE WALK

CH URCH TERR

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

TIMBERS SQ

STALLCOURT AVE

FF
O

R
DD

 N
O

W
EL

L

PEA
RL 

ST

D
IA

M
O

ND
 ST

AGATE ST

N
O

RA
 ST

IRON ST

DIAMOND ST

AN

DERSON PL

ZINC ST

H
ELEN

 PL

CECIL ST

RIC
HARDS T

ERR

WATERLOO GDN S

ST
ACE

Y 
RD

BERTRA
M

 ST

EMERALD ST

SILVER ST

ORBIT ST

LONGCROSS ST

TOPAZ ST

LEAD ST

SUN ST

GOLD ST

SAPPHIRE ST

RUBY ST

COPPER ST

STAR ST

PLANET ST

M
OIR

A TERR

M
ETAL ST

CA
STLE LN

W
O

RDSW
O

RTH AVE

GORSEDD GDNS RD

WYEVERNE RD

LETTY ST

KING EDW
ARD VII AVE

COLLEGE RD

QUEEN ANNE SQ

RO
AT

H
 C

O
U

RT
 P

L

SANDRINGHAM RD

G
RE

N
VI

LL
E 

RD

AGIN
CO

URT 
RD

UPPER KINCRAIG ST

LILY ST

ROSE ST

CLIFTO
N

 ST

ELM ST

Q
U

A
IL

 C
T

NINIAN RD

MARLBOROUGH RD

CLAUDE PL

BLENHEIM
 RD

RO
ATH

 CO
U

RT RD

ARRAN PL

CLIVE PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

W
EL

LF
IE

LD
 S

T

PE
N-Y

-L
AN R

D

CYNCOED RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

C
YN

C
O

ED
 RD

CYN
CO

ED
 RD

CYNCOED RD

BANGO
R S

T

A
RA

BELLA
 ST

KE
LV

IN
 R

D

D
O

N
A

LD
 ST

D
IA

N
A

 ST

TY’N-Y-COED PL

A
LFRED

 ST

KEPPOCH ST

GLENROY ST

STRATHNAIRN ST

C
RO

FT
S 

ST

OXFORD LN

PR
IN

CE
S 

ST

SN
IP

E 
ST

OAKFIELD ST

WILLOW CT

ELM ST LN

PARTRIDGE LN

TE
A

L 
ST PARTRIDGE RD

CO
N

N
AU

G
H

T RD

CLAU
D

E RD

SOUTHEY ST

O
XFO

RD
 ST

VERE ST

ST PETERS ST

M
ILTON ST

DYLAN PL

CYFARTHFA ST

RUSSELL ST

TALW
ORTH ST

BYRON ST

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 RD

TREHARRIS ST

ARRAN ST

M
A

C
KIN

TO
SH

 PL

CITY RD

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 PL

PLA
SN

EW
YD

D
 SQ

BED

FO
RD ST

BEDFORD ST

C
RA

N
BRO

O
K ST

W
IN

D
SO

R PL

THE PARADE

KNOX RD

NORTHCOTE LN

KIN
CRA

IG ST

N ORTHCOTE LN

RIC
H

M
O

ND CRES

G
O

RD
O

N
 RD

LLANTW
IT ST

ST ANDREWS PL

SA
LISBU

RY RDGLY
NRHONDDA ST

PA
RK G

RO
VE

MUSEUM PL

PA
RK LN

RHYMNEY TERR

CITY RD

A469     WHITCHURCH RD

CO
BU

RN
 ST

BASIL PL

RIC
HARDS 

ST

HARRIE
T S

T
FI

TZ
ROY ST

RUTHIN
 G

DNS

WYEVERNE RD

MUNDY PL

CATHERINE ST

FA
NNY S

T

BROADWAY

NEWPORT RD

D
U

M
FRIES PL

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

BOULEVARD DE NANTES

CRO

C KHERBTOWN LN

CITY HALL RD

M
USEUM

 AVE

LOWTHER RD

MISKIN ST

FITZALAN RD MOIRA PL

CONSTELLATIO
N ST

TIN ST

PEARL ST

AUGUSTA ST

M
ETEO

R ST

GLOSSOP RD

N
 L

U
TO

N
 P

LN EDWARD STQUEEN ST

STATIO
N

 TERR

CHURC

H
 P

L

ALBANY RDALBANY RD

RICHM
OND RD

FITZA
LA

N
 PL

ALEXANDER ST

SENGHENYDD RD

W
O

O
DVIL

LE
 R

D

TH
ESIG

ER ST

BRYDGES PL

IN
VERN

ESS PL

MOY RD

BRAEVAL ST

GLA
DYS 

STMINNY ST

M
O

NTH
ER

M
ER

 R
D

DALT
O

N S
T

TREHERBERT ST

LISVANE ST

D
A

RRA
N

 ST

FLORA ST
HIRWAIN ST

FA
IR

OAK RD

C
ATH

AYS T ERR

CORBETT RD

GREYFRIARS RD

PARK PL

COLUM RD

COLU
M

 D
R

MAINDY RD

TREORKY ST

MINISTER ST

M
ERTHYR ST

DUKE  S
T

N
O

RTH
 RD

N
O

RTH
 RD

HAMILTON ST

SOPHIA
 C

L

TALBOT ST

PLASTURTON P
L

KYVEILOG STBERTHW
IN

 ST

DOGO S
T

G
IL

ES
TO

N
 R

D

ORCHARD PL

KINGS RD

SNEYD ST

IE
ST

YN ST

SPRINGFIELD PL

GLYNNE ST

W
YNDHAM

 RD

SEVERN
 RD

G
RAY LN

DYFRIG
 S

T

GREENFIELD AV E

SEVERN
 G

RO
VE

RYDER ST

PLASTURTON AVE

PITM
AN ST

MALDWYN ST

CO
N

W
AY RD

MORTIMER RD

LO
W

ER
 C

AT
H

ED
RA

L 
RD

CATHEDRAL RD

CATHEDRAL RD

PENHILL RD

PE
N

LL
YN

 R
D

C
H

U
RC

H
 R

D

LLANFAIR RD

W
YNDHAM

 CRES

ROMILLY CRES

ROMILLY RD

CARMARTHEN ST

G
LA

M
O

RG
A

N
 ST

MARKET  PL

FAIRLEIGH RD

TEIL
O S

T

PO
N

TC
A

N
N

A
 ST

SOPHIA
 W

K

LEC
KW

ITH
 RD

RE
C

TO
RY

 R
D

M
A

RKET RD

A
LE

X
A

N
D

RA
 R

D

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

COWBRIDGE RD EAST

FI
EL

D
S 

PA
RK

 R
D

GROVELAND RD

NS24 Provide eastbound contra�ow cycle facility.

NS25 Option 1: Improvements to existing    
  arrangement.  Widen advisory cycle lanes   
  where possible. Replace existing     
  cushions with road humps.

  Option 2: Provide hybrid cycle lanes    
  in both directions with continuation    
  through junctions

NS26 Replace existing pedestrian crossing with   
  signal facility to incorporate cycle and    
  pedestrian movements to link Cathays   
  Terrace with Senghennydd Road.

NS28 Provide low-level signals for cyclists and early  
  start on Cathays Terrace approach. 
  Use existing footway area in front of    
  Cathays Library to provide signaled right turn  
  facility for cyclists from Whitchurch Road to  
  Cathays Terrace.

NS29 Amend existing cross section to provide   
  footways, hybrid cycle lanes on both    
  sides and 3  tra�c lanes (as existing).    
  Continue hybrid cycle lanes through side road  
  junctions.

NS35 Continue wide two-way cycle track with   
  light segregation on northern side of    
  carriageway.  Relocate kerbline on northern  
  side. Remove tra�c lane on King George V   
  Drive East approach to junction.
  Provide cycle route priority at alleyway and  
  private driveway. Resurface footway.

NS36 Replace block paving at King George V Drive   
  East road-end with surface appropriate for    
  cycling. Provide dropped kerbs and cycle    
  bypass at existing road closure and appropriate   
  signing/markings.

NS37 Cyclists to be accommodated on-street given  
  low tra�c �ows. Resurface carriageway where  
  required to ensure appropriate surface for   
  cyclists.  Provide appropriate premium quality  
  route signing and markings. Provide    
  road humps to reduce speeds.

NS38 Cyclists to be accommodated on-street given  
  low tra�c �ows. Resurface carriageway where  
  required to ensure appriopriate surface for   
  cyclists.  Provide appropriate premium quality  
  route signing and markings.
  Provide road humps to reduce speeds.

NS41 Surfacing Improvements. Provide cycle  
  signing / markings.

NS42 Remove centreline markings/hatching.   
  Provide road humps across full length.   
  Provide cycle logo markings.

NS47a Continue o�-road cycle path via existing   
  reservoir paths, suitably improved with   
  lighting and appropriate cycle signing and   
  markings.

NS47 Remove carriageway centreline and provide  
  large cycle logos

NS48 Provide kerbed build-outs to introduce   
  de�ection at roundabout. Provide single lane  
  entries on all approaches to reduce speeds   
  and improve conditions for cycling with
  possible raised junction in association with   
  above.

NS44 Widen existing shared use footway on western side  
  to provide wider shared-use facility up to Toucan  
  crossing. Widen existing footway on eastern side  
  between Toucan crossing and Nant Fawr Woods  
  path to allow continuation of shared use facility.  
  Provide raised table at crossing at junction with   
  Cardi� High School with cycle priority.

NS30 Provide signalised cycle facility to allow   
  north-west bound cyclists to cross from   
  Whitchurch Road (westbound) to proposed  
  two-way facility on eastern side of Allensbank  
  Road.
  Provide low-level cycle signal with early start  
  for southbound cyclists to make left turn or  
  provide signal bypass for left turn.

NS27 Option 1: Improvements to existing       
  arrangement/removal of built-out areas. Widen     
  advisory cycle lanes where possible. Removal     
  of central refuges.

  Option 2: Provide hybrid cycle lanes in both     
  directions with continuation through junctions. With   
  option to permit loading in proposed hybrid cycle    
  lane.

NS31 Provide two-way cycle track with light    
  segregation on eastern side of     
  carriageway. 

NS32 Provide signalised cycle facility to allow   
  crossing of Wedal Road for north and    
  southbound cyclists.
  Provide detection  at signals for north and   
  southbound cyclists to provide continuity.

NS33 Provide two-way cycle track with light      
  segregation on eastern side of carriageway.    
  Relocate kerbline on eastern side. May require some   
  kerbline realignment on western side to north of bridge.

NS34  Provide signalised crossing facility for cyclists  
   across northern leg of junction to enable   
   cycle movements between north-south   
   two-way cycle track on Allensbank Road and  
   facility on King George V Drive East.

NS39 Option 1: Minor improvements to existing layout and   
  signing to improve continuity for cyclists. Also option to   
  provide raised table through junction to reduce speeds   
  and highlight crossing movement.
  
  Option 2: Signalise junction and include separate stage for  
  east-west cycle movements. Include controlled pedestrian  
  facilities.

NS40 Option 1: Provide road humps across    
  full length to reduce vehicle speeds and make   
  route less attractive to motor vehicles.

  Option 2: As above but convert to cycle street

NS43 Widen existing path to north-west of roundabout  
  to 3.0m and convert to segregated two-way cycle  
  track. Path to be widened su�ciently to also   
  accommodate pedestrians.
  Widen existing zebra crossing on Lake Road North  
  to allow cyclists to make right turn from path.
  Provide cycle signing and markings.

NS45 Upgrade existing path to cycle track away from   
  road separated from pedestrians. Path should be  
  appropriately lit and surfaced, with cycle signing  
  and markings.

NS46 Remove existing central island and replace   
  with parallel zebra crossing

NS49 Remove carriageway centreline and provide  
  large cycle logos

NS50 Remove priority workings and replace with  
   road humps at appropriate spacings. 
  Remove carriageway centreline/hatched areas  
  and refuges.
  Provide large cycle logos.
  Potential work to provide high quality surface.

NS51 Ensure appropriate cycle provision at    
  junction, dependent upon proposed stategic  
  site access arrangements.

PRIMARY ROUTE: NORTH-SOUTH (SECTION 2)

KEY

        PRIMARY ROUTES

        PRIMARY ROUTE ALTERNATIVE ALIGNMENT     

        CYCLE NETWORK LINKS TO PRIMARY ROUTES

           STRATEGIC SITES TO INCORPORATE EXTENSIVE
           INTERNAL NETWORK OF ROUTES   Page 81



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Improvements - Crossings - Calming - Urban Safety - Low Cost Rankings For 16/17

Ranking 
Method

Pos
Cost/Benefit 

score
Letter ref. 
(civica)

Project No Ward ProjectTitle Estimate

1 78.93333 65876   PRJ148 Western Avenue - speed limit reduction 15

2 18.16 60015   PRJ115 Gabalfa Crown Way (nr Whitchurch Rd) Ped facilities 25

3 15.9 16103   8133 Plasnewydd Mackintosh Place - Ped Facilities 90

4 14.28571 31626   PRJ040 Pentwyn Circle Way West, Glyn Coed Road 35

5 14.06667 39777 42467 38620 P126 Fairwater St Fagans Road (Wellright Rd) 45

6 12.93333 45583   PRJ034 Penylan Waterloo Road Footway improvements. 30

7 12.69333 19825   P074 Whitchurch / Tongwynlais Old Church Rd/Church Rd/Merthyr Rd 75

8 12.62 29563   P102 Cyncoed Lake Rd East Zebra Crossing 50

9 12.15556 CR7400   P035 Riverside Kings Rd/Pontcanna St 45

10 11.88889 24462 53066  PRJ006 Cyncoed Gwern Rhuddi Road Traffic Calming Remodelling 90

11 11.17 30069   P009 Pentwyn Pentwyn Drive/Glyn Coed Rd Junct 100

12 10.35 29700   P087 Lisvane Blossom Drive/Cherry Orchard Rd Junct 60

13 10.1875 22353   PRJ107 Cyncoed Cyncoed Road pedestrian facilities 80

14 10.02222 18828   P078 Radyr / Morganstown Heol Isaf nr Min y Coed 45

15 10 17354   8131 Riverside Conway Rd/Severn Grove 50

16 9.8 61607   PRJ089 Plasnewydd Ninian Road near Tydfil Place zebra crossing 45

17 9.755555 7150   3981 Heath Pantbach Rd – Pedestrian Facilities 45

18 9.155556 39778   8336 Grangetown Virgil Street tabled zebra crossing 45

19 8.622857 39883 40391 53811 P114 Penylan Pen-y-Lan Road and Colchester Avenue Junction 350

20 8.552941 48901   PRJ003 Llanishen Thornhill Road Pedestrian Facilities 85

21 8.0875 29130 51620  P092 Pontprennau / Old St Mellons Ty'r Winch Rd 80

22 7.52 57927   PRJ075 Llanrumney Ball Road - Traffic Calming 150

23 7.46 58794 58205  PRJ083 Llanishen Lisvane Road / Woodside Court 50

24 7.2 56504   PRJ079 Canton Sloper Road Traffic Calming 80

25 6.941667 13602   P001 Grangetown Paget Street 120

26 6.8 10192 9271  P107 Plasnewydd Richmond Road / Lowther Road Junction Improvement 225

27 6.75 74443   PRJ147 Penylan Llanedeyrn Rd pedestrian crossing 32

28 6.72 63032   PRJ133 Cathays North Road / Corbett Road 225

29 6.55 652 65267  P106 Riverside Despenser St - Ped Facilities 20

30 6.426667 51608 56709  PRJ045 Canton Lansdowne Road Traffic Calming 75

31 6.325 44643   3673 Cathays St Andrew's Place 80

32 6.266667 50507 51828  PRJ007 Fairwater St Fagans Rd (Nr.Fairwater Green) 45

33 6.171429 58685 49299  PRJ054 Creigiau / St.Fagans Cardiff Road, St Fagans 35

34 6.05 53190   PRJ041 Trowbridge Cypress Drive Speed Reduction Scheme 150

35 6.05 PRJ091 Grangetown Corporation Rd near Avondale Road 60

36 5.95 18576 55129  PRJ094 Grangetown Cornwall Street - Traffic Calming 80

37 5.95 61202   PRJ123 Fairwater St Fagans Road near Shears Road 60

38 5.883333 10440   P083 Cathays Woodville Rd 60

39 5.64 50361   PRJ009 Grangetown Bessemer Road Traffic Management Measures 50

40 5.466667 72834 43023  PRJ149 Llandaff North Aberteifi Crescent one way system 15

41 5.46 63946   PRJ137 Grangetown Avondale Road Traffic Calming 100

42 5.428 49770   PRJ047 Canton Atlas Rd/Leckwith Rd/ Wellington St/Kitchener Rd 250

43 5.3 70663   PRJ143 Penylan Blenheim Road / Kimberley Road junction 50

44 5.222222 60474   PRJ119 Caerau Amroth Road / Llandow Road - Pedestrian Facility 45

45 5.096 62483   PRJ114 Plasnewydd Newport Rd / Rover Way Ped facilities (N side) 125

46 5.075 27786   P112 Fairwater Junction of Cartwright Lane and St Fagans Rd 200

47 4.745454 CR38620   P111 Fairwater St Fagans Road (Fairways Crescent) tabled zebra 55

48 4.711111 48173   PRJ025 Fairwater Pentrebane Road - Controlled crossing 45

49 4.586667 60180   PRJ104 Penylan Albany Road/Marlborough Road/Waterloo Road 75

50 4.44 60440   PRJ110 Cyncoed Lake Road West near park entrance 75

51 4.24 10989   PRJ150 Caerau Heol Trelai traffic calming 200

52 4 34990   P113 Plasnewydd Ty-Draw Rd/Pen-y-Lan/Kimberley Rd 200

53 3.825 52852 51491  PRJ035 Pontprennau / Old St Mellons Croescadarn Road Zebra crossing 40

54 3.5 64862   PRJ136 Heath King George V Drive West into UHW 10

55 2.84 58142   PRJ131 Heath Allensbank Road - UHW Pedestrian Facilities 100

56 2.806667 57399 56060  PRJ095 Llanishen Station Road (Llanishen) Fidlas Road junction 150

57 2.733333 36595   P122 Cathays Cathays Park Junction Buildouts 120

58 2.235 52219 23786  PRJ081 Rhiwbina Pantbach Road / Ty-Wern Road 200

59 0.8388889 67297   PRJ005 Penylan Cyncoed Road Llanederyn Road junction 350

160 3075 Lisvane Mill Rd - Footway (Phase 1) 160

APPENDIX 5

Page 83



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Integrated Network Map Engagement Plan 

Pre-Network Plan Engagement 

• Gehl Workshops on Cycling Strategy with internal and external stakeholders (June 2016 and

Sept 2016)

• Cycle Liaison Group INM Workshop 28
th

 June 2016

• Car Free Day Information Gathering 22
nd

 September

• Cabinet Member Briefing on Integrated Network Maps – ongoing

• Internal consultation with Council Officers November 2016

• Ward Member consultation on proposed schemes in individual wards – November 2016

• Member Briefings on Integrated Network Maps – TBA November/December 2016

• Environmental Scrutiny Committee – Presentation on Integrated Network Maps

Formal Public Consultation on Draft Integrated Network Maps – December 2016 – March 2017 

Online Engagement 

• Information published on Cardiff Council website (www.cardiff.gov.uk/activetravel) and

Keeping Cardiff Moving with associated online questionnaire

• Social media campaign

• Emails to:

o Stakeholder contact lists

o People and organisations who have requested to be consulted under the Active

Travel Act (currently around 200 contacts)

o Cardiff Research Centre Contact Lists

Stakeholder Group Meetings 

• Cycle Liaison Group

• Additional meetings to be held with:

o Cardiff Council Access Focus Group

o Cardiff Cycle City

o Sustrans Volunteers

Consultation Events 

• Standalone consultation events to be undertaken, invitations to people that have requested

to be consulted under the Active Travel Act and promotion through social media

• Opportunities to be identified throughout Consultation period to attend events to promote

Cycle Strategy and Network Plan

• Explore possibility of running a community route audit in conjunction with Living Streets

Schools 

• Sustrans Active Schools Engagement with Fitzalan High and Ysgol Gyfun Plasmawr

• Schools Community Street Audit in collaboration with Living Streets

• Emails to all schools

APPENDIX 6

Page 85



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 
 

CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFF 

DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                      6 DECEMBER 2016  

 

 
EASTERN BAY LINK – JOINT STUDY PROPOSAL 

 
 

 

Reason for the Report 
 

1. To provide Members with the opportunity to consider the content of a Cabinet 

proposal titled ‘Eastern Bay Link’ prior to it being considered at the Cabinet meeting 

on the 15 December 2016.  The main purpose of the report is to seek authority to 

engage with the Welsh Government to progress a joint study of options for the next 

phase of the Eastern Bay Link Road between the Butetown Tunnels and A48 

Eastern Avenue, to be funded by the Welsh Government. 

 
Background  
 

2. South Glamorgan County Council identified a need for the Peripheral Distributor 

Road (PDR) in 1974.  The PDR has subsequently been built in stages and the latest 

sections that were completed include the Pentwyn Link which (with the new 

motorway interchange) was opened in June 1994, and the Butetown Link Viaduct 

and Tunnels which were opened in March 1995.  The Eastern Bay Link has been 

included in the adopted Local Plan (January 1996); adopted Structure Plan (April 

1997); Local Transport Plan (August 2000) and deposit Unitary Development Plan 

(October 2003). 

 
3. South Glamorgan County Council granted planning permission for the Eastern Bay 

Link in July 1994.  The scheme was described as a 7.3 mile dual carriageway with a 

minimum design speed of 70kph between the end of the Butetown Link and the nose 

of the southern slip roads of the Lamby Way/Rover Way junction and 60kph from 

this point to Southern Way to match the alignment of the existing East Moors 

viaduct.   

Page 87

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

4. The County Council granted planning permission for the revision of the 1994 

planning consent in August 1997.  The development was permitted on condition that 

it was begun before the expiration of five years from the date of planning permission.  

Application to renew the consent was submitted in July 2002 and was subsequently 

withdrawn in November 2003 because an appropriate environmental assessment 

had not been prepared due to insufficient funds available from the Welsh 

Government to provide the supporting information.  The planning consent has now 

lapsed. 

 
5. Cardiff County Council prepared a report titled ‘Eastern Bay Link – Scheme Re-

appraisal’ in December 1998, and submitted it to the former Welsh Office for 

consideration in 1999.  The aim of the study was to re-examine the scheme to 

determine whether savings in cost could be achieved to ease funding difficulties 

without compromising the objectives of the Eastern Bay Link. 

 
6. Options were investigated in 2000 for scaling down the section of Eastern Bay Link 

from Butetown Link to Ocean Way Interchange at the request of the Welsh 

Government.  The results were published in a report titled ‘Feasibility Report for 

Scaled Down Options Butetown Link to Ocean Way Interchange, Volumes 1 to 3, 

Project No 147, Rev 1.4, October 2000 including a NATA Assessment (Volume 3)’ 

which was prepared by Babtie Group.  Various work on the scaled-down options 

continued in 2001 before the Welsh Government withdrew Transport Grant funding 

in 2002. 

 
7. Options were also investigated in 2008 and 2009 as part of the Cardiff 

Transportation Partnership. In July 2013, the written Statement by the Minister for 

Business, Enterprise and Technology stated that the Eastern Bay Link is an 

important element in improving access to the Central Cardiff Enterprise Zone and 

enhancing connectivity within the city region. 

 
The Current Scheme 

 
8. Phase 1 of the Eastern Bay Link is currently being constructed between Butetown 

Tunnels and Ocean Way Roundabout at a cost of £57m; it will be 1km in length.  

The construction started in 2016 and will be completed in 2017. The scheme will 

Page 88



3 
 

reduce the need for traffic to use Central Link, Adam Street and Windsor Road as 

they will have a direct link between Rover Way and Cardiff Bay. 

 
9. The road being constructed on behalf of the Welsh Government is not a trunk road 

and its construction has no financial impact on the Council. There is a legal 

agreement with Cardiff Council being the owner of the infrastructure once it is 

completed.  The section 38 / section 278 Agreement is intended to cover all 

associated costs to the Council. 

 
10. The Eastern Bay Link potentially offers the opportunity to provide complementary 

strategic highway capacity which may assist with enhancing any benefits of 

reallocating adopted highway space to Metro related and Active Travel 

improvements in the local network. 

 
Key Issues 

 
11. There are a number of important issues that remain to be considered in terms of the 

Eastern Bay Link project, these are:  

 
• Local Development Plan (LDP) Support  - The Local Transport Plan (LTP) 

includes the Eastern Bay Link as a scheme to be funded by the Welsh 

Government (and potentially with developer contributions) between 2020 and 

2030. The LDP does identify it as a project that the Council will strongly support.  

Paragraph 5.239 of the LDP states: 

 
“The Eastern Bay Link Road is a longstanding aspiration of the Council and is 

featured in the South East Wales Transport Alliance (Sewta) Regional Transport 

Plan (RTP). The road would complete a peripheral distributor road running 

between M4 Junction 33 in North West Cardiff and Llanedeyrn Interchange in the 

East of the city. It would provide additional capacity for road-based access to the 

Cardiff Central Enterprise Zone from the East and supporting development in that 

area.” 

 
The scheme provides the opportunity to improve network resilience for the 

strategic highway network whilst facilitating local measures to improve the 

Page 89



4 
 

attractiveness of walking, cycling and travelling by public transport particularly in 

the City Centre and Cardiff Bay and surrounding corridors. 

 
In addition, there is significant potential linkage between the transport impacts that 

would result for this project and the larger regional projects of the City Region 

Metro and the M4 Relief road. 

 
• Project Completion  - The Eastern Bay Link remains uncompleted. Following the 

current phase of development a further 5km of development will be required to 

ensure connection to the eastern linkage to the A48. 

 
A number of route alignment options will need to be evaluated, these include: 

 
� Grade separated options that would provide a continuous route (uninterrupted 

by junctions); 

� At grade options that would minimise the structures required including 

junctions to provide local access; 

� Inland and foreshore alignment options. 

 
A number of competing route alignment options exist to complete this project. 

Given the environmental sensitivity of some of the area under consideration future 

options will need to consider alternative alignments, costs, benefits and impact of 

the highway capacity improvements on sustainable modes.  It is estimated that 

Phase 2 of the Eastern Bay Link would take approximately three to five years from 

funding becoming available to completion of construction.  

 
• Flood Risk  - The Council has successfully submitted a flood and coastal defence 

project proposal for inclusion in the Welsh Government’s Coastal Risk 

Management Programme. Grant approval for a Project Appraisal Report has now 

been secured and JBA consultancy have been appointed to undertake the 

appraisal including an assessment of the existing defences, recession rates and 

potential inundation extents to identify the most appropriate management option.  

The Project Appraisal Report will identify a preferred option, or series of options, 

across the coastal area at Rover Way, for the management of coastal erosion and 

coastal flooding. The full scope of the PAR includes the entire flood cell of the 

Rhymney estuary; stretching from the Dwr Cymru Welsh Water treatment works in 

Page 90



5 
 

the west to the extent of Lamby Way Tip in the east, including the area of extent 

of tidal influence up the estuary of the River Rhymney. 

 
The appraisal is required to be completed by March 2017 and the Welsh 

Government programme indicates construction of the successful projects between 

2018 and 2021; however, given the risk associated with the potential failure of the 

defences in the area of Rover Way, it is likely that any Welsh Government 

approved project would take place early in the Welsh Government construction 

programme (2018). The private Dwr Cymru Welsh Water defences are currently 

the subject of a separate assessment commissioned by Dwr Cymru / Welsh 

Water; however, the Council’s Project Appraisal Report is looking to identify the 

potential for partnership working in the hope to align the two projects and realise 

multiple benefits. 

 
The study of options for the Eastern Bay Link will need to consider the issues and 

options of the flood and coastal defence appraisal work. 

 
• M4 Relief Road  - The Welsh Government is progressing proposals for a new 

section of the M4 motorway between Magor and Castleton. Preparations are 

being made for consideration of the proposals at a Public Inquiry to be held in 

2017. This project will have clear strategic opportunities in terms of economic 

benefits for the national, regional and local economy. The letter from the Welsh 

Government dated 4th November 2016 made the following statements: 

 
“The M4 Project is considered to be a vital part of our vision to create a united, 

connected and sustainable integrated transport system for Wales, linking with 

measures to improve transport links, of all modes within Cardiff.  Design of the 

project is of course taking into account Metro proposals for the city region, as well 

as the expectation for Severn crossing tolls to reduce and ultimately be removed.” 

 
“Enhancement of the capacity of the M4 east of Cardiff will of course complement 

the previously widened M4 north of Cardiff between J29 and 32, the current work 

to the Eastern Bay Link and any further development of that route.  The 

reclassification of the existing M4 around Newport and A48 (M) will improve 

Page 91



6 
 

connectivity between Cardiff and Newport for classes of vehicle not permitted on 

the motorway.” 

 
However, the impacts of the new M4 on the highway network in Cardiff are yet to 

be fully understood. Nonetheless, the delivery of the Eastern Bay Link final phase 

will be essential to ensure that the impacts of the M4 project are effectively 

mitigated. Welsh Government has invited Council Officers to meet with the M4 

Project Team to discuss the scope and potential impacts of the M4 project. This 

will also provide an opportunity to identify and agree the further technical work 

required to identify options for progressing the completion of the Eastern Bay Link 

and the funding that would be required from Welsh Government for this work. 

 
In view of all these factors further work will need to take place, as well as 

engagement with Welsh Government to ensure that any proposals that come 

forward meet the wide range of requirements and maximise opportunities for 

Cardiff. 

 
• Tidal Lagoon Cardiff  - The tidal lagoon is being proposed by Tidal Lagoon 

Power Plc, a company specifically established to develop, own and operate tidal 

lagoon power plants.  To date, the company has secured consent for a tidal 

lagoon in Swansea Bay which establishes a scalable blueprint for other projects in 

the UK.  The Cardiff proposal would see the construction of a seawall, some 22km 

in length, enclosing an area of approximately 70 square kilometres.  It would 

extend from east of the entrance to Cardiff Bay to west of the mouth of the River 

Usk in Newport.  A project of this type is classed as a ‘Nationally Significant 

Infrastructure Project’ and would be managed by the Planning Inspectorate.  

Although the Council is not the decision-making body, it will play an important role 

in the process as formal inputs will be required at all stages. 

 
• Development Opportunities  - The scheme provides opportunity to help facilitate 

development and job growth in South-East Cardiff through improved access to 

land in Splott north and south of Rover Way and in Rumney and Trowbridge north 

and south of Lamby Way. 

 

Page 92



7 
 

• Opportunities for Leisure & Tourism  - The Eastern Bay Link has the potential 

to enhance the city’s tourism and leisure offer providing improved access to new 

regeneration opportunities and improvements in accessibility to wetlands and the 

coast. 

 
12. The recommendation of the Cabinet report titled ‘Eastern Bay Link’ will be to 

delegate authority to the Director of City Operations to engage with the Welsh 

Government to progress a joint study of options for the next phases of the Eastern 

Bay Link Road between the Butetown Tunnel and the A48 at Eastern Avenue which 

would, subject to agreement be funded by the Welsh Government.  

 
Way Forward 

13. Councillor Ramesh Patel, Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & Sustainability 

has been invited to attend for this item.  He will be supported by officers from the 

City Operations Directorate. 

 
Legal Implications 
 

14. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or 

without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 

recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be 

within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 

imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on 

behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural 

requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 

properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 

circumstances. 

Page 93



8 
 

 
 
 
Financial Implications 
 

15. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in 

relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if 

and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 

modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Committee is recommended to: 

 
i. Note the contents of the attached reports; 

ii. Consider whether they wish to pass on any comments to the Cabinet following 

scrutiny of the item titled ‘Eastern Bay Link – Joint Study Proposal’. 

 
DAVINA FIORE 

Director for Governance & Legal Services 

30 November 2016 

Page 94



 

1 
 

CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFF 

DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                      6 DECEMBER 2016  

 

 
PLANNING SERVICE -  MEMBER UPDATE 

 
 

 

Reason for the Report 
 

1. To provide Members with the opportunity to consider the work being delivered by 

Cardiff’s Planning Service and review what is being done to improve service 

delivery. In particular the meeting will consider the ‘Cardiff Local Planning Authority – 

Planning Annual Performance Report 2016’ which is attached to this report as 

Appendix 1 .    

 
Background  
 

2. The Environmental Scrutiny Committee last scrutinised a dedicated item to review 

Cardiff’s Planning Service on the 13 October 2015 when it received a paper titled 

‘Planning Service – Member Update’; a copy of the cover report for this item is 

attached as Appendix 2 .   In particular the item considered the impact of: 

 
• The recently introduced Planning Wales Act 2015; 

• The Town and Country Planning (Fees for Applications, Deemed Applications 

and Site Visits) (Wales) Regulations 2015. 

 
3. The Head of Planning delivered a presentation to the Environmental Scrutiny 

Committee on the 13 October 2015 which explained the changes to the Planning 

system, outlined the wide range of work undertaken by the service and gave an 

overview of current performance including the future approach to improvement 

measures. The presentation also advised that Welsh local authorities would in future 

have to produce a ‘Planning Annual Performance Report’ (APR).  Cardiff’s Planning 

Service has created such a report which is titled ‘Cardiff Local Planning Authority – 

Planning Annual Performance Report 2016’ which is attached as Appendix 1 .  The 

Page 95

Agenda Item 5



 

2 
 

report is split into sections on ‘Context’, ‘Planning Service’, ‘Your Local Story’, ‘What 

Service Users Think’ and ‘Our Performance 2015 -16’.  The report is also supported 

by ‘Annex A – Performance Framework’ and a series of six sections which contain 

performance indicators for Plan Making, Efficiency, Quality, Engagement, 

Enforcement and Sustainable Development Indicators. The following paragraphs (4 

to 10) provide a summary of Cardiff’s APR reporting on the year 2015/16 which 

provides a useful context for the Scrutiny Session. 

 
Local Context  

 
4. The APR initially provides an overview about Cardiff; comments on the Cardiff’s 

planning background (noting that the city adopted the Local Development Plan in 

January 2016); identifies Cardiff’s corporate policy context (for example, how 

planning related to documents like ‘What Matters’ and the Council’s Corporate Plan 

2015 – 2017); discusses existing and previous major influences on land use; 

describes the landscape and historic setting; briefly explains the settlement pattern 

and concludes by commenting on population change and influence on the Local 

Development Plan.  

 
Planning Service 
 

5. This section of the APR explains about the organisational structure of the Council 

and how the Planning Service ties into this arrangement.  It then identifies the four 

parts of the Planning Service which are: 

• Planning Policy;  

• Development Management – Strategic & Placemaking; 

• Development Management – Non Strategic & Enforcement; 

• Building Control.  

 
6. The section continues by commenting on the wider organisational activities that have 

an impact upon the Planning Service; considering the operating budget and then 

finally addressing staffing issues.  

 
 
 

Page 96



 

3 
 

7. Key points in this section of the report that are worth noting include: 

 
• 20 posts have been removed from the Planning Service Establishment in the 

past five years – this includes reducing the number of operational managers from 

five to two;  

• Planning fee income has varied significantly in recent years, for example, 

between 2008/09 to 2012/13 fee income remained between £1.2 million to £1.4 

million.  This has improved in recent years and in 2014/15 fee income reached 

£1.86 million.  The fee income target for 2015/16 was increased to £1.93 million 

and this was achieved.  The 2016/17 for fee income has once again been 

increased; 

• As previously stated the 15% increase in planning fees in the autumn of 2015 

was welcomed, however, the fee refund clauses contained in the new Planning 

Fee Regulations introduced significant risk;  

• The Planning Service currently has 50 FTE posts (excluding building control). 

This includes one Head of Planning; two Operational Managers; seven Planning 

Policy Planners; 14 Development Management Case Officers; 1.5 Enforcement 

Officers; six Placemaking Team Planners; two ‘Specialists’ (one Ecologist & one 

tree Officer); two Planning Assistants; 10.5 Technical / Administrative Support / 

Website Management Officers; one GIS Officer; one E-Government / 

Performance Reporting Officer;  

• Workload demands are very high on staff within Cardiff’s Planning Service, for 

example, in 2015/16 Cardiff processed 3,053 applications compared to the Welsh 

average of 949;  

• Sickness rates are at extremely low levels and are far lower than the Directorate 

and Council wide average. 

 
Workload, pressures and service improvement 
  

8. A section titled, ‘Your Local Story’ provides a broad overview of the above topics 

relating to the Planning Service. Observations in this section of the report that are 

worth noting include: 

 

Page 97



 

4 
 

• Planning Policy – That the Local Development Plan for Cardiff was adopted in 

January 2016 and will continue to form an important element of policy work, for 

example, the Planning Service will need to review the 102 indicators which will 

inform future plan reviews and help to develop a series of Supplementary 

Planning Guidance documents that will underpin this document; 

• Planning Policy – The Planning Service will need to engage with, support and 

help develop the Strategic Development Plan (SDP).  As the economic driver of 

the Cardiff Capital Region, Cardiff will seek to play an active role alongside other 

local authorities to progress this work;  

• Planning Policy – The Planning Service will need to write the Local 

Development Plan Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) each autumn for 

consideration by Welsh Government;  

• Planning Policy  – The Planning Service will work with the Housing Service to 

identify new Gypsy & Traveller demand and site(s) to meet the demand in 

accordance with AMR and Housing requirements; 

• Planning Policy  – The Planning Service will prepare the annual Joint Housing 

Land Availability Study;  

• Development Management & Enforcement  – The number of planning 

applications determined by Cardiff in 2015/16 was 3,053.  This was an increase 

of 20% more than the previous year; 

• Development Management & Enforcement – Case officers can process up to 

300 applications a year, however, those dealing with major applications process 

considerably fewer;  

• Development Management & Enforcement – Enforcement investigations 

generate a caseload of some 500 to 800 cases per year.  The Enforcement 

Team has been significantly reduced in recent years with three officers currently 

sharing their time between enforcement investigations and as development 

management case officers; 

• Placemaking  – The Placemaking Team delivers a wide range of statutory and 

non-statutory planning functions and includes expertise in such areas as urban 

Page 98



 

5 
 

design, masterplanning, conservation of the built and natural environment and 

project management; 

• Placemaking – The Placemaking Team will be leading on the preparation and 

adoption of the Cardiff Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This work has 

created significant additional workload for the Team and is progressing towards 

submission in 2017. 

 
What Service Users Think 

 
9. As part of the APR process, the Welsh Government Data Unit have undertaken 

customer satisfaction surveys for all Local Planning Authorities in Wales and 

provided a summary of responses which are included within the APR.  The survey 

was sent to 1,045 people and had an 11% response rate.  46% of responses were 

from local agents, 39% were from members of the public.  10% of respondents had 

recently had a planning application refused.  The survey identified that the following 

percentage of respondents agreed that: 

 
• The Local Planning Authority enforces its planning rules fairly and consistently: 

50% agree that Cardiff achieved this against a Wales average of 47%. 

• The Local Planning Authority gave good advice to help them make a successful 

application: 62% agree that Cardiff achieved this against a Wales average of 

58%. 

• The Local Planning Authority gives help throughout, including with conditions: 

48% agree that Cardiff achieved this against a Wales average of 49%. 

• The Local Planning Authority responded promptly when they had questions: 57% 

agree that Cardiff achieved this against a Wales average of 58%. 

• They were listened to about their application: 56% agree that Cardiff achieved 

this against a Wales average of 57%. 

• They were kept informed about their application: 47% agree that Cardiff achieved 

this against a Wales average of 49%. 

• They were satisfied overall with how the LPA handled their application: 62% 

agree that Cardiff achieved this against a Wales average of 61%. 

 

 

Page 99



 

6 
 

Our Performance 2015/16 

 
10. The ‘Our Performance 2015/16’ section of the APR forming Appendix 1  considered 

performance data relating to Plan Making, Efficiency, Quality, Engagement and 

Enforcement.  Key points identified in this section of the report were: 

• Plan Making  –  Cardiff Council adopted its Local Development Plan in January 

2016 – this was a significant milestone as the previous Local Plan was prepared 

in 1996 and was considered to be out of date;   

• Efficiency  – In 2015/16 Cardiff’s Planning Service determined 3,053 planning 

applications which took an average of 79 days to process – this compares to the 

Welsh average of 77 days; in 2015/16 Cardiff had an average planning officer 

caseload of 186 applications – this was the second highest rate of all United 

Kingdom core cities (Liverpool had the highest score at 197 cases per planning 

officer); in 2015/16 75% of all Cardiff planning applications were processed within 

the required timescales – the Welsh average was 77%; in 2015/16 Cardiff 

determined 52 major planning applications – these took an average of 266 days 

to determine (the Welsh average was 213 days); in 2015/16 Cardiff’s Planning 

Service processed 27% of its applications within the required timescales – this 

compared to 35% across the rest of Wales; in 2015/16 the percentage of minor 

applications determined within the required timescales increased from 67% to 

84%; in 2015/16 the percentage of householder applications determined within 

the required timescales increased from 71% to 86%;    

• Quality  – In 2015/16 Cardiff’s Planning Committee determined 91 planning 

applications – this equated to 3% of all planning applications determined (the 

Welsh average is 4% lower at 7%); 1% of the decisions taken by Cardiff’s 

Planning Committee went against officer advice (the Welsh average was 9%); in 

2015/16 the Council received 47 appeals against planning decisions – this 

equates to 1.5% of all applications (the Welsh average is 2%); from the 35 

appeals that were decided during the year 63% (22 cases) were dismissed; 

• Engagement  – 62% of survey respondents stated that Cardiff’s Planning Service 

received good advice to help them make a successful application – this is 4% 

higher than the Welsh average of 58%;  

Page 100



 

7 
 

• Enforcement  – In 2015/16 the Council investigated 532 enforcement cases 

which equated to 0.66 per 1,000 of the population; in Cardiff 97% of the 

enforcement cases were investigated within 84 days; 88% of enforcement action 

in Cardiff was taken within 180 days from the start of the case.  

 
Planning Service Performance – 2016/17 

 
11. The performance of the Planning Service is also assessed beyond the APR process- 

through the Council’s own Scrutiny and reporting mechanisms.  As a part of its role 

in monitoring Council performance and supporting improvement the Environmental 

Scrutiny Committee has scrutinised areas within its terms of reference on a quarterly 

basis; this includes reviewing the performance of the Planning Service which is a 

part of the City Operations Directorate.  In particular it has regularly commented 

upon two key performance indicators which are reported to the Welsh Government 

on a regular basis, these are: 

 
• PLA/004 (a)  – Percentage of major planning applications determined during the 

year within 13 weeks;  

• PLA/004 (c)  - Percentage of householder planning applications determined 

during the year within 8 weeks.  

 
12. It should be noted that in the last 12 months significant progress has been made 

against both of these indicators.  PLA/004 (a) achieved an outturn figure of 12% 

against a target of 25% for 2015/16.  The Planning Service returned an outcome of 

37.5% during Quarter 1 2016/17 and then achieved a result of 53.8% for Quarter 2 

2016/17.  At the same time PLA/004 (c) achieved an outturn figure of 71.4% against 

a target of 80% for 2015/16.  The Planning Service returned an outcome of 80.8% 

during Quarter 1 2016/17 and then achieved a result of 80.3% for Quarter 2 2016/17.   

 
Way Forward 

13. Councillor Ramesh Patel, Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & Sustainability 

and Councillor Michael Michael, Chair of Planning Committee have been invited to 

attend for this item. They will be supported by officers from the City Operations 

Page 101



 

8 
 

Directorate. A presentation will be given to Members which will complement 

information included within the APR and cover the following topics: Service 

overview, main achievements, performance overview, improvements actions, overall 

overview & looking ahead, together with an opportunity for further 

questions/discussion. 

 
Legal Implications 
 

14. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or 

without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 

recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be 

within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 

imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on 

behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural 

requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 

properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 

circumstances. 

 
Financial Implications 
 

15. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in 

relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if 

and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 

modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations. 

Page 102



 

9 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Committee is recommended to: 

 
i. Note the contents of the attached reports; 

ii. Consider whether they wish to pass on any comments to the Cabinet following 

scrutiny of the item titled ‘Planning Service – Member Update’. 

 
DAVINA FIORE 

Director for Governance & Legal Services 

30 November 2016 

Page 103



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPENDIX 1

Page 105



Cardiff LPA 
 

PLANNING ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT (APR) –  
2016-17 

 
 
PREFACE 
 
The Planning Service plays a key role in delivering Council priorities and helping Cardiff 
become Europe’s most liveable Capital City. Considerable progress has been made in recent 
years with the recent adoption of the LDP in January 2016 putting in place a strategic 
framework to help deliver and effectively manage the highest projected level of growth in 
UK cities.   
 
I am particularly pleased that development activity in the city continues apace and is 
delivering the aims and objectives of the LDP. This ranges from nationally significant Grade 
A office developments (including the new BBC Headquarters) in the heart of the City Centre 
to the progression of strategic sites around the city following the masterplanning and 
infrastructure planning approach articulated in the LDP.  
 
Overall, Development Management caseload has increased by nearly 20% from the previous 
year, a trend not replicated across Wales. Although this is excellent news in terms of seeing 
new development coming forward, there are clearly challenges with regard to the balance 
between resources and workload for the Planning Service.  
 
In this respect, I fully welcome the APR process as it captures the ongoing work being 
carried out on improving performance within this context and will form a baseline for year-
on-year analysis including the opportunity for a Wales-wide dimension given the standard 
reporting format. I very much support the Minister’s vision of a positive planning system in 
Wales and see the APR process as one of the many elements which will help to fulfil these 
aims. Indeed, work on the inaugural APR last year has helped to inform the preparation of 
Planning Service Business Plan in April 2016 which seeks to set out how the Service will be 
managed and improved over future years.   
 
Councillor Ramesh Patel, Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Transport & Highways 
 
 
CONTEXT 
 
1.1 Overview   
 
Cardiff is capital city of Wales and economic driver of the Cardiff Capital Region. It is the 
fastest growing core city in percentage terms in the UK with a current population of 
354,300. Around 80,000 people commute into the city each day reflecting a population of 
1.5 million in the Cardiff Capital Region as a whole.  
 

Page 106



The Planning Service therefore has a vital role to play in setting the policy framework to 
manage this growth, working with other Local Authorities on cross-boundary dimensions, 
providing an efficient Development Management service to quickly bring forward 
appropriate development and also playing a leading role in the placemaking agenda by 
securing the highest possible quality in new development.    
 
1.2 Planning background   
 
Cardiff’s LDP was adopted in January 2016 and will now play a critical role in managing 
future growth. The Plan sets out how the evidenced needs for new homes and jobs can be 
delivered in a sustainable manner which respects environmental qualities of the city. Equally 
importantly, it sets out a comprehensive framework to manage the growth by ensuring the 
phased delivery of supporting social, community and transportation infrastructure with 
masterplanning details for each Strategic Site embedded into the Plan. The Plan contains a 
particularly comprehensive Monitoring Framework which will be used as the basis for 
annual reporting. Work is now underway on updating and preparing some 30 
Supplementary Planning Guidance documents on a wide variety of topics which will be 
consistent with the policy framework set out in the LDP. 
 
In terms of the scale of growth within the Plan, provisions are made to deliver some 45,415 
new homes in the Plan period (2006-2026) with over half being provided on brownfield 
sites. Eight Strategic Sites have been identified to help accommodate the growth ranging 
from the exciting Cardiff Central Enterprise Zone in the heart of the city to five Greenfield 
housing-led sites totalling some 13,000 new homes with masterplanning frameworks setting 
out details of other supporting infrastructure and uses.  
 
The LDP has replaced a patchwork of earlier Plans which had become outdated with the 
Structure and Local Plans being nearly 20 years old. The Unitary Development Plan was 
never taken to examination/adoption and the first attempted LDP prepared under the 
previous administration was withdrawn following the significant concerns raised by the 
Inspectors including the lack of evidence supporting the proposed ‘brownfield only’ strategy 
central to the Plan.   
 
1.3 Corporate policy context 
 
The work of the Planning Service directly helps deliver key Council priorities as set out in the 
Council’s Community (‘What Matters’) Strategy 2010-20 which has a vision of Cardiff being a 
world class European capital City with an exceptional quality of life and at the heart of a 
thriving city-region. Furthermore, the Council’s Corporate Plan, 2015-17 is based on the 
vision of becoming Europe’s most liveable capital city and states, “Cardiff’s growing 
population is a sign of our success- that so many people want to live in our city is perhaps 
the greatest compliment it can receive. But, population growth can put pressure on public 
services and infrastructures, and so we must plan our city, and out public services, for the 
future to ensure that we protect the very thing which makes our city great- the quality of 
life of our residents”. 
 
The, ‘Cardiff Liveable City report’ (October 2015) re-enforces this vision: 

Page 107



“The most successful cities are those that offer a high quality of life as well as a high quality 
of job opportunity. Cities like Cardiff. That’s why we’ve put liveability at the centre of our 
long term strategy for Cardiff and the Cardiff Capital Region. This requires much more than a 
thriving economy and excellent job opportunities- it requires great public spaces and access 
to our natural environment, culture, high quality schools, affordable housing, and learning 
opportunities, as well as a commitment to protect the most vulnerable. It’s about taking a 
broader approach, appreciating everything that makes a city a great place to live”.  
 
The functions undertaken by the Planning Service are therefore right at the heart of 
delivering these corporate priorities which recognise the need for significant further growth, 
but delivering this growth in a sustainable way which enhance the liveability and quality of 
life credentials of the city- Encapsulating the ‘classic’ role of the planning system in 
effectively balancing competing interests and delivering growth in a managed way. The LDP 
clearly responds to this context and, along with supporting guidance, will provide the 
necessary framework to achieve these aims.   
 
1.4 Existing and previous major influences on land use 
 
Cardiff boomed during the Victorian era off the back of the extensive coal mining and 
related industries in the South Wales Valleys. This resulted in the construction of docks 
facilities in the south of the city which brought with it associated thriving industries and 
import/export businesses. The city centre, some 1 mile to the north, developed in tandem, 
reflecting new wealth and confidence. The Edwardian era saw further examples of civic 
pride with the development of the Cathays Park Civic Centre, creation of extensive 
parklands and high quality ‘villas’ in the new suburbs complimenting large areas within 2 
miles of the city centre of terraced workers housing. 
 
The city has continued to spread outwards with new suburbs being developed, a 
combination of Council estates in the post-war era and new privately developed urban 
extensions. However, following the decline of the mining industry in the South Wales 
Valleys and the associated impacts on the docklands and related industries, significant 
regeneration has taken place in and around Cardiff Bay.  The Cardiff Bay Development 
Corporation was established in 1987 and spearheaded a massive programme of 
regeneration including the construction of the Cardiff Bay Barrage. This created a new 
freshwater lake, now the centrepiece of a wide variety of redevelopment schemes which 
have taken place in the area. Today, Cardiff Bay is a successful tourist destination of world 
significance and houses the Welsh Government, Wales Millennium Centre and has brought 
forward high volumes of offices and apartments.  
 
The significant regeneration of Cardiff Bay has been complimented by the further 
enhancement of the City Centre which has seen a number of major projects including the 
Wales Millennium Stadium and St David’s 2 Shopping Centre, helping elevate Cardiff to be 
ranked 6th top retail centre in the UK and become an ‘events capital’ of world repute as 
evidenced during the recent Rugby World Cup. The City Centre and Bay therefore remain 
the principal office locations and current proposals for a new Transport Interchange in a 
redeveloped Central Square including new BBC Headquarters and other Grade A office 
space represent the next chapter in the success story of the City Centre.      

Page 108



 
1.5 Landscape and historic setting 
 
The urban area of Cardiff sits within a well-defined landscape setting with the Severn 
Estuary to the south, framed by prominent hills and ridges to the west and north. The 
countryside contains areas of particularly high landscape and biodiversity value with the 
Caerphilly Mountain ridge providing a strong and distinctive ‘green backdrop’ to the city.  In 
contrast, the eastern edge of the city forms part of a much wider landscape unit of low-lying 
‘levels’, an area of flat reclaimed land located behind the Sea Wall. Four significant corridors 
of open space based on the rivers Ely, Taff, Rhymney and Nant Fawr provide ‘fingers’ of 
largely publically accessible land which run through the urban area and link to the 
countryside beyond.  
 
The city contains 27 Conservation Areas and almost 1,000 Listed Buildings. Many areas of 
interest are based around old village centres now within the urban area and also the 
particularly rich Victorian and Edwardian legacy.           
 
1.6 Settlement pattern 
 
The geographical extent of Cardiff is relatively limited with the urban area dominating. 
However, there are large tracts of countryside in some areas between the settlement and 
administrative boundaries, most notably to the north-west and north. The villages of St 
Fagans, Creigiau and Pentyrch are free-standing villages within such areas of countryside to 
the north west of the urban area.   
 
1.7 Population change and influence on the LDP 
 
The Plan makes provision to deliver the official projections and also reflects a full 
assessment of all relevant factors including taking account of independent expert advice 
which was commissioned before and after the Preferred Strategy. As a result of this work, 
the LDP makes provision for 45,415 new dwellings to meet evidenced needs. Importantly, 
this level of growth fully accords with the Plan strategy and meets an appropriate balance 
between all relevant factors. 
 
 

Page 109



PLANNING SERVICE 
 
2.1 Organisation Structures 
 
The Planning Service is located within the City Operations Directorate, one of the following 6 
Directorates reporting to the Chief Executive: 

 City Operations 

 Communities, Housing & Customer Services 

 Economic Development 

 Education & Lifelong Learning 

 Social Services 

 Resources/ Governance & Legal 
 
City Operations captures a wide range of outward-facing functions including Transportation, 
Highways, Infrastructure, Waste, Recycling, Energy, Parks, Sport, Leisure, and Bereavement 
& Registration Services. 
 
The Planning Service contains 4 Teams managed by the Head of Planning as summarised 
below: 

 Planning Policy  

 Development Management- Strategic & Placemaking 

 Development Management- Non Strategic & Enforcement 

 Building Control 
All teams are located in County Hall, but currently not on the same floors. Plans have 
recently been implemented to ensure that the 3 Planning Teams are now located in close 
proximity allowing enhanced efficiencies to be achieved and lead to improved linkages 
between teams. 
 
2.2 Wider organisational activities impacting upon the Planning Service 
 
The Council has had to make £150 million of savings since 2010. The trend is set to continue 
with the Council having to make a further £117 million savings by 2018/19 (including making 
up a £47.4 million deficit in 2016/17, of which £8.45 million is to be found from the City 
Operations directorate). The Planning Service has seen its staff resource significantly decline 
as a consequence of this challenging environment over recent years. Not only has the 
number of Officers reduced dramatically, but the number of senior posts and experienced 
Officers has also diminished. The impacts are heightened by the fact that this is a familiar 
pattern within other Service Areas which help the Planning Service deliver its functions. 
 
To give an indication of the scale of impacts, through a combination of Voluntary Severance, 
deleted vacant posts and managed processes, some 20 posts have been removed from the 
establishment in the past 5 years. Furthermore, considerable experience has departed the 
authority in a short space of time as evidenced in a reduction of Operational Managers 
leading Planning Teams in recent years from 5 to 2.  
 
The impacts of the current financial pressures are also continuing to be felt by other 
Sections within the City Operations Directorate and other Service Areas which work with the 

Page 110



Planning Service in delivering shared objectives. This compounds the ability to effectively 
manage the current climate of diminishing resources and has direct consequences in areas 
such as internal consultee response times on planning applications, securing resources to 
take forward cross-Service Area initiatives and gain the active involvement of other relevant 
Officers in policy making such as the preparation of SPG, LDP monitoring/review and 
contributing to the emerging Strategic Development Plan (SDP) agenda.  
 
2.3 Operating budget 
 
The Planning establishment has diminished in recent years, thereby reducing the staffing 
budget overheads. Further savings have also been secured through reducing in-service 
budgets, managing vacancy provisions, ceasing payment of professional fees to staff, and 
minimising external spend. Planning fee income has also been used in the past to contribute 
to meeting Directive savings targets as part of the overall savings the Council is required to 
make.  
 
However, the primary source of income generated through planning fees has varied 
significantly over recent years, largely reflective of wider economic conditions. For example, 
during the economic downturn and slow recovery between 2008/09- 2012/13, fee income 
per annum remained between £1.2- £1.4 million. The last few years have seen a marked 
improvement in economic conditions, reflected in a related rise in planning application fee 
income of nearly £1.5 million in 2013/14 and £1.86 million in 2014/15.  
 
The 15% increase in planning fees in the autumn of 2015 has been welcomed, but the fee 
refund clauses contained in the new Planning Fee Regulations introduce significant risk. 
Furthermore, the proposed new standard rates for pre applications are set at a rate below 
existing charges for pre-applications in Cardiff, but the enhanced discretionary pre-
application service is also being utilised by customers.  
 
With specific regard to fee refund clauses, Cardiff is considered particularly vulnerable due 
to processing a high number of complex major applications, often requiring the signing of 
Section 106 Agreements, which can inevitably take a long time before consent can be 
issued. Many of the reasons for the time taken are reflective of complexities, the need for 
amended plans to make proposals acceptable and delays in securing sign off.   
 
Monthly budget monitoring meetings now take place between the Head of Planning, Central 
Finance and Directorate Accountant with the aim of monitoring monthly outrun figures 
against anticipated budget spend. The big variable remains planning fee income so efforts 
are being made to gather greater intelligence on potential applications in the pipeline to 
directly assist budgetary discussions. In this respect, as Cardiff has a high number of major 
applications, the fee income generated varies widely, as opposed to householders where 
income is easier to predict. A very small number of applications can generate significant 
income in this respect.   
 
Fee income targets for 2015/16 were slightly raised to £1.93 million from the 2014/15 
target and were almost exactly achieved. The target for the current year (2016/17) has been 
further raised. Whilst development management activity is currently strong in Cardiff and 

Page 111



considerable efforts are being made to manage fee income as best as possible, there 
remains inherent risk in meeting budget income targets which might not accurately reflect 
future changes in market conditions and other external factors which will are key 
determinants in shaping income. However, the new Business Planning process, along with 
regular dialogue with Central Finance, will aim to put in place the most financially 
sustainable strategy possible within a challenging environment. Furthermore, the adoption 
of the LDP has helped provide the certainty required to trigger the implementation schemes 
which will help deliver the Plan. 
 
2.4 Staff issues 
 
There are currently just below 50 FTE posts within the Planning Service (excluding Building 
Control). 
These posts can be broken down as follows (rounding up/down regarding FTE percentages): 

 3 Senior Managers- Of which, 1 Head of Planning and 2 Operational Managers 

 7 Planning Policy Planners 

 14 Development Management Case Officers 

 1.5 Enforcement Officers 

 6 Placemaking Team Planners (Design, Projects and Conservation) 

 2 ‘Specialists’- 1 Ecologist, 1 Tree Officer 

 2 Planning Assistants (DM Registration/Validation roles) 

 10.5 Technical/Administrative support/Website management 

 1 GIS Officer 

 1 E-Government/Performance Reporting Officer 
 
As outlined in Section 2.2, the Planning Service has been subject to significant staff losses in 
a short space of time. This has created sub optimal capacity within the Service and 
continues to exert considerable pressure on Officers in all Teams. In such a context, it is 
difficult to develop a robust succession planning strategy, particularly with the challenges of 
successfully filling posts which become vacant, requests for Voluntary Severance and 
responding to budget saving requests.  
 
Such challenges are not unique across Wales but impacts in Cardiff are exacerbated by the 
considerable workload demands as reflected in processing the highest number of 
applications in Wales in 2015/16 by a wide margin (3,053 compared to a Wales-wide 
average of 949). This means that the staff resource lacks any slack. Therefore, ‘pinch points’ 
or delays can often quickly back-up due to Officers being on leave or addressing urgent 
priorities and are challenging to resolve in the short term.      
 
Notwithstanding this context, Officers remain highly motivated and dedicated to providing 
the best service possible to customers. Sickness rates are at extremely low levels and far 
lower than the Directorate and Council-wide average. Individual performance is formally 
monitored through a Council-wide, ‘Personal Development and Performance Programme’ 
through which Performance expectations are set, formally reviewed after 6 months and 
updated annually.     
 

Page 112



Expectations and workload demands extend beyond processing planning applications and 
the preparation of planning policy. In this respect, the Planning Service regularly works with 
other Service Areas in providing expert assistance on land disposals, masterplanning, 
Section 106 priorities, renewable energy initiatives, helping secure multi-use of new 
community facilities, together with regeneration and heritage projects.  
 
Looking ahead, there will be clearly be impacts resulting from an increasing Development 
Management caseload in general, and an increasing number of major applications in 
particular, which often trigger complex Section 106 negotiations and can have considerable 
resource implications on managing amendments, pre-commencement conditions and 
approvals of reserved matters. The implementation of the new Strategic Development Plan 
(SDP) process will also generate an added dimension to work in conjunction with other Local 
Authorities and partners in the Cardiff Capital Region. Furthermore, there may be additional 
resource demands resulting from the potential progression of a tidal lagoon project of 
national significance with a proposed barrage extending some 22km into the Severn Estuary 
from Cardiff to Newport. The preparation of the Planning Service Business Plan in April 2016 
and outlined in Section 3.5 outlines how it is intended to plan ahead with regard to 
attempting to match resources to workload demands.  
 

  

Page 113



 
YOUR LOCAL STORY 
 
3.1 Workload: Planning Policy 
 
The adoption of the LDP in January 2016 marks a significant landmark in planning policy 
with the previous Local Plan approved nearly 20 years ago. LDP-related work will still form 
an important element of policy work, particularly with regard to the 102 indicators which 
will inform future Plan review, preparation of new SPG and identifying Gypsy & Traveller 
site(s) but other key topics also include the emerging SDP and NDF agendas along with 
Housing Land Availability Studies. Main areas of work can be summarised as follows: 

 Co-ordinating the delivery of a programme of SPG post LDP adoption- To date, 28 
SPGs have been identified with 3 phases of approval currently planned for within 6, 
12 and 18 months of adoption. Further work is underway in identifying additional 
priorities 

 Engaging in the new SDP process- As economic driver of the Cardiff Capital Region, 
Cardiff will seek to play an active role alongside other Local Authorities in 
progressing this work, ultimately under the direction of a SDP Panel  

 Preparing the LDP Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) each Autumn for consideration 
by Welsh Government and carrying out future LDP Plan review as required- The AMR 
is considered the most comprehensive in Wales to date with over 100 indicators 
requiring a considerable resource and systems in place to effectively capture the 
required information 

 Working with the Housing Service to identify new Gypsy & Traveller demand and 
site(s) to meet the demand in accordance with AMR and Housing Act requirements  

 Preparing the annual Joint Housing Land Availability Study 

 Land use monitoring 

 Providing policy advice on planning applications 

 Providing the Council’s Mineral Planning function 

 Working on cross-Service Area projects regarding ‘land searches’, land disposals and 
regeneration initiatives 

 Helping respond to likely heavy workload demands resulting from the potential Tidal 
Lagoon Power project between Cardiff and Newport  

 
Overall, this is a challenging workload for a small Team. However, the Team have recently 
moved offices to become co-located with the rest of the Planning Service. This has opened 
up opportunities for more effective linkages with other Teams within the Planning Service. 
The Business Planning process will consider how different Teams within the Section can 
work more flexibly and as part of this consider spreading the Development Management 
workload wider and look at improvements in the way internal observations are made on 
applications. As part of this process, Officers within the Policy Team are starting to take on 
an element of Development Management caseload in order to ‘spread the load’ more 
effectively across the Service. Officers in Development Management have helped by 
providing guidance and a ‘buddy service’ as the new approach beds in.  
 
 
 

Page 114



3.2 Workload: Development Management & Enforcement 
 
Cardiff determines the highest number of planning applications in Wales. During 2015/16, 
we determined 3,053 planning applications compared to a Wales average of 949. This 
represents an increase of nearly 20% more than the previous year- A not insignificant rise 
which has not been matched in terms of additional staff resource. This trend is not one 
which has taken place on a Wales-wide basis. However, it is noted that fee income has not 
risen at the same rate reflecting the points raised about fee income uncertainties in Section 
2.3.  
 
This workload is managed by Case Officers spread across 2 Teams with Majors managed 
within the Strategic Development Management & Placemaking Team and others within the 
Non-Strategic Development Management Team. The number of applications determined by 
individual Case Officers varies considerably reflecting the vast differences between the 
complexities of considering major applications such as urban extensions at one end of the 
scale to householder proposals at the other end of the scale. As referenced in Section 3.1, 
above, some householder caseload has started to be managed by Officers in the Policy 
Team to help more effectively manage workload demands. 
 
The Case Officers therefore determine up to approximately 300 applications per annum 
with those progressing majors determining considerably less. Wider support from within the 
Service to assist Case Officers in their deliberations is also essential to the processing of 
applications such as in the provision of expert advice on matters such as design and policy. 
Importantly, the Administration Officers also play a key role as the sheer volume of 
applications being processed demand effective systems to keep applications smoothly 
flowing through the system and regularly updating the tracking of applications on the 
website.    
 
Looking ahead, with the adoption of the LDP setting out a strategy to deliver a high level of 
growth, improved market confidence, and wide range of greenfield and brownfield projects 
potentially in the pipeline, it is anticipated that the number of applications submitted will 
continue to rise. Similarly, there is anticipated to be a rise in major applications, the scale 
and complexity of which inevitably lengthens the time taken to determine, especially having 
regard to the Section 106 dimension. Furthermore, major applications (especially those 
triggering the EIA Regulations) can often generate significant costs for the Service relating to 
advertising notices.    
 
A significant and increasing workload not captured in statistics is generated by post-decision 
dialogue with aggrieved parties who have issues with either the decision and/or process in 
reaching the decision. These can quickly turn into time consuming and complex cases 
triggering Local Member involvement, formal complaint procedures and demand the 
attention of Officers at all levels.   
 
Enforcement investigations generate a caseload of some 500-800 cases per year. The 
Enforcement Team has been significantly reduced in recent years with 3 Officers currently 
sharing their time between enforcement investigations and as development management 
case officers. Much of the work is reactionary to complaints and observations received, but 

Page 115



there is also proactive work/investigations undertaken when other work pressures allow. In 
addition, project work will occasionally be undertaken which would seek to resolve a 
particular issue. For example, recently, action has been progressed in respect of the display 
of To-Let signage which was considered to be having a significantly adverse effect on the 
visual amenity of the area of the city within close proximity to the University. The resultant 
situation has seen traditional signage removed and replaced with more sympathetic smaller 
signage, to the satisfaction of Local Members and permanent residents.  
 
3.3 Workload: Placemaking  
 
The Placemaking Team delivers a wide range of statutory and non-statutory planning 
functions and includes expertise in such areas as urban design, masterplanning, 
conservation of the built and natural environment and project management. 
 
The Team are heavily engaged in supporting the delivery of the Cardiff Local Development 
Plan through the preparation and implementation of planning policy as well as the 
preparation of background work in terms of masterplanning principles and infrastructure 
planning to ensure that the planned level of growth delivers liveable, integrated 
neighbourhoods to benefit both existing and new communities. 
 
In addition, the Team are supporting the Development Management function by providing 
expert design, conservation and ecological advice for current planning applications including 
major brownfield development and significant urban extensions.  This work involves close 
collaboration with Development Management and a wide range of internal and external 
stakeholders. 
 
The Team are also leading on the preparation and adoption of the Cardiff Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  This work has created significant additional workload for the Team 
and is progressing towards submission in 2017.  Alongside the preparation of the CIL, Cardiff 
is reviewing the approach to S106 planning obligations including a comprehensive review of 
process and policy guidance to support both the Development Management function and 
the Local Development Plan.  The team is also engaged in viability assessments from major 
developments to ensure that necessary infrastructure can be delivered to sustain Cardiff’s 
planned level of growth. 
 
Current work is ongoing to update and review a number of Supplementary Planning 
Guidance within the Team following the adoption of the Cardiff Local Development Plan in 
January 2016. 
 
The Team has seen a reduction in staff within the natural environment Team from 6 to 2.  
The workload of these officers is considerable, and includes providing expert advice to 
Development Management and other Council Directorates as well as performing their 
statutory duties under national and European legislation. 
 
Major initiatives are also being delivered by the Placemaking Team including the Cardiff 
Heritage Enhancement Programme, Buildings at Risk surveys, Cardiff Letting Boards 
Initiative and the preparation of masterplans for Cardiff City Centre and Bay. 

Page 116



3.4 Local pressures 
 
Across the Planning Service as a whole, the key challenge is how to effectively manage 
increasing workload demands and expectations within a context of diminishing resource 
capacity over recent years. Linked to this is the sheer volume of applications processed 
together with the high number of complex major development proposals. Given the severe 
financial pressures, the ability to increase the establishment is severely limited so the new 
approach to performance improvement as set out in the Planning Service Business Plan will 
focus on maximising the existing resource along with exploring the ability to flexibly draw 
down additional resource when required.   
  
The Business Plan contains a wide range of improvement measures which are set out in the 
following section and summarise the approach being taken to address these pressures. 
However, it is recognised that the Planning Service operates within a rapidly changing 
environment. For example, ‘unforeseen’ Member priorities requiring significant resource 
may emerge, and the staff resource available at any one time may fluctuate.  
 
Therefore, it is recognised that the most effective response must allow some flexibility and 
ability to respond to opportunities or challenges. The new approach therefore puts in place 
a framework which gives strategic direction but it will also evolve so annual reviews of the 
Business Plan are built in to the process.  
 
The range of improvement measures being developed as outlined in Section 3.5 
demonstrate the strong desire to improve performance within this environment but the 
scale of the challenges cannot be underestimated as is the ability to bring about instant 
results. Therefore, a strong theme is putting in place more effective performance 
management measures so that over time, the right level of accurate and up-to-date 
information is readily available to inform future decisions with regard to resourcing and 
workload priorities.   
 
3.5 Service Improvement   
 
A combination of factors including the pressures outlined above has resulted in a fresh 
approach to service improvement being developed within the Planning Service.  
 
The recent changes to the Planning System in Wales have quite correctly put increased 
emphasis on enhanced delivery and performance. This ties in with improved performance 
monitoring and management measures with the inaugural APR process now enabling a 
more informed Wales-wide discussion on how improvements can be sustained over time. As 
resources and capacity continue to be under extreme pressure and demands/expectations 
continue to rise, there is more of a need to effectively manage and maximise resources with 
continuous improvement the key to achieving this objective. The appointment of a new 
Head of Planning in June 2015 has brought about a new approach to respond to this 
challenging environment and builds upon work undertaken previously. 
 
At the heart of this approach is recognition that the need for improvement measures is 
more acute than ever. There is also recognition that improvement measures can come in all 

Page 117



shapes and sizes and rolled out over different timescales. The key to setting out this new 
approach is set out in the inaugural Business Plan for the Planning Service (April 2016). It 
sets out a Strategy for 2016-17 including arrangements for monitoring, review and updates 
thereafter. This will resolve the previous situation of no Planning Service Business Plans 
having been prepared in recent years and provide a firmer basis to bring forward 
improvements and more effectively manage scarce resources over future years.    
 
Most importantly, the Business Plan puts in place a framework which will be used as the 
basis to annually assess performance and consider the most appropriate further 
improvement measures and other actions which are considered necessary to ensure the 
Planning Service can successfully deliver its functions in future years.   
 
The Business Plan contains a vision, sets out core functions, outlines resources & customers, 
highlights main achievements & performance overview including SWOT analysis and then 
contains Planning and Improvement Priorities for 2016/17. Annual reviews will set out 
future progress and performance with results against indicators covered in subsequent 
sections of this report also helping inform the annual business planning process. 
 
It is encouraging that early improvement measures triggered by the Business Plan process 
have already started to see improvements in performance. However, a degree of caution 
also needs to be sounded as the finite capacity of resource to move forward all identified 
improvement actions (vis-à-vis the heavy workload demands) will inevitably mean that 
progressing all identified actions within a short period will simply not be possible. The 
annual review process will assist measuring progress and identifying further actions which 
are considered to be of the highest priority.      
 
3.6 Performance Framework  
 
The analysis of performance against the indicators set out in the Performance Framework 
has helped to inform the range of measures set out in the above Section. Furthermore, a 
brief commentary for each indicator is provided within the Performance Framework Section 
including contextual information as part of the response.  
 
Overall, results are considered encouraging with significant improvements relating to plan-
making, efficiency and enforcement indicators when compared to the previous year. In part, 
this reflects on-going improvement actions linked to the new Planning Service Business 
Planning process with early improvement measures having focused upon key performance 
areas and showing positive early results. However, given the extremely heavy workload, it is 
challenging to commit resources to the more complex improvement initiatives and there 
remains a real risk of day-to-day workload demands leaving insufficient capacity to both 
maintain and further improve performance. 

Page 118



WHAT SERVICE USERS THINK 
 
In 2015-16 we conducted a customer satisfaction survey aimed at assessing the views of 
people that had received a planning application decision during the year.  

The survey was sent to 1,045 people, 11% of whom submitted a whole or partial response. 
The majority of responses (46%) were from local agents. 39% were from members of the 
public. 10% of respondents had their most recent planning application refused. 

We asked respondents whether they agreed or disagreed with a series of statements about 
the planning service. They were given the following answer options:  

 Strongly agree;  

 Tend to agree;  

 Neither agree not disagree;  

 Tend to disagree; and  

 Strongly disagree.  

Table 1 shows the percentage of respondents that selected either ‘tend to agree’ or 
‘strongly agree’ for each statement for both our planning authority and Wales. 

Table 1: Percentage of respondents who agreed with each statement, 2015-16 

  % 

 
      

Percentage of respondents who agreed that: Cardiff LPA 

 

Wales  

The LPA enforces its planning rules fairly and consistently 50 
 

47 
The LPA gave good advice to help them make a successful application 62 

 
58 

The LPA gives help throughout, including with conditions 48 
 

49 
The LPA responded promptly when they had questions 57 

 
58 

They were listened to about their application 56 
 

57 
They were kept informed about their application 47 

 
49 

They were satisfied overall with how the LPA handled their application 62   61 

We also asked respondents to select three planning service characteristics from a list that 
they thought would most help them achieve successful developments. Figure 1 shows how 
often each characteristic was selected as a percentage of the total number of selections. For 
us, 'having access to the case officer to check on applications' was the most popular choice. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



Figure 1: Characteristics of a good planning service, Cardiff LPA, 2015-16 

 

Comments received include: 

“Having had experience of the Planning Process elsewhere, impressively efficient responses 
and timely conclusion!!” 

“More information should be given to applicants on how it is progressing, I was trying to get 
information on my application up until two days before the expiry date. I just got told the 
department was busy.” 

“We were happy with the service we have receieved from the Cardiff Council.” [sic] 

 

Page 120



OUR PERFORMANCE 2015-16 

This section details our performance in 2015-16. It considers both the Planning Performance 
Framework indicators and other available data to help paint a comprehensive picture of 
performance. Where appropriate we make comparisons between our performance and the all 
Wales picture. 

Performance is analysed across the five key aspects of planning service delivery as set out in the 
Planning Performance Framework: 

 Plan making; 

 Efficiency; 

 Quality;  

 Engagement; and 

 Enforcement. 

Plan making 

As at 31 March 2016, we were one of 22 LPAs that had a current development plan in place. The 
adoption of the LDP in January in January 2016 represents a significant milestone as the previous 
Local Plan was prepared in 1996 and out of date with regard to managing significant need to 
provide new homes, jobs and supporting infrastructure.    

During the APR period we had 5.2 years of housing land supply identified, making us one of 8 Welsh 
LPAs with the required 5 years supply. 

Efficiency 

In 2015-16 we determined 3053 planning applications, each taking, on average, 79 days (11 weeks) 
to determine. This compares to an average of 77 days (11 weeks) across Wales. Figure 2 shows the 
average time taken by each LPA to determine an application during the year. This is, by a 
considerable margin, the highest number of applications determined in Wales and as described in 
Section 3.2, places unique demands on the Planning Service. 

The resultant performance is considered to represent an excellent achievement, particularly as the 
average caseload of Development Management Case Officers is considerable when compared with 
other Planning Services. For example, the average caseload has been assessed across Core Cities in 
2015/16 with Cardiff having an average caseload per Officer of 186 applications. This compares to 
70 in Newcastle, 105 in Bristol, 109 in Leeds, 110 in Sheffield and is the second most efficient rate in 
all Core Cities, second only to Liverpool with an average caseload of 197.  

Whilst this points to a highly efficient service, it also confirms the points made in Sections 2 and 3 
on the genuine challenges facing the service in terms of managing an extremely heavy workload 
within the confines of the limited ability to simply draw upon additional resources as a response to 
the situation. 

 

         

Page 121



Figure 2: Average time taken (days) to determine applications, 2015-16 

 

75% of all planning applications were determined within the required timescales. This compared to 
77% across Wales and was below the 80% target. Only 8 out of 25 LPAs met the 80% target. 

Figure 3 shows the percentage of planning applications determined within the required timescales 
across the four main types of application for our LPA and Wales. It shows that we determined 86% 
of householder applications within the required timescales. 

Figure 3: Percentage of planning applications determined within the required timescales, by type, 
2015-16 

 

Between 2014-15 and 2015-16, as Figure 4 shows, the percentage of planning applications we 
determined within the required timescales increased from 65%. Wales also saw an increase this 
year. 

Figure 4: Percentage of planning applications determined within the required timescales 

Page 122



 

Over the same period: 

 The number of applications we received increased;  

 The number of applications we determined increased; and 

 The number of applications we approved increased. 

Major applications 

We determined 52 major planning applications in 2015-16, 4% (2 applications) of which were 
subject to an EIA. Each application (including those subject to an EIA) took, on average, 266 days 
(38 weeks) to determine. As Figure 5 shows, this was longer than the Wales average of 213 days (30 
weeks) but reflects the complexities involved with the nature of the proposals including securing 
contributions through the Section 106 Agreement process.  

Figure 5: Average time (days) taken to determine a major application, 2015-16 

 

27% of these major applications were determined within the required timescales, compared to 35% 
across Wales. 

Page 123



Figure 6 shows the percentage of major applications determined within the required timescales by 
the type of major application. 6% of our ‘standard’ major applications i.e. those not requiring an 
EIA, were determined within the required timescales during the year. 

Figure 6: Percentage of Major applications determined within the required timescales during the 
year, by type, 2015-16 

 

In addition we determined 10 major applications that were subject to a PPA in the required 
timescales during the year. 

Since 2014-15 the percentage of major applications determined within the required timescales had 
increased from 8% which is considered to reflect recent performance improvements now beginning 
to be rolled out in the Service. Similarly, the number of major applications determined increased 
while the number of applications subject to an EIA determined during the year decreased. 

Figure 7 shows the trend in the percentage of major planning applications determined within the 
required timescales in recent years and how this compares to Wales. 

Figure 7: Percentage of major planning applications determined within the required timescales 

 

Page 124



Over the same period:  

 The percentage of minor applications determined within the required timescales increased 
from 67% to 84%; 

 The percentage of householder applications determined within the required timescales 
increased from 71% to 86%; and 

 The percentage of other applications determined within required timescales increased from 
65% to 66%. 

 
Therefore, it is encouraging that 2015/16 has seen an improvement in determination rates for all 
types of applications. It is hoped that the new performance measures now recently put in place will 
continue to see improvements for 2016/17. 

Quality 

In 2015-16, our Planning Committee made 91 planning application decisions during the year, which 
equated to 3% of all planning applications determined. Across Wales 7% of all planning application 
decisions were made by planning committee.  

1% of these member-made decisions went against officer advice. This compared to 9% of member-
made decisions across Wales. This equated to 0% of all planning application decisions going against 
officer advice; 0.6% across Wales. 

In 2015-16 we received 47 appeals against our planning decisions, which equated to 1.5 appeals for 
every 100 applications received. Across Wales 2 appeals were received for every 100 applications. 
Figure 8 shows how the volume of appeals received has changed since 2014-15 and how this 
compares to Wales.  

Figure 8: Number of appeals received per 100 planning applications 

 

Over the same period the percentage of planning applications approved decreased from 94% to 
90%. 

Page 125



Of the 35 appeals that were decided during the year, 63% were dismissed. As Figure 9 shows, this 
was lower than the percentage of appeals dismissed across Wales as a whole and was below the 
66% target.  

However, this is partly reflective of an issue of particular relevance to Cardiff- The matter of the 
consideration of high numbers of applications for houses in multiple occupation (HMOs). Following 
concerns with regard to amenity issues and cumulative impact, a number of applications have been 
refused and lost on appeal. New SPG is proposed to be put in place in 2016 which will hopefully 
provide a more robust local policy context on this matter, particularly concerning the matter of 
cumulative impact.   

Figure 9: Percentage of appeals dismissed, 2015-16 

 

During 2015-16 we had no applications for costs at a section 78 appeal upheld. 

Engagement 

We are: 

 one of 24 LPAs that allowed members of the public to address the Planning Committee; and 

 one of 20 LPAs that had an online register of planning applications. 

As Table 2 shows, 62% of respondents to our 2015-16 customer satisfaction survey agreed that the 
LPA gave good advice to help them make a successful application. 

Table 2: Feedback from our 2015-16 customer satisfaction survey 

  % 

    
Percentage of respondents who agreed that: Cardiff LPA 

 

Wales  

The LPA gave good advice to help them make a successful application 62 
 

58 

They were listened to about their application 56   57 

Page 126



Enforcement 

Enforcement Performance Indicators have been collected/collated incorrectly within the Planning 
Service since April 2015 when the PI definitions were amended resulting in the ‘nil return’ originally 
recorded.   
 
However, the enforcement performance indicators have now been recalculated using manual SQL 
queries as the back office system had not been updated or developed by the supplier to take into 

consideration amendments to the PI indicators.  
 
Using the recalculated data, in 2015-16 we investigated 532 enforcement cases, which equated to 
0.66 per 1,000 population. 

Over the same period, we investigated 97% of these enforcement cases within 84 days.   

88% of this enforcement action was taken within 180 days from the start of the case. Figure 11 was 
based on incorrect data of 81%- If the correct data was inputted, this would show we are the third 
highest percentage in Wales. 

Figure 10: Percentage of enforcement cases resolved in 180 days, 2015-16 

 

Page 127



ANNEX A - PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK  
 
OVERVIEW 
 

MEASURE GOOD FAIR IMPROVE 
 WALES 

AVERAGE 
Cardiff LPA 
LAST YEAR 

Cardiff LPA 
THIS YEAR 

Plan making        

Is there a current Development Plan in place that is within the 
plan period? 

Yes   No 
 

Yes No Yes 

LDP preparation deviation from the dates specified in the original 
Delivery Agreement, in months 

<12 13-17 18+ 
 

47 70 N/A 

Annual Monitoring Reports  produced following LDP adoption Yes   No  Yes N/A N/A 

The local planning authority's current housing land supply in 
years 

>5  <5 
 

3.9 3.6 5.2 

Efficiency        

Percentage of "major" applications determined within time 
periods required 

Not set Not set Not set 
 

35 8 27 

Average time taken to determine "major" applications in days Not set Not set Not set  213 172 266 

Percentage of all applications determined within time periods 
required 

>80 60.1-79.9 <60 
 

77 65 75 

Average time taken to determine all applications in days <67 67-111 112+  77 39 79 

Quality        

Percentage of Member made decisions against officer advice <5 4.9-8.9 9+  9 10 1 

Percentage of appeals dismissed >66 55.1-65.9 <55  66 67 63 

Applications for costs at Section 78 appeal upheld in the reporting 
period 

0 1 2 
 

0 0 0 

Engagement           

Does the local planning authority allow members of the public to 
address the Planning Committee? 

Yes   No 
 

Yes Yes 
 

Yes 
 

Does the local planning authority have an officer on duty to Yes   No  Yes Yes Yes 

P
age 128



MEASURE GOOD FAIR IMPROVE 
 WALES 

AVERAGE 
Cardiff LPA 
LAST YEAR 

Cardiff LPA 
THIS YEAR 

provide advice to members of the public?  

Does the local planning authority’s web site have an online 
register of planning applications, which members of the public 
can access, track their progress (and view their content)? 

Yes Partial No 
 

Yes Yes 
 

Yes 
 

Enforcement        

Percentage of enforcement cases investigated (determined 
whether a breach of planning control has occurred and, if so, 
resolved whether or not enforcement action is expedient) within 
84 days 

Not set Not set Not set 

 

79 50 97 

Average time taken to investigate enforcement cases Not set Not set Not set  88 No Data 16 

Percentage of enforcement cases where enforcement action is 
taken or a retrospective application granted within 180 days from 
the start of the case (in those cases where it was expedient to 
enforce)? 

Not set Not set Not set 

 

73 82 88 

Average time taken to take enforcement action Not set Not set Not set  210 148 114 

 

P
age 129



SECTION 1 – PLAN MAKING 
 

Indicator 
01. Is there a current Development Plan in place that is within 
the plan period? 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

A development plan (LDP or 
UDP) is in place and within the 
plan period  

N/A No development plan is in 
place (including where the plan 
has expired) 

 

Authority’s performance Yes 

LDP adopted in January 2016 with first Annual Monitoring report due in Autumn 2017. 
 

 
 

Indicator 
02. LDP preparation deviation from the dates specified in the 
original Delivery Agreement, in months 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

The LDP is being progressed 
within 12 months of the dates 
specified in the original 
Delivery Agreement 

The LDP is being progressed 
within between 12 and 18 
months of the dates specified 
in the original Delivery 
Agreement 
 

The LDP is being progressed 
more than 18 months later 
than the dates specified in the 
original Delivery Agreement 

 

Authority’s performance N/A 

N/A- LDP now adopted. 
 

 
 
 

Indicator 
03. Annual Monitoring Reports  produced following LDP 
adoption 

“Good”  “Improvement needed” 

An AMR is due, and has been 
prepared 

 An AMR is due, and has not 
been prepared 

 

Authority’s performance N/A 

AMR not due until Autumn 2017 as LDP adopted in January 2016. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 130



Indicator 
04. The local planning authority's current housing land supply in 
years 

“Good”  “Improvement needed” 

The authority has a housing 
land supply of more than 5 
years 

 The authority has a housing 
land supply of less than 5 years 

 

Authority’s performance 5.2 

Whilst a supply is currently in place, there are concerns that the rigid methodology set out in 
TAN1 may have a significant bearing on future land supply assessments. Without the 
consideration of wider information/evidence, future studies are unlikely to provide a completely 
comprehensive picture of land supply together with an understanding of the factors and realities 
relating to delivery rates.  
 

 
 
 

Page 131



SECTION 2 - EFFICIENCY 
 

Indicator 
05. Percentage of "major" applications determined within time 
periods required 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked 

 

Authority’s performance 27 

This represents a significant positive increase from the 8% figure for 2014/15 reflecting current 
work on improving performance. 
In terms of a Wales-wide context, Cardiff processes a large number of complex major 
applications. The nature of many of these applications are extremely complex, often triggering 
the requirements of the EIA Regulations and requiring the signing of lengthy Section 106 
Agreements which, in some cases, require extensive negotiations between the Council, 
landowners and developers.  
However, Cardiff is fully committed to making improvements to the Planning Service with the 
range of measures set out in Section 3.5 setting out a comprehensive approach to tackling the 
significant challenges faced and captured in the inaugural Planning Service Business Plan for 
2016/17. 
 

 
 

Indicator 
06. Average time taken to determine "major" applications in 
days 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked 

 

Authority’s performance 266 

This indicator inevitably reflects the large number of complex major applications which are 
determined in Cardiff. 
When submitted, major applications often require extensive Senior Officer involvement in order 
to bring the applications to a position where they can be recommended positively. This ‘enabling 
approach’ is commenced at pre-application stage but inevitably major proposals can result in 
lengthy discussions and the resultant need for amended plans, additional information/studies 
which also trigger further consultation periods.  
Negotiating Section 106 agreements which have delivered hundreds of thousands of pounds 
worth of contributions to the city also take time to conclude and can trigger the additional need 
for viability assessments.  
Overall, it is considered that Service has fully embraced the enabling approach as set out in the 
recent Planning (Wales) Act and seeks to secure the timely determination of applications which 
are fully consistent with the policy framework. In this respect, taken alone, this indicator is not 
necessarily reflective of measuring the efficiency of performance as it purely concerns time taken 
as opposed to value added, securing positive outcomes and the overall quality and robustness of 
the decision reached. 

Page 132



Indicator 
07. Percentage of all applications determined within time 
periods required 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

More than 80% of applications 
are determined within the 
statutory time period 

Between 60% and 80% of 
applications are determined 
within the statutory time 
period 

Less than 60% of applications 
are determined within the 
statutory time period 

 

Authority’s performance 75 

This represents a positive increase from the 65% figure for 2014/15 reflecting current work on 
improving performance. 
Furthermore, in terms of context, the Council adopts an approach of attempting to secure 
acceptable quality in applications rather than refusing applications which may be just one 
amendment away from acceptability. This is considered to remain a valid approach according 
with the positive planning agenda but will inevitably impact on decisions within target times. 
Clearly, with the refund clauses in the new Planning Fee Regulations, additional pressure will be 
placed on promptly determining applications but the Council wishes to retain a proactive 
approach to achieving acceptable schemes and will need to carefully manage applications in this 
respect.    
However, Cardiff is fully committed to making improvements to the Planning Service with the 
range of measures set out in Section 3.5 setting out a comprehensive approach to tackling the 
significant challenges faced and captured in the inaugural Planning Service Business Plan for 
2016/17. 
 

 
 

Indicator 08. Average time taken to determine all applications in days 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

Less than 67 days Between 67 and 111 days 112 days or more 

 

Authority’s performance 79 

This is slightly improved from the 2014/15 figure of 80.6 days and very close to the Wales-wide 
average. 
Moreover, by a considerable margin, Cardiff determines the highest number of applications in 
Wales and, as described in Section 3.2, this places unique demands on the Planning Service. 

The resultant performance is considered to represent an excellent achievement, particularly as 
the average caseload of Development Management Case Officers is considerable when 
compared with other Planning Services. For example, the average caseload has been assessed 
across Core Cities in 2015/16 with Cardiff having an average caseload per Officer of 186 
applications. This compares to 70 in Newcastle, 105 in Bristol, 109 in Leeds, 110 in Sheffield and 
is the second most efficient rate in all Core Cities, second only to Liverpool with an average 
caseload of 197.  

Whilst this points to a highly efficient service, it also confirms the points made in Sections 2 and 3 

Page 133



on the genuine challenges facing the service in terms of managing an extremely heavy workload 
within the confines of the limited ability to simply draw upon additional resources as a response 
to the situation. 

 

Page 134



SECTION 3 - QUALITY 
 

Indicator 09. Percentage of Member made decisions against officer advice 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

Less than 5% of decisions Between 5% and 9% of 
decisions 

9% or more of decisions 

 

Authority’s performance 1 

This is considered an excellent outcome and well below the Wales average.  
Members of Planning Committee have received appropriate training and the business of Planning 
Committee consistently follows protocols which are in place. Case Officers present reports to 
Committee Members with the assistance of plans and photographs which are shown on screens. 
Members of Committee can request site visits prior to considering proposals which can help 
develop an understanding of a site/proposal but this can also delay when the application is 
determined as the proposal would be considered at the next meeting (normally 4 weeks later). 
 

 
 
 

Indicator 10. Percentage of appeals dismissed 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

More than 66% (two thirds) of 
planning decisions are 
successfully defended at appeal  

Between 55% and 66% of 
planning decisions are 
successfully defended at appeal 

Less than 55% of planning 
decisions are successfully 
defended at appeal 

 

Authority’s performance 63 

Overall in Cardiff, 1.5 appeals were made for every 1,000 applications received, slightly higher 
than the 2014/15 figure of 1.4. This compares to 2 appeals for every 1,000 applications received 
across Wales. 
Of the 35 appeals, 63% were dismissed which is just below the 66% target of two thirds of 
decisions being successfully defended on appeal. 
However, this is partly reflective of an issue of particular relevance to Cardiff- The matter of the 
consideration of high numbers of applications for houses in multiple occupation (HMOs). 
Following concerns with regard to amenity issues and cumulative impact, a number of 
applications have been refused and lost on appeal. New SPG is proposed to be put in place in 
2016 which will hopefully provide a more robust local policy context on this matter, particularly 
concerning the issue of cumulative impact.  

Further work will be undertaken as part of the Business Plan process to identify if there are any 
further emerging themes and related actions required in response. 

 
 
 

Page 135



Indicator 
11. Applications for costs at Section 78 appeal upheld in the 
reporting period 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

The authority has not had costs 
awarded against it at appeal 

The authority has had costs 
awarded against it in one 
appeal case 

The authority has had costs 
awarded against it in two or 
more appeal cases 

 

Authority’s performance 0 

No costs were awarded against the Council on appeal. 
 

 
 

Page 136



SECTION 4 – ENGAGEMENT 
 
 

Indicator 
12. Does the local planning authority allow members of the 
public to address the Planning Committee? 

“Good”  “Improvement needed” 

Members of the public are able 
to address the Planning 
Committee 

 Members of the public are not 
able to address the Planning 
Committee 

 

Authority’s performance Yes 

A Planning Committee Protocol sets out arrangements which govern how the public are able to 
address the Planning Committee and attend site visits made by the Committee. 
 

 
 

Indicator 
13. Does the local planning authority have an officer on duty to 
provide advice to members of the public? 

“Good”  “Improvement needed” 

Members of the public can 
seek advice from a duty 
planning officer 

 There is no duty planning 
officer available 

 

Authority’s performance Yes 

Advice to the public is available from County Hall Reception staff, Officers from the Committee 
Section and also Planning Officers.  
 

 
 

Indicator 
14.  Does the local planning authority’s web site have an online 
register of planning applications, which members of the public 
can access track their progress (and view their content)? 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

All documents are available 
online 

Only the planning application 
details are available online, and 
access to other documents 
must be sought directly 

No planning application 
information is published online 

 

Authority’s performance Yes 

The Planning pages of the Council’s website contain up-to-date details of all live planning 
applications and progress can be tracked on individual applications along with the ability to see 
responses to consultation. Members of the public are informed of these facilities in consultation 
letters sent out informing the public about new applications. 
 

Page 137



SECTION 5 – ENFORCEMENT 
 

Indicator 

15.  Percentage of enforcement cases investigated (determined 
whether a breach of planning control has occurred and, if so, 
resolved whether or not enforcement action is expedient) 
within 84 days 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked 

 

Authority’s performance 97% 

Enforcement Performance Indicators have been collected/collated incorrectly within the 
Planning Service since April 2015 when the PI definitions were amended resulting in the ‘nil 
return’ originally recorded.   
 
However, the enforcement performance indicators have now been recalculated using manual 
SQL queries as the back office system had not been updated or developed by the supplier to take 

into consideration amendments to the PI indicators.  
 
The data shows that of the 532 cases recorded 517 were resolved within 84 days, which equates 
to 97%.  This compares to a figure of 75% for 2014/2015 using the same methodology.  
 

 

Indicator 16.  Average time taken to investigate enforcement cases 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked 

 

Authority’s performance 16 days 

The average time taken to investigate enforcement cases was found to be 16 days and was 
calculated using a manual SQL query.  
 
There is no data available for comparison for 2014/2015. 
 

 

Indicator 

17.  Percentage of enforcement cases where enforcement 
action is taken or a retrospective application granted within 180 
days from the start of the case (in those cases where it was 
expedient to enforce) 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked 

 

Authority’s performance 88% 

The percentage of enforcement cases where enforcement action was taken or a retrospective 
application was granted within 180 days from the start of the case was found to be 88%. This 

Page 138



figure was calculated using a manual SQL query.  
 
This compares to 82% for 2014/2015, which is above the Welsh average of 76.8% in 2014/2015 
for the same period using the same methodology. 
  

 
 

Indicator 18.  Average time taken to take enforcement action 

“Good” “Fair” “Improvement needed” 

Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked Target to be benchmarked 

 

Authority’s performance 114 days 

The average time taken to take enforcement action was found to be 114 days and was calculated 
using a manual SQL query.  
 
This compares to a figure of 148 days for 2014/15 using the same methodology. 
 

 

Page 139



 
SECTION 6 – SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT INDICATORS 
 
The purpose of the Sustainable Development Indicators is to measure the contribution the planning 
system makes to sustainable development in Wales. 
 
The Sustainable Development Indicators will be used to measure the progress against national 
planning sustainability objectives, set out in Planning Policy Wales, and can be used to demonstrate 
to our stakeholders the role and scope of the planning system in delivering wider objectives. The 
information will also be useful to local planning authorities to understand more about the 
outcomes of the planning system and help inform future decisions. 
 

Authority’s returns 
We provided no data for each quarter 
 

A team of Officers has been set up and systems are currently being put in place and trailed to 
effectively capture the wide range of information required to measure progress against the 
Sustainable Development indicators.  
 
This has already enabled data for indicators SD6 and SD7 to be captured for quarter 1 of 2016/17 
and reported to Welsh Government and work is ongoing in capturing data for quarter 2 with a view 
to reporting results to Welsh Government shortly. 
 
Work continues in putting in place processes to effectively capture data for the remaining 
indicators but despite efforts to create new systems to capture this data, the collection of data on a 
quarterly basis is not readily available for all the indicators. On a wider level, it is considered that 
further discussion may be beneficial in establishing the merits or otherwise of capturing data on a 
quarterly as opposed to annual basis- annual reporting generates trends based on longer periods 
avoiding the inevitable fluctuations created by recording data over shorter periods and can be more 
closely aligned with the plethora of existing data captured on an annual basis.    
 
 

 

Indicator 
SD1. The floorspace (square metres) granted and refused 
planning permission for new economic development on 
allocated employment sites during the year. 

 

Granted (square metres) 

 

Refused (square metres) 

 
 

Indicator 
SD2. Planning permission granted for renewable and low carbon 
energy development during the year. 

 

Granted permission (number of applications) 

 

Granted permission (MW energy generation) 

Page 140



 

Indicator 
SD3. The number of dwellings granted planning permission 
during the year. 

 

Market housing (number of units) 

 

Affordable housing (number of units) 

 

Indicator 
SD4. Planning permission granted and refused for development 
in C1 and C2 floodplain areas during the year. 

 

Number of residential units (and also hectares of non-residential units) that DID NOT meet all 
TAN 15 tests which were GRANTED permission 

 

Number of residential units (and also hectares of non-residential units) that did not meet all TAN 
15 tests which were REFUSED permission on flood risk grounds 

 

Number of residential units (and also hectares of non-residential units) that MET all TAN 15 tests 
which were GRANTED permission 

 

Indicator 
SD5. The area of land (ha) granted planning permission for new 
development on previously developed land and greenfield land 
during the year. 

 

Previously developed land (hectares) 

 

Greenfield land (hectares) 

 

Indicator 
SD6. The area of public open space (ha) that would be lost and 
gained as a result of development granted planning permission 
during the quarter. 

 

Open space lost (hectares) 

 

Open space gained (hectares) 

 

Indicator 
SD7. The total financial contributions (£) agreed from new 
development granted planning permission during the quarter 
for the provision of community infrastructure. 

 

Gained via Section 106 agreements (£) 

 

Gained via Community Infrastructure Levy (£) 

 
 

Page 141



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 

CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFF 

DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD 

ENVIRONMENTAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  13 OCTOBER 2015 

PLANNING SERVICE – MEMBER UPDATE 

Reason for the Report 

1. To provide Members with the opportunity to consider the current challenges being

placed on Cardiff’s Planning Service and review the work being undertaken to

address these challenges.  In particular the scrutiny will look at the impact of:

• The recently introduced Planning Wales Act 2015;

• The Town and Country Planning (Fees for Applications, Deemed Applications

and Site Visits) (Wales) Regulations 2015.

Background 

2. The Planning Wales Act 2015 became law in Wales on 6 July 2015.  It aims to

deliver a planning system which is fair; resilient and enables development; which

helps to create sustainable places where citizens have improved access to quality

homes, jobs and infrastructure; which protects our most important built and natural

environments and supports the use of the Welsh language. The Welsh Government

explains that the new Act ‘puts in place delivery structures, processes and

procedures to make Wales’ planning system fit for the 21st century’.

3. It is anticipated that the Planning Wales Act 2015 will create a series of changes for

Wales, these include:

• Providing a modern delivery framework for the preparation of development plans

and planning decisions. This will include allowing Welsh Ministers to decide a

limited number of planning applications in defined circumstances;

APPENDIX 2

Page 143



2 
 

• Strengthening the plan-led approach to decisions on planning applications by 

providing a legal framework for the preparation of a National Development 

Framework and Strategic Development Plans; 

• Improving collaboration by allowing the Welsh Ministers to direct local planning 

authorities to work together and for local planning authorities to be merged; 

• Improving engagement with communities by introducing a statutory pre-

application consultation process for significant planning applications; 

• Modernising the planning enforcement system so that breaches of planning 

control can be dealt with quickly. 

 
4. The implementation of ‘The Planning (Wales) Act 2015’ has resulted in changes to 

other pieces planning legislation. In particular changes have been applied to the 

planning fees which can be levied by local authorities in Wales.   

 
5. From the 1st October 2015 the new legislation will in effect consolidate parts of the 

Town and Country Planning (Fees for Applications, Deemed Applications and Site 

Visits) (Wales) Regulations 2015; the Town and Country Planning (Fees for 

Applications and Deemed Applications) Regulations 1989 and the Town and Country 

Planning (Fees for Non-Material Changes) (Wales) Regulations 2014. These 

Regulations provide for the payment of fees to local planning authorities in respect 

of: 

 
• Applications made under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 ("the 1990 

Act") for planning permission for development or for approval of matters reserved 

by an outline planning permission; 

• Deemed applications for planning permission under section 177(5) of the 1990 

Act; 

• Applications for a certificate of lawful use or development; 

• Applications for consent for the display of advertisements; 

• Certain applications under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development Order) 1995; 

• Applications for non-material changes to planning permission; and 

Page 144



3 
 

• Site visits to mining and landfill sites. 

 
6. The main changes introduced by the legislation are: 

• That planning fees may be increased by approximately 15%; 

• That fees paid in respect of applications for planning permission or for approval 

of reserved matters are refunded if the local planning authority fails to determine 

the application within specified times (Regulation 9); 

• That fees in respect of deemed applications are paid to the local planning 

authority rather than half to the local planning authority and half to the Welsh 

Ministers (Regulation 10); 

• That fees paid in respect of a deemed application in relation to the use of the 

land as a caravan site are to be treated the same as other applications for the 

purposes of refunds (Regulation 10(12)). Under the 1989 Regulations, such a 

deemed application was excluded from the provisions for refunds; 

• That fees are payable in respect of applications for consent, agreement or 

approval required by any planning condition or limitation, and any such fee is 

refunded if the local planning authority fail to determine the application within 

specified times (Regulation 15); 

• That a fee is payable to the local planning authority on a revised application for 

approval of reserved matters where those reserved matters have previously been 

approved. Under the 1989 Regulations such an application was exempt from 

payment of a fee where conditions were met; 

• Where applications are made for planning permission, for approval of reserved 

matters or for certificates of lawful use or development which relate to land in the 

area of two or more local planning authorities, a fee is payable to each local 

planning authority (paragraph 8 of Schedule 1). Under the 1989 Regulations the 

fee was payable to the local planning authority in whose area the largest part of 

the land was situated. 

 

7. At the meeting the recently appointed Head of Planning will deliver a presentation 

which will set out a wide range of performance improvements for the Planning 

Page 145



4 
 

Service which are currently being developed to respond to changes in the Planning 

system and also address other challenges to the Council’s Planning Service.  In 

doing this he will comment on: 

 
• The main impacts of current changes to the Planning System in Wales; 

• Planning Policy overview; 

• Infrastructure provision overview – Community Infrastructure Levy & Section 106 
Funding; 

• Placemaking overview; 

• Development Management overview; 

• Overview of main challenges facing the Planning Service; and 

• Performance improvement measures currently being developed in response to 
above. 

 
 
Way Forward 

8. Councillor Ramesh Patel (Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & Sustainability) 

and Councillor Michael Michael (Chair of Cardiff’s Planning Committee) have been 

invited to attend for this item.  They will be supported by officers from the City 

Operations Directorate.  

 
Legal Implications 
 

9. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or 

without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 

recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be 

within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 

imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on 

behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural 

requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 

properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Page 146



5 
 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 

circumstances. 

 
Financial Implications 
 

10. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in 

relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if 

and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 

modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Committee is recommended to: 

 
i. Note the contents of the attached reports; 

ii. Consider whether they wish to pass on any comments to the Cabinet following 

scrutiny of the Planning Service – Member Update.  

 
MARIE ROSENTHAL 
Director of Governance & Legal Services 
7 October 2015 
 

Page 147



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 1

CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFF                     
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:                      6 DECEMBER 2016                                                                                     
 
 

CORRESPONDENCE UPDATE – INFORMATION REPORT 
 
 
 
Background 

 
1. Following most Committee meetings, the Chair writes a letter to the relevant 

Cabinet Member or officer, summing up the Committee’s comments and 

recommendations regarding the issues considered during that meeting. This 

cover report provides a record of those letters and any other correspondence 

received since the previous Committee meeting. 

 
Issues 

 
2. At the Environmental Scrutiny Committee meetings on the 4 October and 15 

November 2016  Members considered the following items: 

 
• 4 October - Recycling & Waste Restricting Programme – One Year Update. 

• 4 October  - Pavement & Footway Maintenance in Cardiff. 

• 15 November  - Managing Litter in Cardiff. 

• 15 November  - Neighbourhood Services – Member Update. 

• 15 November  - Performance Reporting – Quarter 2 – 2016/17. 

 
3. After the meetings the following letters were sent by the Chair of the on behalf of 

the Committee: 

  
• A letter to Councillor Bob Derbyshire, Cabinet Member for the Environment after 

the meeting on the 4 October 2016 – attached as Appendix 1 ; 

• A letter to Councillor Ramesh Patel, Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & 

Sustainability after the meeting on the 4 October 2016 – attached as Appendix 2 ;  

Page 149

Agenda Item 6



 2

• A letter to Councillor Bob Derbyshire, Cabinet Member for the Environment after 

the meeting on the 15 November 2016 – attached as Appendix 3 ; 

• A letter to Councillor Ramesh Patel, Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & 

Sustainability after the meeting on the 15 November 2016 – attached as Appendix 

4.  

 
4. Since the last correspondence report replies have been provided to the following  

letters written on behalf of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee: 

 
• A further response to the letter sent by the Chair of the Committee to 

Councillor Patel following the meeting on the 17 May 2016; a copy of this 

response has been attached to this report as Appendix 5 . 

• A response to the letter sent by the Chair of the Committee to Councillor Patel 

following the meeting on the 6 September 2016; a copy of this response has 

been attached to this report as Appendix 6 . 

• A response to the letter sent by the Chair of the Committee to Councillor Patel 

following the meeting on the 4 October 2016; a copy of this response has 

been attached to this report as Appendix 7 . 

 
Legal Implications 

 
5. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising 

from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council 

must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any 

procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or 

person exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in 

accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly 

motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its 

taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances. 

Page 150



 3

Financial Implications 

 
6. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications 

arising from those recommendations. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

7. The Committee is recommended to note the content of the letters contained in 

Appendices 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7.   

 

Davina Fiore  

Director of Governance & Legal Services 

30 November 2016 

Page 151



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 

Ref: RDB/PM/BD/04.10.16 

25 October 2016 

Councillor Bob Derbyshire, 
Cabinet Member for the Environment, 
County Hall, 
Atlantic Wharf, 
Cardiff CF10 4UW. 

Dear Councillor Derbyshire, 

Environmental Scrutiny Committee – 4 October 2016 

On behalf of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee I would like to thank you 

and the officers from the Commercial & Collaboration Service for attending 

the Committee meeting on Tuesday 4 October 2016.  As you are aware the 

meeting considered an item titled ‘Recycling & Waste Restricting Programme 

– One Year Update’. The comments and observations made by Members

following this item are set out in this letter. 

Recycling & Waste Restricting Programme – One Year Update 

• A Member who recently visited a household waste recycling centre in

Bridgend noted that the site used a large board to show the percentage of

recycling achieved from materials presented at the site. The board

illustrated that the household waste recycling centre was achieving an

85% recycling rate and acted as a reminder to staff and the public of the

importance of achieving high recycling rates.  He also noted that staff

seemed very motivated towards achieving the recycling goal as they were

quick to offer advice as to where the materials from his vehicle should be

placed.

The Committee ask that you consider introducing such boards at 

sites in Cardiff as they could raise awareness of the need to 

maximise recycling rates and act as a reminder to staff and the 

public of the targets which need to be achieved.  

APPENDIX 1

Page 153



 

 2 

• At the meeting there was much discussion about achieving the 58% 

recycling target during 2015/16 and the impact that the inclusion of 

recycling fly ash had on the overall total.  After some discussion it was 

acknowledged that the overall recycling percentage was made up of a 

series of collection inputs (for example, food waste, fly ash, commercial 

waste, comingled recycling and household waste recycling centres) and 

that these all contributed to the overall 58% figure.  Members were told 

that the definition of what was accepted for inclusion in the overall 

recycling calculation tended to change each year and that the challenges 

facing each category constantly varied.  The conclusion was that no two 

years were the same making direct year to year comparison very difficult.   

 

During the way forward Members agreed that the Comm ittee should 

receive a breakdown of waste collection inputs into  the waste stream 

for each of the waste collection input streams; thi s should include 

the overall tonnage collected, the percentage recyc ling from the 

stream actually achieved and the unique challenges facing each 

stream from year to year. This data would give the Committee a 

greater insight into areas which are performing wel l and help identify 

where improvements could be made. As a starting poi nt the 

Committee would like this data for the financial ye ar 2015/16. 

 

• A Member explained that she had recently been made aware of a new 

scheme for dealing with waste on property frontages and asked for more 

information about the scheme.  She was advised that this was a 

Neighbourhood Services project and that they would be best placed to 

provide an update on this new scheme.  The Committee is due to receive 

an item titled ‘Neighbourhood Services – Member Update’ at their meeting 

in November.   

 

I would ask that the presentation for this item bri efly addresses the 

new scheme for dealing with waste on property front ages and in 

particular references how the scheme can be accesse d and the 

educational work taking place to support improvemen ts in this area.  

 

• When you responded to my letter following the meeting on the 17 May you 

provided a table which set out a breakdown of recycling by material type 

for 2015/16.   

 

Page 154



 

 3 

I would be grateful if you could provide the same i nformation for 

2014/15.  

 

• The letter produced after the meeting on the 17 May 2016 had a 

paragraph which stated: 

 

The subsequent Chair’s letter dated 29 May 2015 said that, “The Assistant 

Director for the Environment explained that a fly capture report could 

easily be produced for Cardiff and then confirmed that they could be 

produced on a Ward by Ward basis”. As a result this information was 

subsequently provided for each Ward and month for 2014/15 (excluding 

one month - April 2014) in Cllr Derbyshire’s letter of 15 September 2015. 

At the meeting a Member suggested that the definitions for fly-tipping and 

mispresented waste might have changed and that the information 

available was no longer as freely available when compared to May 2015. 

  

The fly capture information for April 2014 has yet to be provided; I 

would be grateful if you could arrange for this inf ormation to be 

made available to the Committee. 

 

I would be grateful if you would consider the above comments and provide a 

response to the requests made in bold in this letter. 

 

Regards, 

 

Councillor Paul Mitchell 

Chairperson Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

 
Cc: 
 

Tara King – Assistant Director for Commercial & Collaboration Services 

Jane Cherrington – Operational Manager, Strategy & Enforcement 

Matt Wakelam – Operational Manager, Infrastructure & Operations 

Paul Keeping – Operational Manager, Scrutiny Services 

Davina Fiore – Director for Governance & Legal Services 

Page 155



 

 4 

Members of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

Page 156



1 

Ref: RDB/PM/RP/04.10.16 

25 October 2016 

Councillor Ramesh Patel, 
Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & Sustainability, 
County Hall, 
Atlantic Wharf, 
Cardiff, 
CF10 4UW. 

Dear Councillor Patel, 

Environmental Scrutiny Committee – 4 October 2016 

On behalf of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee I would like to thank you 

and the officers from City Operations for attending the Committee meeting on 

Tuesday 4 October 2016.  As you are aware the meeting considered an item 

titled ‘Pavement & Footway Maintenance in Cardiff’. The comments and 

observations made by Members following this item are set out in this letter. 

Pavement & Footway Maintenance in Cardiff 

• During the way forward Members agreed that the best long term approach

for pavement and footway maintenance in Cardiff was to take a steady

state funding approach. This echoed the comments made about

maintenance of the overall highway asset in May 2016.  The letter sent to

you after the meeting in May 2016 has been attached to this letter as

Appendix 1 .

• Members noted the importance of a well maintained highway asset for

Cardiff and in particular emphasised the need for good quality

carriageways and pavements.  Whilst acknowledging the difficult

financial position that the Council faces they ask that you continue to

look for additional capital funds to support further improvements to

the overall highway asset.

APPENDIX 2

Page 157



 

 2 

 

• The subject of parking across paving slabs and pennant stone was raised 

during the meeting.  Members were concerned about the damage that 

such irresponsible parking causes and the financial impact that this has on 

the highway maintenance budget.  I would be grateful if you could 

provide the Committee with a summary of the costs c reated by this 

problem for the financial years 2014/15 and 2015/16 .  

 

• Members are aware of the damage that trees cause to pavements and 

footways across Cardiff. I would be grateful if you could provide the 

Committee with a summary of the costs that tree dam age caused to 

pavements and footways during the financial years 2 014/15 and 

2015/16. 

 
I would be grateful if you would consider the above comments and provide a 

response to the requests made in this letter. 

 

Regards, 

 

Councillor Paul Mitchell 

Chairperson Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
Cc: 
 
Andrew Gregory - Director for City Operations 

Matt Wakelam – Operational Manager, Infrastructure & Operations 

Gary Brown – Operational Manager, Assets, Engineering & Operations 

Andrew Greener – Team Leader, Assets, City Operations 

Paul Keeping – Operational Manager, Scrutiny Services 

Davina Fiore – Director for Governance & Legal Services 

Members of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

Page 158



1 

Ref: RDB/PM/BD/15.11.16 

28 November 2016 

Councillor Bob Derbyshire, 
Cabinet Member for the Environment, 
County Hall, 
Atlantic Wharf, 
Cardiff CF10 4UW. 

Dear Councillor Derbyshire, 

Environmental Scrutiny Committee – 15 November 2016 

On behalf of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee I would like to thank you 

and the officers from the City Operations Directorate and Commercial 

Services for attending the Committee meeting on Tuesday 15 November 

2016.  As you are aware the meeting considered items titled ‘Managing Litter 

in Cardiff’, ‘Neighbourhood Services – Member Update’ and ‘Performance 

Reporting – Quarter 2’. The comments and observations made by Members 

following this item are set out in this letter. 

Managing Litter in Cardiff 

• The Committee notes the scale of the task facing Cardiff’s Street Cleansing

Service in keeping the city clean.  They would like to thank all of the staff

involved in this huge task and congratulate them for the improvements

delivered in the last 12 months.  In particular they feel that the improvement

in the scores of the two ‘Local Government Data Unit Wales Report –

2015/16’ indicators has been a great success:

� Percentage of land of a high or acceptable level of cleanliness – 86.8%

in 2014/15 to 90.64% in 2015/16;

� Percentage of reported fly tipping incidents cleared within 5 working

days – 82.61% in 2014/15 to 97.91% in 2015/16.

• During the meeting a Member once again stressed the importance of the

newly formed Neighbourhood Services working closely with the Waste

APPENDIX 3

Page 159



 

 2 

Collection Service to maximise cleansing performance.  He felt that it was 

vitally important to ensure that this type of collaborative working approach 

is maintained, particularly now that Street Cleansing sits in Neighbourhood 

Services and Waste Collections is in Commercial Services. 

 
• Members agree with the proactive educational messages being delivered in 

Cathays and in particular welcome the approach of directing these 

messages at university students.  In addition they agree with the idea of 

issuing house based fixed penalty notices against shared houses as it 

stops the problem of specifically identifying who is responsible for any 

littering and instead places the onus on the landlord to manage the issue.  

 
• The Committee notes that 35 days is a long time to have to wait to deal 

with litter problems on private property frontages.  They support any legal 

approach that the Council might apply to speed up this process, for 

example, by using Section 4 of the ‘Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 

1949 (Harbourage)’ which can result in removal action being taken within 

seven days if the evidence supports the presence of vermin.  

 
• Members note and support the concept of the ward based blitzes which 

have recently taken place as a part of the ‘Love Where You Live’ 

campaign.  I would be grateful if you could provide the Committee with an 

update on this campaign in early 2017 when sufficient evidence should 

have been collected to indicate the progress made as a result of this 

campaign.  

 
• As stated above the Committee acknowledges the significant improvement 

achieved in increasing the percentage of reported fly tipping incidents 

cleared within 5 working days from 82% in 2014/15 to 97.91% in 2015/16.  

This moved Cardiff from the 21st to the 4th best performing local authority in 

Wales.  While this is seen as a huge improvement the Committee would 

like to understand what the three authorities ranked higher than Cardiff are 

doing to produce an even better result.  Understanding this could help 

Cardiff achieve even better progress.    

 
• During the meeting I asked if enforcement officers had the power to issue 

fines for littering and then accept an on the spot cash payment.  It was 

Page 160



 

 3 

explained that enforcement officers are not able to collect cash payments 

for fines.  I would be grateful if the Council could do something to reiterate 

this fact and to ensure that the public understands that the Council does 

not accept such on the spot cash payments for littering fines.   

 
• At the meeting you explained that enforcement officers can only use body 

cameras as a safety feature and that they cannot be used to record the 

actual littering offence.  I note that you were slightly frustrated at this 

position, particularly as some private sector litter enforcement companies in 

England are able to use body cameras as a personal safety and evidence 

gathering tool at the same time.  The Committee supports your view and 

asks that you continue to push for cameras to be used as an evidence 

gathering tool.  

 
• It was noted that Neighbourhood Services is in the process of implementing 

a new AMX infrastructure asset management tool and that a ‘reporter app’ 

is being developed to make it easier for the public to report things like 

potholes and fly tipping incidents.  The Committee looks forward to 

receiving a progress update on both of these new initiatives when it again 

scrutinises Neighbourhood Services in March 2017. 

 
Neighbourhood Services – Member Update 

 
• As per our comment within the Managing Litter in Cardiff section of this 

letter we will continue to advocate the use of body cameras for both 

evidence gathering and supporting personal safety.   

 
• The Committee welcomes the implementation of the balanced scorecard 

approach for future performance management within Neighbourhood 

Services.  They look forward to reviewing the new balanced scorecard and 

the initial results for Neighbourhood Services in March 2017.  

 
• It should be noted that the requests within this letter about Neighbourhood 

Services will also be included in the letter to the Cabinet Member for 

Transport, Planning & Sustainability as parts of the service fall within the 

Page 161



 

 4 

Transport, Planning & Sustainability portfolio.  I am happy to receive a joint 

reply on the requests made regarding Neighbourhood Services. 

 
Performance Reporting – Quarter 2 
 
• During the meeting I asked a question about the level of staff expenditure 

across City Operations and Commercial Services; in particular I asked why 

agency spend was so high compared to the actual agency budget for both 

services.  I would be grateful if you could provide a detailed response to 

this question in your reply to this letter. The same point has been raised 

with the Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & Sustainability. 

 
• When talking about reuse facilities you explained that such a scheme 

would work against the Council in terms of achieving its recycling target.  

You continued by saying that when an item is reused instead of being 

recycled it does not contribute to Cardiff’s recycling total.  You felt that this 

was slightly unfair as reuse should probably be at the top of the recycling 

hierarchy.  The Committee agrees with your position on this and asks that 

you lobby the Welsh Government to provide ‘recycling credits’ for any 

reused items.   

 
• Members welcomed the news that the new Kelda anaerobic digestion plant 

will be officially opened in 2017.  I would appreciate it if you could arrange 

for the Committee to have a tour of this new facility along with an overdue 

visit to the Viridor energy from waste facility in Splott.  

 
• A Member explained that recent changes to the commercial food waste 

collection scheme had caused some difficulties for companies who placed 

green plant waste into the food waste stream.   He had been informed that 

the changes had been put through to ensure lower contamination levels 

(i.e. less garden waste and more food waste) - this meant that some 

commercial customers now had to find an alternative commercial provider 

to deal with their green plant waste.  I would be grateful if you could ensure 

that Cardiff’s Commercial Waste Service makes sure that the new 

Page 162



 

 5 

commercial food waste standards are clearly communicated to all food 

waste customers. 

 
I would be grateful if you would consider the above comments and provide a 

response to the requests made in this letter. 

 
Regards, 

 

Councillor Paul Mitchell 

Chairperson Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

 
Cc: 
 

Andrew Gregory – Director for City Operations 

Tara King – Assistant Director for Commercial & Collaboration Services 

Jane Cherrington – Operational Manager, Strategy & Enforcement 

Pat McGrath – Operational Manager, Projects 

Matt Wakelam – Operational Manager, Infrastructure & Operations 

Paul Keeping – Operational Manager, Scrutiny Services 

Davina Fiore – Director for Governance & Legal Services 

Members of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

Page 163



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 

Ref: RDB/PM/RP/15.11.16 

28 November 2016 

Councillor Ramesh Patel, 
Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning & Sustainability, 
County Hall, 
Atlantic Wharf, 
Cardiff CF10 4UW. 

Dear Councillor Patel, 

Environmental Scrutiny Committee – 15 November 2016 

On behalf of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee I would like to thank you 

and the officers from the City Operations Directorate for attending the 

Committee meeting on Tuesday 15 November 2016.  As you are aware the 

meeting considered items titled ‘Neighbourhood Services – Member Update’ 

and ‘Performance Reporting – Quarter 2’. The comments and observations 

made by Members following this item are set out in this letter. 

Neighbourhood Services – Member Update 

• During the item on Managing Litter in Cardiff the Committee discussed the

need for enforcement officers within Neighbourhood Services to be able to

use body cameras for both evidence gathering and supporting personal

safety – the cameras are currently only used for supporting personal safety.

The Committee supports the Cabinet Member for the Environment’s view

that the Council should do what it can to enable the body cameras to be

used to gather evidence and not just to be used as a personal safety

device.  As enforcement officers fall within the remit of the Environment

portfolio this point only needs to be noted.

• The Committee welcomes the implementation of the balanced scorecard

approach for future performance management within Neighbourhood

Services.  They look forward to reviewing the new balanced scorecard and

the initial results for Neighbourhood Services in March 2017.

APPENDIX 4

Page 165



 

 2 

Performance Reporting – Quarter 2 
 
• During the meeting I asked a question about the level of staff expenditure 

across City Operations; in particular I asked why agency spend was so 

high compared to the actual agency budget for both services.  I would be 

grateful if you could provide a detailed response to this question in your 

reply to this letter. The same point has been raised with the Cabinet 

Member for the Environment.  

 
• As you will be aware the topic of the South Wales Metro was discussed at 

the meeting.  Once again I would like to reiterate the Committee’s view that 

light rail is the best way forward for this scheme as it is the more cost 

effective and flexible transport system available. In addition to this I would 

personally like to emphasise the importance of completing the circle line 

between Coryton and Radyr.  This I feel is an essential element for 

Cardiff’s part of the South Wales Metro which would significantly improve 

the transport linkage between the east and west of the city. 

 
I would be grateful if you would consider the above comments and provide a 

response to the requests made in this letter. 

 

Regards, 

 

Councillor Paul Mitchell 

Chairperson Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

 
Cc: 
 

Andrew Gregory – Director for City Operations 

Matt Wakelam – Operational Manager, Infrastructure & Operations 

Paul Keeping – Operational Manager, Scrutiny Services 

Davina Fiore – Director for Governance & Legal Services 

Members of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

Page 166



APPENDIX 5

Page 167



Page 168



APPENDIX 6

Page 169



Page 170



APPENDIX 7

Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174


	Agenda
	3 Strategaeth Beicio Ddrafft Caerdydd a Map Rhwydwaith Integredig
	Item 3 - Appendix 1
	Item 3 - Appendix 2
	1. Cycling ERM
	2. Statement and Explanation_Eng
	3. Walking ERM Ely Caerau
	4. Walking ERM Grangetown
	5. Walking ERM Llanishen
	6. Walking ERM Llanrumney
	7. Walking ERM Roath
	8. Walking ERM Whitchurch

	Item 3 - Appendix 3
	01. WalkingINM_Overview
	02. Cyncoed North
	03. Fairwater
	04. Lisvane & Thornhill Station
	05. Llanedeyrn
	06. Pontcanna
	07. Radyr
	08. Roath Park
	09. Roath
	10. WaterlooGdns&NewportRd
	11. Whitchurch Village

	Item 3 - Appendix 4
	01. Overview
	02. Canton_Grangetown_Butetown
	03. Fairwater_Caerau_Ely_StFagans
	04. LlandaffN_Llandaff_Radyr_Whitchurch
	05. Llanishen_Lisvane_Cyncoed_Heath_Rhiwbina
	06. Llanrumney_Rumney_Pentwyn_StMellons_Trowbridge
	07. Penylan_Plasnewydd_Splott_Adamsdown
	08. Riverside_Cathays_Gabalfa
	09. Primary Route_EW1
	10. Primary Route_EW2
	11. Primary Route_EW3
	12. Primary Route_NS1
	13. Primary Route_NS2

	Item 3 - Appendix 5
	Item 3 - Appendix 6

	4 Ffordd Gyswllt Ddwyreiniol y Bae – Cydastudiaeth Arfaethedig
	5 Gwasanaeth Cynllunio – Diweddariad i Aelodau
	Appendix 1
	Annual Report Cover 2016 copy
	APROct2016

	Appendix 2

	6 Gohebiaeth
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Atodiad 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7




